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2,932,580, 549
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0.10
100, 415 10, 041.50
UBS
149, 994, 296
0.10 14,999,429.60
2010
0.10 277, 750, 000
27,775, 000
(i) (i)
a (iii)
2011 12.5
0.10 365,000, 000
36,500,000
(i) (i)
a (iii)
30
SNB
0.10 100, 000, 000
10,000, 000
12
SNB
2010 27 0.10
5,001, 246 500, 124.60
0.10 500, 124.60
2011 15 0.10 293, 25¢

29,325,805
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(1)
1971 12 26

(2)
(a)

(permanent establishment)

(b)
35
35

20

12 31
Form R93
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(3)
(a)

(b)
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2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

36, 2|68

(32,

40, 4
318)( 36,

70 47, 4
63)( 42,

84 31,7

(70

26, 8/40
D17)( 25, 426)( 29,

(23,

28,5

33 33,3

65 35, 4

6 3 28,5

9, 4

(8,401) (10,

28 11,9

37 14,1

19 -3,7

537)( 12, 581)(- 3,

42 -27,
834) - 24,

UBS

7,5

(6,7110) (12,

8 0 13,5

32 11,5

58)( 10, }

27 -5,2

1,703

(1,518|, 1(210,)7 8 3

| 6427, 001,

, 1(729,)09 2

092, 348,

, 9(526,)0 2 7

8921, 014,
, 1(515,)7 95

UBS

35,
(31,

1|16 1

45,6
532)( 40,

33 51,0

564)( 45, 4

37 36, 8

179)(32, 859)(28,

75 32,5

36, 496

(32,

43, 4
522)(38, {

12 47,7

584)( 42, °

28 35,7

530)(31, 897)( 12,

95 14, 4

90

(80|3)

| 87
(77

!
6) (18

211

8) (18

207 293

4) (26

UBS

23.

| O 36.

YO 25.

T0 -10.

90 -58.

3. 1|0 5.7
(27]6)

(51

4 4.9
1) (44

5) (-2

9 -2.43

17) (-6

BI'S Tier

1

12.

80 13.

80 12.20 9.1

0 11.

Bl S

14.

| O 14. 4§

b O 15.00

12. 20

15.

266,
(237

)55 312, §
18840278

4970)306,

552()333

b3 2 344,d)15 374,421 302, 2

6470)269,

1. 5|0 1.6
(13[4)

(14

0 2.2
3) (19

0 0.0
6) (

0 0.0

. 0|0 0.3

0)) (2]

0 0.0
() (o

0 0.0
) (o

21 796
$13)(28,267)

47 -21,12
»72)(-4,676)-18,
733, 274,

9)
55

732)(31,601)(25, 445)
758

735)
92
973)
815

L 402)
31

) 8 8)
87

)0 9)

1)

70

-7. 69

55 )

73
355)

~

. 20 26.

8 0 42.40

D60 - 63,
|4400- 586,

T93

-5, 3
846) -4,

84 -52,

798 - 46,

)78 76,9
407) 68, !

80
59 7)

716 -2,4
('21

09 4, 4
147) (3,9

e 2,7
56) (2, 4

53 1,6
53) (-1, 4

76
193)

(35,

8l23 65,1
486)(58,

60 48,0
64)(42,

92 74,5
3 55)( 66,

68 -5,5
448)(- 4,

57
) 52)

(77,

091 91,0
$07)(81,

42 136,
128 (121,

90 149,
2700132

8670)160,

05 179, 6

66
100)

67,

412 4 69, 5

69 78,1

40 83, 5|60

77,7

83

UBS

UBS
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
7., 464 11, 350 9, 364 2,647 -6, 880
(6,65[3) (10,114) (8,346) (2,355) (-6,131)
6,26 1 10, 05(8 7,674 -8,709[7 -36,852
(5,57/9) (8,96[3) (6,83[7) (-7,839)(-32,8[39)
5,944 13, 497 6,554 - 4,251 -36,4809
(5,209[8) (12,027) (5,84/4) (-3,788)(-32,5[15)
20, 998 26, 462 26, 988 21, 339 5, 64§
(18, 711) (23,580) (24,049) (19,015) (5, 03(3)
1,135,809 ,359, 342,585, 141,598,072, 189, 356
(1,012,]1%49), 211,488), 413,[054), 424,[042), 059,(835)
39, 26(8 46, 152 44,90[8 33,990 29, 70[6
(34,992) (41,126) (40,018) (30,288) (26, 471)
901 871 211 207 293
( 803) (776) (188 (184)) (261)
1862 1872
1998 29
UBS UBS
2008 UBS
20009 10
150
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS

UBS
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UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
(1)
2008 12 31
(2)
UBS
UBsS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
2008 12 31
¢ )
(
)
UBS 4.0 100.0
( )
UBS 50.7 100.0
(
UBS 60.0 100.0
(
UBS 150.0 100.0
( )
UBS 9.2 100.0
( )
UBS 0.0 100.0
( )
UBS ( 8.5 100.0
( )
UBS 1,700.0 100.0
UBS 77.2 100.0
(
UBS 23.0 100.0

14/390



UBS

UBS

UBS
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UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

0.1
176
5.0
0.2
(
2,005.
( )
31.0
( )
0.0
( )
2.3
( )
5.0
0.1
44.3
( )
1.0
(

0.0
10.0
25.0

39.3

0.0

0.1

1.5

2.0

(
2.0
(
0.0
(
3.3
2.5
(
53.9
)
105.0
0.3
349.
1,250.
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UBS

UBS
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UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

118, 000.

209. 8
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UBS

UBS
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UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS
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UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

75. 0

190. 0

106. 3

42.0

18.0
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UBS 23. 2 100.0
( )
UBS 19.0 100.0
UBS 86. 0 100.0
( )
UBS 5.0 100.0
UBS 45,000.0 51.0
UBS 8. 8 100.0
UBS 1.0 100.0
( )
UBS 73. 2 100. 0
UBS 7.5 51.0
UBS 9.3 100.0
( )
UBS 50.0 100.0
UBS ( 0.5 100.0
) ( )
UBS ( ) 0.1 100.0
( )
UBS Zabierzow 0.1 100. 0
UBS 6. 8 100.0
UBS 0.0 100.0
( )
UBS 0.0 100.0
( )
UBS 0.0 100.0
( )
UBS 0.0 100.0
UBS 1,249.6 100.0
UBS 0.1 100.0
z.0.0
(1) 2008 12
()
49,541
15,271
Uus 18, 929
15, 341
3,786
17,171
7,285
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77,783

(2)
2008 162 6,200 4,491
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UBS
20009 10
2008
& 2008
2007 63 1,000 36 100
1,700
2008 1,251 1,010
2,940 8,700
97
63.1
uUus 2007 6 7,400
2008 8 1,000 2008 , 600
2008 266 106
8,400 6,000
82 89.
113. 4 38 3,500 1
828,000 721,000
2007 8,200 24
4,900
2008 46 114
1,640 1,290
57.7 51. 2 1,430
2 1.0
2007 14 5,400 2008 13 3, ¢
2008 157 1,030
5,220 3,350
3,690 2,400
38
41 64.5 54.1
2008 2007 166 6, 900 34:
2008 2007 2008
VaR 10 99
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5 1,400 7,400
0. 4 3.6
2007 22 2,200 2008
3,100 2008 35 6,200
9,800 13 4,000 10 2,900
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
10 UBS
2005 UBS
2008
Us
UBS
2009 10 UBS
us
20009 UBS UBS

UBS

21/390



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
UBS
UBS
UBS
2008 12 31 8,700
2008
5,755
110 100
Credit Sui sse H ¢
Citigroup
Coutts Sal
Oppenheim Unicredito
Julius Baer Pictet
25 200
500 500 5,000

5,000

UBS

UBS
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2009 18 UBS DOJ
SEC DOJ SEC
UBS 8,000 1,700 8,
UBS
UBS 2008 SEC
UBS
UBS I RS
FI NMA UBS
DOJ
DOJ UBS 18 UBS
UBS
DOJ UBS
2009 18 FI NMA FI NMA UBS
UBS SEC
FI NMA UBS
DOJ FI NMA
2008
I RS 2008 UBS
UBS
2009 19 I RS
UBS
UBS
UBS | RS
2008 2007 1,251 1,01
UBS
10
2008 12 31
1 2,940 33 8,700
2008
97
2008 74 77

23
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1
43 36
28
19 104 2,900
68 2,800
20 31 1,200
10 6,400
15 8,100
2008
2007 1,900
2008 12 31
2005

Il nvest ment s

51.1 2008 6 3.
1,700 8,000
54. 6
2007 63 1,000
1,700
128 9,200
15
20
65 8,200
1,700
10
38 7,300
20 100 2008
15 3,100
9,500
us
Us
6,000
Us
8,100
Piper Jaffray
Mc Donal d
UBS 2008
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UBS USA
us
UBS
Uus
Uus
1,000
250, 000
UBS
2010
2008
Uus

us

USA

UBS

FDI C

2009

2008

RMA
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20009
2008 12
000 100
Uus
2008 UBS
UBS
FDI C
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UBS
2008
2007 266 106
UBS
UBS
12
2008 2007
117
2008 12 31 US 2007 12 31
29 6, 000
2 4
2008 2007 77
54
28
2007 89. 9 2008 113. 4
ARS US 16 3,600
14 6,400 7
ARS us
2008 ARS
ARS 200
85. 8
2008 41 7,300 38
2008 2008
6 3 6 6
2008 2007 828,000
2008 12 31
8,182
us 2007 7,400
2008 1,000
ARS 16 3,600
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515

400

82

2008

, 200
ARS

8

ARS

500

2007

721,000

6 6

2008



23 ARS
2008 2007 66 6,000
ARS
2008 2007 59 8,600
ARS 14
ARS
UBS
2008
2008 12 31 1,430
UBS
1,260 ATM 303
24 UBS 65
ATM
2008 12 31 600, 000
2008 80
UBS
Credit Sui sse
Rai ffeisen Bank
250 300
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41

13
2007
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11
ARS

290
UBS

24

ATM

6 6
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135,000 200
8,200 M& A
126,000
3,000 UBS
UBS
2008 12 31 1,430
1,600 84
2008 12 31 23 1998
91 140 15
0.9
2007 46 2008 114
2008 1,640
1,290
2008 16 57. 7
51. 2
2008 12 31 1,430
2007 1.2
1.0
2008 2007 8,200

24 4,900
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2008 2007 53 1,700 50 1,900
2008 2007 34 7,000 32 3,400
2007 18 1,600 2,600
2008 17 9,000 2008 2007 3,100
500
2008 2007 30 5,000 16 25 7,000
2007 25 8,400 23
7,600 2008 2007 11 3,800
10 1,800
2007 3,900 2008 9,300
2008 2007 6,700 7,000
2008 12 31 5,750
2008

20
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25 3,800
2006 12 UBS Banco Pactual
UBS Pactual Asset Management
2008 12 31 190
2007 UBS Dill on Read Capital
2005 2006 UBS
2007
2007 UBS Daehan I nvestment Trust Managemen
51 Hana Financi al Group
Hana Daetoo Securities Daehan I nvest ment
Ltd. DI MCO UBS
Hana Asset Management Company Ltd. UBS
Management 2008 12 31 130
2008 UBS Caisse Centrale de R
CCR 100 Commer zbank CCR
UBS CCR
2008 12 31 40
2008 UBS Adams Street Partners 24

2008 8 6

JP

500
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2008
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2007
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UBS 10
15 2,000
2008
Abu Dhahbi Il nvest ment Comp
Mer chant Bridge
2008 2007 157 1, 0:
UBS
2008 3 1 UBS
163 556
230 616
2007

474
42 626
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2008 12 31 2007 12 31 5,220
3,350
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 3,690
2,400
2007 44 38
41
2007 64.5 54. 1 2007
2008
2008 2007 14 5,400 13 3, :
2007
2008 2008
100
40
9,400 29 29 400 23 7,
16 5,900
7,900
17 2,400
12 4,600
2008 2007 26 4,000 40 15 7,200
2007 DRCM 1,200 5,600
35
CCR
51
5,900 3,400 22
| T
300 5,000
2,400 2,900 2007 DRCM
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38 17,000
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2006 ABN UBS
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2007 UBS 20
UBS
UBS
2008 UBS
2008
JP
UBS
UBS
82 3,400
FI CC
FI CC
FI CC 2009
2008 12 FI CC
2009 2009

FI CC
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2007
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, 200
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UBS

2008

VaR 10

1,400

166 , 900

2008

2008
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FI CC
99
7,400
8,500
2007 12 31 1,480
3.6 2008
2008
FI CC
343
2007
2007 6,600 25
2008 UBS 20
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2008

2008
2008

2008

2008
99
2008

2,5

2007
2009

2

2008

2007

51

168

Deal ogi c

2008 5.

00

007 33

I T

8,400

400

FIlI CC
700

2008

2007 66 3,600

UBS
6 UBS

158

500

57 4 8 200

2007

600
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2008 FI CC
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2008 2007 1,100 9,000
2007 | T
2008 2007 1, 00 (
10 3,100 2008
7,200 8,300 2008
4,100
2007
3,500 200
3,700 2008
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
I T
| T
Coo
COO
COO
UBS
CFO
M& A UBS
CFO
2002 302
404



COO
CRO
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UBS
CRO
UBS
UBS
UBS
302
UBS

UBS
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UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
I T UBS
I T
UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
2008 2007 22 2,200
3,100 UBS
34
UBS
UBS
UBS UBS
2008 11 27
6,500 2008 2007 11
2008 38 6,000

UBS 7,400 2008
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2008 2007 35 6,200 9,800
2008
9,200 UBS 2007
uUuBS 20. 7 2008
2007 8,900 2,200
2008 2007 13 4,000 1,100
2,900 2008 2007 13 6,500
10 7,600
2008 13
600 12 9,900
2007 20 7,000 20 6,600
I T
1,900 2,000
2008 UBS I T 27,131
1,953 25,178
2008 I T UBS
2007 81, 715 2008 81, 382
UBS
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS 2007 2008

2008 UBS
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UBS 2007
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ABS
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UBS
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2008
2007
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2008
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UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
BI S UBS
(1) R WA
(2)
R WA
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UBS
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UBS
UBS
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UBS
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UBS
UBS

UBS
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uUuBS 2007 2008

2008
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3 65,679 58,527 109,11297,230 87,401 77,883 (40)
3 (59,687)53, 187)103, 775)92, 474080, 880(072,072)(42)
3 5,992 5,339 5,337 4,756 6,521 5,811 12
(2,996)(2,670) (238) (212) 156 139
2,996 2,670 5,099 4,544 6,677 5,950 (41)
22,929 20,432 30,63427,298 25,456 22,684 (25)
3 (25,820023,008)(8,353)(7,443)13,743 12,246 (2009)
5 692 617 4,341 3,868 1,608 1,433 (84)
796 7009 31,72128,267 47,484 42,313 (97)
6 16,262 14,491 25,51522,736 24,031 21,414 (36)
7 10,498 9,355 8,429 7,511 7,942 7,077 25
15 1,241 1,106 1,243 1,108 1,244 1,109 0
16,38 341 304 0 0 0 0
213 190 276 246 148 132 (23)

28,555 25, 445 35,46331,601 33,36529, 732 (19)

(27,758024,735)(3,742)(3,334)14,119 12,581 (642)
22 (6,837)(6,092) 1,369 1,220 2,998 2,672

(20,922018,644)5,111)(4,554)11,121 9,910 (309)

37 198 176 145 129 888 791 37
22 1 1 (258) (230) (11) (10)
198 176 403 359 899 801 (51)
(20,724018,467)(4,708)(4,195)12,020 10,711 (340)
568 506 539 480 493 439 5
520 463 539 480 390 348 (4)
48 43 0 0 103 92

(21,292018,973) 5,247)(4,676)11,52710,272 (306)
(21,442019,107) 5,650)(5,035)10,731 9,562 (280)

150 134 403 359 796 709 (63)
8 (7.69)(685.26)(2.42)(215.65) 5.19 462.48 (218)
(7.74)(689.71)(2.61)(232.58) 4.83 430.40 (197)
0.05 4.46 0.19 16.93 0.36 32.08 (74)
8 (7.69)(685.26)(2.43)(216.54) 4.99 444.66 (216)
(7.75)(690.60)(2.61)(232.58) 4.64 413.47 (197)
0.05 4.46 0.19 16.93 0.34 30.30 (74)
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10 224,648200, 184 376,928335,881 (40)
11 271,838242,235 660, 182588, 288 (59)
11 40,216 35,836 114,190101,755 (65)
23 854,100761,089 428,217381, 584 99
12 12,882 11,479 11,765 10, 484 9
9 340,308303,248 335,864299, 288 1
13 5,248 4,676 4,966 4,425 6
6,141 5,472 11,953 10,651 (49)
14 892 795 1,979 1,763 (55)
15 6,706 5,976 7,234 6,446 (7)
16 12,935 11,526 14,538 12,955 (11)
17,22 18,811 16,762 20,312 18,100 (7)
2,014,815795,402,274,821027,155 (11)
18 125,628111, 947 145,762129,889 (14)
10 14,063 12,532 31,621 28,177 (56)
10 102,561 91,392 305,887272,576 (66)
11 62,431 55,632 164,788146,843 (62)
23 851,864759,096 443,539395,238 92
19 101,546 90,488 191,853170,960 (47)
18 474,774423,071 641,892571,990 (26)
10,196 9,086 22,150 19,738 (54)
19 197,254175,773 222,077197,893 (11)
20,21,22 33,965 30,266 61,496 54,799 (45)
1,974,282759,282,231,085988, 102 (12)
293 261 207 184 42
25,250 22,500 12,433 11,079 103
(4,335) (3,863) (1,161) (1,035)(273)
38 34 38 34 0
14,487 12,9009 35,795 31,897 (60)
(46) (41) (74) (66) 38
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UBS 32,531 28,988 36,875 32,8509 (12)
8,002 7,131 6,951 6,194 15
40,533 36,119 43,826 39,053 (8)
2,014,815795,402,274,821027,155 (11)
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 2006 12 31
207 184 211 188 871 776
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0 0 0 0 (631) (562)
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20,003 17,825 12 11 46 41
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(1,095) (976) (480) (428) (208) (185)
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859,033,2051, 294,058 2,208, 242

(33,
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020, 000734, 200, 000) 100

61,903,12158,

105, 52464, 475, 699 (61)
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(3,692) (615) (4,307)(3,290) (548) (3,838)
(196) 0 (196) (175) 0 (175)
(3,173) (645) (3,818)2,827) (575) (3,402)
(21,292) 568 (20,724)18,973)506 (18,467)
(24,465) (77) (24,542)21,801) (69) (21,869)
2007 12 31
UBS UBS
(1,825) 2 (1,823)1,626) 2 (1,624)
541 0 541 482 0 482
(1,025) (272) (1,297) (913) (242) (1,156)
329 0 329 293 0 293
(1,980) (270) (2,250)1,764) (241) (2,005)
(5,247) 539 (4,708) 4,676) 480 (4,195)
(7,227) 269 (6,958) 6,440) 240 (6,200)
2006 12 31
UBS UBS
2,610 9 2,619 2,326 8 2,334
332 0 332 296 0 296
(1,251) (182) (1,433)1,115) (162) (1,277)
(676) 0 (676) (602) 0 (602)
1,015 (173) 842 904 (154) 750
11,527 493 12,020 10,272 439 10,711
12,542 320 12,862 11,176 285 11, 461
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(20,724018, 4674, 708)(4,195)12,02010, 711

1,241 1,106 1,253 1,117 1,325 1,181

554 494 282 251 196 175
2,996 2,670 238 212 (156) (139)
6 5 (120) (107) (117) (104)

(7.020)(6,256) (371) (331) (303) (270)
(797) (710) (4,085) 3,640) 2,092)1,864)
(47,906042,689)3, 779 3,367 3,659 3,261

(16,588014,7820)60, 762A)54, 14580, 26971, 528
236,49210, 742173, 43854, 546(61, 38254, 698)
350, 09811,973 60, 72954, 116(177,08157,802)

(174, 443355, 44647, 95542, 733 64,0297, 056
7,512 6,694 (2,408) 2,146) 4,263)3,799)

(220, 936396, 87(5271, 06®)41, 54H)6, 37059, 142
(32,625029, 072)7, 430 6,621 14,75513, 148
(887) (790) (3,663)(3,264) 2,607)[2,323)

76,98068,597 (52,078)46, 40705, 384)4,798)

(1,502)(1,338)(2,337)2,083)2,856 2,545
1,686 1,502 885 789 1,154 1,028
(1,217)(1,084)(1,910)1,702)1,793)(1,598)
69 61 134 119 499 445
(712) (634) 5,981 5,330 1,723 1,535

(1,676)(1,493) 2,753 2,453 4,439 3,956

(40, 637036, 212p2,67229, 114 16,92115, 078

623 555 (2,771)(2,469)(3,179)2, 833)
23,13520,616 0 0 1 1

0 0 0 (631) (562)
(4,275)(3,8009)(3,214)2,864)

103,08791,861 110, 8708,800 97, 67587, 038
(92,894(082,7780)62, 407%)55, 611)59, 74053, 234)

1,661 1,480 1,094 975 1,331 1,186

(532) (474) (619) (552) (1,072)(955)

(5,557)(4,952)74,56866, 448 48, 09242, 855

(39,186(034,919)12,228)10, 89602, 0991, 870)

30,56127,233 13,01511, 598 45, 04840, 142
149,10832,867136,09021,27091,04281, 128

179, 66460, 100149, 105632,867136, 091021, 270

32,74429,178 18,79316, 746 3,495 3,114
86, 73277,287 77,21568,806 87, 14477, 654

60, 19053,635 53,09747,315 45, 45140,501

179, 66460, 100149, 105632,867136, 091021, 270

2007 12 31 996
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14 2,7792,476 5,3134,734 4,8394,312
33 29 24 21 264 235
22 20
6 2 55
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13 12
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224 200
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us
2009
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2008 12 31
UBS
us
! 10,819 5,847 5,024 2,904 (21,800) 998 3,792
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3,601 (810) 2,449 1,333 (34,300) (31) (27,758)
.............................................................................................................................................................................................. o
............................................................................. T T e s s )

(6,837)
1
(20,724)

248,35561, 433 240, 21233,684752,500321,362,)014,815
242,39053,218 236,50430, 684726, 708315, 2212)974, 282

83 135 34 95 33 929 1,300
2008 12 31 & 19
22 121
40 2
16 3
2007 12 31
UBS
USA
1 12,8936,662 5,286 4,094 (538) 2,873689 31,0959
() (1) (2) 31 0 (266) 0 0 (238)
......................................................................... T e
........................................................................... I
1,064 976 1,138 559 3,386 1,298 8 8,429
( )
1,531 314 (739) 153 811 (2,194124 0
95 79 67 53 2 1%0 739 0 1,243
8 19 66 0 19 172 0 0 276
........................................................................... T e e e s
........................................................................... S
.................................................................................................................................................................................... U
........................................................................... T T T e e
1,369
(258)
(4,708)
4

349,8491,57®96,19%1,471, 984, (AN48,83801 2,274,891
344,66%56,637R291,00149,099, 965, {487, 766652, 231,065

106 254 26 319 88 1,326 19 2,138
boo7 12 31 & 11
39 22
2
(1)
34 16 4

2006 12 31
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! 10,8275,863 5,085 3,220 21,726 294 313 47,328
( ) 1 (1) 1009 0 47 156

3,1733,839 2,439 1,575

885 1,073 1,120 399

5,197 542 2,281 1,320 5,568 (1,031),130 15,007
2,998
(11)

12,020

286, 33643, 260211,83748,618, 059, 01®22,221)88&, 348, 733
281,328, 007205, 74%6,672, 039, 2%42,7MB8)404, 291,607

257 273 14 498 593 1,385 97 3,117
boose 12 31 &
) 23 2 34
3
b
| FRS
a
2008 12 31
11,564 1,453 230, 554 11 556 43
(9,219)(1,158) 466, 317 23 71 5
6,132 770 341,107 17 138 11
(10,519Y1,321) 637,302 32 407 31
3,122 392 201,743 10 105 8
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(284) (36) 137,792 7 32 2
796 100 2,014,815 100 1,309 100
2007 12 31
18,787 59 224,679 10 436 20
(1,671) (5) 404,506 18 261 12
2,541 8 358,504 16 117 5
880 822,825 36 923 44
6,393 20 257,991 11 318 15
4,791 15 206,386 9 83 4
31,721 100 2,274,891 100 2,138 100
2006 12 31
12,964 27 213,689 9 650 21
6,863 14 373,219 16 314 10
5,553 12 314,642 13 70 2
15,295 32 1,066,647 46 723 23
4,988 11 206,027 9 328 11
1,821 4 174,509 7 1,032 33
47,484 100 2,348,733 100 3,117 100
UBS
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 12 31
5,992 5,337 6,521 12
(25,820) (8,353) 13,743 (209)
(19,828) (3,016) 20,264 (557)
1 (27,203) (10,658) 13,730 (155)
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6,160 6,230 5,718 (1)
1,214 1,412 816 (14)
(19,828) (3,016) 20, 264 (557)
2
3 20,213 21,263 15,266 (5)
22,521 48,274 39,771 (53)
22,397 39,101 32,211 (43)
404 298 25 36
145 176 128 (18)
65,679 109,112 87,401 (40)
18,150 29,318 20,024 (38)
16,123 40,581 34,021 (60)
9,162 15,812 14,533 (42)
7,298 7,659 4,757 (5)
8,954 10, 405 7,545 (14)
59,687 103,775 80,880 (42)
5,992 5,337 6,521 12
2
s 2008 99 2007
110 2006 158
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 12 31
4,694 9,048 7,064 (48)
(37,361) (20,949) 2,755 (78)
6,846 3,548 3,924 93
(25,820) (8,353) 13,743 (2009)
(974) (30) (397)
44,284 (3,779) (3,659)
4 3,993 659 0 506
3
4 27
1
2008 12 31 2007 12 31
10 10 10 10
(8.1) (8.2) (14.6) (16.6)
Alt-A (7. 4) (7.6) (2.0) (2.3)
(1.8) (1.9)
(7.6) (8.2) (0.8) (0.9)
(0.3) (0. 4)
( RLN) (2.6) (2.7) (1.3) (1.5)
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(1.6) (1.6)
(30.6) (31.9) (1827) (2123)
8 4.6
snB 4 (5.2)
(32.86) (21.3)
! ( ) (
2008
29
( )/ 007 3 26 4 33
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 12 31
1,138 2,564 1,834 (56)
818 1,178 1,279 (31)
....................................................................................................... R T
M& A 1,662 2,768 1,852 (40)
8,355 10,281 8,053 (19)
5,583 7,422 5,858 (25)
301 297 252 1
1,198 1,367 1,266 (12)
6,169 7,790 6,622 (21)
317 423 449 (25)
..................................................................................................... Sy g
273 2709 2609 (2)
1,010 1,017 1,064 (1)
..................................................................................................... S ey g
1,909 2,610 1,904 (27)
1,984 2,142 1,438 (7)
....................................................................................................... Ry
22,929 30, 634 25,456 (25)
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 12 31
(184) (70) (11) (163)
1 9'9 28 21 611
(6) 145 106
9 103 116 (91)
6 1'5 3, 338 921 (82)
(202) (71) (12) (185)
........................................................................................................ Sy s
88 108 61 (19)
31 5 (100)
6809 313 (100)
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692 4,341 1,608 (84)
! 38 2 ,uBs 20.7 1,950 3
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 2 31 12 31
12,207 20,715 19,441 (41)
423 630 822 (33)
706 1,290 1,398 (45)
926 922 802 0
2,000 1,958 1,568 2
..................................................................................................... T
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 12 31
1,516 1,569 1,415 (3)
I'T 669 701 648 (5)
888 948 906 (6)
926 991 781 (7)
408 585 601 (30)
728 1,029 934 (29)
1,085 1,106 919 (2)
I'T 1,029 1,233 1,090 (17)
3,2%9 267 648
.................................................................................................... e s
2008 12 31 1, 464 UBS
917 21 23
EPS
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS (21,292) (5,247) 11,527 (306)
(21,442) (5,650) 10,731 (280)
150 403 796 (63)
UBS (21,292) (5,247) 11,527 (306)
/ (28) (16) (8) (75)
................ T
(21,320) (5,263) 11,519 (305)
(21,470) (5,666) 10,723 (279)
150 403 796 (63)
2,769,575,229255, 3012 5871, 591, 786 28
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1 1,151,556 1, 467°, 3288, 242, 730 (22)
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2,770,727240%66, 7682 9289, 834, 516 28
(7.69) (2.42) 5.19 (218)
(7.74) (2.61) 4.83 (197)
0.05 0.109 0.36 (74)
(7.69) (2.43) 4.99 (216)
(7.75) (2.61) 4.64 (197)
0.05 0.19 0.34 (74)
2008 2007 2006 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 12 31
2,932,580.254093, 54723445, 273, 286 41
2006 22,600,000
61,903, 12158, 105, 5241, 875, 699 (61)
............................................................................................. s e e e e e e
........................................................................................ e e A ma T e ma e
3 95,772,09D7,039,879
2 141,850, 91743, 728,676
4 600,557, 453518, 711 139,561
i s -
ues 28 54 2008 12 31 200
12 31
2008 12
31 2007 12 31 2006 12 31 283,263,330 119,309, 645 3
12 31 SNB 100
2 7.053
3 20 %008 12 31 2008 12
329,447,681 2008 270,438, 942
) (2007 12 31 2006 12 31
)
a
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
64,473 60, 935
(22) (28)
............................................................................................................................................................................. ST S0
121,811 122,435
21,270 21,058
170,099 193,374
1 30,033
........................................................................................................................................................................... i Y e
(2,905) (1,003)
(1,329)
........................................................................................................................................................................... S T e a
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404,759 396, 771

166, 798 166, 435
30,540 29,796
47,724 43,966
105,907 70, 962
23,279 27,843
38,590 62,916

2 409,911 400,887
! ( ARS
) 84 171 ( ) ARS45
2 2008 12 31 5,153 2007 12 31 4,116
12
b
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
1,130 34 1,164 1,332
(868) 0 (868) (321)
44 0 44 55
/ 3,007 (11) 2,996 238
(223) 0 (223) (131)
(43) 0 (43) (9)
3,047 23 3,070 1,164
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
22 0 22 28
2,882 23 2,905 1,003
112 0 112 70
3,016 23 3,039 1,101
31 0 31 63
3,047 23 3,070 1,164
10
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2008 12 31 2007 12 31

2008 12 31 2007 12 31
17,523 110, 254 48,480 221,575
105, 374 114,393 158, 583 155, 353
122,897 224,648 207,063 376,928

2008 12 31 2007 12 31

2008 12 31 2007 12 31
12,181 36,088 29,512 139, 156
1,881 66,473 2,109 166,731
14,063 102,561 31,621 305, 887

11
23
2008 2007
12 31 12 31

121 437
31,366 86, 684
46,049 51,137
38,160 52,993
1 12,450 28,923
10,725 13,594
1 41,690 153, 416
44,301 150, 768
224,862 537,952
5,541 3,252
56, 612 152,704
30,903 88, 866
1 70,713 181, 034
6,545 25,968
77,258 207,002
15,849 26,870
9,312 25,325
2 9,934 29,418
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312,054 774,372
129 171
18,914 50, 659
2,344 13,557
12,656 27,335
1 4,235 8,806
119 873
1 8,961 15,076
1,984 3,949
49,342 120, 426
13,089 44,362
62,431 164, 788
! (FI NMA)
( Ei genmittel verordnung (ERV)) d 2
12
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
4,500 3,633
653 483
4,321 4,289
2,329 1,232
1,079 2,128
12,882 11,765
2008 12 31 11, 803 2007 12 31 9, 637
2008 12 31
2007 12 31 6, 335
5,830
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
6,186 4,166
- 1 4,314 3,351
- 1 547 59
2008 2007 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
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2 (668) (87) (659) (98)
2 486 58 547 59
1
UBS
2
13
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
2,165 349
1 322 317
1,080 717
1,402 1,034
1 258 1,865
1,423 1,718
1,681 3,583
5,248 4,966
403 1,900
349 1,503
! ( F1 NMA)
( Eigenmittelverordnung (ERV)) d
14
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
1,979 1,523
807 1,656
(1,307) (846)
(422) (367)
12 137
(18) (17)
(34) (42)
(125) (65)
892 1,979
34
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
4,272 9,189
3,448 2,524
1,211 1,228
198 321
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15
T
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
9,242 3,297 4,604 885 29 666 18,723 18,477
196 265 334 75 311 1,181 1,727
0 1 6 0 0 7 6
1 (21) (138) (523) (80) (31) 0 (792) (1,008)
(28) 2809 8 4 53 (620) (222) (76)
(101) (321) (419) (67) (40) (945) (403)
9,289 3,393 4,086 867 317 17,952 18,723
5,121 1,969 4,022 540 27 0 11,679 11,578
2 332 312 497 100 0 0 1,241 1,253
1 (7) (88) (520) (54) (28) 0 (697) (873)
(160) (4) 0 0 0 0 (164) (14)
(14) (159) (387) (40) 2 0 (598) (266)
5,272 2,031 3,612 546 0 0 11,461 11,678
3 4,017 1,362 475 321 0 317 6,491 7,045
2008 103 13 I T
14 3
14,166 2007 14,689
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
189 14
37 182
0 0
(6) 7
(5) (14)
215 1809
16
2008 12 31
(16 ) Uus (37 )
(20 ) (43 )
UBS
UBS
2008 UBS 2008
12 31 UBS 33 MCN UBS
2008 12 31 4 4 UBS
2008
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2007
2008
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
9.5 9.0
Uus 11.5 10. 5
9.5 9.0
11.0 10. 5
13.0 11.5
UBS 2008 12 31
2008 12 31 43
(2007 12 31 52 ) 2008
( 38 ) 341
2008 UBS
UBS 2008 12 31
3.5 16.5
UBS
| FRS UBS
BI S Tier BI S UBS
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
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12,829 876 1,619 2,495 15,324 15,493
495 0 90 90 585 612
(20) 0 (13) (13) (33) (3)
1 (356) 0 (116) (116) (472) (175)
(1,364) (52) (272) (324) (1,688) (603)
11,585 824 1,308 2,131 13,716 15,324
0 315 471 786 786 720
0 42 152 193 193 282
341 0 20 20 361 0
0 0 (7) (7) (7) (3)
1 (356) 0 (116) (116) (472) (175)
15 (19) (76) (95) (80) (38)
0 337 444 781 781 786
11,585 487 864 1,350 12,935 14,538
1
2008 12 31
1,697 157 0 0 (205)1, 648
us 3,907 0 0 (228)3,678
0 0 0 0 0
2,000 338 0 0 (356)1, 982
5,207 0 (341) (590)4,277
18 (20) 0 1 0
UBS 12,829 495 (20) (341)(1,374)1,585
288 58 0 (18) (20) (57) 251
us 729 0 (60) 0 (43) 626
0 0 0 0 0 0
264 32 0 (33) 0 (77) 186
422 0 (83) 0 (52) 286
6 (6) 0 0 0 0
UBS 1,709 90 (6) (193) (20) (229)1,350
2009 168
2010 153
2011 145
2012 125
2013 103
2014 656
1,350
17
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2008 2007
12 31 12 31
22 8,880 3,220
1,203 6,370
330 454
2,922 3,000
981 1,145
4,495 6,114
18,811 20,312
18
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
125, 628 145,762
................... P
374,127 532,764
............................................................................................................................................................. S
600, 402 787,654
19
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
92,446 183,143
7,468 8,251
1 1,632 459
101,546 191, 853
1
a)7)
2008 12 31
122 2007 12 31
a) 7
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
111,619 152,256
67,298 52,265
12,769 14,129
2,418 199
3,150 3,228
85,635 69,821
197, 254 222,077
a) 14 23
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2008 12 31 2007 12 31
9014 138
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 12,76
14,129
LI BOR
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 165, 312
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014-2018
UBS AG
49,4181,7066,041 6,626 10, 994 17,170 1,627 103,579155, 432
) 0 9.9®M® 9.70 9.99M59.66376 9.75 0 9.900 9.75
33,8084,939 3,979 6,455 4,683 7,881 19,255 81,000 131,714
465 5,665 2,745 8,875 9,789
) 6.0-6.0 2.375 7.87% 8.75
3,820 3,820 4,340
83,6886,64510,02013,08115,677 34,53623,627 197,274301, 275
60, 0922,904 8, 459 813 377 1,010 9, 348 83,003 76, 863
) 0 9.030 9.00 8.37%H 8.4950 9.0 0 9.490 9.829
3,5052,548 2,000 1,033 783 4,303 4,277 18,449 35,792
74 74 0
) 6.25 6.25
0 0
63,6715, 45210,459 1,846 1,160 5,313 13,625 101,526112,655
147,3532,09720,479 14,927 16, 837 39,84937,252 298,800413, 930
9. 955
20
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
21 2,727 1,716
9b 31 6 3
1,192 2,000
22 1,470 2,429
1,022 1,079
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3,089 7,476
13,051 27,455
1 11, 384 19,278
33,965 61, 496
! 31 2006
21
2008 2007
! 23 4 12 31 12 31
298 474 944 1,716 1,703
0 1 0 1 0
473 3,069 460 4,002 742
(182) (143) (203) (528) (216)
(318) (990) (73) (1,381) (570)
0 (21) (21) 6
0 0 0 (16)
(980) 1 (979) 155
(1) (13) (69) (83) (88)
270 1,418 1,039 2,727 1,716
1 2
o008 (
ARS ) ( ) 1,464 (1,363 )
ARS 968 (908 ) ( )
( 23 ) UBS 917 (780 )
%008 12 31 167 (2007 12 31 233 )
( )
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
2008 12 31 UBS
a)
1996 2000 UBS UB
b) 2006 11 UBS SEC
UBS
SEC
2008 UBS Wells notice( )
UBS AG SEC SEC
SEC Wells notice UBS
c)
UBS 2008 10 UBS
2008 UBS
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UBS 2008 UBS
( S.p. A. )
185
(
)
UBS ( ARS )
ARS UBS
SEC UBS
2008
UBS UBS ARS
2008 UBS
36 UBS 2008 UBS SEC
( NYAG ) (North American Securiti
Associati on NASAA ) (
(Massachusetts Securities Division MS D ) )
UBS ARS 150 (NYAG 7
75 ) UBS 2008 10 MS D
2008 12 11 SEC NYAG UBS
UBS ARS 2008 10
UBS UBS
ARS
UBS SEC MS D 2010 30 ARS
UBS NASAA
NYAG UBS
NYAG SEC
ARS UBS 2008 10 NYAG
ARS
2000 2008 UBS AG
( DOJ ) UBS 2001
UBS ( I RS ) (Qualified
Il ntermedi ary Agreement Ql A )
DOJ I RS UBS
AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
I RS
2008 11 WM&BB CEO I R!
WM&BB CEO
UBS (
) I RS UBS
Ql A UBS AG SEC /

UBS SEC
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UBS DPA

UBS

780
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DOJ SEC

UBS
13

DPA
UBS
2009 18
SFBC
SEC

SFBC
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2008 17 UBS SEC
(
20009 18 UBS DOJ (
SEC
(i)yuBs
380
UBS
DPA
( )2008
( )yuBs
) ( Ql )
( ) FI NMA
(UBS
) DOJ
UBS
UBS 18
DOJ UBS
SEC SEC UBS
D. C. UBS
() UBS SEC 200
( UBS
)
SEC UBS
SEC
2008 I RS UBS John Doe
20009 19 DOJ
UBS
20009 24 20009
DPA I RS UBS
UBS
/
DPA UBS
UBS DOJ
FI NMA ( SFBC )
UBS
UBS
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g) UBS
UBS
UBS
(
DRCM
FI NMA SEC ( USAO )
FINMA 2008 10 SEC USAO
UBS
UBS UBS UBS ERI SA
h) UBS UBS( ) SA UBS
( CSSF )
CSSF ( L
LLC )
UBS
UBS
20009 25 CSSF
UBS( ) SA
CSSF
UB S ( ) SA
UBS (UBS
) UBS
22
2008 2007 2006
12 31 12 31 12 31
(336) 4009 1,759
(7,282) (25) (107)
519 1,061 1,533
262 (76) (187)
(6,837) 1,369 2,998
1 (258) (12)
0 0 1
1 (258) (11)
(6,836) 1,111 2,987
7,020 6,126
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2008 2007 2006 887
3,663 2,607 2008
2008 446
44
490
2008 2007 2006
12 31 12 31 12 31
(27,758) (3,742) 14,119
3,269 10,337 5,503
(31,027) (14,079) 8,616
2008 2007 2006 22
(6,107) (823) 3,106
/
(7,056) (3,054) 799
7,412 6,327 21
(10) (257) (676)
(773) (1,587) (941)
160 15 21
737 227 183
(490) (72) 316
(692) 279 (192)
(17) 314 361
(6,837) 1,369 2,998
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
1,534 3,370
32,834 10, 385
608 163
258 859
35,234 14,777
(26,354) (11,557)
8,880 3,220
111 470
29 175
206 690
244 4938
289 173
591 424
1,470 2,429
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2008 12 31
321 8,126
243 190
UBS AG
26, 354 2007 12 31 11, 557
2008 12 31 8,463
2007 12 31 2,363
( )
20
UBS
( 38 )
2008 12 31
2008 12 31
413
2008 12 31 71,214
2008
12 31
1
4 19
71,195
71,214
23
UBS UBS

OoTC
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CDS
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UBS
2008 2,136
1,474
2008 us ( ARS )
( ) 1,464
10 UBS ARS ( )
ARS ARS

) UBS ARS
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ARS ARS
( )
172 2008 12 31
1,140
a) 14
CDS
( )
( )
2008 12 31 883 2007
31 125
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 2006 12 31
778 15 (28)
(796) (11) 11
(18) 4 (17)
2005
UBS
2008

2008 12 31 2007 12 31
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2008 12 31 2007 12 31 2006 12 31
42 49
(44) (44)
(2) 5
2008 12 31 765 2007
31 41
2008 UBS
2008 12 31 12 31 2006 12 31
(644) (37) (7)
688 30 7
44 (7) 0
19
2008 12
1 10 10
247 443 309 250 19
69 129 101 85 2
178 314 208 165 17
2008 2007 2006 108 443
36
2008 2007
12 31 2,539 99
2008 2007
8 6 135
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2008
2008 49
2007 79 2006 132
UBS ( ) | FRS
( ) | FRS ( FI NMA)
GAAP | FRS GAAP
( ) 2008
2007 12 31 - 652 292
UBS - 2008 12 31
202 2007 12 31 136
23 1
2008 12 31
________________________________________________________________________________ ..
PRV NRV
_____________________________________________ PRV NRV PRV NRV PRV NRV PRV ~NRV
___________ 666688866646 65
2.1 2.2 3.8 4.1 0.3 0. 4 0.0 6.2 1,544.96.7 1,584 5
9.5 9.9 23.6 24.3152.1140.5144.8 142.9330.®,065.817.82, 739.9
4.0 3.7 6.6 7.0 14.3 15.7 12. 6 16. 5 37.4 498.4 43.0 595.5
_______________________
219 8 307 8
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0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 4.5
40.041.4 24.2 22.021.6 23.9 12.5 11. 7 98.43,853.699.03,863. 9
OoTC
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1 3 3 1.0 0.7 4.9 88. 7 4.5 92. 6
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)
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1 8,458, 0376,828, 15210, 886, 798
BoD GEB 5,892,5486,693,0127,974,724
uss 31
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 2006 12 31
7,146 103, 841 2,200, 000 2,200, 000
UBS 31 2008 12 31
BoD GEB
c
BoD GEB
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2008 2007
12 31 12 31
15 19
8 0
(12) (4)
11 15
2008 12 31 2007 12 31
d
2008 2007
12 31 12 31
220 375
171 60
(77) (215)
( ) 0 0
(13) 0
301 220
82 56
3 4
2008 2007 2006
12 31 12 31 12 31
90 87 58
6 20 79
40 33 32
34
e)
2008 2007 UBS
2008 2007 Aebi + Co. AG AC Mana
Bertarelldi Family Bertarelldi Il nvest ment Ltd
Hol ding AG Fiat Group Kedge Capital Selected |
Kauf mann- Kohl er ( ) Li monares Ltd 2007 12
Mart own Trading Ltd. Omega Fund | Ltd Omega
Omega Fund Ltd Omega Fund Ltd Royal [
Soci été Générale de Surveillance SA Stadl er Rai
Team Alinghi Wal o Group
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2008 2007 2006
12 31 12 31 12 31
688 872 919
206 301 34
220 485 81
1 674 688 872
Loos 192 482
691 2007 270
418 205
2006 128 744
173
2008 2007 2006
12 31 2 31 12 31
UBS 1 8 8
UBS 22 16 8
Team Al inghi UBS 2008 828, 009
538,000 Team Alinghi UBS
f
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS
33
2009 18 UBS
21
( SNB ) SNB
38
| AS 10 2008
12 31 1, 203
20009 19 UBS Al G
36
2008 12 31
20009 20009
15
34
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
UBS
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UBS
1

Banco UBS Pactual S.A. Rio de Janeiro, BralzB | BRL 349.6 100.0
Caisse Centrale de Réescompte Pari s, France Gl obal ABUR 106. 3 100. 0
CCR Actions S.A. Pari s, France Gl obal ABUR 1.1 100.0
CCR Gestion S.A. Paris, France Gl obal AHUR 2.2 100.0
Fondcenter AG Zurich, Switzerl andGl obal ARHF 0.1 100. 0
OO0 UBS Bank Moscow, Russi a (=) RUB 1,250.0 100.0
PT UBS Securities Indonesi a Jakarta, Indonesia |IB I DR 118, 000.0 98. 6
UBS (Bahamas) Ltd. Nassau, Bahamas Gl obal WM&BB 4.0 100. 0
UBS (France) S.A. Pari s, France Gl obal WH& BB 50.7 100. 0
UBS (Grand Cayman) Limited George Town, Caymanl B sl andsUSD 25.0 100.0
UBS (ltalia) S.p.A. Mi | an, ltaly Gl obal WH& BB 60.0 100. 0
UBS (Luxembourg) S.A. Luxembourg, LuxemboGlrogb al WK &B B 150.0 100. 0
UBS (Monaco) S.A. Monte Carl o, MonacoGlobal WH&RBB 9.2 100.0
UBS Alternative and Quantitative Lowed®snme®reatki Bri édGlnobal ARGBP 0.3 100. 0
UBS Alternative and Quantitative DeVesament § SALC Gl obal AMSD 0.1 100. 0
UBS Americas Inc Del awar e, USA I B UsSD 0.0 100.0
UBS Asesores SA Panama, Panama Gl obal WM& BB 0.0 100. 0
UBS Bank (Canada) Toronto, Canada Gl obal WR&BB 8.5 100. 0
UBS Bank Mexico, S.A. Institucion de Banca Multiple, UBS Grupo

Financiero Mexico City, Me xi col B MX N 639. 4 100. 0
UBS Bank USA Ut ah, USA Gl obal WM& BB 1,700.0 100. 0
UBS Bank, S.A. Madrid, Spain Gl obal WH&RBB 77.2 100.0
UBS Bel gium SA/ NV Brussels, Belgium Global WH&RBB 23.0 100.0
UBS Capital (Jersey) Ltd St . Helier, Jersey | B GBP 119.0 100. 0
UBS Capital B.V. Amsterdam, the NethleB|l ands EUR 8. ¢ 100.0
UBS Card Center AG Gl attbrugg, SwitzerGlambda! WK&BB 0.1 100.0
UBS Clearing and Execution Servicésndiomit &deat Brit alibh UsSbD 50.0 100. 0
UBS Convertible Securities (Jerseg).LHmiied, Jersey CC CHF 50.0 100.0
UBS Derivatives Hong Kong LimitedHong Kong, China I B HKD 880. 0 100.0
UBS Deutschland AG Frankfurt am Main, GleabmalnyWH&RBB 176.0 100. 0
UBS Factoring AG Zurich, Switzerl andGl obal WRK&BB 5.0 100.0
UBS Fiduciaria S.p.A. Milan, Italy Gl obal WH&RB 0.2 100.0
UBS Finance (Cayman |slands) Ltd. George Town, CaymanCQG sl andsUSD 0.5 100. 0
UBS Finance (Curacdao) N.V. Will emstad, Netherl@Q®hds AntUSDes 0.1 100.0
UBS Finance (Delaware) LLC Del awar e, USA I B UsSD 37.%8 100. 0
UBS Financi al Services Inc. Del awar e, USA Gl obal WM& BB 2,005%. 8 100.0
UBS Financial Services Incorporatéeédtof RERyer PaeRitoo Ri&loobal WM&BB 31.% 100.0
UBS Fund Advisor, L.L.C. Del awar e, USA Gl obal WM& BB 0.0 100.0
UBS Fund Holding (Luxembourg) S.ALuxembourg, LuxemboGlrogbhal ARHF 42.0 100.0
UBS Fund Holding (Switzerland) AGBasel, Switzerland Global ARHF 18.0 100. 0
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) BAG6el, Switzerland Gl obal ARHF 1.0 100. 0
UBS Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd George Town, CaymanGlloshaalndsMSD 5.6 100.0
UBS Fund Services (lreland) Limit®&dblin, Il reland Gl obal AEBUR 1.3 100.0
UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.Auxembourg, LuxemboGlrogb al ARHF 2.5 100. 0
UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) S. ZabPeraow,BPahahd cC PLN 0.1 100.0
UBS Futures Singapore Ltd. Singapore, SingaporleB UsSD 39.% 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Amer Dedswarec¢c USA Gl obal AMSD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (AustiSgdiney,L®Adstralia Gl obal AKNUD 8.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Canada)yo@Goo, Canada Gl obal ARAD 117.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Deuté&chhamhdytGmmHMai n, GleobmmalnyABUR 7.7 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Fran®e)yiS,AFrance Gl obal WH&RBRB 2.3 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (HongHKoggXobigmi Cédna Gl obal AMKD 25.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (ltaliMa) a8GRI SpAy Gl obal AHBUR 3.1 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Japafdpkybod Japan Gl obal AWNMPY 2,200.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Sing&pogapocbted Singapor&l obal ABGD 4.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Taiwda) peid Tai wan Gl obal A MWD 340.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (UK) Lbddon, Great BritaGlnobal AKBP 68.0 100.0
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UBS Gl obal Asset Management (US) Det¢taware, USA Gl obal AMSD 23.2% 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management FundsLbndon, Great BritaGlnobal ARBBP 19.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management Holdi hgndod, Great BritaGlnobal AKBP 86. 0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management Life Lbddon, Great BritaGlnobal AKBP 5.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Life AG Vaduz, LiechtensteiGl obal WK &B B 5.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Trust Corporation St. John, Canada Gl obal WH&BB 0.1 100.0
UBS Grupo Financiero, S.A. de C.VMexico City, Mexi col B MXN 851. 8 100. 0
UBS Hana Asset Management CompanySebdl, South Korea Global AKRW 45,000.0 51.0
UBS International Holdings B. V. Amsterdam, the Neth®CI| ands EUR 6.8 100.0
UBS I nternational Il nc. New Yor k, USA Gl obal WM& BB 44.23 100. 0
UBS International Life Limited Dublin, lreland Gl obal WHE& BB 1.0 100.0
UBS I nvest ment Management Canada MToeconto, Canada Gl obal WHR&BB 0.0 100.0
Gl obal WM&BB: & Global AM:
cc: 2
1

UBS Investments Philippines, Inc. Makati City, PhilippBnes PHP 360.0 99. 4
UBS Italia SI'M SpA Mi | an, ltaly I B EUR 15.1 100. 0
UBS Leasing AG Zurich, SwitzerlandGlobal WMBB 10.0 100.0
UBS Life AG Zurich, SwitzerlandGlobal WMSBB 25.0 100.0
UBS Life Insurance Company USA California, USA Gl obal WMESEDB 39.2%3 100. 0
UBS Limited London, Great BritalB GBP 63.3 100.0
UBS Loan Finance LLC Del awar e, USA | B UsSD 16. 7 100. 0
UBS Menkul Degerl er AS I stanbul, Turkey =) TRY 30.0 100. 0
UBS New Zealand Limited Auckl and, New Zeal ahB NZD 7.5 100.0
UBS O Connor Limited London, Great BritaGhobal AMGBP 8. 8 100. 0
UBS O Connor LLC Del awar e, USA Gl obal AMSD 1.0 100.0
UBS Pactual Asset Management S.A. M®To/Mde Janeiro, Bra@Gibbal AMRL 73.2 100.0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLC Del aware, USA ccC USsSD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLC Ddl awar e, USA ccC UusbD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLC D&l aware, USA ccC usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLC IMel awar e, USA ccC USD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Real Estate Kapitalanlagegesel Mwsrihalf,t GdrHmany Gl obal AMEUR 7.5 51.0
UBS Real Estate Securities Inc Del aware, USA I B uUsbD 95024 100.0
UBS Realty Investors LLC Massachusetts, USA Gl obal AMISD 9.3 100. 0
UBS Sauerborn Private Equity KomplRank nHdambGrmp,H Ger mangl obal WMBB 0.0 100.0
UBS Securities (Thailand) Ltd Bangkok, Thailand I B THB 400. 0 100.0
UBS Securities Asia Limited Hong Kong, China =) HKD 20. 0 100. 0
UBS Securities Australia Ltd Sydney, Australia I B AUD 20928 100.0
UBS Securities Canada | nc Toront o, Canada I B CAD 10. 0 100. 0
UBS Securities Espafia Sociedad de Madroirck,s Spain I B EUR 15.0 100. 0
UBS Securities France S.A. Paris, France I B EUR 22.9 100.0
UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong, China I B HKD 430.0 100. 0
UBS Securities India Private LimitMumbai, I ndi a I B I NR 668. 3 100.0
UBS Securities International Limitlandon, Great BritalB GBP 18.0 100.0
UBS Securities Japan Ltd George Town, Caymanl Bsl ands JPY 60,000.0 100. 0
UBS Securities LLC Del awar e, USA I B uUusbD 22,20%5.6 100.0
UBS Securities Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Kuala Lumpur, Mal aybkBa MY R 75.0 100.0
UBS Securities Philippines Inc Makat i City, PhilippBnes PHP 190.0 100. 0
UBS Securities Pte Ltd. Singapore, SingaporkB SGD 311.5 100. 0
UBS Securities Pte Ltd. Seoul Bra%edul, South Korea | B KRW 150, 000.0 100.0
UBS Service Centre (India) PrivateMwmbdit,edl ndi a ccC I NR 1,249.6 100. 0
UBS Service Centre (Poland) Sp. z Krakow, Pol and ccC PLN 0.1 100. 0
UBS Services USA LLC Del aware, USA Gl obal WMESBB 0.1 100.0
UBS South Africa (Proprietary) Lim$arditon, South Africth ZAR 0.0 100. 0
UBS Swiss Financi al Advisers AG Zurich, SwitzerlandGlobal WMBHEFB 1.5 100.0
UBS Trustees (Bahamas) Ltd Nassau, Bahamas Gl obal WMESBEB 2.0 100.0
UBS Trustees (Cayman) Ltd George Town, CaymanGl ebah d¥wMBSEB 2.0 100. 0
UBS Trustees (Jersey) Ltd. St . Hel ier, Jersey Global WM=BBPB 0.0 100. 0
UBS Trustees (Singapore) Ltd Singapore, Singapor &l obal WMEB 3.3 100.0
UBS UK Holding Limited London, Great BritalB GBP 5.0 100. 0
UBS UK Properties Limited London, Great BritalB GBP 132.0 100. 0
UBS Wealth Management (UK) Ltd London, Great BritaGhobal WM=%B™B 2.5 100.0
UBS Wealth Management Australia LtMel bourne, Australi@l obal WNMILBCB 53.9 100. 0

182/390



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
UBS Trust Company National Associ aNewnYor k, USA Gl obal WMAESEDB 10520 100. 0
Vermogens Advies Holding B. V. Amsterdam, the Nethe&frbhalds WMIBB .3 100. 0
Gl obal WM&BB: & Global AM:
cc: 2
2008
Caisse Centrale de Réescompte Pari s, France
CCR Actions S. A. Pari s, France
CCR Gestion S.A. Pari s, France
UBS Convertible Securities (Jersey) Limited St . He l er, Jersey
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLC V Del awar e, USA
UBS Service Center (lndia) Private Limited Mu mb ai ndi
Ver mogens Advies Holding B. V. Amsterdam, the Netherlands
Crédit Industriel Société Anonyme in Liquidation Zurich, Switzerl an
Thesaurus Continentale Effekten-Gesellschaft in Zurich in Liquidation
UBS Fiduciary Trust Company New Jersey, USA
SI' X Group AG Zurich, Switzerland 17. 3
UBS Securities Co. Limited Beijing, China 20. 0
Williamsburg Edge LLC Del awar e, USA 50.0
219 West 81st LLC Del awar e, USA 50.0
35
UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS
2008 2007
2 31 2 31
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UBS 339 5009
528 877
1,307 1,803
............................................................................................................................................................................. T A
273 392
19. 1 50. 5
(226.0) 140. 6
36
2008
Cai sse Centrale de Réescompte Gr ol
2008 UBS CCR
613
387 CCR
133 36 23
2009 131 368
233 2007 12 31 133
190 CCR UBS
2008 CCR
0 36 36
5 0 5
0 368 368
513 1 514
518 405 923
297 13 310
221 392 613
518 405 923
2008 CCR
10 26 36
37 331 368
Ver mogens Groep
2008 UBS 100
171 105 )
81 )
49 30
) 2.1 1.3 ) 124
77
UBS
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2008
0 49 49
2 0 2
0 124 124
10 0 10
12 173 185
2 12 14
10 161 171
12 173 185
Al G
20009 19 UBS Al G DJ-AI G
15
18 135 2009
2007
2007 UBS
McDonal d | nvest ments
2007 UBS
269 220
70
58 339 278
57 47
77 63
205 168
Uus
2007
0 57 57
4 (1) 3
0 10 10
0 205 205
70 0 70
74 271 345
6 0 6
68 271 339
74 271 345
Daehan I nvestment Trust Management Company
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2007 UBS Hana Daetoo
Securities Daehan I nvestment Securities Comg
DI MCO 51 DI MCO UBS
UBS
UBS 238
180 40
30 54
74 170
60
DI MCO 264 19.9
2008 52 188
2007
52 52
188 188
87 0 87
87 240 327
13 14 27
36 22 58
UBS 38 204 242
87 240 327
2007
UBS 2007
2007 12 UBS
2007
UBS
2007 UBS UBS UBSS 20
369 24
324 21 45
UBS
UBSS 2006 12
UBSS
M& A
2008 2007 2007
2006 UBS UBS
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2008 12 31 2007 12 31 2006 12 31
819 31,932 48,928
(21, 286) (5,233) 11,887
(7.69) (2.42) 5.35
37
2008
2008 UBS
155
120 34
2008 141
2008
UBS
2007
2007 UBS
138 102
36 2007 14
UBS
GAM
258 275
2007 UBS 20. 7
2005 12 GAM
2005
2006
UBS 2006 23 At el
EBM EBL the Canton of Solothurn I B Aarau Al L Luganc
At el Electricité de France EDF
55. 6 UBS 281,535
4,600 1,295
364 2006
23 71 387
2006 458
2006 UBS 437
424 13
2008 12 31
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GAM
0 19
0 (15)
0 34
44 120
44 155
0 0
0
1 0
43 155
(1)
3
2005 GAM a
2007 12 31
GAM
0 394
0 358
0 36
7 102
7 138
0 0
(258) 0
(258) 0
265 138
32
(1)
(42)
L a
2006 12 31
1
2,494 993
2,412 9709
82 14
364 428
446 442
11 1
(23) 0
(12) 1
458 441
1 16
(52) 73
(22) (88)

& GAM a

38
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2008 UBS
us
( )
us
2008 56 (55
341 (334
2008 10 2008
737 435
) 302 (
202 )
2008 20 UBS ( RMB S
RMB S
L P( )
Alt - A
2006 2007
37.5
UBS
112.5
UBS
15 2008 UBS
UBS
31 92
UBS
RMB S
( SNB )
2008 10 16 UBS ( SNB
( SNB
partnership for collective nvest ments ) (
SNB 100
SNB 90
10 UBS
(
)
50

LI BOR 250
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70
)
(
100
) 1
22
RMBS
2008 12
UBS
UBS
) SNB
StabFund | i mit e
)
SNB
SNB



UBS

) (

1

SNB

2008

2008

2008

UBS

UBS

I FRS

607

00

SNB

10

12

12

SNB

2008

16
UBS

)

16

16

UBS

2008

) 313
2008

343

30

SNB

30
2008

78

RL N
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SNB
50 UBS (
SNB UBS
(
( )
30 UBS
60
) 386 (
219 (
) ) 175
) ( SNB
(
) 164
2009
SNB
SNB
2008 30
2008
UBS
SNB
607
2008 5,232
511
771
( )
394 (
)
( ) 81

) 108
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2008 UBS (
ASP ) 24.9 ASP 184 (16
) UBS ASP
168 ASP
2001 UBS 24.9
2001 ASP
2008 12 UBS 34 887 (6,519
UBS | PO 2005
360
39
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
12 31 12 31 12 31 2 31 12 31
1.07 1.13 1.06 1.22 1.25
1.49 1.65 1.58 1.65 1.58
1.56 2.25 1.96 2.31 2.31
100 1.17 1.02 0.98 1.02 1.08
40
UBS ( | FRS )
( FI NMA ) | FRS | FRS
(FI NMA 08/ 2)
| FRS 23 27 FI NMA
| FRS
| FRS
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Il FRS

Il FRS

Il FRS

UBS

Il FRS

20

Il FRS

I FRS

41 SEC
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UBS
SEC
UBS UBS
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS UBS
I FRS UBS
UBS
UBS AG
2008 12 31 1 . UBS
49,699 21,343 27,354 (32,717) 65,679
(48,686)(17,436)X26,282)32,717 (59,687)
1,013 3,907 1,072 0 5,992
(861) (2,050) (85) 0 (2,996)
152 1,857 987 0 2,996
9,709 7.910 5,310 0 22,929
(8,129) (19,847) 2,156 0 (25,820)
(19, 882) 0 0 19,882 0
2,836 1,058 (3,202) 0 692
(15,314) (9,022) 5,251 19,882 796
8,738 5,169 2,355 0 16,262
3,918 4,604 1,976 0 10,498
770 205 266 0 1,241
0 341 0 0 341
1 93 119 0 213
13,427 10,412 4,716 0 28,555
(28,741)(19,434) 535 19,882 (27,758)
(7,407) (4) 574 0 (6,837)
(21,335)(19,430) (39) 19,882 (20,922)
43 0 155 0 198
(21,292)(19,430) 116 19,882 (20,724)
0 (9) 577 0 568
UBS (21,292)(19,421) (461) 19,882 (21,292)
uBs AG | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2008 12 31 1 UBS
27,030 332 5,382 0 32,744

111,563 11,490 192,20f§250,808) 64, 451
48,874 109,783 16,914 (52,674) 122,897
206,087 79,178 145,851%206,468)224,648
183,303 54,973 50,638 (17,076) 271, 838

33,445 5,240 1,531 0 40, 216
- 862,459 18,215 293,89€320,470)854,100
5,120 7,755 12,741 (12,734) 12,882
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326,548 53,774 35,193 (75,207) 340, 308
1,237 638 3,373 0 5,248
3,684 2,700 2,666 (2,9009) 6,141
66, 255 58 50 (65, 473) 892
5,093 971 642 0 6,706

250 9,393 3,292 0 12,935
15,541 3,905 6,849 (7,484) 18,811

1,896, 489358, 405 771, 2244,011,3038)014, 815

196,723 68,213 111,50Q250,808)125,628
25,248 32,884 8,605 (52,674) 14,063
30,988 140,197 137,844206,468)102,561
51,034 17,086 11,387 (17,076) 62,431
855,005 16,792 300,537320,470)851, 864
88,505 1,716 24,059 (12,734) 101,546
422,688 70,242 57,051 (75,207) 474,774
7,417 2,584 3,104 (2,9009) 10, 196
127,408 2,439 67,407 0 197, 254
12,598 4,313 24,538 (7,484) 33,965

1,817,614356, 466 746, 0321945,830),974, 282

UBS 78,875 (1,097) 20,226 (65,473) 32,531
0 3,036 4,966 0 8,002
78,875 1,939 25,192 (65,473) 40,533
1,896, 489358, 405 771,224,011, 303)014, 815
luBs ac | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2008 12 31 1 UBS
69,772 (438) 7,646 76,980
(1,502) 0 0 (1,502)
1,686 0 0 1,686
(819) (258) (140) (1,217)
37 27 5 69
330 156 (1,198) (712)
(268) (75) (1,3383) (1,676)
(52,815) 914 11,264 (40,637)
623 0 0 623
23,135 0 0 23,135
91,961 0 11,126 103,087
(62,822)(14,500)(15,572)(92, 894)
0 842 819 1,661
0 (112) (420) (532)
(11,978) 21,816 (9,838) 0
(11,896) 8,960 (2,621) (5,557)
(33,963) 442 (5,665) (39, 186)

23,645 8,889 (1,973) 30,561
109,110 15,532 24,463 149,105

132,755 24,421 22,490 179,666

27,030 332 5,382 32,744
62,777 19,875 4,080 86,732
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42,948 4,214 13,028 60,190
132,755 24,421 22,490 179,666
?BS AG | FRS
2008 12 31 3,853
UBS
UBS AG UBS
2007 12 31 1
77,306 47,747 51,985 (67,926)0109, 112
(74,689) (46,420Y50,592)67,926(103,775)
2,617 1,327 1,393 0 5,337
11 (234) (15) 0 (238)
2,628 1,093 1,378 0 5,099
12,852 10,119 7,663 0 30,634
3,467 (9,932)(1,888) 0 (8,353)
464 0 0 (464) 0
(4,2738) 8,369 245 0 4,341
15,138 9,649 7,398 (464) 31,721
13,239 8,329 3,947 0 25,515
5,684 3,446 (701) 0 8,429
930 138 175 0 1,243
3 101 172 0 276
19,856 12,014 3,593 0 35,463
(4,718) (2,365) 3,805 (464) (3,742)
794 (486) 1,061 0 1,369
(5,512) (1,879) 2,744 (464) (5,111)
265 0 138 0 403
(5,247) (1,879) 2,882 (464) (4,708)
0 18 521 0 539
UBS (5,247) (1,897) 2,361 (464) (5,247)
uBs AG | FRS
UBS
UBS AG UBS
2007 12 31 !
8,530 1009 10,154 0 18,793
154,138 16,530 200, 488310, 249)60, 907
117,312 166,479 53,672(130, 40007, 063
292,839 106,775 266,47Q0289, 156876, 928
297,100 170,977 84,884107,221 660, 182
161,071 55,842 4,498 (107,221)114,190
- 436,271 16,770 192,144216, 968428, 217
5,510 7,149 8,421 (9,315) 11,765
370,274 41,398 43,584(119,392835, 864
2,611 980 1,375 0 4,966
7,379 4,369 4,883 (4,678) 11,953
28,0409 139 150 (26,359) 1,979
5,352 9509 923 0 7,234
276 10,516 3,746 0 14,538
15,848 5,135 4,951 (5,622) 20,312
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1,902,560604, 127 880, 343

,112,129p74,891

246,977 114,066 94,968(310, 2490145, 762
45,055 64,281 52,685 130,400)31,621
105,750 238,880 250,4183289, 156805, 887
111,955 51,904 9209 0 164,788
- 456,631 16,333 187,548216, 968043, 5309
146,701 14,947 39,520 (9,315)191,853
555,694 87,534 118,056119, 392541, 892
13,276 8,242 5,310 (4,678) 22,150
168,266 3,478 50,333 0 222,077
19,524 5,511 42,083 (5,622) 61,496
1,869,829605, 176 841, 840, 085, 720231, 065
UBS 32,731 (3,373) 33,876(26,359) 36,875
0 2,324 4,627 0 6,951
32,731 (1,049) 38,503 (26, 359) 43,826
1,902,560604, 127 880, 343,112, 129p74,891
uss ac | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2007 12 31 ! UBS
(65,749) 19,670 (5,999) (52,078)
(2,337) (2,337)
885 885
(1,022) (581) (307) (1,910)
40 28 66 134
4,027 34 1,920 5,981
1,593 (519) 1,679 2,753
35,017 (1,426) (919) 32,672
(2,771) 0 0 (2,771)
(4,275) 0 0 (4,275)
105,197 1,022 4,655 110,874
(54,251) (7,022) (1,134) (62,407)
0 32 1,062 1,094
0 (665) 46 (619)
871 (6,627) 5,756 0
79,788 (14,686) 9,466 74,568
(9,070) (3,062) (96) (12,228)
6,562 1,403 5,050 13,015
102,548 14,129 19,413 136,090
109,110 15,532 24,463 149,105
8,530 1009 10,154 18,7093
2 60,266 13,202 3,747 77,215
40,314 2,221 10,562 53,097
109,110 15,532 24,463 149,105
?BS AG | FRS
2007 12 31 3,364
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UBS
UBS AG UBS
2006 12 31 !
60,057 42,667 39,269 (54,592)87, 401
(56,020) (41, 049)38,403)54,592 (80, 880)
4,037 1,618 866 0 6,521
167 (6) (5) 0 156
4,204 1,612 861 0 6,677
11, 646 8,590 5,220 0 25,456
10,306 1,634 1,803 0 13,743
3,086 0 0 (3,086) 0
(450) 1,637 421 0 1,608
28,792 13,473 8,305 (3,086)47,484
12,480 8,287 3,264 0 24,031
2,805 3,362 1,775 0 7,942
979 133 132 0 1,244
14 83 51 0 148
16,278 11,865 5,222 0 33,365
12,514 1,608 3,083 (3,086)14,119
1,499 1,018 481 0 2,998
11,015 590 2,602 (3,086)11,121
512 0 387 0 8909
11,527 590 2,989 (3,086)12,020
0 527 (34) 0 493
UBS 11,527 63 3,023 (3,086)11,527
luBs aG | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2006 12 31 1 UBS
(2,215) (14,984) 11,815 (5,384)
2,856 2,856
1,154 1,154
(1,292) (255) (246) (1,793)
298 47 154 4909
90 433 1,200 1,723
3,106 225 1,108 4,439
17,526 1,039 (1,644) 16,921
(3,179) 0 0 (3,179)
1 0 0 1
(631) 0 0 (631)
(3,214) 0 0 (3,214)
79,358 10,881 7,436 97,675

(48,748) (447) (10,545)(59,740)
0 85 1,246 1,331
0 2,441 (3,513) (1,072)
(8,410) 3,229 5,181 0
32,703 17,228 (1,839) 48,092
406 (1,871) (634) (2,0909)
34,000 598 10,450 45,048
68,548 13,531 8,963 91,042
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102,548 14,129 19,413 136,090
2,660 78 757 3,495
2 73,431 11, 488 2,225 87,144
26,457 2,563 16,431 45,451
102,548 14,129 19,413 136,090
luBs AG FRS
2
2006 12 31 7,183
UBS AG
2008 12 31
UBS 2000 10 8.622 1.
UBS 2001 6 7,247 0.
UBS 2003 5 1 0.3
Ll BOR+0. 7
UBS 2006 5 6.243 1.0
006 6 2001 6 300 7.25
UBS AG UBS
UBS 2008 12 31
UBS 1, 959

198/390



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

oOoOooodn
UBS AG 4,251 32,238
36, 489
2007 2,592 3,763
2007 13,505
6, 707
2007 8,660 2008 26,900
2007 2,767 2008 9, 466
SNB
376
2008 UBS
UBS
2008 12 31 1,189 2007 12 31
4009
254
171 83
78
19 2008 141
2008 UBS
40 UBS
127
UBS
55 UBS
28
UBS

10 2008
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2007
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 12 31
()
37,825 33,706 58,674 52,284 (36)
12,014 10,706 19,003 16,934 (37)
76 68 58 52 31
(49,022)(43,684) (75, 179)(66,992) (35)
........................................................................................................ N
208 185 205 183 1
11,668 10,397 15,468 13,784 (25)
610 544 686 611 (11)
(2,849) (2,539) (3,269) (2,913) (13)
..................................................................................................... N
(9,466) (8,435) 2,767 2,466
176 157 178 1509 (1)
3,763 3,353 2,592 2,310 45
29 26 27 24 7
3,384 3,015 3,352 2,987 1
(2,767) (2,466) (3,223) (2,872) (14)
..................................................................................................... R
5,648 5,033 21,339 19,015 (74)
6,707 5,977 13,505 12,034 (50)
5,822 5,188 5,191 4,626 12
12,528 11,164 18,696 16,660 (33)
(6,880) (6,131) 2,643 2,355
26,900 23,971 8,660 7,717 211
3,071 2,737 2,780 2,477 10
(36,852)(32,839) (8,797) (7,839) (319)
1,002 893 4,665 4,157 (79)
482 430 4 4
157 140 115 102 37

(36,489)(32,515) (4,251) (3,788) (758)

2007
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 12 31
()
27,030 24,086 8,530 7,601 217
62,777 55,941 60,266 53,703 4

355,679 316, 946 527,081469, 682 (33)
191,308 170,475 274,510244,616 (30)
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141,328 125,937 141,381125, 985 0
158, 741 141,454 412,977368,004 (62)
11,085 9,878 1,685 1,502 558
22,001 19,605 21,228 18,916 4
5,032 4,484 5,273 4,699 (5)
3,877 3,455 7,221 6,435 (46)
201,801 179,825 124,244110, 714 62
8,697 7,750 13,676 12,187 (36)

1,189, 356 059, 8351, 598, 012424, 042 (26)
3,924 3,497 6,293 5,608 (38)

435,721 388, 271

602, 667537, 037 (28)

52,063 46,393
292,730 260, 852
61,872 55,134
388,338 346,048
3,150 2,807
143,589 127,952
7,895 7,035
193,108 172,079
14,181 12,637
2,724 2,427
293 261
40,910 36, 455
2,877 2,564
22,115 19,707

(36,489)(32,515)

104,878 93, 457 (50)
491,102437,621 (40)
72,303 64,429 (14)
521, 189464,432 (25)
3,228 2,876 (2)
189,023168, 438 (24)
17,368 15,477 (55)
145, 445129, 606 33
15,576 13,880 (9)
3,970 3,538 (31)
207 184 42
8,775 7,819 366
9,441 8,413 (70)
19,818 17,660 12

(4,251) (3,788) (758)

1,189,356 059,8351,598,012424,042 (26)

21,228 18,916

271, 434 241, 875

21,114 18, 815 1
330, 567294, 568 (18)

( AGM) 20009 15
2008 (36,489)(32,515)
(22,115(19,707)
(2,472)(2,203)
(11,901(10,605)
FRS 40
UBS AG UBS
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2006

2008
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UBS UBS

UBS 2008

UBS

12

2008 UBS

298

2008 12 31
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21
UBS 2008 10
10
19
2007
2008 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 ()
3,930 7,867 (50)
(15,505) (7,679) (102)
1 2,109 2,579 (18)
(9,466) 2,767
1
2007 UBS 20. 7 3,180
2008 360
2008 72 490
30 2007 4009 200 7
824 165
2008 2007 478
2007
2007 2008
12 31 12 31
1,036 (481) 3 (506) 1,504 1,556
4,554 10,304 14,858
158 (457) (47) (3) (33) 1,460 1,078
164 (203) 187 (280) 289 157
107 (2) (49) (14) 52 94
31 2 3 36
3,446 (2,672) (68) (244) 871 1,333
9,496 (3,815)(47) 72 (1,077) 14,483 19,112
5,526 16,388
3,970 2,724
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! (Fl cCC) 2 ( ARS)
922 (865 ) UBS AG 407
968 - UBS
917 (780 ) 21 %008 12
31 592 2,629
2006 12 31 2007 1 211 6,280 2,015 9,11427,288 44,908
(4) (2,411) (2,415)
23 23
457 (457)
(4,275) (4,275)
IC) (4,251) (4,251)
327  (327)
2007 12 31 2008 1 207 6,303 2,472 9,44115,567 33,990
1 86 15,911 (15) 15,982
MC N 16,223 16,223
0
0
IC) (36,489) (36, 489)
(6,564p, 564 0
2 (11,90102, 472) 14,373 0
2008 12 31 293 26, 536 0 2,877 0 29,706
! %0009 15
2008 12 31
2,932,580,52®3, 258, 095 932,580, 5293, 258, 055
792,844,71179, 284,471
2007 12 31
2,073,547,3207,354, 724 073,547, 3207, 354, 734
150,138, 63415, 013, 863
2008 12 31
100, 415 UBS AG
2006 UBS 150
2007 5,704 UBS
149, 994, 296
2008 27 10, 370, 000
2008 23 AGM
760, 295,181 2008
MCN 642, 750, 000
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26
2008 12 31 2007 12 31
7,429 1,300 12,792 2,372 (42) (45)
3,699 2,418 200 1909
50,223 37,083 99,821 49,397 (50) (25)
8,149 0 8,628 (6)
69,500 40,801121,44151,968 (43) (21)
2007
12 31
2008 12 31 2007 12 31 ()
286, 451 223,105 28
68,660 104,784 (34)
145 145 0
2,079 2,630 (21)
UBS AG VAT VAT
SNB SNB UBS
UBS 100
UBS UBS
2008 12 31 2007 12 31
PRV N RV P RV N RV
377,307 370, 346 36,47667, 334164, 325 33,545
202,357 187,216 3,712111,898116, 128 5,451
222,178 229, 656 6,00599, 494 99, 613 7,725
5,804 5,697 108 6,363 6,569 147
28,502 36,208 473 30,400 49,985 760
27,055 25,387 160 21,181 21,251 484
863,203 854,510 46,93436,670457,871 48,112
661,402 661, 402 312,426312, 426
201,801 193,108 124,244145, 445
PRV NRV
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2007
2008 2007 12 31
12 31 12 31 ( )
36, 452 46,074 (21)
2,738 2,186 25
39,190 48,260 (19)
UBS
(
2008 2007 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS UBS 876 443 98
9,379 (100)
2008 12 31 40, 998 2007 12 31 45,102
2008 12 31
7.19 2007 7.99 2006 8§.81 2008 12 31
DTC Cede & Co. 9.89
2007 12 31 14.15
a
1 b c d e
Peter Kurer 20081,333,333 0 0 0 58,267174, 0417, 565, 647
2007
Mar cel Ospel 2008 666,667 0 80, 75587, 023834, 445
20072, 000,000 O 307, 31D61, 0629, 568, 379
Stephan Haeringer
20081,125,000 O 0 108, 84695, 8012, 429, 6438
20071, 500,000 O 0 111,808B861, 0619 872,877
Macr o Suter 2008
20071,125,000 O 0 0 70,82@a55, 2512, 351, 072
Loos Peter Kurer 12 31 Marcel Ospel 2008
Stephan Haeringer
2007 Macr o Suter 2007
a. 39
b. 1 2007 2008 36.15 33.55
10 S WX UBS
10 NYSE UBsS
c.2008 2009
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d. —
e. 820,800
AHV ALV
BVG
1
250, 000
UBS 401K
100, 000
a
HR
1 3 4,5
Ernesto BertarelliM M 2008/ 23D9, 0D®0, 000 0 525, 00®M051, 596
M 2007/ 29)D®B, 00DHO, 000 0 475,000014,677
Sally Bott M M 2008/ 208D, 506, 0000 0 237,5090 12, 280
2 2007/ 2008
Rainer-Marc Frey M M 2008/ 2D®®D, 5090, 000 0 312p5050 16, 158
2 2007/ 2008
Bruno Gehring M 2008/ 208D, 5000, 000 0 262,5000 13,572
2 2007/ 2008
Gabrielle Kaufmann-Ko@l ermM 2008/ 232%®, 020, 000 575,000 29, 731
M M 2007/ 29D®B, 0DH0, 000 575,00H0 9,349
Sergio Marchionne M M 2008/ 29DD, 0DMO, 000 250,%00F 75, 000076, 228
M 2007/ 29DB, 0D®O, 000 0 525,000016, 226
Rolf A. Meyer M M 2008/ 200D, 5090, 000 0 312,500 16, 158
2 M C 2007/ 2)D3B, 00H0O, 000 0 975,00H0 15, 853
Hel mut Panke M M 2008/ 29D, 0D®O, 000 0 625,0000 32,316
c 2007/ 2DDB, 0DH0, 000 0 575,000 9,349
William G.ParreMt 2008/ 20®D, 5000, 000 0 262,50H0 13, 572
2 2007/ 2008
David Sidwell M o 2008/ 29D®, 0HH0, 000 0 775,0000 40,072
2007/ 2008
Peter Spuhler 2008/ 20®D, 500 O 0 0 162,500015, 945
2 M 2007/ 29D®B, 0D®O, 000 0 525,00M016, 226
Peter R. Voser C M 2008/ 232%, 0O®M0, 000 0 725,0000 37, 487
M 2007/ 23D®B, 0D®O, 000 0 625, 0090 10, 162
Lawrence A. WeiMbach 2008/ 20®D, 5000, 000 0 262,500 13, 572
2 c 2007/ 29D®B, 00®O, 000 0 925, 0090 15, 040
Joerg Wolle c M 2008/ 29D, 0P®O, 000 0 625, 0090 32,316
M 2007/ 23D®B, 00DHO, 000 0 475,000014,677
2008 6,437,500
2007 5,675,000
C M=
2008 12 31 11 David Sidwell 2008 23
Meyer Peter Spuhler Lawrence A. Weinbach 2008 10 Sal
Bruno Gehring Bill G. Parrett 2008 10 2 2008 10
3 50 50 UBS
100 UBS 008 11.38 ( S WX
2009 10 UBS ) 15 9.67
2007 36. 15 ( SWX 2008 10 UBS
) 15 30.75 56 100
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(500, 000 ) (300,000 ) HR (200, 0
)
HR
a
2008 10,267,240
2007 11,467,328
a
b c d e
Mar cel Rohner
( ) 20081, 500,000 0 0 0 161, 76852, 9314 814, 702
Rory Tapner
CEO 20071, 291, 46001, ¥0BO1, 904 O 10, 256 90010, 306,920
2008 12 31
1 20087, 815, 943 0 0 0 457,65817, 3195 090,911
2007 12 31
1 20076, 995, 8B85305,1666,7305, 708 0 532,70012,9348,052, 939
2008
2 20081, 614,871 0 0 0 234,83858, 423 108, 132
2007
2 20072,511,®37042,87%850, 036 0 406, 56275,638, 986,561
1 2008 12 31 12 2007 12 31
2 12008 Peter Kurer
Marco Suter Joe Scoby 10 2007 Huw Jenkins Clive
Wu f f 1 i
2007 /2008 12 31
1 f 3
Peter Kurer 2008 416,088 0.025 372,995 0.022xxx: 85,256
XXXVv:95,913
x i 95,913
xlv: 95, 913
2007 292,762 0.026 350,000 0.031xxx: 80,000
XXXv:90, 000
xli: 90,000
xlv: 90,000
Sergi o Marchionne 2008 87,926 0.005 0 0.000
2007 45,800 0.004 0 0.000
Ernesto Bertarelli 2008 89,434 0.005 0 0.000
2007 48,411 0.004 0 0.000
Sally Bott 2008 1 0.000 0 0.000
2007
Rai ner - Marc Frey 2008 0 0.000 0 0.000
2007
Bruno Gehrig 2008 3,000 0.000 0 0.000
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2007
Gabrielle Kaufmann-Kohl ex008 18,713 0.001 0 0.000
2007 3,303 0.000 0 0.000
Hel mut Panke 2008 31,971 0.002 0 0.000
2007 13,206 0.001 0 0.000
William G. Parrett 2008 4,000 0.000 0 0.000
2007
David Sidwel] 2008 1 0.000 0 0.000
2007
Peter R. Voser 2008 30,823 0.002 0 0.000
2007 11,580 0.001 0 0.000
Joerg Woll e 2008 41,509 0.002 0 0.000
2007 7,709 0.001 0 0.000
1 2
3 31
1
a
Georges Bl um Swiss Bank CorporaG@0d&®n 101,579 101,579
2007 90, 803 90, 803
Franz Galliker Swiss Bank Cor pd0d®8 i on 69,596 69, 596
2007 62,174 62,174
Wal ter G, Frehner Swiss Bank C»0@®Tration 74,663 74,663
2007 73,061 73,061
Hans (Liliane) Strasser Swi ss Bah& 32,673 32,673
Corporation 2007 42,311 42,311
Robert Studer Union Bank of Swia&&rl and 126,208 126, 208
2007 260,162 260, 162
Al berto Togni UBS 2008318,461427,949 746, 410
2007318,401502, 478 820,879
Philippe de Weck Union Bank of2®W8 tzerl|l andi09, 703 109, 703
2007 129,701 129,701
2 2008 0 171,180 171,180
2007 0 257,791 257,791
2008318,461,113,5511, 432,012
2007318,401, 418, 4811, 736, 882
1
2
2008 /2007 12 31
1 ( %) ( %) 3
Marcel Rohner 2008 711,366 0.0421, 055, 0430. 088V: 31,971
X X X : 213,140
XXXV 277,082
x| i 319,710
x| v: 213,140
2007 501,846 0.044 990,000 0.08R8v: 30,000
X X X : 200, 000
XXXV 260, 000
x i 300,000
x| v: 200, 000
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John Cryan 2008 235,929 0.014 382,673 0.023 21, 362

Vi 20,731

Vi 20,725

Xii: 5,454

X0 5,294

XiVv: 5,292

XVii: 23,626

XViili 23,620

X1 X 23,612

X Xi: 5,526

XX i 5,524

X X i ii: 5,524

XxXxvii: 17,072

XXviii:1l7,068

X X i X 17, 063

xxxii: 14,210

Xxxiii:14,210

X X Xi Vv 14,207

Xxxxviii:5, 330

XX Xi X: 5,328

x| 5,326

x i 17,762

xliii: 17,762

x| iv: 17,760

x| vi: 53,285
2007

Mar kus U. Diethelm 2008 112,245 0.007 0 0.000 0

2007

John A. Fraser 2008 583,812 0.0351,144,8080. 068 56, 013

CEO viii 76,380

XV : 127,884

X X : 127,884

XX Xi: 170,512

XX X Vi 202, 483

x i 213,140

X1 v: 170,512

2007 461,764 0.0411, 074, 2320.00B5 52,560

Vi 71,672

XV 120,000

X X : 120,000

XX Xi: 160, 000

XX XVi 190,000

x i 200, 000

x| v: 160, 000
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Marten Hoekstra 2008 245,397 0.015 684,168 0.041L: 8,679
CEO Us [ - 8,421
iv: 8,421
i X 8,823
X 12,825
X i 8,561
XXVi: 42,628
XX X i 53,285
XX XVi: 53,285
x| 85, 256
X1 v: 154,931
xlvii: 239,053
2007
Jerker Johansson 2008 521,544 0.031 753,410 0.0#Abviii:745,990
CEO x i x: 7,420
2007
Philip J. Lofts 2008 186,4340.011 577,723 0.0814 11, 445
Vi 11,104
Vi 11,098
Xii 1,240
X0 5,464
X1 v 1,199
X Vii 9,985
XViili 9,980
X1 x: 9,974
X X i 1,833
XX i 1,830
X X0 i 1,830
XX Vii 35,524
XxXxviii:35,524
X X1 X 35,521
XXXV 117,090
x| 117,227
X1 v: 85,256
xlvii: 74,599
2007
Wal ter Stuerzinger 2008 296,886 0.018 372,995 0.02%2i: 31,971
X X X : 63, 942
XXXV 85, 256
x| 95,913
x| v 95,913
2007 209,442 0.019 350,000 0.08¢i: 30,000
X X X : 60, 000
X X XV 80,000
x| 90,000
x| v: 90, 000
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Rory Tapner CE2X008 827,809 0.0491,379,5330.08¢PRi 281, 862
XV 213,140
X Xi Vv 213,140
X X X : 170,512
XXXV 159, 855
x i 170, 512
X1 v: 170,512
2007 514,365 0.0461, 294, 4860. 1¢5bi 264, 486
XV : 200, 000
XXi v 200, 000
X X X : 160, 000
X X XV 150, 000
x i 160, 000
X1 v: 160, 000
Raoul Weil 2008 315,698 0.019 432,409 0.0286: 53,285
CEO(& ) xxxv: 102,281
x| 127,884
x| v: 148, 959
2007 212,934 0.019 405,752 0.08¢6: 50,000
XXXV 95,976
X1 120,000
x| v: 139,776
Al exander Wil mot-Sitwel200BS304,6550.018 353,807 0.0f24xiv: 53,282
EMEA CEO XXXVii 2,130
XXxviii35,524
xxxix: 35,524
x| 35,521
X1 v: 106,570
x| vii 85, 256
2007
Robert Wolf UBS 2008 827,307 0.049 948,473 0.058: 287,739
CEO/ X X X i 213,140
XXxxvi: 127,884
x| 106,570
x| v: 106,570
xlvii: 106,570
2007
1 2
3 31
2007 /2008 12 31
i 56, 013 2001 2004 2 20 2009 2 20 1:1 CHF 46. 92
i 8,679 2002 2002 1 31 2012 7 31 1:1 USD 21. 24
[ 8,421 2002 2004 1 31 2012 7 31 1:1 UsSb 21. 24
i v 8,421 2002 2005 1 31 2012 7 31 1:1 UsSD 21. 24
v 32,807 2002 2003 1 31 2012 1 31 1:1 CHF 36.49
Vi 31, 835 2002 2004 1 31 2012 1 31 1:1 CHF 36. 49
Vi 313,685 2002 2005 1 31 2012 1 31 1:1 CHF 36. 49
viii 76,380 2002 2005 1 31 2012 1 31 1:1 USD 21. 24
i X 8,823 2002 2002 2 28 2012 8 28 1:1 Uusb 21.70
X 12,825 2002 2004 2 29 2012 8 28 1:1 uUusb 21.70
X i 8,561 2002 2005 2 28 2012 8 28 1:1 UsSb 21.70
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X i 6, 6914 2002 2003 2 28 2012 2 28 1:1 CHF 36.65
X0 10, 758 2002 2004 2 28 2012 2 28 1:1 CHF 36.65
Xiv 6,491 2002 2005 2 28 2012 2 28 1:1 CHF 36.65
X V 394,309 2002 2005 6 28 2012 6 28 1:1 CHF 37.90
X Vi 31,971 2002 2005 6 28 2012 12 28 1:1 CHF 37.90
XVii 33,611 2003 2004 3 2013 1 31 1:1 CHF 27.81
XViii 33,600 2003 2005 3 1 2013 1 31 1:1 CHF 27.81
X i X 33,586 2003 2006 3 1 2013 1 31 1:1 CHF 27.81
X X 415,623 2003 2006 1 31 2013 1 31 1:1 UsSbD 22.53
X X i 7,359 2003 2004 3 1 2013 2 28 1:1 CHF 26. 39
X Xii 7,354 2003 2005 3 1 2013 2 28 1:1 CHF 26. 39
XX i 7,354 2003 2006 3 1 2013 2 28 1:1 CHF 26.39
X Xi v 213,140 2003 2006 1 31 2013 1 31 1:1 CHF 30.50
X XV 31,971 2003 2006 1 31 2013 7 31 1:1 CHF 30.50
XX Vi 42,628 2003 2006 1 31 2013 7 31 1:1 UsSD 22.53
X X Vi 52,596 20014 2005 3 1 2014 2 27 1:1 CHF 44. 32
XX Vi 52,592 2004 2006 3 1 2014 2 27 1:1 CHF 44. 32
XX i X 52,584 20014 2007 3 1 2014 2 27 1:1 CHF 44.32
X X X 532,850 20014 2007 2 28 2014 2 27 1:1 CHF 48.69
X X X i 436, 937 2004 2007 3 1 2014 2 27 1:1 UusSb 38.13
XX X0 i 14,210 2005 2006 3 1 2015 2 28 1:1 CHF 47.58
X X X0 ii 14,210 2005 2007 3 1 2015 2 28 1:1 CHF 47.58
XX X1 Vv 67, 489 2005 2008 3 1 2015 2 28 1:1 CHF 47.58
X X XV 837,477 2005 2008 3 1 2015 2 28 1:1 CHF 52.32
X X X Vi 383,652 2005 2008 3 1 2015 2 28 1:1 USD 44.81
XX XVii 2,130 2005 2007 3 4 2015 3 4 1:1 CHF 47.89
XX XViidi 40, 854 2006 2007 3 1 2016 2 28 1:1 CHF 65.97
X X X1 X 40, 852 2006 2008 3 1 2016 2 28 1:1 CHF 65.97
x| 40, 847 2006 2009 3 1 2016 2 28 1:1 CHF 65.97
x| 1,332,125 2006 2009 3 1 2016 2 28 1:1 CHF 72.57
x i 17,762 2007 2008 3 1 2017 2 28 1:1 CHF 67.00
x i 17,762 2007 2009 3 1 2017 2 28 1:1 CHF 67.00
xliv 17,760 2007 2010 3 1 2017 2 28 1:1 CHF 67.00
x| v 1,348,276 2007 2010 3 1 2017 2 28 1:1 CHF 73.67
X vi 53,285 2008 2011 3 1 2018 2 28 1:1 CHF 32. 45
X1 vii 505, 478 2008 2011 3 1 2018 3 28 1:1 CHF 35.66
X viidi 745,990 2008 2011 3 1 2018 4 7 1:1 CHF 36. 46
x i x 7,420 2008 2011 3 1 2018 6 6 1:1 CHF 28.10
2007 /2008 12 31
a
1
Peter Kufer 2008 1,261,000 0 1,261,000
2007
Sergi o Marchionne 2008 0 0 0
2007 0 0 0
Ernesto Bertarelli 2008 0 0 0
2007 0 0 0
Sally Bott 2008 0 0 0
2007
Rai ner - Marc Frey 2008 0 0 0
2007
Bruno Gehri’g 2008 798,000 0 798,000
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Gabrielle Kaufmann-Kohl er 2008 0 0 0
2007 0 0 0
Hel mut Panke 2008 0 0 0
2007 0 0 0
WilliamG. Parfett 2008 1,167,659 0 1,167,659
2007
David Sidwell 2008 0 0 0
2007
Peter R. Voser 2008 0 0 0
2007 0 0 0
Joerg Woll e 2008 0 0 0
2007 0 0 0
3,226,659 0 3,226,659
1 2
2007 /2008 12 31
a
1 2
Mar kus U. Di ethel m 2008 3,900,000 0 3,900,000
Joe scoby 3 s 2007 o 3,145,7963, 145,796
4 2008 7,740,562 0 7,740, 562
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 2007 3,487,0003,145,7966,632,796
1 2

35Jo0e Scoby 2008 11

214/390



Financial information
Consalidated financial statements

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

Consolidated financial statements

Management's report on imternal control over financial reporting

The Board of Cirectors and management of UES A (JBS)
are rasponsble for establehang and mantainmg adequate
intarnal control over financial reporting. UBSS internal con-
trol owver financdial repoeting is designed to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the preparation and fair presenta-
tion of published financial statements in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as ssued

by the International Accownting Standards Board.

LESS internal control over finangal reporting incudes
these policies and procedures that:

- Pertan to the maintenance of records that, n reasonable
detail, acourately and fairly reflect transactions and dispo-
stions of assets;

- Prowide rezsonable assurance that fransactions are ra-
corded as necessary 1o permit prepanation and fair pre-
sepitation of financial statements, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ondy in ac-
cordance with authorizations of UBS management; and

- FProvide reasonable assurance reganding prevention or
tirnely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or dis-
positian of the company’s assets that could have a mate-
rial effact on the finandal statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal confral aver
financal reportng may not pravent or detect misstatemants,
Also, prajections of any evaluation of effectiveness o future
periads are subject 1o the risk that cantrals may become in-
adequate because of changes in conditians, or that the de-
gree of compliznce with the policies or procedures may da-
tenarata.

UBS management assessed the effectiveness of UBST
internal contral over financial reparting as of 31 December
2008 based on the oriteria set forth by the Committes
of Sponscring Organizations of the Treadway Commisssan
{C050) m Internal Cantral-Integrated Framework. Based on
this assessment, management believes that, asof 31 Decam-
ber 31 2008, LRSS internal controd aver financal reparting
wias effective.

The effectivensss of UBSS internal contral cver financial
reporting as of 31 Decemnber 2008 has been audited by Ernst
& Young Ltd, LIBS's independent registered pulblic accounting
firm, &5 stated in their repart appeanng on pages 252 (o
253, which expressed an unqualified opinicn on the effec-
tiveness af UBSS internal control aver financial reporting as
of 31 Decernber 2008,

251
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Financial mformation
Consalidated financial statements

Incame statemaent

CHE millon, axcepf per shara dara Noie 1208 EYREA 311208 o

Continuing oparations

Amaraation of intasqisle #sats n3 i 148 [FETN
Total cperating repanses 28,555 25,463 13,365 (15

Cporating proM bom contineing oparatiens batkorate. AL T e (] T et
T pense i (6837 1,368 .54

Hat waitfrwwnriuiqicmrs (20,833) 5,111] 11,121 1306)

Discontinued operations

Profitiom decontied paabors bolom e B eeereisaenn L i IO B, .
T ppense i 1 [25H) [t

Mt profit from discontinued nperations 152 413 24 [S1}

Mt prodit 120,734 (4, 8] 12,000 1340}

Mot profit attr besshle 1o misority isharests

Earnings per share
Bk eamings. par shara (CHE|

256
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Balance sheet

% change fom
CHE miion Note 31,1208 EIRFL ERREL:
Azzats
Cash and balances with censsal banks 32,744 18,7153 s

m 9 340,308 335,264 1

Other assts i 18,811 w2 i
Tatal assats 3,014,815 Eu_am [11}
Liahilities

[us tn banis 12 125,628 145 762 4}

Tradng partfaln fabilties 1 2,431 166 188 ]

Dus to cestomers 2 424774 saea2 26}

Other fiakiitiss 0,3,58 33,865 61,496 454
Tatal liabilitins 1,374,182 2,231,065 o2

13,158]
Enqeity attributable 1o minarity intesest= i, 00 6,851 i5
mlﬂﬂ 40,533 Hﬁ_ﬁ 1ap
Tatal liabilities and equity 2018,815 2,274,001 [T}
E
-]
(-]
E
8
E
257 3
£
2
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Financial mformation
Consalidated financial statements

Statement of changes in equity

Far the year anded
3.12.08 EIRFL 31,1306

Cancellaiion of sennd rading line traasury shaws

Balance at the end of the year attributable to L85 sharaholders 193 e i

Trarmsaction csts salanad 5o share Esuanoes, ned of M
Eabance 3t the e of tha vear attribotatle to UBS shasholders
Balance at the end of the year attributable to minoety intenests
Balance at the end of the year

Mot income recognized diractly i equity, net of tax

dwing the pear
Sublota) = balamcs 2t the and of the year stuibutable to UBS shansholders
Balance at the end of the year attributable to minoety intenests

Subtotal - balance at the end of the year

Net unrealized gains/(lossas) on financial investmants availsblke-forsala, net of tax

Faalized losses mdassified i the income stalement [ 1 :
Sublota| - batamcs 2t the and of the yuar attributable to UBS shaveholders o W 287
Balance at the end of the year attributable to mincrity interests 2 EF} in
Subtotal - balance at the and of the year 49 1403 LE0E

Changes in fair value of derivat e instruments designated as cash flow hedges, net of tax

Mat realaed [gains)/lossas woansifiad fo the income stalemant
Subtotal - balance at the end of the year atiributable to UBS sharehaldars

Balance at the end of the year attributable to minoety intenests

Subtotal - balance at the end of the year
et income recogaized directly i equity, net of tas - sttributable to UBS shareholders 14,335 1,161} 819
Met incame recogaized directly in equity — attributable to minority intenests | ) (448} (178
Balance at the end of the pear {1,606¢ &4
Revaluation reserve fram step scquisitions, net of tax

...................................................... TR~ S L
Movement durng the pear a [ (12}
Balance at the end of the year sttributable to UBS shareholders ] L) EL]

1 Kt ol CHE (17 reilica, CH4¥ 29 milbon ans O B3 milion of relabed tames for the yeaes eaded 311203, 2101207 and 311006 iespesziosk

258
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Statement of changes in equity (continued)

For the year anded
M08 EYRFA 1308

Cancellatins of second trading ina trezsury shares ] {2411} [EE=
Balance at the and of the year attributable to LSS sharsholders
Balance at the snd of the year attributabl to minceity interasts
Balance at the end of the year

Equity classified as cbligation to purchasa own shares

Movements duing the pear
Balance at the end of the year attributable to UBS shareholders

Cancellatins of second trading ina trezsury shares ] 3418 A
Balance at the erd of the year attributable to UBS sharshoiders 13,151 110,363} {10314
Mincrity interests - praferred securities B 444 G217 5&n
Teialaquty sibibutabiatoLBS harsboldees e s e S A I i
Tatal equity attrioutable to misarity intarests 8,002 a1 (1
w 40,533 43804 LA R

1 o divwdend of 204or | was distr beted in Sl 008, cash diiderads ol CHF 220 per saave and CHF 150 per share were zaid on 23 Apl 2007 and 24 A | 3006 seperaely

Additional information: Equity attributable to minority interests

For the year ended
i million 311208 . ARET 111206
5,951 6,089 TA1%

Balance at the end of the year 8,002 65951 6 (a5

258

&
2
;
o
&
g
£

219/390



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Financial mformation
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Statement of changes in equity (continued)

For the year anded % tange fom
Mok oif shavas 311208 .0308 31,1206 31307
Shares ssuad
Ealans 2t the begiening of e yar 2073587,344 108173406
Runnofdanagdal
Cancellation of semnd rading ine traasury sha s [33,070,004)
Balance at the end of the year 2532,580,549 1073547344

Treasury shares

Bl 1 e bgeniegof Sy

Cancellaiion of sennd rading e traasury sha s

Balance at the end of the year

£1,903,121 188,105,524

On 31 Decembser 2008, a maximum of 100,415 shares can be
ssued against the future exercisa of options fram fermer Pain-
eWebber employes option plans. Thesa shares are shown as
conditional share capital in the UBS AG (Farent Bank} dsde-
sigre. Dunirg 2006, shareholders approved the Creation of con-
ditioral capital of up to a maximum of 150 millicn shares 1
fund UBS's employes share opbon programs. In 2008 and
2007, zero and 5,704 shares had been issued under this pro-
gram, The remaining conditional capital to fund LIBSS employ-
¢ share optan ograms amaunts 1o 149,994, 296 shares,
©n 27 February 2008 the extraordmnary general meeting
of sharchoiders approved the creation of a maximum of

Statement of recognized income and expense

CHE 10,370,000 in autharized capital, allowing the distri-
bution of a stock dividend. Acditanally, on 23 Apnl 2008,
the Anrual Gensral Meeting of sharehalders (AGM} ap-
proved a capital increase that resulted n the Bsuance
af Te0, 295 181 fully paid registered shares, in addition dur-
ing 2008, sharehclders appraved the creation of condi-
tienal capital in a maximum amount of 642,750,000 shanes
for the two issuances of mandatory convertible notes
(MCNs), For further infarmatan refer to “Note 26 Capital
increases and mandatony convertible notes™ in the financial
statements.
All issued shares are fully paid.

For e year anded .08 IAz07 310206
Artributable 1o Attributzhie 5o Attribetable 10
ups Les LiEs

Share- Minarity Shase  Minosiey Pare Misoiity
CHYF milien holders  eferasts  Total  hokles  (ndenests Totd  holders  iniesests Tatal
et usrelized gains.ksses) on fnancial imeestments.
avalablefor-sak, beforetss (1,465) {300 (14851 (828 2 (g3 zewm E-
Changes in fair value of darag mated
mowh low il befobe 2160 L. o .= s ] LA
Fomimomency Imslstion e, 1383 fE1s adom  Doem | QR 028M 0gst e f4ad
Tan on items iransfered o) {from) equity (198} 0 {1561 18 a 14 (&6} o (&G
Met income recogrized directly in equity, net of tax [3,173) (B4%) (3,81E) [1.880) M) (2350 1005 (173} &4
Met income recogriized in the income statement [21,292) 568 [20,724) [5.24M) 538 4708 11,527 4531 12000
Tatal recognized income and expense |24, 485) 17 (24,5411 [7.22M) M3 (RG5H] 12542 e 12882

260
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Statement of cash flows
For the year anded
£HF milion 31,1208 314207 111206

Cash flow from f(used in} operating activities
Bl predit (20,724} 4,708} 12,000

Mon-cazh tlems induded in met peofit and other adusimenss
Depracation of propery and eguipment

Credit koss eupense [recvery)
Share of net profits of associaes.

Acciued eepenses and ofter banibtes 14,755
=g b pad (2507}
Met cash flow fromd{used in) operating acd vities 76,580 {52,078} {53840

Cash flo from { used In) investing activities
Invesaments in subsidaries and asmocanes

Kel {investmest in) ! divestment of fisand al imsestme s sealable-for-sale
Met cash flow Trom(used i) investing sdivities

Cash flow from f(used in} financing activities
Mt ety mearked pagear tssued ! [re pasd)

Cerh and cash eguivalents, begisnisg of the pea 149,105 136,090 1,042
Cash ard cash equivalents, at the end of the year 178,685 143,105 136,000
G md cash squbvalants compriss:

LCaeh and balsnces with centeal banfks

Dus from basks with origiral martensy of kss #an hree mosths.
Tatal

1+ Inchades Buance ol prefened secusties. ol 04F 1617 milion, (W 596 il Bom aad CWF 1219 million For se vears ended 11 December 208, 31 December 207 and 31 Decembe 2006 nepectively
- Moy bt paged i nciucked i The bl poe sheet prder Trackig pontfobo dssets and Frencisl imestments svailsble-korsake CHF 3853 milion, CHF 3,364 million aad O0F 7,183 milion were
pledge] o 31 December JO0, 51 Denembet 2007 ared B0 Dece et 2006 nepactivedy
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting polidies

a) Significant accounting policies

1) Basis of accounting

LUBS AG and subsidiaries {"UBS" or the "Group”} provide a
broad range of financial senvices including advisary services,
underwritng, financing, market making, asset management
and brokerage on a global kevel, and retail banking in Swit-
zerland. The Group was formed on 29 June 1998 when
Swiss Bank Corporation and Union Bank of Switzerland
merged, The menger was accounted for wsng the unitng of
interests methed of accounting.

The consalidated finanoal statements of LIBS (the “Finan-
cial Staterments“} are prepared in accordance with Interna-
tignal Financial Reparting $tandards (FRS), &5 issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board JASE). and stated
in Swss francs (CHF), the curmency of Switzesland where UBS
AG s incorporated. On 5 March 20049, the Board of Directors
approved them for issues,

Disclosures under IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures
abaut the nature and extent of risks and Capital dischkasunes
under A5 1 Presentafion af Financlal Staterments have been
induded in the audited parts of the "Risk and treasury man-

agement” section,

A0 Llsg af estirnates in the preparaton of Fenancial Statensents
In preparing the Fnancal Staterments, managerment is re-
quired to make estimates and assumptions that affect re-
ported income, expenses, assats, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, Use of available infermation
and application of judgrment ara inkerent in the farmation of
estimates. Actual results in the future cowld differ from such
estimates, and the differances may be material to the Finan-
cial Statements.

3 Subsdiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities

The Finandal Statements comgrise those of the parent com-
parry {UBS AG) and its subsidiaries induding certain special
puFpose entities, presented as a single econamic entity. The
effects of intra-group transactions are eliminated in prepar-
ing the Rinancal Staternents. Subsdiaries ncluding specal
purpose entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by
the Group are consolidated, UBS contrals an entity if it has
the power 1o gavern the financial and operating polies so
a5 1o abtain benefits from the entity’s activities. Subsidiaries
aoquired are consolidated from the date control is trans-
ferred 1o the Group. Subsidianes to be dvested are consali-
dated up to the date of disposal (.2 loss of contral),

Equity atiributable to minority interests is presented in the
consolidated balanoa sheet within equity, separately from agquity
attribusable fo LIRS shareholders, Met profit attributable to mi-
neaity intesests s shown separately in the moome statement.

The Group sponsars the farmation of entities, which may or
may not be directly or indrectly cwened subsidiaries, for the
purpose of assat securitization fransactions and struchsed
bt issuance, and 1o accomplish certain narrow and well de-
fined objectives. These companses may acquene assets direclly
ar indirectly from UEBS ar its affibates. Some of these compa-
ries are bankruptoy-remaote entities whaose assats are not avail-
able 1o satisfy the claims of creditars af the Growp or any of its
subsidiaries. Such companies ane consobdatad in the Graup's
Fmancial Statements when the substance of the rlationship
betwaen the Group and the company indicates that the com-
pany B controfed by the Group. UBS also has employes ben-
afit trusts that are used in connection with share-based pay-
ment arangements and defermed compensation schemes,
Pursuant ta the anteria set aut in SKC 12 Consolidation — Spe-
cial Purpose Entibies, an interpretabion of A5 27, UBS consoli-
dates thesa trusts if it controls such entities.

IrregsTments in assaciates inowhiech LIES has a significant in-
fluence are acoounted for under the equity method of ac-
counting. Sigrficant influence s normally evcenced when
UES owvns 20% or more of & company's woting rights. invest-
ments in associates are intially recordad at cost, and the carmy-
N AMOUNT i increased or decreased 1o recognize the Group's
share of the investas's net prafit or loss (rcuding net profit or
loss recogrized directly i equity) after the date of acquisition.

Interasts in jointly controllad entitias, in which URS and one
ar mere thind parties have joint contral, are accounted far un-
cher thae ecuity mathod, A jointly contralled entity is sukject 10
4 confractual agreement between UBS and one ar mare third
parties, which establishes joint control over its economic ac-
tiwities. Inferests in such entities are reflected under Irvest-
ments in associates on the balance sheet and the related ds-
dasres are incuded in the disclosures for associates. LBS
holds certain interests in jointy controlled real estate entities.

Aszsats and liabilities of subsidiaries, investments in asso-
ciates and interasts in jointly controlled entities are dassified
as “held for sake” if their carying amount will be recavered
principally throwah a sale transaction rather than throwgh
continuing use — s2a parts 173 and 26). Major lines of busi-
ness and sulbsidiaries that were acquired exdusively with the
mtent for resale are prasented as dscontinued cperations

a3
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in the income statemeant in the pericd when the sale oc-
currad or it becomas highly prababde that & sale wall cocur
within 12 rronths - see part 260,

4) Recagnition and derecogrition of inandal instruments
UBS recogrizes finandal instruments on its balance shest
when the Group becomes a party fo the contractual provi-
sions of the instrument,

UBS enters infa transactions where it transfers financial as-
sais recognized on its balance sheet but retains esther all risks
and rewards of the transferred finandial assats or a portion of
them. If all or substantially &l risks and rewards are retained,
the transfierred financal assets are not derscogrized from the
balance sheet. Transfers of financial assets with retention of al
ar substantially all risks and rewards nclude, for example, se-
curities lending and repurchase transactions dascribed in this
Note under parts 123 and 13), They further indude transac-
tions where financial asets are sold 1o & trand party with a
concurrent total rate of return swap an the transferred assets
to retain all thair risks and rewards. These types of transac-
tions are acoounted for as secured financing transactions,

In transactions where substantialy all of the Asks and rewards
of ewmearshep of a financial asset are nether etamed nor trans-
farred, UBS derecognizes the finandal asset if control over the
asset is host. The nghts and obligations retsined in the transfer
are recognized saparately as assets and Babilities as appropriate.
In transfers whene cantral aver thi financial asset s etained, the
Group continues e recognize the asset to the axtent of is con-
tinuing invalvement, determined by the extent towhich it is ex-
pasad to changes in the vehue of the transferred asset Eamples
of such transactons ane transfiars of financial assets mvokang
guarantees, wiiting put options, acquining call options, or spe-
cific types af swaps linked to the performance of the assen.

UBS remawes a finandal liability from its balance shest
when it is extinguishad, i.e, whan the abligation specified in
the contract is descharged or cancelled or expines,

Aseets held in an ageney ar fiduciany capacity are rot assets
of the Group and are not reported in the balance sheet, pro-
vided the recognition criteria of IFRS are nat satisfied.

5 Dates mination of fair valie
For an averview of financial assets and financial labilites ac-
counted for at fair vabue, refer to the A4S 39 measurement
categones prasented in Nate 39 financial assets and finan-
cial labilities held for trading drcludsng derivatives), financal
assets and financial llakdities dessgnated at fair value through
prefit ar boss, and financal investments available-for-sale.
For details on the determination of fairvalue, including those
on fair value measurements for LS student loan auction rate
sgourities, monalines, leveraged finance ransactions, LS
and non-US reference linked nates, US commercial mart-
gage backed securities and other mstruments which were
determined relevant for specfic disclosures refer to Note 27,
For financial instruments traded i active markets, the

264
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determination of fair values of fmandal assets and financial lia-
bilties is basad on quoted market prices or dealer price quota-
tens, For 3l other financial mstruments, fair vabee s determened
wsng valugton technagues, Valuation techngques include net
present value techniques, the decounted cazh flow method,
comparisan to similar instruments for which market obsenable
pnces exst and valuation models. UBS uses widely recognized
valuation madels for determineng fasr wabues of non-standard-
ized financal instruments af lewer complesty like options or
mterest rate and currency swaps. For thess finandal instru-
ments, inputs nto models ane generally market obeervable.

For more complax instruments, UBS wees internally daval-
aped models, wihich are wsually based on valuation metheds
and techniques generally recognized as standard withirs the
mndustry. Yaluation madels are used primarily to value dariva-
tives transacted in the over-the-counter marke?, induwding
credt derwatives, unlisted equity and debt securities (nduwding
thase with embedded derivatives), and other debt nstruments
for which markets were or have become #quid in 2008,
Some of the inputs to these models may not be market ob-
senvable and are therefare estimated based on aswmptans,
The impact on Met prafit of financial instrement valuations
reflecting non-market cbservable inputs fevel 3 profit and
loss) is disclosed in Mote 27 When entering into a fransaction
where meded inputs are not market abservable, the financal
mstrument is initally recognized at the fransaction price,
which is generally the best indicator of fair value, This may dif-
fer freem the value obtaned from the valuation model. The
timing of the recognition n income of this intial difference in
fair value {“Deferred day 1 profit or loss") depends on the in-
dividual facts and circumstances of each trarsaction but s
never later than when the market data becorme observable.
Refer to Note 27 for details on deferred day 1 profit or loss.

The output of a model is always an estimate or approxama-
tion of a value that cannat be deterrmened with certainty, and
vahugtion techreques employed may not fully reflect all facions
relevant 1o the pesitions LBS holds. Valuations are therefare
adyusted, where appropriate, to aliow for additional factors
ncluding modsl msks, Bauidity risk and cownterparty cradit
risk. Eased on the estabizhed fair value and model gover-
nance policies and related comtrols and procedures apolied,
managerment believes that these valuation adjusiments are
necassary and appropriate to fairly state the values of finanoal
mstruments carried at fair value on the balance sheet,

A breakdown of fair valses of financial instruments mea-
sured on the basis of quoted market prices in active markets
evel 1), vatuation technegues reflecting market obsarvable in-
puis (lewel 2), and waluation technigues reflecting significant
nian-market-obsersable inputs (eval 3) is provided in Mote 27,

&) Trading portiolia assets and liabdties

Trading partfolio assets consist of debt instruments {nduding
thase in the form of securities, maney market papsr, traded
corporate and bank loans), equity instruments (indwding
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those in tha form of securities), precious metals and other
cammadities cwned by the Group (“long” posstions), Trading
portfolo liabilites consst of chligations 1o deliver fnancial in-
strurments swch as debt and equity mstruments whedh the
Graup has sold 1o third parties bt does not awn Cshart”
positions). The trading portfolio includes non-derivative finan-
cigl instrumenits dnchuding those with embedded derwativas)
andd commodities. Fnancial instrurments which are consiclened
desivatives in their entirety are presented an balance sheet as
Fositive and Megative replacement walues, refer to part 14).

The trading portfolio is carried at fair value. Gains and
losses reakzed on dsposal or redemption and unrealized
gains and losses from changes in the fair value of trading
portfolio assets and lakalities are reported as Met trading in-
come. Interest and dividend income and expense on trading
portfalio assets or Rabilities ara includad in interest and divi-
dend incarme or Interest and dividend expense,

An acqueed non-derivatve financial asset or liabibty is
classified a1 acquisition as hedd for trading and presented in
the trading portfolio, if it is {a) acouired or inoered princ-
pally for the purpose of salling ar repurchasing it in the near
terrg of (k) part of & portfalio of entified financal instn-
mierits that are managed together and for which there is evi-
dence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

The Group uses sattlement date aooounting when reconding
trading financial assat fransactions, From the date the purchase
transaction is entered inw (racke date), UES reoognizes any un-
realized profits and kossas adsing from revakeng that contract 1o
fairvahue in Net trading income. The cormesponding recerable or
payable s presentad on the balance sheet as a positive or nega-
e replacement value, When the transaction is consummated
{sertlement datel, & resultng financal asset s recognaed on the
halance sheet at the fair value of the consderation given or re-
caived phus or minus the change in fair value of the contract since
the trade date, When the Group becomes party 1o a sales con-
tract of & financal asset Jassified inits tradeg portalio, unneak
zed profits and losses are no keager recognized fram the date
the sakes transaction is entered into {trede date} and it derecog-
nizes the asset on the day of its transfer (zettlernent date).

Trading partfalio assets transfered to external parties
that do nat gualify for derecagnition (See part 45 are reclas-
sified ory LIBS's balance sheet from Trading portfolio assets 1o
Trading portfolic assets pledged as collateral, if the transfer-
&2 has recaived the right 1o sell or repledge them.

Feolkswing an armeadment t A5 39 in 2008 (mefaer fo MNote 1k
and hoke 29), subject 1o certain conditions beng met, finarcial
assets may be reclssified out of the “held far irading” category
tathe “loans and receivalbles” categary if the finm has the intent
and akility 1o hold them for the foreseeable future ar wntd ma-
turity, UES has appled this option in fowrth quatar 2008 and
reclassfied sevaral ibgquid financal instrument positions 1o the
category “leans and recervables”, which reguires these instru-
ments are na lenger fair valued throwgh profit or boss but rather
accounted for at amortized cost less Impairment,
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7y Financial assets and Rnanoal liabdities designated at fair
value thrawgh profit ar loss (“Fair Value QOption '}
A financial instrurnent ray anly be designated at fair value
throwgh profit or loss at inception and this dessanation can-
nal subsequently be changed. Financial assets and financdal
Eazbilities designated at fair walue are presented in separate
Enes on the face of the balance sheet.
The canditions for applysng the fair value aption ane mit
an the bass thai
a) they are hybrid instruments which consist of a debt host
and an embedded derivative componant, or
by they are items that are part of a portfalio which is nsk
managed on a fair value basis and reported to sensor
management on that bass, or

c} the application of the fair value cption reduces cr alimi-
nates an acoounting mismatch that would athensise arise,

Hybrid instrurments which fall under aiterion & abowe
miclude i bonds and campound debt kabdtes ssued, i com-
pound detot habestes — OTC, and i) hyted financal assets
from reversa repurchase agreements. Bonds and compound
et Babditas issued and OTC generally include embadded da-
ative cornponents which refer 1o an underlying, @, g. equity
price, interest rate, comrmodities price or mdex. UES has desig-
nated most of its issued hybnd debt instruments as Fnancal
Eabilities designated at fair value through profit or koss.

Besides hybrid instruments, the fair vahue option i also
apolied 1o certan loans and loan commitments which ane
substantially hedged with credit derivatives. The applicaton
of the fair value option to these instruments reduces an ac-
counting mismatch, as kans would have been otherwsse
accounted for at amartzed cost or as financial investments
available-for-sabe {refer to part 8)), whereas the hedgeng
credit protection 15 accounted for as a dervative instrument
at fair value through profit or loss. Lean commitments athar
than anerous loan commitments ara anly recognized on bal-
ance sheet if the faer value option has been applied,

LIBS has also appdied the fair value eotion te a hedge fusd
imvestment which is part of a portfolic managed on a fair
value basis, Fair value changes related fo financial instru-
ments designated at fair walue thraugh prafit or loss are
recognized in Met trading moome.

Interest income and nterest expense on financial assats
and liabities designated at fair value throwgh profit or loss
are incuded in Inferest income on financial assets designat-
ed at fair vakie or Interest on financial liabibties desanated
at fair value. Refer ta Note 3.

LBS applies the same recognition and derecognitien pain-
ciples to finandal instruments designated at fair walue as for
financial instrumants held for trading (refer to parts 4} and
&

By Financial investments availzble-for-sale
Financial investmeants available-for-sale are non-darivative fi-
nancial assefs that are not classified as held far trading, das-
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

ignatad at fair valuz through profit or loss, or loans and re-
ceivables, Thay are recognized on a settlement date basis.
Finarcial imvestrments available-forsale include strategic
equity investments as well as instruments that, in manage-
el apeion, may be wald inresponse 1o or in anticpation
of nesds for liquidity or changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates or equity prices. Financial investments avail-
able-for-sale consist mainly of equity instruments, Induding
cerain private equity investmenis. In addition, certain debit
instrments and non-performing loans acqured in the
secondary market are dassified as finandal investments
avalzble-for-sale,

Financial invesiments available-forsale are carmed at fair
value. Lock-in periods for equity inwestments ane considenad
when deterrnining fas value. Unrealized gains or losses are
reported in Equity, net of apphcable income taxes, until such
investments are sold, collected or otherwse dspasad of, or
until any such investment is determined to be imparad, On
dispesal of an investrment, the accumulated wnreakzed gain
or lees ineluded in Equaty 15 ransferred ta Net peafit far the
pericd and reparted in Gther income. Gains and losses an
dispesal ae determined using the average cost method,

Imerest and dividend income on financal investments
awailable-for-sale are included in Interest and dividend in-
come from financial rmvestments available-for-sake.

If a financial investment available-for-sale is determined
10 be impaired, the cumulative unsealized loss pravioush rec-
ognized in Equity is included in Net prefit for the peried and
reparted i Other income. UBS assesses at each balance
sheat date whether thers is objective evidence that a finan-
cial imvestment available-for-sale is smpaired. In case of such
evidence, it Is considesed impaired i its cost exceeds the re-
coverable amount. The recaverable amount for a quated fi-
nancial imvestment available-far-sale & determined by refer-
ence to the markat price, A guoted financal invesiment
avalanle-forsale is considened impasad if objectve evidence
inckcates that the decline in market price has reachad such a
level that recovery of the cost value cannot be reasonably
expected within the foresseable future, Far a non-guotad
financial investment avadable-for-sale {debt and equity in-
struFrentsy, the recoverable amount is determined by apply-
ing recognized valuation technigues. The standard method
applied for non-guoted equity instruments is based on the
multiple of sarnings cbserved in the market for comparable
cofmpanies. Management may adjust valuatons determinad
in this way based on its pdgment. Far nen-guoted debt in-
strurnents, UBS typically determines the recoverable amount
by applying the dscounted cash flow method.

Aftar the recognition of impairment on a financal invest-
ment available-far-sale, a) increases in fair value of equity
instruments are reported in Equity and b} mcreases in fair
value of debt instruments up to origanal cost are recognized
in Cither income, provided the fair value increase has been
triggered by a specific event (s defined by IFRS).
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9) Loans and receivables

Far an overview of finandal assets and financal liabilities
aecounited for as “loans and receivables”, refer 1o the |AS 39
measurement categones presented in Note 29

Loans indude |lzans onginated by the Group where money
is prowided directly to the borrower, participation i a lean
fram another lender and purchased loans that are not quot-
ed in an active market and for which na intention of im-
mediate or short-term resale exists. Origmated and pue-
chased lzans that are intended to be sold in the short term
are generally recorded as Trading portfolio assets. Certain
purchased non-performing boans are recognized as financdal
investrnents avallable-for-sale. In addition, & fourth quarter
2008, L85 has reclassafied certain detst financal assets from
the category “held-for-trading” to “loans and receivables”,
mainky due to illiguid markets for these instruments {frefer to
Mote 10 and Mate 290, At 31 December 2008, a significant
pertan of aucton rate secunties, including those acquired
oy LAES from clients was classified a5 " loans and recavisbles”.
Refer to Nota .

Loans are recognized when cash is advanced 1o Domrow-
ars. Thiy are initizlly recarded at fair value, which is the cash
given o onginate or purchase the koan, plus any transactaon
costs, and are subseguently measured at amortized cost
uzing the effective interest rate methad.

Interest on koans 5 induded in ntenest earned on leans and
advances and 15 recognized on an accrual basis. Feas and di-
rect costs relating to lean arigination, refinandng or restruc-
turing and to loan commitments are deferred and amortized
to Interest earned an loans and advances over the life of the
kaan using the strasghi-line methad which aporoximates the
effective interast rate method. Fees recessed for commitments
that are not expected to result in a loan are ncluded n Credit-
related fees and commissions over the commetment pericd,
Loan synchcation fees where LIRS does not retain a portion of
the syndicated koan are cadited 1o cormmission incarme.

Commitments

Letters of cradit, quarantees and simiar instruments commit
UBS to make paynients on behall of third parties under spe-
cifie aroumstances. These instruments, a5 well a5 undrawn
irrevocable credit fadilities, carry credit risk and are induded
in the exposure to aedit risk table, in the audited "Credit
risk" section of Risk and treasury management, with their
SINGES FREKIML exposure 1 it risk,

10 Allowance and provision for onedit kossas

An allowance or pravision for credit losses is established if
there ks objective evdence that the Group will be wnable to
collect all armcunts due on a claim according 1o the enginal
contractual terms or the equivalent value. & “dasm” means
a loan or receivable carried at amortized cost, or 3 commit-
ment such as a letter of gredit, a guarantee, a commitment
1o extend cradit of ather credit products,
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An alowance for credit kosses is reported as 2 reduction
of the carrying value of a claim on the balance sheet, For an
off-balance sheet item, such as a commitment, 3 provision
far credit loss & reported in Other lakilites, Additions 1o al-
loweances and prewisions Tor cradit losses are made threugh
Credit loss expense.

Allowances and provisions. for credit losses are evaluated
at a counterparty-spedfic level and collectively based an the
fallowing principles:

Cournterparfy-specific;. A daim is considered impaired
when management determines that it is probable that the
Graup will not be able to collect all amaounts due according
ta the original contraciual terms ar the eguivalent value.

Indevidual credit exposures are evaluated based on the
borrowers character, overall financial condition, rescurces
and payment recard; the praspects for support from any fi-
nancally responsble guarantars; and, where applicable, the
realizable vablue of ary collateral.

The estimated recoverable amount is the present value,
using the loan: onginal effective interest rate, of expected
future cash flows, inchuding ameunts that may result from
restructuing of the liguidation of collatesal, Impalrment is
mizasured and allowances for credin lasses ane established for
the ditterence batween the camying amouwnt and the esti-
mated recaverable amount,

Upan impairment, the accrual of interest income basad
an the anginal terms of the daim is discontinued, but the
increase of the present value of impaired claims due to the
passage of time is reported as Interast ncome.

All impaired caims are generally reviewed and analyzed at
least annually. Any sstsequent changes ta the amaunts and
timing of the expected future cash flows compared with the
prior estimatas result in a change in the allowance for cedit
lozses and are charged or medited to Credit loss expense.

An allowance for mmpairment & reversed only whan the
credit quality has impeoved to such an extent that there is
reasonable assurance of tmely collection of pancpal and in-
terest in atcordance with the original contractual terms of
the claim or equivalent value,

A wnite-off s made when all ar part of a daem is deemed
uncallectible of forgiven. Wiite-offs are charged against pee-
viously established allowances for credit lasses ar directly 1o
Credit boss expense and reduce the prindpal amount of a
claim. Recoveries in part arin full of amouwnts previoushy writ-
ten off are credited to Credit loss expense.

A loan is dassified as nan-perfarming when the payrment
of interest, principal or fees & overdue by more than S0 days
and there 5 no firm swvidence that it will be made good by
later payments or the liquidation of collateral, inschency
proceedings have commenced against the firm, ar when ab-
ligations have been restructured on concessionary tarms.

Coliectively: All loans for which no impairment is denti-
fied an a cownterparty-specific level are grouped into sub-
portfalios with similar oredit risk chasacteristics 1o colectivaly
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assess whether imparment exists within 2 portfolio. Allow-
ances from collective assessment of impairment are recog-
mized a5 Credit loss expense and resdlt in an offset to the
agaregated lcan positian. As the allowance cannot be alla-
cated to individual loans, the loans are not considered to be
impaired and inferest is accrued on each loan acconding to
its contrachual tenms.

11) Securitizations
UBS seountizes warious financial assets, which generally resuits
in the sale of these assets to spedal purpese entifies, which in
U BsUE Secwrities 1o investars, LIBS'S invahement in securiti-
zation structures significantly dedined in 2008, UBS applies
the polices set out in part 3) in determaning whether the re-
spective special purpose entity must be consolidated and
those st aut in part 4) in determining whether derecognition
of transfered financial asets & appropriate. The fallowing
statements mainky apply 1o financial asset ransfers which ane
considerad true sales to non-consolidated entities.

Interests in the securitized financial ssats may be retained
i the form of senior or subsardinated tranches, interest-cnly
stiips oF ather residual interests (retained nterests"). Re-
tasned interests are primarily recorded in Trading partfolic
assets and carried at fair vakue. Gans or losses on secuntiza-
tion are recognized in Net trading income, which is gener-
ally when the derecognition critena are satisfied. Typically.
the Group seeks 1o exit its risk in retained interasts shoetly
after close of the securtization. Synthetic securitization
struciures typecally involve derivative financial mstruments
far which the principles set out in part 14) apply, Purchased
asset-backed secuntes (ABS), incduding mortgage-backed
sacirities (MBS), arigmated by thed parties are recognized as
finandial assets held for trading, or in a minority of cases, as
Financal swestments avadable-for-sale, In 2008, certain il-
Bauid ARS were reclassified 1o the categony “loans and ra-
cewables” and several student loan aucton rale securities,
which are considered securitized instrurments, are dassified
as loans and recaivables after acquiring them from dients.

UBS acted as structurer and placement agent in vanous
MES and other ABS securitizations, In such capacity, UBES
purchesad collateral on its own behalf or on behalf of cus-
tomers during the perod poor 1o securitization. UBS Typi-
cally sald the cellateral inte designated trusts at the close of
the secuntization and underwrites the offerings to inves-
tows. LUBS earrs fees far its placerment and structuring ser-
vices, Cansisent with the valuation of similas imventany, fair
walue of retained tranches is initally and subsequently de-
termined using market poce quotatans where available ar
mtemal pricing models that utilize varizbles such a5 yield
curdes, prepayment speeds, default rates, loss severity, in-
terest rate volatilives and spreads. The assumptices used for
pricing are based an cbearvable ransactions in similar secu-
rities and are verified by external pricng sources, where
awalahle,
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

12} Sacurities borrowing and lending

Securities borrowing and securities lending fransactions are
generally entersd into on a collateralzed basis, In such t#ans-
actions, UBS typecally berds or Darmows seouritees in exchange
for securities of cash colateral. Additionally, UBS bBarrows
sacurities from its clients” custody accounts in exchange for
a fee, The majority of secusities lending and bBormowing
agreements irvolve shares, and the remainder typecally in-
volve bonds and notes. The trarsactions are conducted un-
der standard agreements empayed by finandal market par-
ticipants and are undertaken with counterparties subject to
LIB5%S normal credit risk control processes. LIES manitors the
market value of the securities received or delivered on a dai-
Iy basis and requests or provides addstionad collateral or re-
turns or recalls surplus collateral in accordance with the un-
derlying agresments,

The secunties which have been transfesred, whether in &
borreawing Alanding transaction or as collatesal, are not fecog-
nized on or derecognized from the balance sheet unless the
risks and rewards of cwnership are also transferred. In such
transactions where LIES transfers owned securities and where
thie boerawwer i granted the right to sell of repledge them, the
secunties ane reclassfied on the balance sheet from Trading
portfolio assats fo Trading portfolio assets pladged as collat-
eral. Cash collateral received is recognized with a comespond-
ing cbligation to return it {Cash collateral on secunties lent).
Cash collateral delivered is derecognized with & comespand-
ing receivable reflecting UBS% right 1o recesve it back (Cash
collateral on securities borrowed). Securibes received in &
lending or bomowing fransaction are disclosed as off-balance
sheat items if UES has the right 1o resell or repledge them,
with securities that UBS has actually resald or repledged also
disclosed separately (see Note 24). Additionally, the sake of
sacurities recerved i 3 borrowing or lending transaction trig-
gers the recognition of a trading liability (shoet salel.

Consderation exchanged in finanang transactions i.e.
interest recaived or pasd) 15 recognized on an accrual basis
and recorded as Interest income or Interest expense.

13} Repurchase and reverse repurchase tfransactions
Secunties purchased wnder agreements 10 resell (Reverse rg-
purchase agreementst and secunties sold under agreements
to repurchase (Repurchase agreements) are generally treated
a5 collateralized financing transactions. Nearly all repurchase
and reverse repurchase agreements invalve debt instru-
ments, such as bonds, notes ar maney market paper. The
transactions are conducted under standard agreerments em-
ployed by financial market participants and are undertakan
with counterparties subject to UBS's normal credit risk con-
trol processes, LES monitors the market value of the securi-
ties recened or delivered on a daly basis and requests or
provides additional collateral or returns or recalls surplus col-
lateral in accordance with the underlying agraements.

In & raverse repurchase agreemeant, the cash delivered is
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deraccgnized and a corresponding receivable, incheding ac-
crued intersst, is reconded in the balance sheet Ene Reverse
repaschase agresments, recognizing UBS'S nght ta receive it
Dack. In & Repurchase agreement, the cash recerved 5 recog-
nized and a comesponding cbligation, including accrued
interest, s recorded in the balance sheet line Repurchase
agraemants. Secunties received under reversa repurchase
agreements and secunities delvesed under repurchase agree-
menis are not recognized on ar derecegnized fram the bal-
ance sheet, unless the risks and rewards of cwnership are ob-
tained ar relinquished. In repurchase agreements whera LBS
transfers owned sacurities and where the recipient & grantad
the right 1o resell or repledge them, the secunties are reclassi-
fiedd in the batance sheet from Trading portfalio assets to Trad-
ing partfolic assets pledged as collateral. Securities raceived in
a reverse repurchase agreement are disclosad as off-balance
sheet iterns if UBS has the right 1o resell or repledge them,
with securities that UBS has actually rescdd or repledged ako
disclosed separately (see Note 24). Additionally, the sale of
sacurities recesved in reversa repunchase transactions triggers
the recognition of a trading liakilty (short sale),

Irnterest earned on reverse repuschase agresments and
interest imcurred on repurchase agreements & recognized
as interest income or interest expense over the life of each
dgresment.

The Growp offsets reverse repurchase agreements and re-
purchase agreemeants with the same counterparty, maturity,
currency and Ceniral Securities Depasitory (C500 fer transac-
tions covered by legally enforceable master netting agree-
ments when net or simultaneous settlement is intended.

18] DaErmvativg INsInumeents and '|:<I:_|-_' ACcounting

All derivative instruments are carmied at fair value on the bal-
amce sheet and are reported as Positve replacement values
or Megative replacement values, Whare the Group enters
it derivatwes for trading purposes, realized and unrealized
gains and lasses are recognized in Met trading incame.

Credit losses inogrred on aver-the-counter (OTC) deriva-
tives are also reported in Met trading income.

Hedge FO00Unting

The Group alse uses derivative instruments as part of 15
asset and liability management activities to manage expo-
sures to interest rate, foresgn currency and credit risks, in-
cluding exposures ansimg frorm forecast transactans. The
Graup applies either far value or cash flow hedge account-
ing when transactons meet the specified criteria 1o cbtain
hedge sccownting treatment.

At the tme a financial instrement is designated as a
hedge, the Growp formally decuments the relatianship be-
tween the hedging instrumentis} and hedged itemis), inchud-
ing the risk management objectives and strategy in under-
taking the hedge transaction, togather with the methods
that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging
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redationship. Accordingly, the Group assesses, both at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whethar
the hedging desivatives have been “highly effective® in off-
setting changes in the fair value ar cash flows of the hedged
iterrs. LBS ragards a hedge as highly affectwe anly if the fal-
lowing criteria are met: a} at mception of the hedge and
throughout its bfe, the hedge is expected to be highly effec-
tivie in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows
attributable 1o the hedged risk, and b) actual resulis of the
hedge are withan a range of 80% to 125%. In the case of
hedging a forecast transacticn, the transaction must have &
high probability of oocurming and must present an exposune
to wariations in cash flows that could ultimanely affect the
reparted met profit or loss. The Group discontinues hedge
accounting when it determines that a derivative is not, or
has ceased to b, highly effective as a hadge; when the da-
rivative expres ar 15 sald, terminated or exercised; when the
hedged iterm matures, is sald or repaid; ar when a farecast
transaction & no longer deemed highdy probakde.

Hedge neffectivenass represants the amouwnt by which
the changes in the fair value of the hedging desivative diffar
froen changes & the fair value of the hedged item ar the
amaunt by which changes in the present value of cash flows
of the hedging dervative differ from changes {or expected
changes) in the present value of cash flows of the hedged
itern, Such ineffectivensss is recorded in current period earn-
ings in Met trading incame,

Fair value hedges

For qualifying fair valua hadges, the change in fair value of
the hedging derwative is recognized in the income state-
mient. These changes in fair value of the hedged item that
are attributable to the risks hedged with the derivative in-
strument are reflected in an adjustment o the carnying value
aof the hedged item, which is aka recognized in the income
statement, The fair value change of the hedged ftem in 2
portfalis Fedge af interast rate reks & reported separataly
from the hedged portfalio in Other assets ar Other liabikties
25 appropriate, If the hedge relaticrship is terminated for
reasons other than the derecognition of the hedged item,
the difference between the carmang value of the hedged
iterm at that point and the value atwhsch it would have beery
carried had the hedge never existed (the "unamartized fair
value adjustiment”) &, in the case of nterest-bearing nstru-
menits, amortized to the moome statement over the remain-
ing term of the onginal hedge, whike for ron-mterest-bear-
ing mstruments that amount B immediately recognized in
earmings. If the hedged item is derecognized, e.g. due 1o
sale or repaymeant, the unamartized fair value adjustment is
recagnized immediately in profit or loss,

Casit flow hedges
A fair value gain or loss associated with the effective portion
of a denvative designated as a cash flow hedge is recognized
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mitially in Equity. When the cash flows that the derivative is
hedging materialize, resulting in income or expense, then
the associated gain or less o the bedging derivative is sarml-
taneausly transferred froem Equaty to the corresponding in-
come or expense line item.

If & cazh flow hedge for a forecast transaction is deemed
ta be no longer effective, or if the hedge relationship & ter-
minated, the cumulative gain ar kass on the hedging deriva-
tive previously reported in Equity remains there uritil the
cammitted ar farecast ransaclion ooours of B no langer
expected 1o accur, at which paint it = transferred o prafit
ar loss.

Econarmic hedges which do not qualify far hedge accounting
Derivative instruments which are transacted as sconomic
hedges but da nat qualify for hedge accounting are treated
in the same way a5 derivative insiruments used for trading
purpeses, i.e, realized and unrealized gains and losses are
recognized in Met tradng income except that, in certain
cazes the forward peants on short duration Toreign ex-
change cantracis are reported in Met interest income. Ad-
ditianally, the Group has entered o econamic hedges of
credit rik within the koan portfolio using dredit default
swaps to which it cannat apply hedge accounting. In the
ewenl that the Group recognizes an impainment on a loan
that is econamically hedged in this way, the impairment is
recognized in Credit loss expense, whereas any gain on the
credit default swap & recorded in Met trading income. See
Mote 23 far additional information. Where UBS designates
an ecanomically hedged item at fair value thraugh profit ar
loss, all fair value changes, including impairments, cn both
the hedged item and the hedging instrument are reflected
in Net tradang income (refer to part 7. Credit kosses in-
curfed an over-the-caunter {OTC) derivatves are reported
in Net trading income.

Embevidad danvalives
A derivative may be embedded in a “host contract”. Such
combinations are known as hybrid instruments and arnize
predominantly from the Bsuance aof certain sinectured debt
mstrurnents. I the host contract & not camied at fair value
with charges in fair value reported in the income statement,
the embedded dermative is generally required to be sepa-
ratad from the host contract and accounted for a5 a stand-
alene dervative instrument at fair value through prafit or
kass if the economic characterstcs and rsks of the embed-
ded derivative are not dasely related to the economec char-
acteristics and risks of the host contract, and is the embed-
ded dervative actually meets the definition of a derivative,
Bifurcated embedded derivatives are presented an the same
balance sheet e as the hest contract, and are shown in
Mote 2% in the “Hald for trading” category, reflecting the
meaasurement and recognition principles applied.

Typically, UBS apples the fair valus option to Fybrd in-
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

struments (s2a part 73, in which caze bifurcation of an em-
bedded derrative companent is nat required,

10} Cash ard Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivabents conest of Cash and balarces with
central banks, balances included in Due from banks with
aniginal maturity of less than three manths, and Monay mar-
ket paper mduded in Trading portfalic assets and Financal
investments avaslable-fos-sale.

16} Physical commoditias

Fhwscal commodities (precious metals, base metals, enargy
and other commodities) held by UES as a result of its broker-
trader activities are accounted for at fair value lass costs ta sl
and recognized within the Trading pertfolio. Changss in fair
value less gosts o sell are recorded in et trading income,

17} P"-::-||-_'|':,- and equepment

Praperty and equipment indudes own-used propadties, in-
vestment properties, leasehold improvements, [T, software
and communicatian, plant and manufacturing equipment,
and ather rachines and eguprment.

With the exception of investment propertes, Property
and equipment is carried at cost, less accumulated depreca-
tion and acosmulated impairment losses, and is pericdically
reviewed for impairment. The useful Bfe of property and
equipment is estimated on the bass of the economec utiliza-
tien of the asset.

Classificatian for own-used property

Own-used propedty 5 defined as property held by the Group
for use in the supply of services or for administrative pur-
poses, whereas investment properly is defined as property
held to eam rental incame and /or for capital appreciation. If
a praperty of the Group includes & portion that is cwn-usad
and another pertion that is hekd to eam rental ingome or for
capital appreciatian, the dassification is based on wihethes o
not these portions can be sold separately. If the portions of
the property can be sold separately, they are separatety ac-
counted for as own-used property and investment progperty,
If the portians cannat be sold separately, the whale proparty
15 classified as own-used property urdess the portion used by
the Group is minor. The dassification of property is raviewad
an a raguilar basis to account far magor changes in its usage,

Leasehold Imprevements

Leasshald improvernents ane investments made to custom-
ize buddings and offices occupied under operating lease
contracts 1o make them suitable for the ntended purpose,
The present value of estimated reinstatenent costs 10 bring
a leased property inta i1s original condition at the end of the
lease, if required, is capitalized as part of the total leasehold
improwements costs. At the same time, a corresponding lia-
bility &= recognized to raflect the obligation incurred, Rein-
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statement costs are recognized in profit and loss through
depreciation of the capitalized leasehotd improvements aver
their estemated usefid |ife,

Selftware
Software development costs are capitalized when they meet
certain onteria relating to identifiability, it is probable that
futwe ecanamic benefits will fiow 1o the enterprse, and the
cost can be measured reliably. Internally develaped software
meeting these criteria and purchased software are dassified
within [T, software and communication.

Froperty and equipment is depraciated on a straight-line
Dasls over its estmated usefl life as follows:

Froparties, exduding land
Leasehald imgravenents

Nt exceeding 54 vears

Rescdual lease termn,
bt ot emceeding 10 years

Other machines and equipment Mot excesding 10 years
IT, software and cormmunication Mot enceeding 3 years
Froperty fefd for sale

Mof-current praperty formerly owr-used or keased 1o third
parties under an operateng lease and equipment the Group
has daoded to sall and for which the sale within 12 maonths
is highdy probable are classfied as non-current assets held for
sale and recorded in Crther assets. Upaon dassification as held
for sale, they are no longer depreciated and are camied at
the lewer af book value o net realizable value. Foreclesed
properties and other properties cassified as current assets
are ncluded in Properties held for sale and receeded in Cther
assets, They are carried at the kower of boak value and net
realizable value,

Investment property

Investment property is carried at fair valus with changas in fair
vabpe recognized in the income statement in the penad of
change. UBS ermplays internal real estate aaperts 1o detenmine
the fair value of investment property by applying recognized
waluation techniques. In cases where prices of recent market
transactions of comparable properties are available, fair value
i determied by reference 10 thase transactans,

18) Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisitian
aver the fair value of the Group's share of net identifiable
assets of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition.
Gaodwil is nat amortized; it s tested yearly for impairment,
and, additionalty, when a reasonable indication of impair-
ment exists, The impairment test is conducted at the seg-
ment kevel as reportad in Mate 23, The segment has been
determined as the cash-generating unit for impairment
testing purpases as this is the level at which the perfor-
mance of investments & reviewed and assessed by manage-
ment. Refer to MNote 16 for details,
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Intangible assets comprise separately identifiable ntangi-
ble items arizng from business combinations and certain pur-
chased trademanks and similar items. Intangible assets are
recagnized at cost. The cost of an intangitle asset acguired in
a business combination is its fair value at the date of acqusi-
tion. Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amartized
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
ecancmic Iife, generally not exceeding 20 years. Intangible
assets with an indefinite useful life are not amertized. Gener-
ally all identified intangible assats of UES hava a definite usa-
ful life. At sach balance sheet date, intangible assats are re-
viewed for indications of impairment or changes in estimated
future benefits, If such indications exst, the intangible assets
are analyzed 1o amass whether their carmpng amount is fully
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount excesds the recoverable amownt,

Intangeble assets are dassified inta two categories: a) in-
frastructure, and o) custorner ralationshaps, contractual rights
and other. Infrastructure cansists of an intangdole asset rec-
ognized in connection with the acquisition of PaneWebbar
Graup, Inc, Customer relationships, contractual rghts and
ather indudes mainly intangible assets for cient relation-
ships, non-compste agreements, favosable contracts, propri-
etary software, trademarks and trade names acquired in busi-
ness combinatians,

190 Incoeme Taxes

Ineame tax payable on profits is recognized as an expense
based on the applicable tax [aws in each junzdiction n the
period in which profits arise, The tax effects of income tax
losses availabde for carry forward are recognized as a de-
ferred tax asset if it is probable that future taxable profit will
be availatle against which thase losses can be utilzed.

Deterred tax lisbilities are recognized for temporary dif-
ferences between the carming amounts of assets and liabi-
lities in the balance sheet and their amounts as measured for
tax purposes, which waill resclt in taxable amounts in fulure
periods. Deferred tax assets are recognized for temparary
differencas that will result in deductible amownts in future
periodk, but only to the extent it is probakds that sufficient
tamable profits will be avalable against which these deffes
erces can be utdized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are measured at the fax
rates that are expected o apply in the period in which the
asset will be realized o the liability will be setthed based on
enacted rates.

Tax assets and liabdities of the same type {current or de-
ferred) are offset when they arise from the same tax report-
ing group, they relate to the same tax autharity, the legal
right 1o offset exists, and they ane intended 10 be setthed net
ar reabzed simultanecusly.

Current and defarred taxes are recognized as incoms tax
benefit ar expense except for current and deferred taxes
recagnized () upon the acquisition of a subsidiany, i} far un-
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realized gains or losses on finandal investments available-
far-sale, far changes in fair value of derivative nstruments
designated a5 cash flow hedges, and for cartain foresgn cur-
rency translations of foresgn operatans, i) for certain tax
benefits cn deferred compensation awards, and (iv) for gains
and losses on the sale of treasury shares. Deferred taxes rec-
ognized in & business combination (ftem (0} are considered
when determining goadwill. tems (&) i) ang (v} are ne-
corded in Net incame recagnazed directly in equity.

20y Debt issuad

Short-tem debt

shon-term maney market paper ssued s nitially measured
at fair value, whach is the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred. Subseguent measurement is at
ameetized cost, wsing the effactive interest rate methad to
ameetize €051 at inception 1o the redemgtion value aver the
kfe of the debt.

Lamg-term semior and subordinated debr

without embedded derfvative

ssued debt instruments without embedded derivatives ane
accounted for at amortzed cost. However, it 5 the Grouwps
policy to apply fair value hedge accounting to its fixed-rate
debt instruments when the interest rate risk is managed an
a mark-to-market bass, When fair value hedge accounting is
applied to fixed-rate dent instrurments, the carrmyng vakues of
debl issues are adyusted for changes in fair value related to
the hedged exposure rather than camed at amortized cost
- refer to part 14} for further discussion,

Larg-term deb? with embecdded denative

{related to UBS AG shares)

Debtinstruments with embedded derwatives that are related
ta UBS AG sharas (g 9. mandatory convertible notes) ane
separated into a lakdity and an equity componant at ssuee
date if they requere physical setthement. When the hybrid
debt instrument is issued, a portion of the net proceeds s
allacated to the debt component based an its fair value. The
determination of fair value 5 generally based on quoted
markal prices for UBS debt instrements with comparable
terms. The debt component is sulbsequently measured at
amertized cost or at fair value through profit or loss, i the
fair value opticn is applied, The remaining amount of the net
procesds i allecated to the equity companant and repared
n Share premium. Subsequent changes in fair value of the
saparated equity component ane not recognized. Howewer, if
the hybrid debt instrument ar the embedded derwative re-
lated to LIBS AG shares is 1o be cash settled or i It contains
a settlement altiematve, then the sepacated derivative is
accounted for as a freestanding derivative, with changes in
fair value recorded in Net trading income unkess the entire
fybrid debt instrument iz designated at fair vakue through
prafit of kass (" Fair Value Option ™) = refer ta part T,
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Other lomg-term debt with embedded derivative fnot
related o LIES AG shares)

Dbt instruments with embedded derivatives that ane related
10 nenelIBS AG equity instruments, faresgn exchange, credit
instruments oF indicas are considered struetured debt mstru-
ments. UBS has designated mast of its structured debt in-
struments at fasr valwe throwgh profit or loss {“Fair Value
Option”™) = see part 73 If such instruments havie not been
designated at fair value through prefit or boss, the embed-
ded derivatwe is separated from the host contract and ac-
counted for as a standalone derivative if the criteria for sepa-
ration are met. The host contract is subsequently measurad
at amortized cost. The fair value option is not applied to cer-
tain hybeid instruments which contain bifurcatable embed-
ded derivatives with referances to foreign exchange rates
and precious metal prices and which are nat hedged by de-
rivative instruments, These hybrids ane 51l subject to bifurca-
tign of the embedded derivative.

Bords issued by UB3S held as a result of market making
activities or deliberate purchases in the market are treated as
redemption af debt, A gain or kss on redemption is recordad
depending an whether the repuschasa price of the band is
loweer or hegher than its carrying vakue. A subsequent sake of
own bonds in the market & treated as a reissuance of deibt.

Interest expense on debt instruments is induded in Inter-
&5t on debit issued,

21} Past-employment benefits

UB5 sponsces @ number of post-employment benefit plans
for its employess worldwsde which indude both defined
beniefit and defined contribution plans and other retrermant
benefits such as pest-employment medical benefits. Contri-
butians to defined contribution plans are expensed when
employaes have rendered sersces in exchamge tor such con-
tributions, generally in the year of contribution,

UBS wses the progected wnit cedit methad 1o determine
the present value of its defined benefit obbgations and the
redated cumrent service cost and, where apolicable, past ser
vice cost.

The principal actuarial assumations used are 52 out in
Note 30,

LIBS recognizes a portion of its actuarial gains and losses as
income or expense if the net cumulative unrecognized actu-
anal gains and losses a1 the end of the previous reporting
period afe autside the conidor defined as the greater of:

ak 10% mgere-sent'.'alue-of the defined I:-emf-t-:mmatmatmtdate
Ibefore deducting the fai value of plan assets); and

o0 10%k af the fair value of any plan assets at that date.

The unrecognized actuarial gains and losses exceeding
the greater of these o values are recognized in the income
statement over the expected average remaining working
lives of the emplayees participating in the plans.
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If tha definad bensfit liability = negative (i.e. a defined
benefit asset) measurement of the asset is Bmitad 10 the law-
of of the defined benefit asset and the total of cumubatve
unrecognized net actuanal kosses phes unrecegnized past ser-
Wice cost phus the presant vakue of econome banefits avadable
in the form of refunds of the plan or reductions in future con-
tributions to the plan, However, no gain is recognized solely
a5 & result of an actuanal boss or past senvice cost in the cur-
rent period, and no loss & recognized sclely as a result of an
actuanal gain in the owrrent pericd. Refer also to Mote 10

UES recognizes cwrtzdments on its defined benefit plans
when the reductions in expectad future senice and in the de-
fined benefit coligation are 10% or more. Reductons in ex-
pected future service and in the defined benefit cbligation of
betwesn 5% and 10% are recognized it deemed material,
and reductions of less than 5% are genarally not recognized,

221 Eqpuity partcipation and other campensation plans
Eqpuily participalion plars
UBS provides warious equity partiopation plans to employees
in the form of share plans and share opticn plans. UBS rec-
agiuzes the fair value of share and share option awards, de-
termined at the date of grant, as compensaticn expense
aver the penod that the employee is required to provide
active services in order to earn the award. Plans containing
woluntary termination non-compete provisions {.e. good
leaver dawse) and no vestng conditions ame considered
wesied in subsiance at the grant date because o futune ser-
wice is required. The related compensation expense is recog-
mized during the performance year, which is generally the
period priar 1o the grant date, The ewards ramain farfeitable
uniil the legal vesting date if cartain condstions are nat met.
Forfeiture of awards after the grant date dees net result in a
raversal ot compensation expense as the related serices
have baan received. Flans containing westing conditions typ-
ally have a three-year tiered vesting struciure wisch means
awards vest in one-third increments aver that pericd. Such
awards may contain provisions that shorten the required ser-
wice period due to retirament elgibdity. In such instances,
UBS recognizes compensation expenss over the sharter of
the legal vesting penod and the pericd frarm grant ta the
retirement eligibility date of the emplayee. Forfeiture of
thesa awards results in a reversal of compensation expense.

The fair value of share awards is equal to the average LIBS
share price at the date of grant adjusted far an employes's
non-entitlerment to dividends during the vestng penod f
applicable} and, any post-vesting sale and hedge restrictions
and non-vesting conditions. The fair value of share option
awards is determined by means of a Monte Carlo simulatian
which takes into account the specfic terms and conditions
under which the share cptions are granted.

Equity settled awards are classified as eguaty instruments
and are not remeasured subsequent to the grant date, unless

an award is modified such that its fair value immeadiately aftar
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modification exceeds its fair valus immeadiately prier to modi-
fication. Any increase in fair valug resulting from a madifica-
tion s recognized as compensation expense, ether over the
remaining service period of snmediately for vested awards,

Cagh sellled awards are dassified as liabalities and re-
measured to fair value at each balance sheet date as long as
they are outstanding, Decreases in fair value reduce compen-
safian expense, and No Compensation eXpense, on & cumus
lative basis, is racegnized for awards that expare weethlass or
remain wnexercised.

Refer to Mate 1b for the adoption of IFRS 2 Share-based
Fayment: Viesting Conditions and Cancellztions on 1 January
2008,

Other compensation plans

LIES sponsors other defarrad compensation plans which can
b in the form of fixed or variable deferred cash compensa-
tior. Expensa is recogrized avear the servica peried, which is
the pericd the employee 5 obligated to work in order 1o be-
come entitled to the compensation.

Fixed deferred cash compsnsation is generally awardad in
the form of wan-on bonuses and emplayes forgiveable
loans. The grant date fair value is fized at the grant date.

‘ariable deterred cash compensation is generally award-
ed in the form of Alternatwe Investment Vehides (ah“s), The
grant date fair value is basad on the fair value of the under-
lving assets d.e. momey market funds, LUBS and non-LIBS
miutual funds and other UBS sponsared funds) on grant date
and is subsequently marked-to-market at each reporting
date until the award is distributed. Forfeiture of these awards
resudts in e reversal of expense,

23) Amewnts due under unit-linked irvestment contracts
LES Global Asset Managements financial liabilities frcm unit-
linked contracts are presented as Other Lisbdties (refer to
Mite 200 on the balance sheet, These contracts allow investors
ta irvest in a poal of assets through svestrmant weits ssued by
& UBS subsidiary. The unit holders recerve all rewwards and bear
all risks assocated with the reference asset pool. The finanaal
ligkility represents the amaount due ta unit Ralders and is egual
1o the fair value of the referencs asset poal,

24) Provisions

Frovisions are recognized when LIBS has a present obligation
Jegal o constrectivel a5 a result of a past event, and it is
protable that an outflow of resources embodying econarmic
benefits will be required to settle the chligation and a reli-
able astimate can be made of the amount of the oblgation.
Frowvisions. are reflected under Other lizbilites on the balance
sheet. Refer to Note 21,

The magarity of UBS'S pravisions relate 1o eperational risks,
including litigaton. When a provision s recognized, its amount
neads 1o be estimated as the exact amount of the cbligation is
generally unknown. The estimate i based an all avalable in-
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farmation and reflects the ameount that has the highest prob-
ability of being paid, LIBS revisas axisting provisions up of down
a5 5000 &5 0t s able 1o quantify the amounts maore acasataky.

25) Equity, treasury shades and contracts an LIBS shares

LB%S AG shares held

LS AG shares held by the Group are dassified m Eguity as Trea-
sury shares and accounted for at weighted average cost. The
difference between the praceeds from sales of Treasury shares
and their cost (et of tax, if any) is reported as Share premium .

Contracts with grass physical seftiement

Confracts that reguire gross physical settlement in UBS AG
shares are classified m Equity as Shane premium {provided 4
fixed amaount of shares are exchanged against a fixed amaount
of cazh} and accounted for at cost. Upon settlement of such
contracts, the difference between the proceeds recaived and
theear Cost (net of tax, if any) are reparted as Share premium.,

Confracts with net cash setilement ar settiement aption for
aunrRparty

Cantracts on UBS AG shares that requice net cash settlerment
ar provide the counterparty with a choice of settlement ane
generally classified as trading instruments, with changes in
fair vabue reported in the income statement.

Physically settied wrilten put aptans and fonwand shane
purchase coniracks

Physically setthed written put optons and forward share pur-
chase contracts, induding contracts where physical settlement
5 2 setflermnent alternatwe, result in the recognition of a finan-
oal liabilivg. At incepion of the contrac, the present value of
the obligation 1o purdhase own shares n exchange for cash s
transferred out of Equity and recognized as a liability. The liabil-
ity & subsequently accreted, wsing the effective interest rate
mathod, aver the life of the cantract to the nominal purchase
abligation by recograzeg intersst expense. Upon settlarment of
the contract, the Bability = derecognized, and the amouwnt of
equaty cnginally recognized as a lisbilty is redassified within
Equty to Treasury shares, The premium received for writing
put aptions is recognized directly = Share premiurm.

Minonty interests

Met profit and Equity are presented inchuding mincrity inter-
ests, Net profit is split o Met peofit attributable fo LBS
sharehakders and MNet profit atnbutabde ta minanty interests,
Equity = split inie Equity attributable 1o UBS sharehalders
and Equity attributabde to minority interests.

Trust prefemed secunities Ssued

UBS has issued trust peeferred securities through consolidat-
ad preferred funding trusts which hold debt issued by UBS.
UBS AG has fully and unconditionally guaranteed all of thess
securities. UBSS obligations under these guarantess are sub-
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ardinated to the prior payment in full of the depaosit liabilities
af LIRS and all ather liabilities of LIRS, The trust preferred sa-
Cuities represent eguity instruments which aoe held by third
parties and treated as minority interests in LSS cansolidated
financal stataments with dividends pasd ales reported in
Equity attributable to minority interests. UBS bonds held by
preferred funding trusts are eliminated in consolidation,

26} Diseontinued aperations and ran-current

assets held for sale

UBS classifies individual mon-current nen-financial assets and
disposal groups as held for sale if such assets or disposal
groaups are avadable for immediate sale i their present con-
ditian subsject 10 terms that are wsual and customary for sales
of such assets or dispesal groups, management is committed
to & plan 1o sell such assets and is actively looking for a buy-
o1, the assets are Desng actvely marketed &t 2 reasonable
sales price inrelation 1o their fair valee, the sale is expectad
to be completed within cne year, and their sale & considenad
highty probable. Thase assets (and liabdities i the casze of
dispesal groups) are measured at the lower of their camying
amaunt and fas value bess costs tosell and prasented in Oth-
er assets and Other lakalities (see Nates 17 and 200, Metting
of assets and lizhbilitses is not permitted.

UIBS presents discontinued operations in a separate line in
the income statement if an entity ar a companent of an anfity
has been deposed of aris dassified as held for sale and ah rep-
resents a separate major ke of business or geograph-ical area
of aperations, b) is part of a single co-ordinated plan 1o dis-
pose of a separate majer line of business or geographical area
of operations, o ) 5 4 subsdiany acquired exchaivaly with a
wiew to resale (e.g., certain powvate equity investmentsh et
profit from discontinued operatans incudes the net total of
operating profit and loss before tax from eperations including
net gaen or loss on sale before tax or measurement to fairvalue
less costs to sell and decontinued operations tax expense. A
component of an entity comprses cparations and cash flows
that can be clearly distinguished, operationally and for finan-
ciadl reporting purpasas, from the rest of LBSS oparations and
cash flaws, If anentity or a component of an entity is classifed
25 & discontinued aperatan, LES restates poar penads in the
income staterment — see part 3k Refer to Note 37 for details.

37} Leasing

LIBS enters into kease contracts, predominanthy of premisss
and equipment, as a lessor as well a5 3 lessee. The tBrms
and conditions of these contracts are assessed and the keas-
&3 are classified as operating leases ar finance kases ac-
cording to their economic substance, When making such
an assessment, the Group focuses on the fallowing aspects:
a) ransfer of cwnership of the asset 1o the lessee at the
end of the lease term; b) exetence of a bargain purchase
option held by the lessee; ¢} whether the lease term i for
the major part of the economic life of the asset; o whether
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the present value of the minimum lease payments is sub-
stantially equal to the fair value of the leased asset at incep-
ticn of the leass term; and &) wihether the asset is of 3
specialized nature that only the lesses can use without
magor modifications being made. If ane or rmare of the con-
divans are met, the lease is generally classified as a finance
lzase, while the non-exstence of such conditions normalhy
kzads 1o 2 clssification as an aperating lease,

Lease contracts dassified as operating leases where UBS &
the lessee are disclosed im Mote 25. These contracts indude
nan-cancellable lang-term leasas af office buddings in mest
LIS locations, Lease confracts classified a5 operating [eases
where LES is the lessor, and finance lease contracts whese
LUBS is the lessor ar the lessee, are not materal. Contractual
arrangements which are not considered leases in their entiraty
but which indhude lease alements ara not material to UES,

UEBS recognizes a provision for a lease contract of office
space, if the unavoidable costs of a cantract exceed the bene-
fits ta be received wreder it, which requires that a lease contract
= oonsidered onercus it its entirety. A prowsion for onerous
kzase contracts often includes sgnificant vacant rental space,

28] Fes Incame
UBS earns fee income from a diverse range of services it provides
to its customers. Fee income can be divided info twio broad cat-
egories: income eamed from senices that are provided aver a
cerain period of tene, far which custonens are genesally billed
on an annual ar semi-annual basis, and income earmed frem
prowiding transaction-iype senvices. Fees eamed from senices
that are provided aver a ceriain pericd of time are mosgnized
ratably ower the sarvice period. Fees eamed from providing
transaction-type servoes ane recognized when the service has
been completed. Perfarmance-bnked fees or fee components
are recognized when the recognition ariteria are fulfilled. Loan
comrmitment fees an kending arrangemants where the initial ax-
pectation is that the koan will be drawn down &t some paint, ame
cefernad until the lnan is drawn down, and then recognized as
an agjustment to the effective yield aver the life of the loan.
The following fee income & predominantly sarned from
senvices that are provided over a pericd of time; investment
fund fees, fidudary fees, custodian fees, portfolic and cther
management and advisary fees, insurance-refated fees, aredit-
ralated fees and commissions received up-front. Fees predom-
mantly eamad from providing transactian-fypse senaces indude
undenariting fees, comparate finance fees and brokesage fees,

29) Fareign currency transkation

Fareign ourrency transactions are intially recorded at the
spat exchange rate on the date of the transaction, At the
Dalanice sheet date, 2l monetary assets and labilities and
nen-monetary assets and liabilives measured at fair value
through profit or loss are translated using the closing ex-
change rate. Mon-monetany assets and liabilities not mea-
surad at fair value through profit or loss are translated wsing
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the historical exchange rate. Realized foreign exchange dif-
ferences resulting from the sake of assets or settlement af li-
abilities are recognized in Met tradng Incane,

Unreghzed exchange rate differences an monetary assets
aned liabilities are recarded in Nat frading income. Unrealized
exchange rate differences on non-monetary financial assets
held fior trading and nan-manetary financal assets designated
at fair vabue through profit o loss are recognized & Met trad-
ing income. Unrealized exchange rate differences on non-
manetary finandal nvestments available-for-sale ane recorded
directly in Equsty wntil the asset is sold or becomes impaired.

Upaon consalidation, assats and liabdities of fareign enti-
fies are ranslated at the closing exchange rate at the balance
sheet date, and income and expense tems are ranshated at
the weighted average rate for the period. Differences rasult-
ing from the use of closing and wesghted average exchange
rates and from revabuing a foresgn entity's net assern balanoe
at the clasing rate are recognized directly in Foreign currency
translation withn Equity.

300 Earnings per share (EFS)

Bawe garnings per thare are caloulated by divding the net
profit or loss for the pericd attributable to ordinary share-
holders by the weighted awerage number of ardinary shares
outstanding during the penad.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated using the same
method as for basac EFS and adjusting the net profit or kes for
the period attrbutable to ardinary shareholders and the weighi-
ed average number of ondinary shares outstanding to reflect
the patential dilution that coubd occur if options, warranis, con-
vertible dent securities or other contracts 10 issue ordnany
shares were converted or exercised into ordinary shares.

31) Segment reporting
In 2008, UBS'S businessas were organized on a workdwide basis
inta three Dysiness divissons. and the Corporate Center, Each
busmess divigen is comprised of individual business units.
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking consists of
threa businass segments: Walth Management International &
Switzerland, Wealth Management LIS and Business Banking
Switzerland. The buseress dvisions Investrnent Bank and Ghabal
Aszel Management constitule one segrnent each. kn total, UBS
has reported five business segments. Corporate Center includes
all conporate functions and elmination items, and & not cansid-
ered a business segment under IFRS, The presentation of the
busness segments reflects UES's organizatonal structure and
management respansibaities. s February 2009, UBS anneunced
that, going forward, it will dhvide its business division Ghobal
Wealth Management & Business Banking into two new busi-
ness dnasions; Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, compnsing
all nan-Americas wealth management businesses as well as the
Swiss private and conporate dient busemess; and the busmess
divisaon Wealth Management Americas.

LES's management reparting systams and policies deter-
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min2 the revenues and expenses directly attributable to each
busnessunit, Internal charges and transfer pricing adjustmants
are reflected in the perfoemance of each Business unit,

Inter-busimess ot revenues and expenses: Revenue-shar
NG agresments are used 19 alkacate external customer rava-
nues to business units on a reasonable basis. Inter-business
unit charges are pradominantly reported in the Bne “Services
ol from other business units” far both business units cons
cerned. Transactions between business units are conducted
at internzlly agreed transfer prices or at arm’s length. Corpo-
rate Center expenses are allocated to the operating business
units to the extent appropriate.

Met interest ingome s allocated 1o the business uniis
based on their balance sheet positbons. Assets and labili-
ties of the business divisicns are funded through and invested
with the central treaswry departments, with the nat margin
reflected in the nesults of each business it To complete
the allecatan, Corporate Center transfers interest mccems
garmed from managing UBSS consolidated equity back to
the segments based an the average equity attributed, a con-
cept which was intreduced in 2008, Pricr to 2008, Corpa-
rate Center transferrad interest incame earned from manag-
g UBS% consolidated equity back to the segments based
primarily on regulatory capital reguirements. For detailed
discussion on the equity attribartion framework, refer ta the
“Capital management" section of the annual report,

Commissions ane credited 1o the business unit with the
corresponding customer relationshép, with revenue-sharng
agreements for the allocation of customer revenues whers
several businass units are invalved in value creation,

Segment assets and Segment fiabiites: Bath segment as-
sats and sagment liakslities are reported in the management
repartine systern and shown bafore the elimination of inter-
company balances. Due to the central treasury approach,
aquity must be allocated to the segments. The allocation ba-
505 15 average equity attributed, & concept which was intro-
dueed i 2008 (far a detailed decussion on the equity attri-
pbutionframework, refier tothe section *Capital management *
af this report), Total segment assets and total segment Babil-
ities are derved by Taking inte account any remaining fund-
i suEplus o requenements in each business divsian. Prior to
2008, the equity was allecated 1o the segments based pri-
maridy on regulatory capital requirements. Aefer to Mote 2a.

340 Metting

VES s assets and lisbdtes in its balance sheet if it has a le-
gally enforceable right 1o set aff the recognized ameunts and
mitends either to setile on a net bass, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultanecusly, LIBS nets the positive and
megative neplacement values of OTC interest rate swaps trans-
acted with Landen Clearing House. The positons are netled
oy ourrency and adoss maturities. Furthermore, amounts in-
duded in Loars and Due to customers related to the Prime
Brokerage Business have been nettad, where possible,
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b} Changes in accounting policles, comparability and other adpstments

Effectivie in 2008

Restaternents made 1o the finandal statements 2008

These finandal statements 2008 replace the financal state-
ments 2008 mncluded in the Annual Report 2008 ssued and
filied with the LIS SEC on Form 20-F on 11 March 2002,

UBS has restated its 2008 financial statemenis o comract
identified accownting errors related to the 2008 financal
statements, predominately to the fourth quarter 2008 finan-
cial statements, Thase errors are not matesial 1o the annwal
or guarerly 2008 finandal staternents, but related comec-
tione woukd have been materal to first quarter 2002 finan-
cial statements. The restatement comprses theee items in
excess of CHF 100 milkan as follows:
= Thi fair value of auction rate secunites purchase commit-

ments at 31 December 2008, which are recogrized as

negative replacerment values on UBSs balance sheet, was
increased by CHF 112 milkon, resulting in a comespond-
ing charge to net trading income.

= For certain assets reclassified fromm “held-fortrading” 1o

“lears and recenables” in fourth guarter 2008, recogni-

tion of inferest income based on the effective interest rate

method was reduced by CHF 180 million, Other assets

were reduced accordingly as of 31 Decambear 2008,
= The partial deposals of an investment in @ consolidated

investment fund in 2008 gave rise 1o the realizaton of
the related foreign cumency translation loss deferred in
shareholders’ equity. This adjustment reduced other in-
comi for the year 2008 by CHE 192 milkan but did not
hawve a net impact on LBSS equity.

In addition to the abowementioned items, a number of
misstatements individually below CHF 65 million were ad-
justed. The aggregate net effect of these items was an in-
cregse of net profit atinbutable to shasehalders of CHF 79
millice. The total net impact of a8 restated iterns on the
2008 results was a reduction of net profit and net profit at-
tributable to UBS sharehalders of CHF 405 milkon, a reduc-
tien of equety and equity attributable to UES shareholders of
CHF 269 midlion, and a reduction of basic and dduted earm-
ings per share by CHF 0,15 and CHF 014 respectively. There
was no effect on income tax expense. Pericds poor to 2008
were not affected by the restatement. 2008 guarterly net
profits atributable to LBS shareholders were redisced by the
folkowing armcunts: CHF 82 madlion in first quarter, CHF 37
millicn in second guarter, CHF 13 mélion in third guarter,
and CHF 273 million in fourth quarter.

In addition, guarantees and other collateral held for loans
o Danks and oustamers at 31 Decembser 2008 dsclosed in
Note Ba were reduced by CHF 11,511 millien te CHF 113,032
millicn with a corresponding increase of unsscured loans 1o
CHF 98,003 milkon. In note 19, senior long-tenm debt at 31
Decamber 2008 was ncreased by CHF 3,199 million 1o CHF

i7a

&7 208 million, whereas subordinated long-terrm debt was
reduced by this amaunt ta CHF 12,783 millian. In the “Risk
management and control® section, chapter on credst risk,
past due but not impaired loans at 31 December 2008 wers
reduced by CHF 1,827 million to CHF 1,781 million, Thesa
adjustrments did not impadt LIBSS income statement, bal-
anvce sheet ar earnings per share.

IFRS 2 Share-hased Payment; Vesting Conditions and
Cancelanans

On 1 lanuary 2008, UBS adepted an amendment te FRS 2
Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellatons
and fully restated the two comparative prior years. The
amended standand clasifies the definition of vesting condi-
tions and the accounting treatment of cancellations, Under
the amended standard, UBS is requwed to distinguish be-
tween vesting conditions {such as service and performance
conditions) and non-vesting conditions.

The amended standard no kanger considens vesting can-
dliticns 10 clude certasm non-Compsete provisons.

The impact of the change is that UBS compensation
awards are expansed ower the period that the employee =
required o provide active services in order to earn the award.
Postwesting sale and hedge restrictions and nen-vesting can-
diticns are considerad when determining grant date fair val-
ue. The effect of the restatement on the opening balance
sheet at 1 January 2006 was as follows: reduction of retained
earmings by aporoximately CHF 2.2 bilion, increase of share
premweum by approximately CHF 2.3 Dillion, increase of liabili-
ties fncluding deferred tax liabilites) by approximatety CHF
0.5 billion, and increse of deferred tax assets by appsoxi-
mataly CHF 0.5 billion. Met profit attributable to LIES shara-
halders dedined by CHF 863 midlion in 2007 and by CHF 730
mdlian in 2006, Addtional compensation expenses of CHF
797 mrallicr and CHF 516 mdlion was recograzed in 2007 and
2006, respectively. These additional compensation expeanses
inclede awards granted in 2008 for the performance year
2007, The impact af the restatement on total equity asaf 31
Decemper 2007 was a decne ase of CHF 366 milkon. Retained
earmangs at 31 Decemnber 2007 decreased by approxmately
CHF 3.9 hillion, share premium increased by approamateby
CHF 3.5 billion, liabilities {including defarrad tax Bzbilities) in-
creased by approximately CHE 06 billion and deferred tax
assets ncreased by approximately CHE 0.2 billion. The re-
statement decreased basic and diluted earmings per share for
the year endad 31 Decemiber 2007 by CHF 040 each and for
the year ended 31 Decemnber 2006 by CHF 0,33 and CHF
0.3, respectively. In order to provide comparative infoama-
tian, these ameunts also reflect the retrospective adpstments
to shares outstanding in 2007 due to the capital increase and
the share dwvidend paid in 2008,

The additional compensation expense is atiributable to the
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acceleration of expensas related to share-based awards as
well & for certain alternative investmeant vehicle awards and
deferred cash compensation awands which contan nan-com-
pete prowisions and sale and hedge restricticns that no longer
qualify as westing conditions under the amended standard.

Reclassifications of financial instruments

The Intemational Accountg Standards Board pueblished an
arnendrment ta Internaticnal Accaunting Standard 39 {145 39
Financial lnstruments: Recognitian and Measurement) on 13
Ohctober 2008, undar which eligible financial assets, subject 1o
certan conditions being met, may be reclassified aut of the
“held for trading” category if the firm has the intent and abil-
ity 1o hold them for the foresesable future or wntil maturity.

Although the amendment could have besn applied re-
trospectieely fram 1 July 2008, UBES dedded at the end of
October 2008 10 apply the amendment with effect from
1 Cctobser 2008 following an assessment of the implications
an its finanoal statements.

Effective 1 Cictober 2008, UBS reclassified elgible assets
which it intends to hold for the foresesable future with &
fair value of CHF 17.6 kdlion on that date from “held for
trading ™ 1o the “lears and receivables” category. bn addi-
tion, student loan auwction rate securities {ARS) with a fair
value of CHF 8.4 bilion have been redassified as of 31 De-
cember 2008, In fourth quarter 2008, an impairment charge
of CHF 1.3 billion was recogrized as a credit |oss expense an
reclassified finandal instruments. If reclassification had not
acourred, the impairment charge wouwld not have been rec-
ognized but an additional trading loss of CHF 4.2 billion
wiodld have been recorded in ESS income statement. Met
interest income after reclassification mcreased by CHF 0.1
billion. Refer 10 Mote 29 for detads.

fecognition of 3 defined benefit asset for

the Swiss pension plan

In third quarter 200&, UBS concluded that it meets the ne-
queements in 145 19 Employes Senafils 1o recognize a de-
fined berelit aset fsociated with 155 Swiss persion plan,
Prigr to this, it had been LUBS policy to onfy disclose this
amaunt in the Mot “Pensicn and Other Post-Emplovrent
Benefit Mans” of UBSS Annual Report. UBS concluded that
recagnition of an asset should alse cansider urwecagnized
net actuanal losses and past service costs a5 permitted by
145 19 35 this results 0 a better reflection of the corridor ap-
proach.

UBS consdered this a change in accounting pescy 1o
be applied retrospectively as reguired by 1845 B Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errars, The
change in accounting policy resulted in the folkowing effects
on the balance sheets for 1 January 2007, 31 Decernber
2007, and 30 September 2008, which is the date the change
in accounting policy was effective: an increase of approxi-
mataly CHF 2.1 billion i Other assefs, an increase af ap-
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praximataly CHF 0.5 billion in Deferred tax liakdlitias 2nd an
increase af apprazimately CHE 1.6 billien in Retained earn-
s, Thise was no matenal irmpact to the incorme staterments
ar earnings per share for these perieds,

Revenues from Industrial Holdings and Goods and matenals
purchased

Thee income statement no konger incledes the lines Revenues
fram Industrial Heddings and Goods and materiaks purchased,
as the last consolidated industrial private equity investment in
Industrial Holdings was scdd in first guarter 2008 and is classi-
fied a5 a discontinued operation in LIBS'S income statement,
Frice periods have been restated to reflect this classification.

Changes fo segiment reporting

LIES has continuously reduced its private equity business in
Industrial Holdirgs ower the last thiee years, The busness ng
langer includes consalidated mdustaal private equity invest-
marits, Starting first quarter 2008, UBS is reparting the re-
maining activities fram this business, mainty financial imest-
ments available-for-sale, under Corporate Center,

Traging portfoha assets pledged as collateral

The balance sheet line Trading portfolic assets pledged as col-
lateral inchedes financial assets held for trading which UES has
transferred ta third pariies with the nght of refwpothecation,
Financial assets held for rading which LBS has transferred 1o
third parties without the right af rehypethecatian are present-
ed under Trading portfolio asssts. In order to apply this pra-
sentation policy consistently, financial instruments have been
reclassified from Trading portfalio assets pledged as collateral
ta Tracing pestfolic assets in the amaunt of CHF 50,1 kdlion
as at 21 December 2007, The rezlassification did not impact
the income statements or earnings per share.

FRIC 13 Custamer Layally Programmes

IFRIC 13 was issued on 28 June 2007 and & effectve for
annual peniods beginnang on or after 1 July 2008, IFRIC 13
addresses how companies that grant their azstomers loyalty
award credits when buying goods ar senaces should acoount
far their coligatan 1o peovide free ar discounted goods and
services, iT and when the customers redeem the paints. IFRIC
13 requires enfities to allocate some of the procesds of the
initial sale 1o the awand credits and recognize these procesds
as reveniue only when they have fulfilled thair obligatians to
provige goods o services. Thes interpretation had no signifi-
cant impact on U85 Finanoal Stataments.

FRIC 14 The Limvit on a Defined Banefit Azset Mininmm
Funding Requirements ard thelr InTeracian = |45 19

FRIC 14 wirs issued on 5 July 2007 and i effective for annual
pariods beginning on or after 1 January 2008, IFRIC 14 pro-
wides guidance regarding the dreumstances wnder which re-
funds and future reduchons in contributions from a defined
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benatit plan can be regarded as available to an entity for the
purpose of recognizing a net defined benefit asset. Addifion-
ally, = junsdictions where there is both a minimum funding re-
quirement ard restrictans on the amownts that companies can
recener fradn the plan, either & rafunds or reductons m contr-
butions, addional Kakilities may need 1o be recognized. This
interpretation had no mmpact on LIRSS Finanoal Statements.

145 23 Borrmwing Costs
The WASE issued a revised version of 145 23 on 29 March
2007, The revised Standard is effective for annual pericds
beginning 1 January 2003, LIBS earlier adopted the revised
staridard early from 1 January 2008 on a prospective basis,
% permitted by the Standard. The revisions raquire that bor-
rowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production af a gualifying asset be capitalized as part of the
oot of that asset. The adoption of the revsed standasd did
not have & matenal impact on LBSS Finandal Statements.

Effectiva in 2007 and earlier

IFRS ¥ Firanoal instruments; Discosures

On 1 January 2007, UBS adopted the disdosune requirarents
for finanaal instrurnents under IFRS 7. The new standard has
na impact on recognition, measurement and presentation of
financial instruments. Accordingly, the first-time adoption of
IFRS 7 had no effect on Met profit and Equity. Rather, it re-
quires LES 1o provide dischosures in its financial staterments
that enable users 1o evaluate: a) the significance of financial
instrumnenits for the entity’s financial position and performance
{refer to the notes 1o the Fnancial Statements), and b} the
nature and extent of oredit, market and liquidity msks ansing
fram financial instrurments neludeng details about concentra-
tions of sudh risks) during the peried and at the reparting
date, and how UBS manages those risks (refer to the audited
sactions in Risk and freasury management), The disclosure
princgles of FRS T complement the pringiples for recognizang,
migasuring and presenting financal assats and financal liabili-
ties in 1S 32 Fnanoa! Instruments: Fresentafion and 145 39
Financial Instrurnernts; Recognition and Messurement,

Netting

In second quarter 2007, UBS concluded that it meets the
critena to offset Positive and Negative replacement values of
OTC interast rate swaps transacted with Landon Clearing
Hewse (LCHY. Undes IFRS, positions are netted by curmency
and across maturities. The amount of replacement values
netted was CHF 35,470 milkon at 31 December 2006. Fur-
thermane, amounts induded in Loans and Dwe o oxstomers
redated 1o the Frime Brokerage business have been netted.
At 31 December 2008, amounts netted were CHF 14,679
millicn. In both cases, the applicaton of netting had no im-
pact on UES's income statement, Earnings per share, credit
exposurs and regulatony capital.

78
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Syndicated finance revenues

In fourth quarter 2007, LBS revised the presentation of certain
syncdicated finance revanues in its income staternent, Reve-
nues which relate to syndcated kan commitments designated
at fair vabee through profil or less are now presented in Met
trading income rather than as Debt underwriting fees in Mat
few and commission income, Prior pericds have bean adpstad
1o canfarm 1o this presentaton, The adpstments resuited in a
reduction af Met fee and commission income of CHE 425 mil-
Bon for 2006 and & corresponding increase in Net trading in-
comein this peniod. The change in presentation had no impact
on U85S Met profit and Earnings per share for 2006, The
adaoption of the fallowing new interpresations on 1 January
2007 had no matenal smpact an UBS' Financial Staterments.

IFRIC 7 Appiying the Restaternent Approach wnder [45 29
Financial Reparling in Hypennflationany Econamias

This interpretation provides guidance an how 1o apply the
requirernents of |AS 22 in a reporting persad in which anen-
tity (this could be a subsdiary) identifies the existence of by-
perinflation in the econamy of its functional currency, when
that econany was not hypersflaticnany in the price pericd,
ard the entity therefore restates its financial staterments in
accordance with 145 29. UBS has no subsidiaries operating in
a hyperinflatonary economy.

IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

This IFRIC addresses whether IFRS 2 applies 1o transactions in
which the entity cannot identify specfically some or all of
the goods or services received. The interpretation requires
that IFRS £ be applied ta transactions in which gaods ar ser-
wices are received, such as transactians in which an entity
receives goads or services a5 consideration for eguity instru-
ments of the entity. This includes transactions in which the
antity cannot identify specfically some or all of the goods or
senices recenved. The unidentifiable goods or services re-
cerved (o 1o be recenved) shauld be measured as the differ-
ence between the fair value of the share-based payment and
the fair valug of any identifiable goods or services received
i to be received), Measurement of the unidentifiable goods
of serices received should take place at the grant date
However, for cash-settled transactions, the Bability should be
remeasured at each reporting date undil it is settled.

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embeded Deratives

The interpretation darfies that an entity should not reassess
whether an embedded derivative needs to be separated
from the host contract after the initial hybnd contract is rec-
agnized, unless there is a change in the terms of the contract
that signficantly modsfies the cash flows that atherwise
would be required under the contract, in which case re-
assessment is required. This interpretation did mot have an
impact an LUBS's Financial Statements,
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IFRIC 10 Interim Finanoal Reporting and fmpaiment

The naw interpretation of A5 39 and 145 35 requires that
irnpalrnent lesses recodnized in a previcus intesim perad in
respect of goodwill ar an investrment 0 either an equity in-
strufment o a financal asset carried an cost must not be re-
versad at a subseguent balance sheet date. This interpreta-
tion did not hawe an impact on LAESS Financial Staterments,

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRRC 11 prewides guidance on (a) how o accaunt for shara-
based payrment arangements betwesn entities within the
same groun; &) determining whether a transaction should
be accounted for as equity-setiled or cash-settled when an
entity either chooses of is required o buy egquity instru-
ments {.e. treasury shares) from anather party te satisfy its
abligatians to its emphoyvees; and {C) determining whether a
transaction should b2 accounted for & equity-settled or
cash-setted when an entity’s emplovess are granted nghts
T eguity instruments af the entity (@, 9. share opticnss, ei-
ther by the entity itself ar by its sharehalders, and the shara-
hetders of the entity provide the equity instruments need-
ed. The interpretation requires that share-based payment
transactions in which an entity receives Services as Cansider-
atien far its own equily insbiurments be accounted for as an
equity-settied transactian. This applies regardiess of wheth-
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er the entity chogses or & required o buy thase equity in-
struments fram another party to satisfy its chligations to its
employess under the share-based payment arrangemnant.

145 38 Financal lnstruments’ Recogrition and Measure-
ment — Amendment to the Fair ¥alue Sption

UBS adoptad the revised 1A5 39 fair value option on 1 lany-
ary 2006, On the transiton date of the revised standard,
1 January 2006, UBS did not apply the fair walue option to
any previously recognized financial asset or finandal liabdity
far which the fair valus cption had not been used undar the
prewious fair value optian gusdance.

Stalff Aecountiog Bulietin (SAB) 108

In regponse to the release ot the Securities and Exchangs
Commissian {SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SARY 108, Con-
sigeving the Effects of Fror Year MissTaternents when Quan-
g Misstatements in Cueren! Year Fnancial Sitements,
LUEBS elected o adopt a modified quantitative frameweark far
assessing whethear the finandal statement effect of a mis-
statement i material becauss it renders a better evaluation
af thase effects. This rmethod, which LBS adegted in Decermn-
ber 2006, uses a dual approach for guantifying the effect of
a msstatement that considers bath the carmpaver and revers-
ing effects of pricr year misstatements.

) International Finandial Reporting Standands and Interpretations to be adopted in 2009 and later

P

Effective in 2009

IFRS B Dpearating Segmeants

IFRS B Cperstimg Segments is effective an 1 January 2009
and will replace 1A5 14 Segment Reporting. Under the re-
guremeants of the mew standard, UBS's external segmental
reparting will be based on the internal reporting to the
Groug Executive Board (or, the “chief operating dedison
miaker”y which makes decisions on the allocation of re-
sources and assesses the performance of the reportable
sagmenits. Based on the new UBS structure which was an-
nounced in February 2009 and following IFRS & guidance,
UBS will repert four operating segrments & 2009, The Dusi-
ness divissans, Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, Wealth
Management Americas, Global Asset Management and In-
vestment Bank represent one reportable segrment esach,
Corporate Center does not meet the reguirerents of an
operating segment and will be shawn separately. In addi-
tien, the new standard requires UBS 1o provide deseriptive
informaticn about the types of products and senvices from
which sach reportable segment derives its revenue. As UBSS
reportable segment cperaticns are mainly financal, the to-
tal imerest income and expense for all reportable segments
will b= presented on a net basis. Based on the present ar-
rangament of revenus-charing agreements, the inter-seq-
ment revenue for LIES is unlikedy 1o be material. Gaing for-

ward, the segment assets and ssgment liabities will be
disclosed without the intercampany balances which are in
line with the internal reporting. An explanatan of the basis
an which the segment information is prepared and recon-
ciliations to the amounts presented n the income statement
and balance sheet are also required by the new standard, In
acditon, UBS will be prowding gecgraphical information
abaut total cperating smcoms and total nan-currant assels
basad on the following new geographical braakdown, Swit-
zerland, LK, Rest of Europe, USA Asia Pacific and Rast of
the Warld,

145 1 {revised) Presentation of Anancial Statements and 145
32 {revised) Finanoa! instruments: Presentation

&% 1 {revised), Fresentation of financal STalements, wWas is-
sised in Septermber 2007 and & effective on 1 January 2009,
The revised standard affects the presentaton of cwner
changes in equity and of comprehensive income: 85 will
continue presenting cwner changes in eguity in the state-
ment af changes in equity, but the detailed information re-
lated to nor-owner changes in equity willl be removed from
the statement of changes in equity and presented in the
statement of comprehensive income. The revised standard
does not change the recognition, measurement or disclosure
of specific Transactons addressed in othes IFRSS,
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In addition, the ASE issued a further amendment to LAS
1 and an amendment to A5 32 reganding puttable financial
instrments and cbligatons ansing on ligusdation in Febru-
any 2008, The 145 32 amendment darfies under which -
cumstances puttable finandal mstrurnants and obdigaticns
arising on liquidation have to be treated as eguity mstru-
ments, The amandrment is limited in scope and is restrictad
1o the accounting for such nstruments under 1AS 1, 145 32,
145 39 and IFRS 7. The amendrment ta 1AS 1 reguires addi-
tional information about puttable finandal instruments and
obBgations arising on ligudations which have to be treated
& equaty instruments, LIBS will adopt the two amendments
on 1 January 2003, It is not expected that these amendments
will have a significant impact on UESs Finanaal Statements.

Amendmeants 1o IFRS 1 frst-fime Adoption of Infernational
Firancial Reparting Standarcs and 185 27 Consolgated

and Separate Fnanoal Staterments — Cost of an lrvestment
in & Subsidiany Sointly Cantrafied Entity or Assocate

The amendments to FRS 1 and 145 27 were issued on 22 May
2008 and are effective for annual penads beginning an 1 July
2002 (which 18 1 lanuary 2010 for LIBS) and 1 January 2009,
respectively. The amendments to IFRS 1 allow a first-time
adopter, at its date of transition to IFRSs in its saparate finan-
cial statements, to use a deemed cost to account for an in-
vestment in & subsidiary, jointhy confrolled entity or assocate.
Thee amendments 1o 145 27 emove the definiton of “cost
methad” and require all dividends from a subsidiary, paintly
controlled entity or associate to be recognized as income in
the separate financial staternents of the investor when the
right 1o recesve the dividend is established and provsdes guid-
ance on the farmaton of a new panent entity. Thesa amend-
ments have no impact on UBS% Financial Stataments.

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of feal Estate
IFREZ 1% weas msued on 3 July 2008 and & effective for an-
nual paricds Beginreng on o after 1 Januasy 2009, IFRIC 15
pravides guidance on the accounting for agreements for the
construction of real estate whers entities enter into agres-
ments with buyers before construction has been campletad
and the timing of revenue recognition. UBS does not expect
this interpretation to have a significant impact on its Finan-
cial Statemants.

IFREC 16 Hedes of & Net mestrnent in & Foreign Operation
IFREC 16 was issued on 1 October 2008 and 5 effectve for
annual persods beginning en ar after 1 Oclober 2008, FRIC
16 provides gusdance in determining which foreign exchange
risks arising fram net invesiments in foresgn operations of
subsidianies, assocates, joint venitures or branches qualify for
hedge accounting = accondance with 185 39 Aranoal -
strurments: Recognition and Measuremeant. IFRIC 16 danfies
that net investiment hedging can anly be applied when the
net assets of the forsign aperation are recognized in the en-

280

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

tity's conzolidated financial statements. UBS is cumenthy as-
ses@ng the impact of this interpretation on its Fnancal
Staternants.

Effectve in 2010, if nat adapied aarly

Amendments o 145 39 Anancial instruments: Recognithan
and Measurement — Eligible Hedged ltems

Thee amendrment ta 145 3% was issued on 31 July 2008 and 5
effective for annual perieds beginning on or after 1 uly
2004, The amendments provide additicnal guidance on the
designation of a hedged item. The amendment clarifies how
the existing principhes wnderyng hedge accounting should
be applied in two pamicular stuations: a) a one-sided risk in
a hedged itern and b) sflation i a financial heaged item.
UBS does not expect these amendments o have a significant
impact on its Financial $tatements.

IFRIC 17 Dustritaubions of Mor-cash Assel ta Owners

IFRIC 17 was issued on 27 Movember 2008 and is effective
for annual periads beginning on or after 1 July 2009 IFRIC
17 darifies when & dividend payable should be recognized,
R the dwidend payable should ke measured and how 1o
account for the difference between the carmying amount of
the asset distributed and the carrying amount of the divi-
dend payable once the dwidend payable i settled, LIBS &
currently assessng the impact of this intespretation on its
Finanoal Statarments.

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets fram Customers

IFREC 18 was issued on 29 January 2002 and is effective,
prospectively, for transfers of assets from Customers re-
ceived on or after 1 July 2009, The IFRIC darifies how to
account far transfers of items of property, plant and equip-
ment by entities that receive such transfers from their cus-
tomers. The interpretation also apples to agreements in
which an entity receives cash from a custamer when that
amaurt of cash must be used only ta Construct ar acquine
an itern of property, plant and equipment and the entity
must then w=e that item o prondde the customer with an-
going access 1o a supply of goods and/or senvices. LES is
currently assessing the impact of this interoretation on its
Financial Statements.

MRS 2 Busimess Cormbinations and (A% 27 Consofidated and

Separate Firanoe STatements

In Jarary 2008, the 1458 issued a revsed Stardard of IFRS 3

Business Combinations and amendments to |A5 27 Consol-

dated amd Separate Fnancial Statements. The mast signifi-

cant changes under revised IFRS 3 are as follows;

= Contingent consideration will be recognized at fair value
as part of the conssderation transferred at the acqusiton
date. Currently contingent consideration is onby recog-
nized once it meets the probability and reliably measwr-
able criteria,
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- Morn-controliing interests in an acquiree will either be
measured &t fair value or & the non-controllng interast's
progeartionate shase of the far value of net identifiakie
assets of the entity acquired. The option is availabe on 2
transaction-by-transaction basis.

- Transaction costs incurred by the aoguirer will no koniger
be part of the acqusition cost but will have fo be ex-
pensed as incurred.

The revised IFRS 3 & effective for annual pernods begin-
ning on or after 1 July 200% and has to be appéed prospec-
tivaly from the date of adoption to business combinations
consemmated after that date, Business combinations can-
surnmated prior 1o that date will not be impacted.

Note 2a Segment reporting

In 2008, UBS's businesses were organized on a waorldwide
basss into three business divisions and a Corporate Center.
The business division Global Wealth Management & Busi-
niss Banking consists of three segments; Wealth Manage-
mient International & Switzedand, Wealth Management LS
and Busimess Bankng Switzerland. The busimess divisions In-
vestment Bank and Global Asset Management constitute
ane segment each, In total, UBS meports five business seg-
mients and a Corporate Center in 2008. The Corporate Cen-
ter includes all corporate functions, elimanation items as well
a5 the remaining mdustral holdiregs activities and is not con-
siderad a business segment. Refer to Mote 1 of this repart far
infermation about LESs new segment siruciuse, effectve as
of first guarter 2009,

Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

In 2008, Global Wealth Managemeant & Business Banking
cofnpeised three segrnents, Wealth Marmagement Fiterna-
tional & Switzerland offers a comprehensive range of prod-
ucts and services individually tailored to affluent mterna-
tional and Swiss chents and operates from offices around the
winekd, Wealth Managerment US provides wealth manage-
mient sapaces o affluent US clients throwgh a highly trained
financial advisor netwark. Business Banking Switzerland pro-
vides individual and corporate dients in Switzerland with a
complete portfolio of banking and securities services, fo-
cused on customer service excellence, profitability and
growth, wsng a mult-channel distnbuton. The segments
share technological and physical infrastructure, and have
jaint depariments supporting major functions swch a3 e-
commerce, financial planning and wealth management, in-
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The amendmants to [AS 27 reflact changes in the account-
ing fior non-controlling interasts and deal primarily with the ac-
caunting for changes i awnesship interests in subsidiaries after
control 5 abtared, the accounting for the kes of contral cver
subsidianes, and the alacation of grefit or ks 1o contralling
and non-controlling interests in a subsidiary. 1AS 27 reguires
that cerizn amendments be apphed retrospectively wheneas
ativers ane appbed prospectively, UBS 1s curmantly assessing the
smpact of the Standard on its Financial Statements.

The revised IFRS 3 and the amendments to 145 27 are ef-
fective for annual periods beginning an or atter 1 Juby 2009
and masst be adopted together, LBS will adopt IFRS 3 and
the amendments 1o 145 27 fram 1 January 2010,

vestment pobicy and strategy. Refer to Mote 1 of this report
far the changes to the structure of this business divisicn, ef-
fective first quartar 2009,

Glabal Asse1 Managemeant

The busimess division Global Asset Management provides in-
vestment products and services o nstitutional investors and
whotesale smtermedianes around the globe, Clients include
corparate and public pensicn plans, financal insttuticons and
advisors, cantral banks, charities, foundatons and mdividual
mvastors.

rvestment Bank

Thie bugiress division Investmeant Bank operates globally as 2
client-driven immestment banking and securities business pro-
viding innovative products, ressarch, advice and complate
access 1o the world's capital markets for intermediaries,
governments, corporate and sstiutonal cients and ather
parts of LUBS.

Carparate Center

The Comporate Center ensures that all buseness dwisions
aperate as a coherent and effective whode with a comman
set of values and principles in swch areas as risk management
and control, finandal reporting, marketing and commumi-
cations, funding, capital and balance sheet management,
managemant of foresgn Currency eamings, sfoamaton
technelogy infrastructure and service centess. In addition,
Corporate Center holds the remaining activities from the
ndustrial holding business, mainy financial investments
available-for-sake,
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Nete 2b Segment reporting by geographic location

The geographic analysis of total assats is based on custorner  product line. The gaographical analysis of coerating income,
domicile, whereas operatng inceme and capital expenditure  total assets and capetal expenditure is provided in ander 1o
are based on the location of the office in which the tfans-  comply with IFRS and does nal reflect the way the Group &
actions and assets are recorded. Because of the glabal nature managed. Management believes that analyss by busines
of financial markets, the Group®s business & managed on an division, as shown in Mote 2a, is a more meaningful repra-
integratad bass worldwide, with a view ta profitabilty by sentation of the way in which the Group i managed,

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Tatal operating income Total assets Capital e pendituns
CHFmillicn  Share % CHF million  Share % CHF million  Share %
11,564 1453 230,554 1 556 1
.......... e z
......... b =
......... e s
3122 ]
"""" (28} (36) 130782 7 2 2
796 100 2,014,515 100 1,308 100
For the year ended 31 December 2007
Tordl opesting income
CHF milios Shere %
Imilzeland 18,787 5
United Bngdon {1671 5
PedledEomes 1,541
United States HED)
Ao Pacilic (1] m
Pl of o ol 4,741 15
Tatal 5,721 100
For the year ended 31 December 2006
Tt eperating imame Tk | dsiels. Capital expandituie
CHF milin  Sham % CHFmilies  Shee™  CHFmilen  Sae%
Swilzerlend 1296 # rigm 2 A50 H]
Urited Eingdom 6563 1 i H
Rl o Ewvepes 5551 12 i 2
Urited Stales 15,295 73 123 2
A Pacli 4988 1 28 1l
Rt o the workd 1500 4 1TaEm 7 1,032 EE]
Tatal 47,484 100 2,348,733 100 3117 100
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Income statement notes

Mote 3 Net interest and trading income

Acoounting standards require separate disclasure of net in-
terest income and net trading income (s2a the tables on this
and the next page), Thes reguired dsdosure, hawaver, does
nit take into account that net intesest and trading incomme
are generated by 4 range of different businesses. In many
casas, a particular business can generate bath net interest
and trading income. Fred income trading activity, for ex-
ample, generates both frading profits and coupon income.
LBS management therafore anakyzes net interest and trad-
ing inecmie according ta the businesses that drive i1, The sac-
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ond table belows {labeled Breakdown by businesses) provides
mformation that corresponds to this management view, Mt
mnceme from trading businesses incudes bath intersst and
trading ircome generated by the Groups tradeng busimesses
and the Investment Bank’s lending activities. Net mcoems
from interest margin businesses comprises interest mcomse
fram the Groups loan partfalio. Net income from treasury
and ather activities reflects all incame fram the Grown's cen-
tradized treasury function.

Far the year ended % change fom
EHF malien B.12.08 3112407 11206 1207
Met interest and trading inoome
Bl inberest income: 5,992 5,337 5211 12
i gy EEm o SR P T
Tatal net interest and trading income (19,828) (32,0161 20,264 (357
Breakdown by businesses
Hirl income fom trading businesses’ (27,203) 10,6581 13730 (1550
ot e o ot e b R e B 4
tol neo=e Fom tessuy activities snd cthes 1,214 1412 &6 14

Tatal net interest and trading income

(19,828) (3,016] 20,264 (557}

et interest inooeme’

20,213
23,511
12,397
04
145
65,678

18,130
16,123
9,162
7,288
8,954
58,667

5,992

1 Iad it beading activites of the rvestrrent Bank. 2 |tevest incldes Tormand points o1 fossign eechange smars psed b ranedge $Hon-Seim indeed st ik o ovsin o ey ke and depes-
Ry s nchided inbenest inoome on impaised loars and advances. of OHF 59 rilion B 2000 CHF 110 million Tor J00T grd CHF 158 millon Tor 2006
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 3 Net interest and trading income (continued)
MNat trading incoma’

11202 3.1307 311208 31200
4,654 2,048 (48

B.B45 EALL i)

(25,8320

gains et fraee oam Mn’v«lﬂw of
fmavin Nabdiies glesx =t fav 1,993 (1] ¥ 506

1 Refer i e bl © Hlmldludmlme'mhmhsuwhhrutmimm e 2n eapk e the ding iroduciony commentL. 1 Inchides
bracdng bom mosey marbety currencies and commodties 3 Frencial il s, desigrsted o falr ke aie o Inpadrft-- by hedg e with and oit whooe caege
mht\dl:bmﬂdmhdhﬂhﬂl‘m‘r 4 Aeder o Hoke 2T,

Significant impacts on net trading incoma'

Forthe year anded 31.12.08 Far the year anded 31,1207
UED billios CHF hillicin LISE billion CHE bilion
175 sub -nrmhhirrmmrrmiﬂ [8.1) (2.2} (1456} (16 B

Total 1324 [FAEN

1 T pockione dkaiossd i this table e rellazed in Mt tradiag incoime a5 shosa in the table abose: Indudes maindy posiione (medody) oonsafered rek concenitations (ke to the sedion "Rk
TR R and conimal” ). CRrain pelions owe been iedamilied iom "Bl for mading 0 "loans and exeikable” in lourth quorter J008. Refer to Mote 19 The prolie o koes ke secbesfication
ﬁqiﬂmmkmh_mlmlﬂ.l appheabie; oot |oss (epaerae] feamery. o Inclidks aaly postione d comd in the Sarial Report 1007, o Reler ba Nake 35,
4 0 Mma 33,
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Mote 4 Net fee and commission income

CHF milien
Enuity undermtitiag foas
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Far the year peded % change fiom
21,1247 EIRFA ERRF:r
1,564 1234 (56}

nsurance-ralatad and other foes ) 473 448 25
Tosal secunsies rading and imsestment acswily foss 25,540 24,090 2465 [FL1]
Crodftratatd e commisdone ] M Mo w0 2
Commmissaon ncome from ofher senices 1,000 107 1,064 1]
Tosal fee and commision iscoma 26,823 2%,386 25,158 [*LH
Belangiepdd ] 08 e L S, (.
Crhia 1,984 FAL) 1438 (L]
fotal ke and commision sxpense 3,854 4,757 3342 (18}
Mat fae and commission income 22,929 0,634 2_&455 35}
Mote 5 Other income

Far the year ended % change o=
EHF malien .12.08 311247 311206 20

4,341 1,608

1 Rrfer to Mcbe 38 for defails 5 ncledes 3 pestas gan of CHF 1550 milkon fiom UBS's s of s 30.7% =tabe i ulie Baer

aperies. o nchedes prealond and reslived gaive from inedtment progeitie: o i el
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Mote B Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding

Far the year paded % change fom
21.12.08 21,1247 EIRFL ERR L
Basic aarnings [CHF million)
Notprolt stributable o RS oy e W nsr (306
Cdomoomindngopertens e Al hES L e
fom dspnetnued cperations. 150 403 T (&3}

Daluted earnings (CHF million)
Wot el gtrbwhablk to VBSshanabalds

Lass: [profil floss on equity desvatiee coatacts
Ml profit attribesable 1o VB sharshel dars for diuted EFS

Waighted average shares cutstanding
‘isighted mwerags shares oulstanding 1,768,575522  1165,301587  L.E,591, 706 Fi]

Pertentially diluties ardinary m reselting fmm urrsested rechangeable shaws,
opbmsmdm'rmouhlami 1,151,538 1,067,326¢ 8,242 730¢ 22y

hied sserane shas putstanding for dilited EPE 2,TH0,727,478 1 166,768,923 2,308 838 516 P

Earnings per share (CHF)

2.02.08 al.aaar 31,1206 an.1207

Shares outstanding
Total ordinary shares isseed 2,552 580,545 RO73547344 2106273184 41
Second rading line tresury shanes

................................. o

......... S e R
Totdl lieasury shiaves. 51,803,121 158, 105,524 164,475,559 (61}
Shares gutslasdisg LETOETTAIE 1905441820  1.940,707587 50
Retrapeciive adjustsests for stock dhidend” 55,773,091 97 039,870
WM‘M forighisiet e T
mnrrml.litnnﬁ s echimabl gt S Chpy et
Shaes gutslasdisg for EFS 3,471, 234,881 2153583530 218,705,703 &l

1 Gue o UES's lomes; 28 milbon 2nd 34 milbon potential oxdneny shaws faom unesenched employes shaves and options ere not considered s they Aree an aptdlbye e for the years saded
31 Decereber 0 and 31 Ceoember 2040, Total egumslent shass cutstanding 09 out-ol-4 he- maeey opion: Bt weie oo dilitiee foe the iespective periods bt coald potentially dikte earnings per
ke in the Tuture were Z83.263 330 119,309 645 e 37, 225,136 For the weass errded 31 Devember 2008, 31 Decernber 2007 ared 31 December 2006 iepecively A additiorel 100 milion cifinasy
shares relabend o the SHE trarsaction were ol (luthes for the yeae ended 31 December TO08 But could potertislly dihute earrings pershare inthe futus. | Shaies autbanding ared potenta By ditive
afinay shares e inoasmed by 7 053N Ayt thesghis Base. o Shares cutstanding areincisased by 53 1o sl the 020 sstio of the Sodk deiderd. = 11 Descereber 2008 inchades 123047, 681
shares lor [he mandetony comeribie noles Beesd to the Swis Corledeston i [ecermber 200 a0d T70AT0, ST shasis for the merdstony comestithe rotes istaed 1o v iraesions ia Mach 2000,
e e the dition sfect of te dghts Bsee enaring amoenty ielted to echengsatle shass (31 Devember X7 and 30 December 2006 hane been adjusted ki the gock diadend ard rigins
]
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Mote 9b Allowances and provisions for credit losses
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Callactive loan
Lpecific allowanms  loss allowances

CHY milfen and provisions  and provisions  Tatal 311208 Total 301207
Badance al the beginning of Be pear 1,130 13812
(BEE] (3
A4 35
3,007 238
1213 (131}
Foraign cersendy lienilalios and ather adjus Rest [43] 15%
Balance at the emd of the year 3,047 1,154
Collactive loam
Specific allowanms  loss allowances
CH malion and provisions  and provisions  Total 31.12.08 Tetl 31,1207
A5 2 raduction of den fiom banks.

Incleded in other lishil ities selated 4o prostsions for cosSngent daims

Tatal allowances and prov isions far credit losses

MNote 10 Securities borrowing, securities lending, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

The Group enters into collateralized reverse repurchase and
repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and securi-
ties lending transactions that may result in cedit expasure in
thae event that the cownterparty to the transaction is unable
to fulfill its contractuad obligations. The Group controls credit

Balance sheat assets

risk assocated with these activities by monitaring countes-
party credit exposure and collateral values on 2 daly bass
and requinng additonal collateral 10 be deposited wath ar
returned to the Group when deemed necassany.

Cashcollatoral on Aoverse repurchass Cash colaieral on Rerse reperchass
securities borrowned agreements spcenties bororsed ts
CHF millen M.aL0e ERR PR HAxeT ERN Fder)
i
Ranks 17,523 110,254 45 480 221,575
Listomerd 105,374 114,383 158,383 155,353
Tatal 122,887 22d, 648 207,063 376,508
Ealance shoat liahilities
Cash collataral on Repurchase Cash colaieral on Raperchass
securities lent agreements sexurities lent agreemenis
ChY millcn M08 MALE IARGT ERN KAy
T L .
Bule ENLE e T, EEE BNk
Listomend 1,881 66,47F 2104 §66, 731
Tatal 14,063 102,561 31,621 F5ET
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 11 Trading portfolio

The Growp trades in debt instuments (ncleding money  Refer to Mote 23 for derivative instruments. The table below
market paper and tradable koans), squity Instruments, pre-  represents a pure accounting wiew, it does naf reflect heages
cious metals, other commodities and dermatives 1o meet the  and other rsk-mitigating factors and the ameunts must
financial needs of its customers and to generate revenue.  therefore not be considered risk exposures.

CHF miion NAT08 o

Trading portfolio assets

tharecd can be rplacyed o resoid ity countemarty 5,312 25335
Preclous metaks and other commodities’ 55934 20418
Total trading partfolia assets 313,054 17,371

Trading portfolio Eabilities

Equity Instrumants
Tetal trading partfolia liabilities £2.431 164,722

1 Inclades trancil instruments shich anecochargesd in Tt marets, o defined by d. 48 ol the o innce conceming capial adequacy and sk Siverstication o banis and sorices tdes
{ Elgenmithetweasdaeng*, ERV], sued bythe Seti Financal Marke Superdsory Authadsy JFRMGSY. 1 Obher commodities piedominansy conss of sy
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Mote 12 Financial sssets designated at fair value

31208 ELA L

h:lmmwm at fair walue

13,2283

The masirmum exposure o cadit loss of all iterms in the
above Table except for Giher financial assets s egual ta the
fair value {CHF 11,203 mdliern at 31 Decamber 2008 and
CHF 9,637 million at 31 December 2007, Other finandal
assets are generally comprised of equaty rvestments and are
nit directly exposed to cedit risk, The mMaximum expasurg 1o

CHF millicn
Bliosal amousa of kare and structured loam

5 rslstiee b boarrs el strueturid beusrrs — Saie sl ie”

credit loss at 31 Decemnber 2008 and 31 December 2007
5 mitigated by collateral of CHF 6,335 million and CHF
5,830 millian, respactney.

The amount by which credit derivatives or similar instru-
ments mitigate the maximum exposure to credit loss of loans
and structured baans designated at fair value is as follows:

Additional Information

Fiod S ek andhadl

CHE milen #1.13.08 3nar AT vz
L in far vakie of loars and stuchired loans desipaated at

firlus, strbuible dangmingediek’ L . . B ] =8
Changa in far vakie of credit derisatves and similar insrements.

witich mitigaie the madmem expomune o medit low of bass asd

svructered loans designated al fair valee! las £ M7 55
1 Cnerdit o Inciode et defauk swepe, oesik §nked notes ot | it e smapes, petoptions. 1 pd smibr imtramers. These aregeren by wed to maage aeskt ek when

FURS hors o et eyt emposaie 10 Bhe countersty which bas rot ofhermse beer col ke ipad

2 Corvert and corulative dharges in Lhe Lan vile of o attrisetable 1o charges in their aadl risk.

o only caloulated fi Lhene loa pa curRa peiag a balanoe shet date. Cument and cumnlat ive chiangesi mithe L el v of oandi detwatives. herdging sach keans inchide ol he derfvatives mivich have beer
wsed 1o mtigae coedit 1k of these |oan. since desigration o Neit vahee, For loams ieponted wnder the Lol walue oplion, charges in Gl value due Lo changss in the: el Sanding of the Bonomss s

cakulated wrsing couabespaity aed iploimation ohtaired o independent maibel soios
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNete 13 Financial investments available-for-sale
CHE milion 31208 30,1207
Money markat paper 2,155 Ha

Total finandal imwstments available-forsale 5248 456
gkl ok ool s Sty ke SO OO o] 10
Ilﬂrmiiaﬂd?lslhm:l- atsar bas a8 1,508

1 Includes franchl InsTuments which ane eochanged in rEprEsentattee mariets, o deflaed by AR 44 ol the o o conceming capical adeqacy and stk ivursHication for banis and saiies taders
(“Eipermittefsmdawne *, ERVL. s b the S Financal Morkes Superdtony Axthadzy SRR,

MNote 14 Investmaents in associates

CHE milicn 31.12.08 30,1307
‘Carrping amount ot the begmnning of the year

Larrying amount at the end of the year

Significant associated companies of the Group had the follkawing balance sheet and incame statemant tatals on an aggre-
gated basis, not adjusted for the Group's proportionate interest. Refer to Note 34 for a list of significant associates.

EHE milen Az
B bttt e sHEE
Liabsl it L5M
m ....................... I"m
Hel peofit £l
2595
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Mote 15 Property and equipment

At historical cost less accumadated depreciation

Pianit and
Lesschold [T, softwase Other e
Cwm-sed improve- aed com- machises and lactering  Peojectiin
properties. meflE menkalion equipmest  equipmast progress 3.12.08 jnazoe
0.042 .57 A.604 BBS F-] 666 TETI3  1BATY
156 %5 33 TS LR
o 1 6 Q 3
@ s {e0) i 0 mm e
(28} ) ] 53
f1ek 1321 {ash t7)
9388 3393 4,086 BaT
______ 512 19659 A0z 540
______ 332 31z Lo 100
_______ 7 (58 {520 (541
....... {16t # v v
........ A - B .
Balance at the end of the year 5372 20031 1612 545 Q a 11,451 11,678
Mt bock value 3t the end of the year® a017 1,362 aTs 321 0 ELD) 6,431 7045
1 Wnchades writs-oPs of Telly Sepreciated amsels o |0 J003, ameents ind ede CHF 003 meldbe s impa inmeers of cwn-aied progsty CHF 13 millon img, off ks hokd i CHF | milien
w‘l Sftwans and ommcasion and CHF 18 million inpaimsens ol orher machines and equizment. 3 Fire inve G nes vl o1 propsety and eqaipment is CHF 14,165 million {3007: (HF
Investment proparties at fair valus
ChF mition 3.1z.08 ERR e

Balance ai the beginning of e year

Balanca at the end of the year
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Nete 16 Gooadwill and intangible assets

A1 31 Decernber 2008, the fellowing four segments cammad
goadwill; Wealth Management International & Switzerland
{CHF 1.6 billian), Wealth Masagement US {CHF 3.7 billan),
Global Asset Management {CHF 2.0 billion), and Investment
Bank (CHF 4.3 billion}. Far the purpese of testing goodwill
for impairment, LBS considers each of these segments as a
separale cash-generaing wnil, and determines the recov-
erable amount of a segment on the bass of value in uss.

The ongaing crisis in the financal markets dramatically
changed industry dynamics, and the related decrease in mar-
ket capitalizaton of LBS made it necessary during 2008 o
review whether there was indscation that goodwill allocatad
to its cash generating wnits was impafred. At 31 December
I008, equity attributable to UBS shareholders stood at CHF
33 kallion, UES'S market capatalization, excluding the impact
of the sswed MCNs, ameunted ta CHF 44 bilkon at 21 De-
cember 2008. On the basis of the smgairment testing meth-
odology described below, UBS conduded that the year-end
4008 balances of goodwill allocated to all its segments re-
rmaan recaverable.

Methodology for goodwill impairment testing

The recoverable amount is determened using a proprietary
model based on dscounted cash flaws, which has bean
adapted to give effect to the special featuses of the banking
business and its regulatery envirenment. The recowerabde
amount is determined by estimating streams of earnings
availzble to sharsholders in the next five years, discounted fo
their present values, The termunal value reflacting all pericds

Discownt rate
%
‘iealth Managemas? intemmational & Switzerland
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beyond the fifth year is caloulated on the bass of the esti-
mated indwvidual return an equity for each segment, whech &
defived from the forecast fifth-year profit. the waderlyng
aquity, the cost of equity and the long-term growth rate. The
recoverable amownt of a segment is the sum of 2armings
available to sharehodders from the first five yeass and the
terminal value. In 2007, the receverable amount was basad
on the discounted estimated streams of earnings determined
in a rolling forecast process for the next four quarters and
the terminal wakie, The five-year period for the cash flow
projectsons applied in 2008 s considered 2 mare approprate
measure, geen the currantly wolatile market erviranment
and the uncertainties in the short-term outlook.

Assumpiions

The moded is most sensitve ta changas in the forecast sarn-
ings available to sharsholders in years one to five, the esti-
mated return on eguity, the wnderlying equity, the cost of
aquity and to changss in the long-term growth rate, The ap-
plied long-tesm growth rate s Dased on long-term risk-free
interest rates. Eamings avadable 1o shareholders are estimat-
ed based on forecast results, which takes into account busi-
ness initiatives and planned capital inwestments, and returns
to shareholders. Valuation parameters used wathin the
Group's impairment test model ane linked 1o external manket
infesmation, where applicable. Managemant believes that
reasonable changes in key assumptions used to determine
the recoverable amounts of all segments will nat result in an
impairment situation.

I8 1207
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Investment Bank
©n 31 December 2008, the reassessment of the goodwill of
UBS' Irviestrnent Bank, which has bean mast affected by the
implicatians of the financial market crses. was a key focus,
Gaodwill allecated ta the Investrient Bank amounted 1o
CHF 4.3 billion at 31 December 2008 (CHF 5.2 billion at 31
December 2007). The reductson is due to an impasment of
CHF 347 million of goodwill related 1o the US Municipal Se-
curties Busness, whech was dosed = June 2008 fefer 1o
Mote 38 for details} and foreign currency translation effacts.
In its review of the year-end 2008 goodwill balance, LBS
considerad the performance autlook of its Imvestment Bank
division and the underling business operatons 10 resolve
whether the recoverable amount for this unit covers its
carmying amownt, based on the methodology described
abave, On this basis, LES conchuded that goodwill allacated
o the Investment Bank remains recoverable on 31 Decem-
ber 2008, The conclusion was reached basad an the farecast
results whech include those activities that are expected 1o

EDINETOOOO
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generate positive cash flows in future years. The forecasts
are based an an expactation that the economic ervironment
will gradually innprose aver thi nest three years and reach an
awerage growth level thereafter. The fair value abtained from
the model caledation was subject 1o a stiess Lest by decieas-
ing forecast cash flows by one third and at the same time
mncreasng the discount rate by 3.5 percentage painis to
16.5% ., The stness value covered the book value of the In-
vestment Bank. However, if the conditions in the financial
markets and banking industry further detericrate and turn
out te be waorse than anticipated in LBSS performance fore-
casts, the goodwill carried in the Invesiment Bank business
division may need 1o be impaired in future guarters,

Recognition of any impaimment of goodwill would reduce
FFRS Equity attributable 1o UES shareholders and Met profit
but it would nat impact cash flows, as well a5 the BIS Tier 1
capital, BIS total capital, and capital ratios of the LIBS Group,
as goodwill 15 requared 10 be deducted from capital under
the Basel |l capital framewark.

Gocdwill Insangibile asrets
Cusiomer
selzzonzhize,
il
Total  Iedrastiuctuee  rights and ather Teaal N208 EAR KL
12529 BTG
&5 o
[ric] o
1356 o
11,34 152)
11,585 B
o 315
o Er]
1 o
o o
1356 o
o . 5 {19
Badange al the end of the yaar o EET Ak
Met book walue a1 the end of the year 11,585 a57 B54 1,350 12,935 14538
1 Ppuish e wrina-of, of Tully amedine intang bl st and inpained goodwil 1o disposd basiness amitie
E
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Nete 16 Gooadwill and intangible assets (continued)

Thie following table presents the disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets by business unit for the year ended 21 Decam-
ber 2008,

Balasce at Addsnns Foraign Ealance

the b;g':-ing and tumeney  althe mad
CHE milen of the year  realogatons Deposas  Amortizaton  Ispaiment  Damlation  of the pear
Goowil -
Viaaith Managemes: ntersational & Switzerand L857 157 a 7 (305} 1,548
Viaith hanagemess LS R ] a b (328} 3673
Business Bankisg Sedtzerkand o Q a 7 ] u
Clobal Asset Managemeant 20m 338 a . | (3564 1,582
Wvesiment Bark 5,707 1 a 1) (5504 1.7
Corporate Camer 18 0 20 L 1 IJ-
UES 12,528 55 {20 {341} {1379} 11,585
Intangikie assats
Viaaith Manapamest ntersational & Switzerasd b 55 a 157} bl
Vialth Managesest LS TH o a b [43} AIF
Besiness Barking Switzerkand o o a 7 i u
Global Asset Management 4 z a a [77h 136
Irvesament Bask 27 o a 7 [52} 86
Corporate Camer 3 o 1] L 0 IJ-
UES 1,709 [ 6] {153) {70} {33H) 1,350
The estimated, aggregated amortization expenses fior intangible assets are as fallows:
CHE milien htangible st
Estimated, aggregated amartization expensas far:
Bt e e e S R -
- e e
s e b
i e e
il e L
2074 i thereslter - 36
Total 1,350
MNote 17 Other assets
CHE milien Mt 311208 301207
Deterrnd v sty 22 8,580 310
Settherreat and dearisg sccouns 1,203 6,370
VAT and cates (a0 racivirbles 330 254
Prepsid pension oot 2522 £
Properiies hid for sale 561 1,143
Ot bl 4,495 6,114
Total cther assets 18811 20,312
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Balance sheet notes: liabilities

MNote 18 Due to banks and customers

CHF mitien HATLHB nnzoe
D 1o banks 125,678 15,762
Duetn cstomers o saungs and eestment sccoents woser 0812
b SMOUNTS e 0 (USRS 374,127 932.TE
Tonal die w0 (usiomens AT74, 774 641 552
Tatal due to banks and customers B00.403 TRT A5

Mote 19 Financial liabilities designated at fair value and debt issued

Finandial liabilities designated at fair value

CHE milicn 31,1208 ERRFL
Pondsand compomnd dabd Inetrumemiz emind e P ] b
o ol loel e O T g
Lean comesiimants' 1,632 55
Tatal 101,548 [EIFE]

1 Loap commitments recognined a5 Finandal addities. designaed at fain salue, until drawn down and reoogeimd as lans. Soe B 1) Ty dor add tional inkosmation.

A1 31 Decernber 2008, the comractual redemation amount  carrving value, At 31 December 2007, the contractual ne-
at maturity of Fnancial Babilites designated at fair value  demgtion ameunt at maturity of such liabilites appraximat-
throughs profit or koss was CHF 12.2 billion higher than the  ed the carrying value. Refer to Note 1a) 7} for detais.

Dbt [ssued (held ot amortized cost)

CHF millien 311208 In1zor
Sherl-terin debit. Money merkat papes ived 111,618 152,756
gV PR e
Bontk

Semior 52 765
Subardisaled 19,119
Sheres in band igsees of the Swis Regional or Castonal Bask’ Central Band | nsstutio=s 199
el notes 31
Subactal lungtem de bl 60,811
Tatal 197,254 22017

&
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNete 19 Financial liabilities designated at fair value and debt Bsued (continued)

The Growp uses interest rate and foseign exchange deriva-
Tivies 1o manage the risks inherent in certain debt isswes theld
at amartized cost). In the case of mlerest rate risk manage-
ment, the Group applies hedge accounting as discussad in
Note 1a} 14) and Note 23 - Derivative Instruments and
Hedge Accounting, As & result of apphlying hedge account
ing. at 31 Decernber 2008 and 31 Decamber 2007, the car-
rying value of debt ssued was CHF S04 malion higher and
CHF 138 million higher, respectivaly, reflecting changes in
fair value due to interest rate movements.

Thie Group issues both CHE and non-CHE denominated
fixed-rate and flaating-rate dent.

Subcrdinated debt sacurities are unsecured chligations of
the Group that are subordinated in right of payment to all
present and future senior indettedness and cerain other
obbgations of the Group. A1 31 December 2008 and 31 De-
cember 2007, the Growp had CHF 12,765 mdlicr and CHF

Contractual maturity dates

14,129 millsan, respectively, in subordinated debt. Subardi-
nated dett usually pays fixed interest annually ar fleating
rate interest based en three-month or six-manth Landan
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR} and provides for single prin-
cipal payments upen maturity.

A3 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, the Group
had CHF 185,212 mdlicn and CHF 238,835 mdlion, respec-
tively, in tnsubordinated debt {exduding money market pa-
per, compound debt instruments — OTC and loan commis-
ments designated at fair valua),

Tre following table shows the split between fixed-rate
ared floating-rate debt issues based on the contractual terms.
Howewer, it showd be noted that the Group uses interest
rate swaps to hedge many of the fized-rate debdt issues,
which changes their repricing charactenstics sig those of
flzating-rate debt.

Total Toid
WE AL AN MWz AMF MNEIIE Teewsfie 3108 FIEO0
A 0T 1554
0550 0-am B
EEr STt 131,714
i amm
E0-50 .

..... am
B3GR WSS IO 13081 15577 M58 23627 301,275

LEmR w4 BAw

..... 0803 090 0-B3TS

...... 305 258 20m

S

BI-615

""" B3E71 5452 MASS 1B LIS 5313 13625 536 1125
147,359 3097 0478 14837 16637 3l 37,35 950 413990

Thee table above indscates fiwed interest rate coupans ranging
from O up 1o 9.955% an the Grouwp's bands. The high ar low
coupons generally relate to structured debt issues poor to
the separation of embedded derivatives, As a resuli, the stat-

304

ed interest rate on such debl ssues generally does nat reflect
the effeciive interest rate the Group & paying o service its
debt after the embedded derivative has been separated and,
where applicable, the application of hedge accounting,
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MNote 21 Provisions and litigation

Total Tt
Cperational’ Litigation ™ ther* 1M.12.08 m1200
8 1,703
........ - =
........ i e
ore rersonized in the ncose sastement {18 ey
e e S et
........ - B
........ 2 o
........ . et
B I s
Balance at the end of the year 70 1418 1,029 2727 1716

1 Inchudes provisions for itigation sesukting from seoesty nekes end baracon proosssing risks. 1 Iedudes Rigation res ting from kegal, lsiilicy aad complare: s 3 I 2003 Glokel Weatth
Maregermert and Business S2nking made 1 promson of CHF 1,384 milion §US0 1,383 milion] For the especed costs of She sepurchase: of apdon rete secoities (4851, induding fires. |n the fourth
quaries, aker the peowsion was petinly apsbed for isporchases of ARS, an amoust of CHF 948 milkon |USD 508 million), eschiding fres, wes secdesdied to Megative: replscemen walves (refer io
Byote 1 for deta b in sdckoon 8 peoson ol C4F 207 mil ko (050 P30 roll o) wes. made i conmschion with LUES = LS apes-bosdes cee.  « |nciudes retnststeme of orss for ke bok impeovement

which mounted to CHF 167 million on 30 Decemser 2008 (ICHF 233 milon on 31

zzbbutcal leaes) aad ather et

L|1|g-:-.ll:_||"

UB3 Group operates in a legal and regulatory ermaronment

that exposes it to potentially significant litigation nisks. As a

result, LABS is involved in wariows disputes and legal proceed-

ings, including litigatian, arbstration, and regulatory and
criminal imvestigations. such cases are subject 1o many un-
cerainties, and their outcome is often difficult to pradict,
inchuding the impact on the operations or finandal state-
ments, particulacly in the earlier stages of a case. In cerfain
circumstances, to avosd the expanse and distractan of begal
proceedings, UBS may, based on a cost-benefit analysis,
enter into a sattiernant even thaugh LIBS denies any wiang-
doing. The Group makes provisions for cases brought against
it only when after seeking legal advice, in the opinicn of
management, it is probable that a liabilty exists, and the
amaunt can be reasonably estimated. Mo provision 15 made
for dasms asserted agamst the Group that in the opinion of
management arewithaut merit and whare it is not likely that

LIBS will be found liable,

A1 31 Decernkser 2008, UBS is imichved in the fallowing
legal proceedings which could be material to the Group:

&)} Tax Shelter Investigation: In connection with a eriminal in-
vestigation of fax shefters, the Linited States Attamey’s
Office for the Southern Distict of Mew York (LIS Attamey's
Gffice} continues to examine certain tax-ariented transac-
tiens in which LIBS and others engaged between 1996 and
2000, LUBS is continuing to cooperate in this investigation.

b} Municipal Bond: In Movernber 2006, UBS and others
recenved subpoenas fram the LS Department of Justice,
Antitrust Division, and the US Securities and Exchange
Commission (5EC) seeking information relating to dariva-
tive transactions entered into with municipal bond issuers
and to the ewestment of proceeds of municipal bond

306

007, for

rorhiady for employes beaelis femice s perzries aas

issuances. Bath investigatons are ongeing, and UBS =
cooperating. In addition, vamous state Attormeys General
have issued subpoenas seeking similar information. In the
SEC investigation, on 4 February 2008, LBS received a
“wells notice” advising that the 3EC staff s considenng
recommending that the SEC bring a cvil action against
UBS AG in connection with the bidding of varicus finan-
cial instruments associated with municipal sacurites. Ln-
der the SECS Walls process, LIBS will have the coportu-
nity te a1 forth reasans of law, pokoy or fact why such an
action sheuld not be brought.

<y HealthSouth: UBS is defending itself in two putative secu-
rifies class actions brought in the LS District Court of the
Morthern Cwsitrict of Alabama by halders of stock and
bends in HealthSouth Corp. In Octeber 2008, LBS agreed
to settle derivative litsgation brought on behalf of Health-
South in Alabarma State Court, Due to existing insurancs
covarage this settlement has no impact an UBSS result in
2008,

o) Parmalat: UBS has been faong multiple proceedings
ansng out of the Parmalat insclvency. In June 20038, LBS
settled all cvil daims brought by Farmalat in its capacity
a5 AssUMELor in comgpasition with craditors and M. Bondi
{Extraordinary Commissioner of Parmalat 5.p 4. and other
Parmalat companies under extraordinary administration)
for EUR 185 million. Cther civil claims by third parties
have automatically terménated as a result of termination
of cimenad proceadings = Milan wath the exception of
some costs issues which are the subject of appeals 1o
Couwrt of Cassation]) and will also do so in Parma wihen the
time for filing an appeal expires, unlass an app=al has
been lodgad in the meantine.
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Mote 21 Provisions and litigation (continued)

) Auchan Rate Securites: LIBS was sued by thres state regu- ) LS Crass-Border: LIBS AG has been responding 1 a num-

latary authoritees and was the subsect of investigations
by the SEC and sther regulators, relatsg to the marketing
and =ale of Auction Rate Securitbes (AR5} to chents and 1o
LIBS's role and participation i ARS auctions. UBS also has
been named in several putative dass actions and individual
civil suits and a large number of individual arbitrations. The
requlatory actions and investigations and the dlass actions
followed the disrupticn in the markets for thesa securities
and related auction failures snce mid-February 2008,
Flaintiffs and the regulaters are generally seeking rescis-
sian, 1.e., far UBS 1o purchage the AR5 that UBS sold 1o
them at par value, & well as compensatory damages, dis-
gorgement of prafits and in soma cases penalties. In hMay
2008, UBS entered into a settlement with the Massachu-
salls Altorney General mowhich UBS agreed o buy back
USD 36 mslion in auction rale securities that had been sold
to general punpose municipal accounts but were impermis-
sible investments far those accounts, On & August 2008,
LBS ertered inte settlements in preciple with the SEC,
the Mew York Attorney General (NYAG) and other state
agencies represanted by the North American Securities Ad-
ministrators Assodation {(MASAA), inchding the Massa-
chusetts Securities Division (MSD), whereby UBS agreed fo
affer 1o by back ARS from eligible customers within cer
tam time frames, and to pay penalties of USD 150 millien
50 75 million to the NYaG, USD 75 millien to the other
states). Om 2 October 2008, LIRS finalized its settlemant
with the M350, on 11 December 2008 with the S5EC and
the W¥aG, and UBS is contmuing 1o finalize agreements
with the other state regulators. UESS offer to purchase
back ARS was done by a registered securites offering
effective 7 October 2008, UBS's settlement 5 largaly in Bne
with similas industry regulatany settlements; howaver, LES
i the caly firm of is major competiters that offerad 1o
purchase ARS from metitutional clients before a date cer-
tain, LIBSS settlemant with the SEC and MSD requires
LB to offer 1o buy eligibe AR5 from eligile instituticnal
clierts by na lates than 30 June 2010, Settlements with the
ather NASAA states are being worked cut. The NYAG se1-
tlemant does not reference a date cestain, but contains
language similar to other industry setflements reguiring
that LIBS ake ‘best effarts’ to provde lquidity salutions
for institutional investars. The NYAG and SEC continue 1o
imvestigate individuals affiliated with UBS who fraded in
ARS ar wha had responsbility for disclosures. On 7 Octo-
ber 20015, the WYAG anncunced a settlement with the for-
mer Investment Bank GloDal General Counsel relating 1o
his trading of ARS allegedly in viclation of Mew Yook’
Martin Act. The former Investment Eank Global General
Counsel neither admitted nor denied the state’s allega-
tiens, but agreed 1o certain penalties and sanctians,

ber af governmental inguines and investigations relatng
1o ils crassborder privale banking senaces 1o LIS private
clients during the years 2000-2008. In partioular, the U5
Depariment of Justice (D0} has bean examining whether
certain LS dients saught, with the assistance of LIBS client
advisors, to evade their S tax obligations by avoideng
resirictions on their secumties inwestments imposed by the
Cuahified Intermediary Agreament {014 UBS entered into
with the LIS Internal Rewenue Service (A5 in 2001, DQ)
and IS are also have been examining whether LES AG
has beary carmpliart with withholding obligatons in rela-
tion to sales of non-U5S seowities under the Deemed Sales
and Faid In US tax regulations. & former UBS AG client
advisor pleaded gudty 1o one count of Consparacy 1o de-
fraud the United States and the IRS in cannection with
provding investment and ather services 1o a US persan
who is alleged to have evaded US income taxas on incoms
sarned on assets maintained in, amang ather places, a
former L85 AG account o Switzedand. In Novermber
2008, the CED of Glabal WMEBE was mdicted by a US
federal grand jury sitting in the Southern District of Flori-
da on one count af conspaning fo defrawd the IRS in viala-
tion of LS law. Amang ether things, the indiciment al-
leges that the CEQ of Glabal WiMEEE had involvernent in
the operation and maintenance of the US eross-border
business while knowing that such busness was being
conducted inviolation of cartain LIS laws. The District Af-
tormey for the Caunty of New York has issued a request
far infarmation seeking informaton located in the US
concerning UBSS cross-border business, induding any in-
formation located in the US relating to dients of that
business, Further, the IRS has daliwerad to UBS &G 3 no-
tice concerning alleged violations of the QIA which UBS s
respending 1o under the apphcable cure precess. Tha SEC
hias been examining whether Swiss-based UBS client advi-
5075 engagad in activities in relation ta their LIS-domaciled
clients that tiggered an obligation far UBS Switzerland
to register with the SEC as a broker-dealer and/or invest-
ment adviser. Firally, the Swiss Financial Market Supervi-
sory Authority (FMMA) investigated UB5% oross-border
senacing of LS private clients under Swiss Banking Supsr-
visary legelation. The investigations also have been fo-
cused on the management supervisicn and control of the
U5 cross-border business and the practices at issue. LIBS
has been working to respond in an appropriate and re-
spansible manner 1o all of these investigations in an affar
1o achieve a satsfactany nesalution of these matiers, As
announced on 17 July 2008, UBS will na longer pravide
seouwities and banking services to US-ressdent private
clients Jncluding non-opsrating entities with LIS benefi-
Cianes) except theough s SEC-registered affiliates, On
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Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 21 Provisions and litigation (continued)

18 February 2009, UBS announced that it had entered
inta a Deferred Prosecution Agreement (DFRA) with the
DO) and a Consent Order wath the SEC. Thess agres-
ments resole the above-descrbed cmanal and reguda-
tory investigations by these autherities, As part of these
settlement agreements, among ather things: G) LIES wall
pay a total of LSD 780 mullien to the United States, USD
380 million representing disgorgement of profits from
maintaining the US cross-border business and LUSD 400
millicn representing LIS federal backup withholding tax
required to be withheld by L85, together with eterest
and penalties, and restitution for unpaid taxes assodated
with certain account relationships imwolving frawdulent
sham and nominee offshare structures and othensise as
cowered by the DPA; () UBS will complete the exit of the
LS eress-barder business out of nen-SEC registered enti-
ties, as announced in July 2008, which these settlements
permit UBS to do in a lawiul, orderty and expeditious
manner; it UBS wall implement and maintain an en-
hanced program of internal contrals with respect 10 Com-
pliarsce with its cbligations under its Qualified Intermedi-
ary (O Agreement with the Internal Revenue Service
{R5) as well a5 a revisad Legal and Compliance gover-
nance structure in ander o strangthen independent kegal
and compliance contrals; and (wh plrsuant to an order 5-
sued by FIMMA, information was transferred to the DOJ
regarding accounts of cartain US clients as set forth in the
[PA who, based an evidence available 1o UBS, appear 1o
hawie committed tax fraud or the like within the meaning
of the Swiss-LS Double Taxation Treaty. Pursuant 1o the
DPR&, DA) has agreed that any further proseoution of UES
will be deferred for a period of at least 18 months, sub-
jBct to extension under certain circumstances such as LBS
needing mare time 1o complete the implementaton of
the exit of its LS cross-border bussness. If LBS satisfies all
ot its cbligations wnder the DfA, the OO0 will refrain
perrnanently from pursuing charges against UBS relating
1o the inwestigatron of its LS cross-Dorder business, As
part of the SEC resoluton, the SEC filed & Complaint
against ES in Federal Dastrict Cowrt inWashington, DUC,
changing UBS with acting as an unregistered broker-deal-
&r and investiment advisar in cannection with maintaining
its US cross-border business. Pursuant to the Consent
Crder, UBS did not admat or deny the allegations m that
Comgplaint, and consented to the entry of a final judg-
ment that provides, amang ather things, that: () LS will
pay LU0 200 million to the SEC, representing disgange-
ment of profits from the US cross-boeder business (his
amount is incduded within, and not in additien 1o, the
usD 780 milkon UBS is paying to the United 3tates as
describad abows); and i} UES will complate its axt of
the LS cross-bosder business and will be permanenly

308

enjained from vielating the SEC registration requsements
by providing broker-deater or investment agvisorny services
to US persons through UBS entities not registered with
the SEC,

The B0 and SEC agresments do not resolve issues con-
cerning the pending “lahn Do summens which the IRS
served on LBS in kuly 2008. In this regard, on 19 Febroary
2004, the Civil Tax Division of the DO filed a civil petition
far enforcement of this summons in US Federal District
Cowrtin Miami, through which it seeks an order directing
UBS ta produce infarmation located in Switzerland re-
garding LS clients whao have maintained accounts with
UBS in Switzerland without providing a Form W-9. On
24 Fabruary 2009, the District Court issued a scheduling
arder pursuant 1o which a hearing will be held on 13 July
2009, The DPA praserves UBS's ability 1o defend fully its
rights in connection with the IRS% enforcement effort.
UBS believes that it has substantial defenses, including
that complysrg with the summons woukd constitute a via-
lation of Swiss financial privacy laws, and intends 10 vig-
arously contest the enfarcement of the surnmeons. The
resohution of the summaons litigation could result in the
imposition of substantiad fines, penalties and/for ather
remedies. In addition, pussuant to the CPA, should LIBS
fail 12 camply with a final US court order dwecting it to
coamply with the summaons after fully exhausting all rights
to appeal, the DOl may after certan conditions have
been satisfied, choose to pursue varicus remedies avail-
able for breach of the DPA, This may ndude charging
LIBS with conspiracy to cormmit tax fraud.

Also on 18 February 20049, the ANMA published the re-
sults of the now concdhuded investigation conducted by
the Swiss Federal Banking Cammissan (SFACY The SFEC
concluded, among other thengs, that UBS viclated the
requirernents far proper bussess conduct under Swiss
banking lzw and ssued an order barring UBS from pro-
viding services ta LIS resident private dients out of nan-
SEC regetered entities. Further, the SFBC crdered UBS to
enhance its eontrel framewark around its enoss-barder
businessas, and announced that the effectiveness of such
frarmework will b audited,

gy Sub-prime-related Matters: LIBS i responding 1o a numkber

of governmental wguines and investigations, and is in-
valved in a numbser of ligaticns, arbitrations and disputes,
related to the sub-prime onsis, sub-prime securities, and
siructured fransactions Ewoling sub-prme  securities,
These matters concern, among other things, LBSS valua-
tions, dischasures, write-dowens, underwriting, and confrac-
tual obligations. In particular, UBS has been in regular com-
munication with, and responding to inguires by FINMA, its
home country consolidated regulator, as well & the SEC
and the Linited States Attomaey’s Office for the Eastern Dns-
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Mote 21 Provisions and litigation (continued)

trict of Mew ok (USADY regasding some of these Bsues
ared others, nclugeng the role of mternal contral units, gow-
effance and processes araund sk cantral and vakuatson of
sub-prime instruments, compliance with public disclosure
rules, and the business ratianales for the launching and the
reintegratian of Dillon Read Capital Management (DRCKM),
While FIMMA concluded its investigation in Dctober 2008,
the investigation by the SEC and the USA0 are ocngoing. In
addition, a consolidated dass action was filed against LES
and a numiber of senior directars and afficers in the South-
ern District of New York alleging securitses fraud in conmec-
tion with the firm's valuations and disclosures relating 1o
sub-prime and asset-backed securities. UBS and & nusmbar
af senior officers and directars have also been sued in 2
consolidated dlass action beought on behalf of holders of
LIBS ERIS A retwernent plans in which thare were punchases
of LBS stock. Bath <lass actions ane m their early stages.

hy Madatt: In relation to the Madof investmant fraud, UBS,
LIBS (Luzembourgy 54 and certain other UBS subsidiaries
are responding fo inguines by a number of regulators,
inchuding FINMA and the Luxermnbourg Commesion de
survaillance du secteur financier {C55F). C85F has made
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ingusries concerning two third party funds established
under Lusermnbourg law the assets of whach were man-
aged by Bernard L. Madeff Investment Securities LLC, and
which now face severe losses. The documentation estab-
lishing both funds suggests that LIES enfities act in vari-
ous capacties induding custadsan, administratorn, man-
ager, distributos and promotes, and that UBS employess
serve a5 board members. On 25 February 2009, the C35F
issued a communiqué with respect to the larger of the
twio funds, stating that UBS (Luxembourng) 54 had failed
to comply with its due diligence responsibilities as ousto-
dian bank. The CS5F ordered LBS (Luxembourgy 54 to
raview its mfrastructure and procedures relating to its
supenisony obligations as custadian bank, but did not o
cler it 10 compensate mvestors. To date, very Tew swvestar
claims have bean filed, and most have related 1o unsatis-
fied redemption reguests delivered to these funds prior to
the revelation of the Madoff scheme. Furthar, certain cli-
ants of LS Sauerborn (the KeyClient segment of LIBS
Deutschlard AG) are exposed 10 Madoff-rnanaged posi-
tiors thraugh third party fundgs and funds administered
by UB% Sauerborn.
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MNote 22 Income taxes

CHE milion

Tax axpansze from continuing operations
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For e yoar andad
M.208 ETR 30308

Tetal incama tax sxpense fram continuing aperatians 237 1,365 2e08
Tax axpense from discontimeed operations

TP | L S a
Foraion a o 1
Total incoma tax expense from discontinued cperations 1 (358} (1
Total incama tax expense £, B35 1,111 FE-T

Of tha deferred tax bensfit in the income statement of CHF
020 millicn, CHE 6,126 million relates to the recagnition of
inerarmental met defarred tax a55e1s In respect of available tax
losses. The mcremental deferred tax assets mainly relate 1o
Swwiss tax losses inowrred during the year (primaridy due to the
writedown of investments in LIS subsidiaries). The tax benefit
was reduced by a decrease in the deferred fax asset recog-
nized far LI5S 1ax losses.

The Group made net tax payments, incduding demestic
and foreign taxes, of CHF 887 million, CHF 3,663 million,
CHF 2,607 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively, The
Tax payments in 2008 include installment payments paid on

CHE milien
Cyperating profi fom condinuing opertions befos tas

astimatad basis during the year, part of which are expectad
ta be repaid because the final tax liability for the year is an-
ticipated to be less than the arnounts pasd.

The current 1ax expense for 2008 is net of tax benefits
related to prior years of CHF 446 million. There were also
deferred tax benefits related to prior years of CHF 44 mil-
lign giving tofal tax benefits ralating o prior vears of CHF
450 mullian.

The companents of aperating prefit befare fax, and the
differences between income tax expense reflected in the Fi-
nancial Statemeants and the amownis caloulated at the Swiss
statutony rate, are as follows:

For e yoar andad
M.208 ETR 30308

ncnme toms at Swiss slatetony rate of 23% for 2008, 2007 and

Incama tﬁumimmhw

4B, 237} 1,365 L

30
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Mote 22 Income taxes (continued)

Significant components of the Growp's gross deferred ncome tax assets and liabilitiss are as follows:

ChY millcn HATO8 0207
Deferred tax assets

Cospensatios and bansfils 1,534 13m
Tan lods camy-lorwerds 31834 10,385
Trading asets &8 163
O 258 ]
Total 35234 14,777
‘Valwation allowanos {26,354} (18,557)
Deferred tax assets recagnized B, 560 3,220
Deferred tax liabilities

Co=pensatios and benesits 11 a7
Preperty and eeuipment bl 175
Fimancial imvesiments and asociabes 206 i)
Trading sisels T4d 185
Gaodwill and inan gibsle sty I8 173
Ot =1 424
Deferred tax liabilities 1470 2,029

The change in the balance of net deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities does not egual the deferred tax
expense in thase years. This is mainly due 1o the effects of
exchange rate changes on tax assefs and liabilities danoam-
inated in currencies cther than CHE For the abose purpos-
&5, the valuation allewance represents amounts that are
not expected fo provide futwre benefits, either because
they are offset against potential tax adjusiments or due to
insufficsency of future taxable income, The deferred tax as-
sets recognized at 31 December 2008 were as fellows:
Compensation and benefits: CHF 321 mallion; Tax lass
camy-forwards: CHF 8,126 million; Trading assets: CHF 243
million; and Qther: CHE 190 million,

UBS A Switzedand and certain oversess branches and
subsidianies of the Graup have deferred tax assets related 1o
tas boss carmy-forwards and ather items. Because the realiza-
tion of these assets is uncertain, the Group has established
valuation allowances of CHF 26,354 madlion (CHF 11,557
million at 31 Decermbser 2007) mainly relateng to LS tax kiss-
&5 For entities that incurred kossas m either the ourrent or
preceding year, an amount of CHF 8463 million is recog-
nized as deferred tax assets at 31 December 2008 {CHF
2,363 milion at 31 Cecernber 2007} These defermed tas as-
sets mainly relate to Swiss tax losses (primarily due to the

writedoen of investments in US subsidianes) and US tax
lomses. Swiss tax losses can be carried forward for seven years
and L¥% federal tax losses for 20 years. The agreement which
LES entered i to transfer certain illiguid securities and
ather positions 1o a fund owned and contralled by the Swiss
Matiornal Bank fefer to Mote 38} materially reduced the
Group’s exposures to US real estate related assets and hence
pravided additional evidence that future LS taxable profits
will b available against whech part of the Group's unused
LS tax losses can be utdized. & deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respact of that portion of the US tax losses.

The deferred tax assets recognized at 31 Decembear 2008
in respect of 1ax losses have baen based on prafitabality as-
semgtions over a fiwe-year honzon. The expected future
prafitability i based on business plan asumptions takeg
into consideraticn uncartainties ansing from the asrrent ad-
werss econamic environment. If the business plan 2arnings
and assumptions in fallowing quarters substantially deviate
fram the csrent assumptions, the amownt of existing de-
ferred tax assets may need 1o be adjusted. The Group pro-
vidas for deterred income taxes on undistributed earnings of
subsdiaries except 1o the extent that thase earmings are in-
definitely invested. At 21 December 2008, CHF 413 million
of such earnings were treated as indefinitely invested.

ElN|
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MNote 22 Income taxes (continued)
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At 31 December 2008, tax lossas totalling CHF 71,214 milkan which are not recognized as deferred tax assets are available
to be affset against potential fax adjustments or future taxable ncome.

Thie 1ax losses expare as fallows:

CHYF milion #.12.08
L LI P !
r'[-zmi‘lm ................. I’
Aftar 4 yaars 71,185
Total 71,214

MNote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is
derivad fram the value of ancther {"underlying™) financal
instrement, an ndex or some other variable, Typically, the
undeshing is & share, commeditg or bond price, an index
value or an exchange or interest rate.

The majority of derivatie contracts are negotiated as to
amaount ("notional”}, temor and price between UBS and its
counterparties, whether other professionals or customers
{over-the-counter [3TC) contracts).

Other denvative confracts are standardized = terms of
their amounts and settlement dates and are bought and sold
an organized exchanges (exchange-traded contracts),

Thie notional ameunt of a denvative is generally the quan-
tity of the underdying instrument on which the derivaiwe
contract is based and is the basis upon which changes in the
value of the contract are measured. t provides an indication
af the underlying volume of business fransacted by the
Laroupe bt does not provide any measure of risk,

Derivatwe instruments are carred at fair value, shown in
the balance sheet as separate totals of Positive replacement
values (zssetsh and Negative replacement values (liabilites),
except for futures and exchange-traded cotions with daily
masgineng, which are presented a5 recesvables and payablas,
Pastive replacernent values represent the cost 1o the Group
of replacing all transactions with a fair valuee n the Group’s
favor if all the relevant cownterparties of the Group were fo
default at the sarme time, asumenyg transactions could be
replaced instantanecusky. Negatwe replacerment values rep-
resent the oost to the Growps counterparties of replacing all
their transactions with the Group with a fair value in their
favor if the Group were to default, Postive and negative
replacement values on different transactions ane anly netted

i

if the transactions are with the same counterparty, are de-
riominated in the same currency, and the cash flows will b2
seftled on a net bass, Changas in replacement values of de-
Fivative instrurments ane recogrized in the income staterment
wnless they meet the critena far certain hedge accounting
relationships, as explained in Note 1a} 14) Derivative instru-
menits and hadge accounting,

I:,-:_'-:-:- of derwatnee instruments

The Group uses the follewing desivative financial instru-

ments for both trading and hedging purpaoses.

Farwards and futures are contractual obligations to buy
ar sell financiad instrurnents or commadities on 2 future date
at a specified price. Farward contracts are tailer-made agree-
ments that are transacted between counterpartes on the
OTC market, whereas futures are standardized confracts
transacted on requlated exchanges,

Swaps ane transactions s owhech Twea parties exchange cash
flows on a speabed notional amount for a predeterminad
peniod. Maost swaps are traded OTC. The magor types of swap
transactions undartaken by the Group are as follows:
= Interest rate swap contracs generally entail the contract-

ual exchange of fixed-rate and floating-rate inlerast pay-

ments in a singke currency, based an a notanal amewunt
and a reference interest rate, e.g. LIBOA.

- Cross-ourrency swaps involve the exchange of interest
pavments based on two different curmency pancipel bal-
ances and reference interest rates and generally alsa en-
tail exchange of principal amounts at the start andfor
end of the contract.

= Credit default swaps (C08s) are the most commoen farm
of a credit derivative, wnder which the party buwing pro-
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Mote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Tection makes ane OF Mo paynents 1o the party selling
proection in exchange far an undertaking by the seller 1o
make a payrhant o the buyer following a credit event (as
defined in the contract) with respect to a thind-party credit
entity (as defined in the contract). Settlement following a
creit event may De & net cash amaunt or cash in retum
for physical delivery af cne ar mare obligations of the
credit entity and is made regardless of whether the
protection buyer has actually sutferad a boss. After 2 credit
event and seftlemeant, the contract is terminated.
= Taotal rate of return swaps give the fotal return recelver
exposure ta all of the cash flows and ecancmee banefits
and risks of an underhiing asset, without having to cwn
the asset, in exchange for a series of payments, offen
based on a reference interest rate, e.g. LBOR, The toal
return payes has an egual and oppasste pastion.
- Metal swaps (precous nmetal swaps and base metal
swaps] involve the purchase and sale of specific metals.
A precious metal swap invalves the purchase and sale of
3 spedfied matal with fised notional amaunt and fiked
price but different settlerment dates. A base metal swap
is the simultanesus purchase and sake of a specified met-
al with zame settlement dates but different priong
terms.
Optians are contractual agreements under which, typecally,
the seller {writer} grants the purchaser the right, but nat
the cbligation, either to buy (call option} or to sell {put op-
ticn) by or at a set date, a specified quaniity of 2 financial
instrument of cammodity at a predetermuned price. The
purchaser pays a premium to the seller for this ight. Op-
tions involing more complex payment structures are also
transacted. Options may be traded OTC or on a regulated
exchange and may be traded in the form of a security (aar-
ranth.

Credit derivatives

LBSs credit derivative portfalio consists of credit default
swaps and total return swaps, The tofal national value of
privtection bought and sold during 2008 was CHF 2,136 bil-
ligr and CHF 1,474 billion, respectively.

Commitment to acquirg auchan rate secunties

In 2008, wealth Management US recognized provisions of
CHF 1,464 millien, presented as general and administrative
expenses in the income staterment, fes the expected cost of
the repurchase of auction rate sacurities (&R5s) and related
costs, induding fines, The estimate of the expecied cost was
based on assumptions relating to the timing of the nepus-

chase, the restructuning of the secunties as well as the fair
vabues of such securities.

In Qctober, UBS procesded with the implementaton af
the settlement agreements by registening with the US Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission the offering of ARS rights
in the kegal form of securities) 1o dients. The issued ARS
rights provide eligible clients the right to sedl ARS (put op-
tiony, whike UBS stipulated a rght to call ARS from dients
das well as a litigation releass from instinstional dients). Pur-
suant to the ssuance of the ARS rights, the commitment to
repurchase ARS from dients was treated as a dernative, As
a result, the pravision, excluding fines, wes reclassified 1o
Megatve replacerment value. After reclassification, chances
in the fair vakue of the commitment resufted in an addi-
tional CHF 172 million loss in Met trading income, As of
31 December 2008, the fair value of the commitment rec-
agnized as negative replacement value was CHF 1,740 mil-
lian.

Desivatives transacted for trad Mg i poses

Wast of the Growp's dervative transactions relate 1o sales and
trading activities. Sales activities include the structuring and
marketing of derivative products to customers 1o enable them
to take, transfer, modsfy or reduce current or expected risks,
Trading activities mnclude market makeng, pasitioning and arbi-
trage actrities. Market making imvalves quoting bid and offer
prices 1o other market participants with the mtention of gen-
erating revenues based on spread and wolume, Positioning
maans managing market risk positions with the expectation
aof prefiting fram faverable meverments in prices, rates or ndi-
ces. Arbitrage actwities involve identfying and profiting from
price differentials between the same product in different mas-
kets or the same economic factor in different products,

Derivatives transacted for hedging purposas

The Group enters into derivative transactions for the pur-
poses of hedging assets, liabilities, forecast transactions,
cash flows and credit exposures, The accounting freatment
of hedge transactions varies according to the nature of the
mistrurnent hedged and whether the hedge qualifies as such
for accounting purposes.

Derivative transactions may qualify as hedges for accownt-
i purpases, These are described under the cosmspandsng
headings in this note. The Group’s accounting policies far
desivatives dessgnated and accounted for as hedging instru-
ments are explained in Note 1a) 14) Derivative mstruments
and hedge accounting, where terms used in the following
sectans are explained,

3
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MNote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting {eantinued)

Thie Group has entered into C055 that pravide economic
hediges for credit risk exposures in the lean and traded prod-
uel podtfohas but do net meel the reguirerments for hedge
acCounting treatment.

The Growp has also entered into a limited valume of inter
251 rate swaps and other interest rate dervatives {e.q. fu-
tures) for day-to-day economic mterest rate rsk manage-
ment purposes, but without apolying hedge accounting. The
fair value changes of such swaps are booked to Met trading
incame,

Fair valua hedges of interest rate risk

ar value hegdges

The Group's fair value hedges principally cansist of interest
rate swaps that are used 1o protect against changes in the
fair value of fixed-rate instruments {e.g. long-term-fixed
rate debt issuesh due ta movernents in market interast rates,
The fair values of outstanding interest rate derivatives des-
wgnated as far value hedges wese a CHF 283 millien net
positive replacement value at 31 December 2008 and a
CHF 125 million net positive replacement value at 31 De-
cember 2007,

For the year ended
R milien 31.13.08 e Flizoe
Gales fllossesion Redgieg lsstuments R ] R i28)
Giates 1 (lgsses] on Bedged e atinbuiable i the hadged sk | T (L] 11
Met gains/{losses) reprasenting Ineffective porthons of falr value hedges 138} 4 (17}

In addition, the Group entered into & fair valse hadge ac-
counting relatianship in 2005 using fareign exchange deriv-
atives to protect a certain portion of equity investments
avallable-for-sale from foreign currency expasure, The time
value associated with the FX derivatives is escluded from the
evaluation of hedge ineffectiveness. The hedging relatan-

Fair value hedges of foreign exchange risk

ship was terminated in 2008 a3 a result of LIBSS disposal of
its faresgn currency investment, which was the hedged item
in this hedge accounting relationship. The far value of cut-
standing FX demvatives designated as fair value hedges at 31
December 2008 and 31 December J00T was CHF 0 milkan
far both years,

For the year ended
CHF millon 31.12.08 ELR i 301206
s loses) on Bedging isstuments 48
[eese=) on Bedged items attrbuiable o the hedged risk a 144} idd)
Met gains/{losses) representing ineffective partions of fair value hedges a 12} 5

Fair value Ing:-'_lgel'J af por tfalia interest rate risk

The Group also applies fair value hedge accounting of port-
folic interest rate risk. The change in fair value of the
hedged items is recorded separately from the hedged item
o the balance sheet, The fair value of derivatwes desig-
nated for this hedge methed at 31 December 2008 was a

Fair value hedge of portfolio of intersst rate risk

CHF 765 millien net negatve replacement value and at
31 Decembser 2007 was a CHF 41 milkon net negative re-
placemant valua.

During 2008, UBS expanded the usa of its methad o
hiedge portfalio sterest rate risk to include ather Swiss mart-
gage kan portfolics.

For the yeer ended
CHF milen 31.12.08 31.1z07 LR
Caaina [leeides) 0n Bedging isdlruments 22 137} I
Gaies [ gses) on Bedged flems attribuiai o the hadged nsk iz an 7
Net gains/ilosses) raprasenting neffective partians of falr value hedges 44 {7 0

a4
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Mote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Cath flow hedges of farecast transactians

The Group 5 exposed 1o vadability in futune interest cash
flews an man-trading assets and liabdities that bsar interest
atvariable rates or are expected to be refunded or reinvested
in the future, The amaunts and timing of fuiwe cash flows,
representing both principal and intesest flows, ane projected
far each peetfobo of financial assets and Labilities, based an
contraciual terms and other relevant factors induding esti-

Forecasted cash flows

matas of prepavments and defaults, The aggregate prircipal
balances and interest cash flows across all postfolios over
tire form the basis far entifying the man-trading interest
rate risk of the Group, which is hedged with miterest rate
swaps, the maximum maturity of which 5 12 years.

The schedule of forecast prncpal balances on which the
expected interest cash flows arise as of 31 December 2008 &
shonam Elaner.

EHF Bilon < 1 ymar 1-3yeas 3-5 yaars 10 jears mier 10 years
Canh nflows (assets) 247 a43 309 150 1%
S e o e .
Net cash flows 178 314 fple ] 185 17

Gains and losses an the effective portons of derivatives des-
ignated as cash flow hedges of forecast transactiaons are ini-
tialty recorded in Equity as Met income recognized directly in
equity and are fransterred to current period earnings when
the forecast cash flows affect net profit or loss. The gains
and bosses on ineffective portsans of such denvatives are rec-
ognazed immediately in the mnoeme statement. & CHF 108
millicn loss, a CHF 443 milkon gain and a CHF 36 milkon loss
were recagnized in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respactively, due
ta hedge ineffectveness.

As of 31 Decernber 2008 and 2007, the far values of
outstanding derwatives designated as cash flow hedges of
forecast transactions were a CHF 2,539 million net positive
replacernent value and a CHF 99 million net positive replace-
et value, respectively. AT the end of 2008 and 2007, un-
recognized inceme of CHE 88 milkan and CHF 135 million
assoaated with de-designated hedging swaps remained de-
ferred in Equity, It will b2 remowed from Equity when the
hedged cash flows have an impact an net profit or loss, or
when the forecasted cash flows are no langer expected 10
take place. In fourth quarter 2008, dus 1o reductans in the
volume of short term financal instruments, scme of the
farecasted cash flows previously included in the hadge rela-
tionships have been detarméned 10 no longer be expected 10
ocour. Amounts reclassified fram Net income recogrized di-
rectly in Equity 1o current peried earnngs due 1o disconisnu-
ation of hedge accounting were a3 CHF 4% million net gainin
008, a CHF 7% million net gain in 2007 and 2 CHF 132 mil-

Bon net gain in 2006, These amaunts were recarded & Net
milerest incame.

Risks of derivative instruments
Derivative mstruments are fransacted in many trading pori-
falics, which generally include several Types of instnements,
nat just derivatives. The market risk of derivatves is man-
aged and controlled as an ntegral part of the market risk of
these portiolios. The Group’s approach to market risk is de-
sonbed in the audited “Market nsk” section of this repart.
Derivatrve nstrements are transacted with many differ-
ent counterparties, mest of whom are also counterpartes
for other types of business. The credit risk of derrvatives is
manajed and controlied in the context of the Group's over-
all credit exposwurs 1o each counterparty. The Group’s ap-
proach to credit fsk s described in the sudited “Credit risk”
section aof this report. It should ke nated that, although the
positive replacement values shoram on the balance sheat
can be an important component of the Groups credit expo-
sure, the positive replacemnent vakues for a2 counterparty ane
rafely an adequate reflection of the Growps credit exposung
an its dernatives business with that caumterparty. This i ba-
cause, on the cne hand, replacement walues can increase
avier time (*patental futuee exposure ), whike an the other
hand, exposure may be mitigated Dy entenng into master
netting agreements and bdateral collateral armangements
with counterparties. Both the esposure measures wsed by
the Group internally to control credit rsk and the capital

3
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Mote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting’ (continued)

Az 0f 31 Cecembar 2008 Term i martuing
‘Within 3 months 3-12 marntk: 1-5 peard ol 5 yean Tatal  Motonad fatal  Motional
CHF Blion PRV MRV PRV HRY ) WEY PEY WERY PRV - NRY e
Interest rafe conbracts
Cverthewounter (DTGl comtrects
Ferward contracts A 12 a8 41 LE]
e 95 98 m6 M1 152
Optioes. 4.0 1 L] o 14.2
Buchengetmded metats!
e et s
Optias. [o1:] og as as a1
Tatal 16.4 16.6 .35 360 1668
Credit derivative contracts
Overthecourder (OTChcontiacts
C Ceditdefaliomeps 0i B3 34 35 954
Tozal rane of retum swaps i4 04 ar a1 ER
Total a8 0.7 36 a6 §5.4
Foreign exchange cantracts
o thecauree O1C| ot
| Reewsdeonses N0 2E B4 106 16
 nteest and cwmescy swaps Th1 o Ta% /3 332 a9
Optioes 15 TG oo LA 2.1
Egand e e
Furteras
COplierss. 02 03 4o an
Tatal 1010 1052 546 535 387
Equity Findex comtracts
Cnr-the-courrer (3TC] contracts
12
T4
a7 b . i
160 117 181 FL] 55 353 105 474 1750
Precious metals cantracts
Comrthemounter ITENCNIBCIS ittt R Rttt .
| Fevedoonras OB 07 06 05 05 04 00 DI 1E D17 WD
Oplioes 0.5 05 13 13 15 1.5 0.z 0.2 38 G 1.7 5.8
fehangetiaded cnzsaets
o T e
Optioas ot ol a1 ar an i) a1 4.7 0.3 a5
Tatal 1.3 1.4 1.8 2.0 1.3 1.9 ] 04 58 454 5.7 60,0
Cornenodities contracts, encludieg precious metals contracts.
Cear the-counier (OTC] contracts
| Rewad s L2202 37 32
Optoe 12
Bchengevated meaers!
e T e e
Optioas. 10 in ) £ it
Tatal 4.5 4.1 i) 8.1 4.5
Tatal derivathe instruments®* 1387 1381 1185 1182 30E

+ Efyscated wmbedded dasiutiost st presntid in he same hatroe Shest §pe s the ko et drd e eed wed lomthe babie Payabbes aad e bl resaling Nomthe esiutioe of iwguls miy
mﬁﬁHMHHMIM&ﬂmMIEMMmM and thesstone inchaded in e Labie. PRV and MRV 310 cotegoriedin The diflant Lime
Bards arthe bass of the rracral dosatior of the Serhatve coviesct.  © PAC Postive eplacemant vilue 0 BN Magatiee mplicement vilee - Exchargetradid pusdints rchide own sciourl
b onk Tokad PRV ared tolal WIFY rhade appmiesimatety CHF 462 edion annd CHF 1, E03 milion, espsctively R the option 10 purchase fhe ST Stabiund eut Rkt it 31« Tetal BN
e sppiocrratey CHF 1,053 million R the desmatie componant ol the mansd oy comvertible potes isped 10 the Saiss Conledention ie Deember 2000 Rele to Hete 25 0 The impact of
Apien el sctepted by the Swiss Fiaaroal Maste Supernion Authonty (PRI For capial sdesuecy cakiulitions s o ssdeos pastive splacemeent vakess i OWF 200150 million. = The
impact of aettineg agrermeels socephind by the FINMA Tor capita | ackesquacy caloulations i 1o s vos regaties eplacemenl vabaes i CHF 200055 milin
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting’ (continued)
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As of 31 Docembar 2007 Tenm I makurity
‘fiiskin 3 months 3-12 monthe 1-5 years ovar 5 pears Tatal  Mosond Total  Motiond
CHF bilion FAVE MR Y Lo iy Lo PEY HEY PRV il NRY wHLe
Intenest rate contracts
Crar-the-godinier (QTC] contracts
brwadcpetrats 07 @& a1 41 T
e e = = R —_—
Opliosd o4 03 az 06 14 TR
Bchasgetded coneaas'
Fuiwsas
et T [T TR E R F
Tokal a5 Eli s 42
Credit derivative contracts
F} 1] 0 609
a1 61 02 2k 4l i
0.6 65 62 633 653 T 344 1053 25663 1062 17943
Foraign exchange contracts
Overtetounter (OTCISONIATIS e
Forward conssacts 51 &2 i6 i3 LE] A ] g Nn? 635,00 123 68T
e SEE s ne e s ms i mas asms jea darn
Diplines, 48 44 58 5.5 1.3 13 o1 =1 121 1592 11.3 77
Bohasgetmied conbacts! e
Fuiusss 15 0%
e e = S e o S o
Total 00 414 24.2 220 21.8 235 125 1.7 S84 38535 a0 38839
Equity/indes contracts
Crar-the-gedinier (QTC) contracts
0 17 10 a4
42 a7 a1 54
Exchange-tindid o meats!
R 05 351
e Bl Az e 87 6.5 1.2 0.2 k3 k] 158,65 124 15559
Togal 16 124 143 WS 125 200 15 23 4040 |57 551 4516
Precious metals contracts
Onmy-the-ooun igr §07TC) contracts
Foracand (oayas 05 (Hr] a9 T 10 a5 0a ;1 14 168 2.2 31
s oe e i i i iR o o PR e Y e
Exchasge-traded conteacs!
e S o
Oplioss ol a1 oz az 00 Q0 04 185 04 95
Total 1.1 21 .1 2.0 FL) i3 03 032 64 1.9 5.5 75.3
Commedities contracts, excluding precious metals contracts
Crer-the-oounter §5TC] contracts
id 24 16 15 19
a5 a8 1.2 a9
""" T R S R T ; !
4.5 4.3 4.8 5.1 318 315 12 1.3 14.2 158.5 14.3 3285
Tokal derivative Ingirumants 54,4 678 606 633 1600 1T4E 1433 1376 438.0° 443 5

1 Eitascatpl emtued e dsialiod 23 Proséntid 18 The arie halanc GV e s the N cONTai and ar ced sckel 153 The L. Foryables a0 ik kabies resating fromihe wilinian ol regulal sy
pirthams are saies of Haarcial asams betwion 11aSE 504 SEeomen date e ecogniasd s replaceme it valses and b ewdoes incluod inthe tahie. PRYE and HRY 218 cegoiined inthe dfess time
Bardkan the boek of Ehe moodmal Sration of Eve derkaies caTma. 3 PRY: Prabive replacement maiLe.
Eadesanly 5 The impact of ROfEing agresme els acoopied bythe Swkes Francial Masiet Suzendsory Authory (FINLA for capiea| 38equocy caicalations o i ece peetive ez bosnant s in CHF
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Off-balance-sheet information

MNote 24 Pledgeable off-balance-sheet securities

The Group abtains securities which are not reconded on the balance sheet with the right to sall or repladge them as shown

in the table below:

CHE milien 310208 210007

Rl ofmowitis ot which oan barsldormaghadand ] ks 1ABLEST
a5 Nl LRIN FVES IR, SRcuviar b W a0 ancing arEngemsnts,

" in covmetion with darivative and oriter sransscians

2,387 28 722

Mote 25 Operating lease commitrments

At 31 Decemnber 2008, MBS was obligated under a numkbser
of nen-cancelizble operating leases far premises and aguip-
ment used poimarily for banking purposes, The sigreficant
premises leases usuwally include renewal options and escala-
tiom clauses in Ene with general office rental market condi-
tions & well 25 rent adjustments based on price indices,
Hivwvever, the lease agraements do not contain contngent

rent payment dauses and purchase options. The keases also
do not impose any restrictions on UBSS ability to pay divi-
dends, engage in debt financing transactans ar enter info
further lease agreements.

The minimum commitments for non-cancellable kases of
premes2s and equipment are presentad as follows:

31.12.08

2014 and the reafte

Subactal ommitments for minimum payments usder operating leaes 8411

Less: Seblemne rentalk usder son-cancellable leaes 578

Met commitments far minimum payments usder aperating leases 5,233
Eal:
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Mote 26 Capital increases and mandatory convertible notes

Share capital increase

O 23 Aprd 2008, the Annual General Meeting of share-
holders (&G} approved a proposal that UBS stremgthen its
shareholders’ equity by way of an ordinany capital increase.
The capital increase, completed in fune 2008, was effected
by granting existing shareholders rights to subsonbe to seven
new shares for 20 ald shares at a price of CHF 21 per share,
The capital increase was fully underwritten and resulted in
the issue of Ted, 295,181 naw fully paid registered shares
with & par value of CHF 0,10 each, Net progeeds fram the
capital mcrease were approximately CHF 156 ballion, The
newdy issued shares ranked pan passw in all respects with the
existing registered shares immediately upon issus.

esisance of m ’u‘(l-:-.l:.lljr canyerthle notes (MO NS)

March 2008 ssugnce

Cn 9 December 2007, UBS entered into an agreement with
the Gaovernment of Singapore Investment Corparation Fre
Lid and an inwestor fram the Middle East to issue mandatary
convertible motes (IMCNS) with & face value of CHF 13 billicn,
The MCMs were issued on 5 March 2008 after the share-
holders approwved, at the Extracedinary General Meeting held
an 27 February 2008, the creation of conditional capital in &
igeirnurm ameount of 237,750,000 shares 10 be issued upon
corversan of the MCNs. The MM counted as Tier 1 capital
far regulatary capital purpeses from the date of issue.

The MCMs have & coupen of 3% per annum and are
comvertible into UBS shares after two years, with earliar
Corvwersion optans for the investors and LIBS, The terms of
the MCMs initially linked corversion 1o the share price at the
date of conwersion, with the minimum comeersion price
zat at CHF 51.48 and the maximum conwersion price at
CHF 8023 per share. Corwersion prices were subject o
anti-clilution adjustrments in the event of certain Corporate
actions.

As a rasult of anti-dilution adjustments triggered by the
June 2008 capital increase, the initial conversion prices were
acdjusted and the MCMs will be convarted into a fided nurm-
ber of 270,438,942 sharas,

Under FRS, the commitment to issue the MCNs to the
twio inwestors entered into by UBS on 9 December 2007 was
subject 1o dervative accounting between the date the com-
mitrnent was entered into and the date of issuance an
5 March 2008. The total change i the fair value af such
commitment of approximately CHF 3,860 million was recog-
nized a5 a gain in 2008,

Pursuant ta the agyustments ta the canversion prices, the
accounting treatment for the MCHs changed. Upen issu-
ance, the MCNs had been initially treated as & compownd
financial instrument consisting of 2 debt host and an embed-
ched equity companent. After the adjustments 1o the canvers
sion prices, the MCNs have been treated as an equity instru-
ment, which resulted in the reclassification of CHF 12,382
milicrn fram liabikity o Share premium in equity. In 2008,
Share premium increased by approximately CHF 6,969 mil-
kon due to the MOMs and interest expense incurred was
approwmataly CHF 126 millien. &2 of 31 December 2008, 4
Eability representing the present value of the 9% coupon
payments due an 5 March 2009 and 2010, raspectively, was
recarded far approximately CHE 2 297 million, Interest at a
rate of 2.78% per annum continees 1o be acorued on the
rermaining liability.

December 2008 Esuance

On 15 October 2008, UBS entered into an agreement with
the Swes Confederation fo issue mandatory cormertible
notes {MCNs) with a face value of CHF & billion. The MCHs
were issued on 9 December 2008 after the shareholders
approved, at the Extracrdinary General hdesting held on
27 MNovember 2008, the creation of conditional capital in 2
maxsmum amount of 365,000,000 shares 1o be issued upon
conversion of the MCMs, The MCMs counted as Tier 1 capital
far requlatory capital purposes from the date of issue,

The MCHs pay a coupan of 12.5% per annum and ase
canvertible e LIBS shares after 30 months, with earlier
corversian optans for the note holders and UBS. Conver-
sion is linked to the share price at the fime of conwversion,
with the minemumm corwersion price set at CHF 18,27 and the
IRAERTWIN COMVErsion price set at CHF 21.31 per share. If the
shara price is at ar belaw CHF 18.21, conversion will result in
the issuance of the madmum number of shares which &
320447 681, If the share price is at or above CHF 31,31,
canversion will result in issuance of a minimum number of
shares of 281,579,096 plus an additional variable numbsar of
shares, provided however that the tatal number of shares to
be issued will not excead the maximum number of shares. |f
the share price is between the minimum and maxzimum con-
versian prices, the MCHs will be converted inte a variable
number of shares by dwiding CHF & billan by the marfket
price determined immedeately before conversion. Conver-
sion prices are subject to anti-dilution adjustments in the
awant of certain conparate actions,

3
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MNote 26 Capital increaszes and mandatory cenvertible notes (continued)

Uncer IFRS, the cammitment to issue the MONS enterad
inta by LES on 15 October 2008 was subject to derivatve
accounting between the date the comamitiment was enlered
into and the date of issuance. Changes in the fair vahue of
the commitment between 15 October 2008 and 9 [ecem-
ber 2008 resulted in a gain of approximatel CHF 329 mdlion
in 2008. The commitment was atirbuiable 1o the equity
component and was redassified a5 a reduction to Share pre-
mium upan issuance of the MCKs.

Upon igsuance, the MCKE were treated as a compound
financial instrurrent consisting of a debt host and embedded
equity and derivatwe companents. The debt host was recog-
nized as a liability indtially measured at fair value and ac-
counted for at amortized cost, The fair value of the dabt host

Mote 27 Fair value of financial instruments

) Fadr value measurements

Fair valug is the amount far which an asset could be ax-
changed, or a liability settled, batween knowlaedgeable, will-

an 9 December 2008 was estimated at approximately CHE
7.733 million. A1 31 December 2008, the carrying value of
the liabilty was appeaximately CHF 7,740 mdlion and inter-
ast expense recognized n 2008 amounted fo appraximateby
CHF & millicn, The fair value of the derivative companent
wis determined 1o be apprommately CHF 1,425 millian, rec-
ograzed as a negatwe replacement value. Subseguent chang-
a5 in tha fair value of the derivative component resulted n a
gain of approximately CHF 367 million in 2008. The equity
camponent was attributed a fair value of approsimatety CHF
3,158 millicn, recorded in equity as 2 reduction 1o Share
premiurm. The walue of the equity comporent 15 not re-
measured to fair value after 9 December 2008,

ing parties in an anm'’s length transaction. Refer to Note 1a}
S) for an owverview on the determnation of fair value.

Determination of Tair valwes from quoted market prices or valuation techniques

3208 311207
CHE tlion Leve| 1 Level 2 Lesel 3 Tartal Lewed 1 Level 2 Lewesl 3 Told
Trading porticlio maets 1281 128.4 153 iMe ma2 3.7 513 660N
Trading poitfolic mdets pledged &6 oollate 254 13.2 1.6 0T 57.4 48.5 83 114.2
Persitine raplaceman| valued 5.1 811.2 nNE B54.1 6.8 4074 4.0 a2
Finascial sk disigealed al lar valus 1.1 1.2 0B 12.9 1.8 L] 118
Finascil iswesirest avalshle-lorae 24 1.2 1.6 51 12 24 14 50
Tatal assets 162.1 B65.1 3.0 1,184.3 dd.4 1550 735 1,215.3
Trading poitfolo Fabibse CER 17.5 1.0 624 1184 440 164.8
Migalive neplace e il walues 4.9 E12.0 350 B51.9 65 4301 6.6 4435
Finascial Feabibtis deign aied i tair walue 1.2 3 101.5 145.5 424 1915
Tatal liabilities 368 930.7 46.3 10158 126.5 614.5 38.2 B0.2

Financial mstruments accounted for at fair value

For trading portfoka assets and liabilives, finandal assets and
liabilities dessgnated at fair value and financial investments
available-for-sale which are listed or otherwise fraded in an
activie rnarket, for exchange-traced derwatives, and for other
finar<ial instruments far which quated paces in an actwe
market are available, fair value i determined directly from
those quoted market prices (level 1}

For financial instrurments which do not have quated mar-
ket prices directly available fram an active market, fair values
are estemated using valuation techniques or models, based
wherayer possible on assumptons supported by cbservable
market prices or rates prevailing at the balance sheet date
Peval 2}, This is the case for the magority of OTC derivatives,

32

arvd for mary unlisted and Ested instruments which are not
traded in active markets.

For some types ol linancal instruments, Tair values can-
not be obtained directly from quoted market prices, or in-
directhy using valuation tachniquas or models supported by
abserdable market prices or rates. This is generally the case
for certain comphex or streciuned financial instrumenits and
for private equity investments. n addition, the illquidity of
a broad range of financial mstruments linked ta the LIS res-
Hential martgage market, as well as U student loan ARSs,
menalines, leveraged finance and others required an ex-
tended use of valuations based on partially or fully non-
market cbeznable market inputs in the second half of 2007
and 2008, In thesa cases, fair value & estimated indirecthy
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Mote 27 Fair value ef financial instruments (continued)

a) Fasr value meeasure ments (oantinied)

using valuatan techiiquas ar madels far which the mputs
are reasonable assumptions, based on market conditions
{laval 3.

In its valuations, LIBS uses indices, where and 10 the ex-
tent appropriate. The mest frequently apphed pricing mod-
els and valuation techniques include forward pricing and
gwap models using present walue calodations, option mod-
&k such as the Black-5choles moded or generalizations of it,
and credit madels such as defauli rate medets or credit
spread models. The vakues derived from applyng thess tech-
niques. are significantly atfected by the choice of valuation
madel and the underlying assumptions made concerning
factons such as the amounts and timing of futune cash flows,
discount rates, volatility and credit risk. Accrued interest is
recognized as part of the fair value of finanaal instruments
accounted for at fair value. Lock-up penods for equity invest-
ments are cansidered when determining fair value,

Refer to the descrotion below of the impact from UBS'S
own credit movernents cn financial labilities accounted for
at fair value. For the defarral and recognition of day 1 profit
ar lass, refer to Note 274, For a description of the valuations
of LIB%'s positions related to the LIS student loan auction rate
secunities iwhech were reclassified 1o “loans and receivables™
per 31 Decernber 2008), menalines, US and nen-US refer-
ence linked notes, and other instruments which were deter-
mined relevant for specific disclosure refer to Note 27c,

Feffection af counterparty credi! rsk in the valuation of
traded debif instruments and denvative msiruments

UBS incorporates the counterparty oredst risk inherent in
aver-the-counter {OTC) derivatives transactions and traded
debt instrurments info i1 faie vakse estimates via the credit
valuation adjustrmant (CWVA), Ths amount represants the es-
timated market value of protection reguired to hedge credit
risk from counterparties in UBS'Ss OTC derivatives portfolio
and trached debt instruments. taking inta account expected
futre exposires, collateral, and netting arcangements, The
miast sigraficant companant of the averall CvA is the portion
relatad 1o monolnes, discussed further below.

UES's avwn credit nisk in the valugtons of financizl lebilites
at fair value, inchading denvative habilities

The Growp's cwn credit changes are reflected in valuations
for thoze financial liabilitias at fair value, including derivative
lizbilities, whera the Group's own credit msk would be con-
scdered by market pariopants and excludes fully collateral-
ized transactions and other instruments for which it is estab-
lished market practce not to include an entity-specific
adjustment for own credit, This amound represents the asti-
mated diffesence in the market value of ientical abégations

EDINETOOOO
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ssued by a nskless intermediary, relative to the market valus
of those coligations issued by LIBS, as judged fram the per-
spactive of the haolders of those obBgations. Crem credit
changes were calculated based on a senicor long-term debt
curve generated from obsarved external pricing for fundeng
assocated with new senior debt issued by the Growp, or rel-
ewant secondary market transactions in senior long-term
LUES debt. In the absence of ssued debt, credit default swap
spreads would be considered as well.

Disciosures on own redit for finandial Kabilities

designated ar fair value

At 31 December 2008, the awn credit gain for finandal lia-
bilites desgnated at fair valug still hald a1 repesting date,
predominanthy issued structured products, amounts to CHF
2,032 million deear-te-datel and CHE 2,953 million {ifa-ta-
date). The life-to-date amount reduced the fair valwe of fi-
nancial habilities designated at fair vabue at 31 Decernber
2008, Inchuded in these armounts is the overall guantification
of changes in fair value atiributable to changes in UBSS
credit spread during the pericds, In addition, it includes the
credit effect of pesiod changes in fair values atiributable to
factars other than oredst spreads, induding berchmark inter-
a5t rates, prices of finandal instruments issued by third par-
ties, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates or index pric-
es or rates (e cedit effect of volume changes) The
year-io-date 2008 cwn credit profit and lass induding only
the change in credit spread but excluding the credst effect of
volume changes was a gain of CHF 3,992 milicn.

Reffaction of market ibquigity in fir value determinafions
Farr value estemates incorparate the effects of illiguidity in
the ralevant markets. Where tradeng prices are observablea in
such markets, these prices imvariably indude a liquidity or
risk premeumn relative 1o what could be concluded on the
basis of an actuarial assessment of credit koss potential, Valu-
atans based on madels amlarly incorparate bguidity o nisk
premiums either implictly {e. g, by calibrating to market pric-
as that incorporate such premaums} ar explicitly,

Valuation procesies

Thera may be uncertainty about the accuracy of a vabuation,
resulting from the chaice of the valuation tachnigue ar mod-
al usad, the assumptions embedded in these maodals, the
extent to which inputs are not market observable, or as 3
result of other elements affecting the valuation technigue.
‘ialuation adjustments, including model resenves, ane apolied
to reflect these uncertainties and are deductad from the fair
vakues produced by the maodels or gther valuation tech-
migues, All modelks wsed for valuation underge an internal

323
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 27 Fair value of finandal instruments (continued)

a) Fadr value measurements (continued)

validation proces before they ade approved for use. Uncer-
tainties assodated with the use of model-based valuations
{both level 2 and level 3) are predominantly addressed
through thee use of model reserves, These resenves reflect the
amaunts that USS estimates are appropnate 1o deduct from
the waluations preduced directly by the modeds to reflect un-
certainties in the rebevant modeling assumptions and inputs
used.

Based on UBSs established fair value and model gover
nance policies and the related contrals ard procedural safe-
guards the Group employs, management believes the result-
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ing estimated fair values recordad in the balance sheel and
the changes in fair values recorded in the income statement
are reasonable and are the maost appropriate at the balance
sheet date.

Financial instruments accownted for at amortized cost

The fallowing table reflects the estimated fair values for the
Group's instruments accounted for at amaortized cost. Refer
1o Mote 29 for an overview of financial assets dassified as
“lzans and raceivables” and finanaal liabibties accounted
for at amortized cost.

3.12.08

CHF blion Carrying value Fair walus
Aggats

Lo % banks and crsomen 403.0 A00LE
Cieth collateial 0% deairitied borsnvad Snd raviesie ipuichass ageesenls M15 LT
Artiued iscnme and prepaid eepesdes, otter Sien 5.1 1
Lishilities

Due b banks and cesbomers &00.4 6004
Lot collateial on deceilied baiil and sepuschse agrasmenls 116.6 1168
Dt jsseed 1.2 189.7
Atnied epensed asd delersed neome, albei kb 28 118

The fair values included in the table abowe were calculated
for dischosure purposes anly, The valuation technigues and
assumptians described Delow provide a8 measurement of
fair value of UBES's financial instruments accounted for at
amortzed cost. However, because other institutions may
use different metheds and assumgptions far their Tair value
estimation, such fair value disclosures cannct necessarily b=
compared from one financal institution 1o anather, LIBS
applies significant judgments and assumptions to arrive at
these fair values, which are mare holistic and less sophisti-
cated than UBS% establehed fair value and model gowver-
nance palicss and processes applied for financal instru-
ments accounted for at fair value, whose fair values mpact
UB5's balance sheet and net profit. Debt instruments reckas-
zified in fourth quarter 2008 from “held Tar trading” o
“loans and recenables” followed the same fair value mea-
surerment principles and governance pobcies as finandial in-
struments accounted far at fair walue. The folkawang prin-
ciples wire applied when determeng fair value estimates for
financial instruments accounted for at amostized cost
— For short-term financial instruments with remaining
maturites of cne vear or less, the Camying amount,
winiich is net of credit boss allowances, is generally con-
sidered a reasonable estimate af fair value. The followe-
ing finandal mstruments accounted for at amartized
cost have remaining maturities of one year or less:

324

100% of cash collateral an securities bosresved and re-
verse repurchase agreements; 97 % of loans dus from
banks; 81% of lpans (o customers; 98% of amounts
due to banks and customers; 99% cash collateral on
securities lent and repurchase agreements, 50% af debt
msued. Refer to the chapter “Liguidity and funding
managemant” in the “Risk and treasury management”
section of this repart,

— The fair value af vanable-imearest bearmg financial instru-
ments accounted for at amortized cost is asswmed to be
aporoximated by their carrying amounts, which are net of
credit Ioss alowanges, and does ot reflect fair walus
changes in the credit guabty of counterpartas respectively
UBS% awn credit mowerneants.

— For fixed-interast bearing financial mstruments with re-
maining matrities above one year, fair value was estimat-
ed by discounting contractual cash flows using current
rates at which similar loans would be trarsacted 1o bor-
ravwers with similar credit ratings andfar collateral and for
the zame remaining maturities. These estimates generally
include adjustments for counterparty credit respectively
LIBSS awn credt,

— The fair valua estimates for repurchase and reverse repur-
chase agreements with warizble and fixed interest rates,
far 2l maturities, include the valuation of the interest rate
component of these instrument. Cradit and debit valua-
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Mote 27 Fair value ef financial instruments (continued)

a) Fasr value meeasure ments (oantinied)

tion adjustrments have nat besn induded mite the valusa-
tion due to the short-term nature of these instrements.

- For lzans to customers from Global Wealth Management
& Business Banking, mainly reflecting the impact of the
Swiss Mortgage boan pertfolia with a fixed rate of interast,
an excass of fair value over the carmying amount of CHF
3.0 bilson was determined. This amouwnt is largely attribut-
able 1o the current CHF interest rate mowements, which
are sgnificantly below the average levels over the last de-
cade. The fair values of UESS Investrment Bank’s |oans 1o
customers were CHF 3.4 bdlion below their carrying val-
ues, mainly reflecting credit vabuation adjustrments for
debt instnements reclassified from “hedd for frading” 1o
“leans and receivables” in fourth quarter 2008,

— For dent issued with remasning maturites greater than one
year, the fair value was datarmined from quoted market
prices, where available. Where quated market prices were
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ol available the fair value was derived by discaunting

contractuad cash flows by wsing rates at which UBS could

issue debt with simiar remaining matuities. Adjustmants
far own credit movermnents have Deen ncluded into fair
walug estimatan.

The fair value of loans to banks and customers measured
at amortized cost at 31 December 2007 was CHF 3%2.3 bil-
FBan {carrying value: CHF 385 .3 billion), The fair value of debr
msued measured at amortized cost at 31 Decermber 2007
was CHF 2227 ballior (carmang value: CHF 2220 billsan).

The fair walues of UBS% fixed rate loans, kang- and medi-
urm-term notas and bonds issued are predominantly hedged
by derivative instruments, Refer 1o Mote £3 and Mote 1. The
miterest rate risk inherent in balance sheet posibons with ng
speafic maturity may alsa be hedged with derivative instru-
ments based on manzgements view of their average cash
flowe and repricing behaviar,

b Fair value measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

Level 2 mstrurmenis at year-and

As of 31 December 2008, financial instruments measwead
with valuation techniques using significant non-market ob-
sarvable inputs (evel 21 mainly inchede structured rates and
credit trades, bespoke collateralized debt cbligations (CDOs),
instrumaents linked 1o the US sub-prime residential, LS com-
merzial and non-US real estate markets and leweraged finance
instruments, Leved 3 financial liabikties ako indude hybrid
financial labilities from streciured products issuances.

Material changes in level 3 instrements for the year

Lewel 3 imstruments recognized as Trading portfolic assets
fircluding these pledged as collateral) wers reduced by ap-
privamately CHE 44 bilkon compared 1o 2007, The decline
miaanly refates 1o the following events and transactions: re-
classifications of approximately CHF 13 billion from the 1AS
3% category “held for frading” 1o the category “koans and
recesables”, the sale of US RMES to & fund managed by
BlackReck of approximately CHF 4 Gillian and the sabe of po-
sitiors (mainly produects linked ta US ressdential and com-
mercial real estate markets) of approximately CHF & billion to
the fund awned and controlled by the Swiss National Bank,
The balance of approsmately CHE 30 billicn mainly reflects
writedowns, other sales, deconsolidations, amertizations,
and foreign exchange movements. The reductions ware par-
tially offsat by nat redassifications from keval 2 o lewel 3 of
approximately CHF 9 billion as valuation inputs becamea less

abservable during 2008. Reclassifications into level 3 masnly
induded student koan AR5, leveraged finance deals, and US
real estate products.

Derivatives classified as level 3 increased at the end of
2008 by appraximately CHF 24 billion (Pasitive replacament
vakues) and approomately CHE 18 billion (Negative replaca-
ment values), predominantly driven by widening credit
spraads impacting fair value of structured rates and credit
tracdes, and bespoke C0OS, In addition, reclassfications info
level 3 ncreased postive replacement values by appsasi-
mately CHF & bdlion and negative replacement values by ap-
proximately CHF & ballion a5 vakuation inputs became ess
abservable durng 2008

The decrease of level 2 financal liakibties designated at
faar value of approximately CHF 32 billion at the end of 2008
was dus mainly to hybrd and other finanaal liabilities desig-
nated at fair value of approximately CHF 15 billion which
wias induded in level 2 a5 of 21 Decemnber 2007, although
these financial akalities were related 1o level 1 and level 2
vahuations. Other factors which contributed to the decrease
aof level 3 finandal lizbilities designated at fair value during
2008 were expiries of frades, foresgn exchange movements,
disposals of instruments linked 1o the LS sub-prime mort-
gage market and redemptions of hybrid financial liabdities.

The transfer of further level 3 instruments to the SME
fund in 200% will lead to mare reductions in leved 3 frading
assets, positive and negative replacement values.

325

285/390

&
2
;
o
&
g
£

oOoOooodn



Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 27 Fair value of finandal instruments (continued)
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k) Falr value measurements involving significant unobservable Inputs (level 3) (continued)

Level 3 prafit of kss

Tatal Met tradng income/Jass) far the years ended 31 De-
cember 2008, 31 Decenber 2007 and 31 December 2006
wias CHF £25.8) billian, CHF (8.4 billicn and CHF 13.7 bil-
lien, respectreely, which represents the net result from a
range of products traded across different business actii-
ties, including the effect of the fereign currency translation
of monetary assets and liabilities and induding baoth real-
ized and unrealized income, Unreslized income is deter
mined fram chamges in fair walues, using quoted prices in
active markets when available, and otherwise estimated us-
ing waluation technigues with market observable andfor
non-market observakie inputs,

Met trading mcome inchudes net losses of CHF 11.5 bil-
ligry, nat losses of CHF 11.6 ballion and net gans of CHF 0.4
billizn from unrealized fair value changas of financial instru-
ments for which fair value is cakoulated on the basis of valu-
ation technigues with significant non-rmasket observable in-
puts {level 3) for the years ended 31 Decemnbser 2008, 2007
and 2006.

Such valuation technigues reflecting significant non-mar-
ket observable inputs ilevel 3] inchude mainly models for mare
complex financigl instruments and fior financial instruments
for which markets were iBquid ai the balance sheet date.
They require the use of reasonable assumptions and esti-
mates based on market condstions at the balance shest
date,

Met frading mcome is often generated from transactions
invaling several finarcial instrements o subject to hagging
ar other risk management techniques. This may result in dit-
ferent portions of the transaction b=ing priced wsing differ-
ent methods. In many cases, the amownis estimated using
valuation teshniquas with nen-rmarket abservable inputs
wiare offset ar partially offset by changes in fair valus of oth-
er financial instruments or trarsactions, for which guotad
market prices or rates were available, or on which the gain
of lass has been realized, Conseguently, the changes in fair
value which were estmated using valuation techniques with
non-market observable inputs and have besn recognized in
profit or loss durng the period represent anly @ portion of
Nt tradireg oo,

'_"—_'r'yll-.'ll:,- |r'I';J||r|4_||;'-||
Inchuded in the fair value of financial instruments carried at
fair value an the balance sheet are those estimated in full or
in part using valuation techniques Dased on assumgtions
that are not supported by market observable prices or rates.
There may be uncertanty about a valuation, resulting
from the choice of valuation techniqus or medel wsed, the
assumptions embedded in thase madels, the extent to which
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inpuls are mal markel cksarvable, or a5 a resull of other la-
ments affecting the valuation technigue. Waluation adjust-
ments, including model resenves, are applied to reflect such
uncertainties and are deducted from the fair values produced
by the modeals ar other valuatan technigues.

All models used for valuation undergo an internal valida-
tian process before they are approved for use.

Based on UBYS established fair value and madel gowes-
nance pokcies and the related controls and procedural safe-
guards the Group employs, management balieves the result-
ing estimated fair values recorded in the balance sheet and
the changes in fair values recorded in the income statement
are regscnable and ane the maost appropriate at the balance
sheal date.

Uncartainties associated with the use of model-based val-
uations (both level 2 and level 3) are predominantly ad-
dressed through the use of model reserves, These ressrdes
reflect the amounts that UBS estimates are appropriate 1o
deduct fram the valuations proguced directly by the models
ta reflect uncertainties n the relevant modeling assumptions.
and inputs used. In ariving at these estimates, LIBS considers
the range of market practice and how it believes other mar-
kel participants would assess these uncerfaanties. Model re-
serves are periedically reassessed in light of infarmaticn from
market fransactions, pricing utdities, and other relevant
sources, The level of these modal reserves is, nevertheless, to
a large extent a matter of judgment,

To estemate the potential effect en the Finandal Siate-
ments from the use of alternative valuation technigues or
assumptions, UBS makes use of the model reserve amounts
described above, by scaling the leved of the model resendes
higher and kowier, 10 assess the impact on valuation of in-
creasing of dacreassng the amount of model-relatad uncer-
tainty considered.

The potential effect of using reasonably possible afterna-
tive waluation assumplians has been quantified as follows:
— Seabng the moadel reserve amouwnts upward in lme with

lezs favarable assurmptians would reduce fair value by ap-

prommately CHF 2.5 billion at 31 December 2008, by ap-
prosmately CHF 2.7 billion at 31 Decermnber 2007, and

approwmately CHF 1.0 billion at 31 Decernber 2006,
= acaling e madel reserde amaunts dowmwand in ling with

mare favorable asumgptions would increass fair value by

aporaximately CHF 1.4 billion at 31 December 2008, by
approximately CHF 2.2 billion at 31 December 2007, and

aporoximately CHF 1.0 bilon at 31 December 2006,

Flease refer 1o Note 27¢ below for the instrument catego-
ries which are deemed 1o be relevant for specific sansitviny
distlosure per 31 Decamber 2008, and whidh are included in
the sensitivity numbers provided above,

286/390

oOoOooodn



Mote 27 Fair value ef financial instruments (continued)

) Vahuation techniques and inputs by praduct

Where passible, financial mstruments are marked a1 poces
guoted in active markets. In the current market envron-
mienit, such price information is fypically not available for all
financiagl instruments, and LBS apphes valuation technigues
to measure such instruments. Yakuation techrigues use
“market-obsarvable inputs®, where availabée, derived from
samilar assets in similar and active markets, from recent trans-
action prices for comparable items or fram other observable
market data. For positions where observable reference data
are nat available for some or all parameters, UBS calibrates
the non-market-obsanvable inputs usad in its valuation mod-
els based on a combination of judgment, histarical experi-
ence and knowledge of curment market conditions,

L5 supper senior AMES C0O%

Al material super senior MBS CD{O tranches still held by UBS
are covered by cormesponding monaline credit profection ref-
erencing the specific pasiton hebd by UBS, Where ligusdation
of the RMBS COD s deemed smmanent, valuation is based on
the estimated aggregate proceeds of the liguidation {using
current fair value estimates of the underlying instruments)
less any estimated expenses associated with the liquidation,
For the remainder of the super senior RMBS CDO population,
a model that pregects losses on the underying morigage
pook and applies the implications of these projected Efetime
losses through o the RMBS and then to the CDO struchune is
applied. The loss projection & calibrated separately for each
RMES COO 50 that the medel recovers the estimated market
value of the underlying collateral pool. At 31 Decembear
2007, a similar model was applied, with koss projection esti-
miatas calibratad such that the model valued relevant ABX
maket mdices consistently with their chserved levels in the
miarkal. The model has been adjusted i 2008 19 betler re-
flect the prevailing market conditions and illiguadity.

Creclit valuation adjustments an manaling Cregit profection

Credit valuation sdustmven ts (0uas} for monoling crecdt proftec-
tion are based on a methodology that uses credit default swap
spreads an the monolines as a key input in determinang an im-
pliedt level of expected loss, Where & monaline has no obsend-
able credin default swap spread, & udgment is made an the
mest comparakde mondling or combinatan of monclines and
the cormespondng spreads are used mstead. Credit valuation
adjustments are intended to achieve a fair valua of the wnderly-
ing contracts and are normally based on publicly avadable infar-
mation. In 2008, in sone cases where LIBS has had knowledge
of petential restructurings that may result in ezenomic cut-
comes mofe adwersa than those emplied by CDS market spreads,
LIES had determined to modify CvA amounts accordingly. At
31 December 2007, a similar methodology was applied, The
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methadelogy was recalbrated in 2008 to reflect prevailing
markat conditions, in particular the greater prevalence of CO5
trading with up-front cash exchanges and dadines in potential
recoveny rates implied by recovery swag contract prcng.

T assass the senstivity of the WA caleulation 1o alterna-
tree assumiptions, the impact of a 10% increase in monoline
credit default swap speeads (e.g. from 2,000 basis points to
2,200 bass points for a specfic monolng) is considered, At 31
Deember 2008, such an increase wiould have resulted in an
micrease in the monoline credit valuaton adjustment of ap-
praximately USD 206 malion {CHF 220 million). The senstivity
aof the manaline credit valuation adjustment to & daaease of
ane percentage poent in the monckne recowvery rate assump-
tians de.g. from 308 1o 29% for a specific monaline; cardi-
tanal on default cocurmngy is estrmated at USD 55 million
{CHF &2 million}.

In addition, the cedit waluation adjustments related to
trarsactions referencing RMBS CDOs are sensitive to the as-
timated market value af the underlying callateral poal. Hold-
g Al elher parameters constant, the sersithaty of the
manolne credit valuation adjustrment @ a 10% adverse
change in the aggregate value of the collateral poals under-
Iying the referenced RMBS C0Os is estimated at UsD 106
mdlion (CHF 113 millior).

Refer to the section "Risk management and control® far
details on UBES's exposure to monalines,

STudent igan auctan rate secunities pARSs)

Student loan ARSs held by LUBS'S Investment Bank of LSD
7.9 billion {CHF 8.4 billion), previously dassified as “held for
trading”, were reclassified to the category " loans and recei-
abdes” per 31 Recember 2008, This impses that, going for-
ward, these positions will be accauntad for at amartized cost
and tested for imparment, rather than b=ing subject ta fair
value accounting through profit or loss. These ARS positions
have been fair valued for the last time at 31 December 2008,
apolying the fallewing pringiples, The applied method sepa-
rates vaniaus factons and risks influenong fair value of ARSs
and allows calibrating the result to market tranzactions
whenever they become available. The methodology relies on
faur key components: &b fundamental cash flow modaling
ta estimate the level and timing of potental credst bosses on
a given porifalic of siedent baans backing the ARS, (b} use of
forward yields embedded in market term structure to asti-
mate expected required coupon payments, o discounted
cash flow projections calibrated to observed ARS market
transactions ta carrect for any medel drift, and {8 Bguidity
penalties that impose a further discount to reflect markeat
conditions, Each of these inputs iz calouated and then ag-
gregated in order to arrive at the fair valus for each ndivid-
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 27 Fair value of finandal instruments (continued)

) Waluation techniques and inguts by product (gontinued)

val security. At 31 December 2007, these instruments were
not classified as level 3, as auctions had not failed at this
time, After the failure of auchons due to lack of investor da-
mand in first quarer 2008 wp to thed quarter 2008, LS
valued student lean ARSs by comparing them to the student
loan floating rate notes {FRMs), but adopted the model de-
scribed above for 31 December 2008, consistent with the
belief that it provides a better and moee granular approach
1o fair value estematson.

Fefer to the section “Risk management and control” for
details an UBS% student loan ARS exposumes.

L5 reference linked nates (LG 6L}

Thie L5 LM consists of a series of transactans whereby LBS
purchases credit protection, predominantly in note form, on
a portfolio of fiead income assats. it is describad n detail in
the Anmual Report 2007, “Risk, Treasury and Capital Man-
agerent” section, page 13, The referenced assets ane com-
prized of LISD ABSs {primarily horme eguity) andfar corporate
bends and koans across 3l rating categories. UBS's direct ax-
posure 1o these assets has been reduced wia transactions in-
cluding the fransaction with the SMNE.

The credit protection embedied in the BLN notes is fair
valued using a market standard approach to the valuaton
of portlalio credit protection {Gaussian copulal. This ap-
proach effectiely simulates correlated defaults within the
portiolio, where the expected Iosses and defaults of the
indivicdual assets are closely linked 1o the obsersed market
prices (spread kevels) of those assets. Key assumgtions of
the madel include correlations and recavery rates. UES ap-
pligs fair vakue adjustments related 1o potential uncertainty
in each of these parameters, which are anly parthy obsery-
able. In agditon, LUBS applies fair value adjustments for un-
certainties asagated wath the use of cbsened spread lev-
ek as the primany inputs.

Thess fair valee adjustments are calodated by applying
shocks to the relevant parameters and revaluing the cradit
provection. These shocks for correlatian, recoseny, and spreads
ana set to various levels depanding on the asset type andfor
region, Comelation and recovery shacks are generally in the
range of 5 to 15 percentage points, Speead shacks vary mare
widely and also depend an whether the wnderdying pratec-
tien is funded or wnfunded to reflect cash/feynthetic basis
effects. As of 31 December 2008, the fair value of the US
FLW cradit protection {pre-reserve) is aporozimately LSO
3,284 million (CHF 3,502 milian}. The fair value adjustments
calosdated by applying the shacks described above are USD
2594 million (CHF 315 million).
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Non-US reference lnked notes INan-US BLNS)

The same valuation model and the zame approach to cal-
culation of fair value adjustments is applied for the non-US
RLM credit protection as for the US RLN credit protection de-
scribed above, except spread is shocked by 10% far Euro-
pean corporate names. As of 31 December 2008, the fair
walue of the non-US ALN credit protection is approximatehy
U0 1,971 million (CHF 2,102 milliony, The fair valus adjust-
mends (up and down) cabculated by applysng the shocks de-
soribed above are USD 155 million {CHF 165 million).

Leveraged finance

A sigreficant proportan of LESS leveraged finande exposures
Fave been redasafied fram the category “held for trading” 1o
the category “loans and recenables” in fourth quarter 2008,
The leveraged finance exposures in the “held for frading™ cat-
agary at 31 December 2008 are predominantly dassified &
bl 3. Fair value estimates for these positions rely on market
krwdedge and expert pudgrment, incuding pudgmental deter-
miénations based an the tarms of the relevant instnement and
wanous ather factors. These ather factors may inchude, with-
out Emitation, observable priang for other debt of the rela-
want issuer ar debt of issuers of comparable crsdit quality,
credit defauli swap spreads and estmated loss severity fac-
tars, and pravailing interest rate levels.

Cption 1o acquire equily of the SNE S tabFumd
Under IFRS, the option 1o purdhase the SMB StabFund’s eq-
wity is recognized an the balance sheat as a derwative a1 fair
walue with changes in fair value recognized in profit and loss.
At 31 Decernber 008, the fair value of the call aption held
by LIBS was approcmataly CHF 1,100 mdlion,

Thile fair value is calzulated using a standard aptan pric-
ing model, where the asset pool is treated as the underlying
asset, Kay assumgtions relate fo the kvel of volatlity as-
sumed and ta the interest rate assumed. At 31 Decernber
2008, UBS assigned a valatility of 11.3% 1o the wnderying
asset pool. Decreasing ar increasng this assumption by 10%
fie. 11.3% to 10.2% and 11.3% to 12.4%) would have
decreased fincreased the fair value at 31 December 2008
by appeorirnately minus S0 156 mdlion SCHF 1668 millice)
plus LS50 156 millicn (CHF 166 millicn) respectively, At
31 December 2008, UBS applied an nterest rate basad on
an assumed term funding rate for the asset pool of LIEOR
+ 250 bp. Decraasing ar increasing this assumption by 100
b wioakd have decreasedfincreased the estimated fair value
at 31 December 2008 by menus LSO 245 millon {CHF 262
million}/plus USD 250 milkon (CHF 309 millicn).
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Mote 27 Fair value ef financial instruments (continued)

o) Valuation techniques and inputs by praduct {continued)

Denvalives embedded in MO Decermber ssuance

The MCMs issued in December 2008 indude embedded eq-
uity and derivative components with UBS shares as underly-
ing. which ane bifurcated and treated as one derivative ac
counted for at fair value with fai value changes recognized
in profit ar loss. Refer to Mote 26 for more mformation. The
fair value amounted o negative CHF 1,058 million at 31 Da-
cember 008, A 10% reductian in UBSS share price from

d) Deferrad day 1 profit or loss

The table reflects finanoal instruments far which fair value
is determined using valuation mocels where not all inputs
are rarket cbeervable. Such Tinancial instruments are ini-
tiglly recoqnized at their transaction price althowgh the val-
ugs abtained fram the relevant valuation mode! on day 1

CHE milon
g;_llmitﬂnb.glrlﬁgol'ﬂuﬁ.

Balance at the end of the year
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CHF 14 .84 ta CHF 13.35, halding all other vanables con-
stant, would have resulted in a fair value of negative CHF
826 millicn, wheraas an increase of LBSS share price fo CHF
16.32 wauld have ked to a fair value of negative CHF 1,314
madlicr. There are no impacts en LUBSS financal rescurces, as
the embedded equity and derivative comparnents will be set-
tled in mewdy issued LIBS shares.

may differ. The table shows the aggregate difference yet to
be recogrzed in profit or loss at the beginning and end of
the perod and a recancilation of changes in the balance
of this difference {movement of deferred day 1 profit or
less).

For fha yean endad
iR ] 1.0207

Erl
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 28 Pledged assets and transferred financial assets which do nat qualify for derecognition

Finarcial assets are malnky pledged in secunties Bormowing
ard lending transactkans, i repurchase and reverse repur-
chase transactions, under ecllaterabzed credit lnes with cen-

Medged assats

tral banks, against loans from mortgage insttutians, in con-
nection with derivative transactions and for secunity deposits
relatrg 1o stock exchange and dearmghause mermberships.

Camyng amaung

31,1208

nzor

+ Indutis Tnandal ingiemans of CHF 05 b B seckrssi e hom 1aging pomio b T keans and resaaie 00 31 December 2007 i7 vk prirsentead i the g Firancial arssecs plecioed ToThind patiss

fior labities with and withaut te righi of retypothecion.

The fedlowing table presents details of financial assets which
have been sakd or otherasse transferred, bt which di not

Transfer of finandal assets which do not qualify for derecognition

qualify for derecagnition, Criteria far derecognition are dis-
cussed in Mate 1a) &)

Contimeed azmet recogrition in fell - Told maets
30208

01207

The ftransactons are mostly conducted under standard
agreemants employed by financal market participants and
arg undertaken with counterparties subgect 1o LES'S normal
credit nsk cantral processes. Tha resulting cradil expasures
are contralled by daily monitering and collateralization of
the pesitions. The financial assets which confinue 1o be
recognized are typically transferred in exchange for cash or
ather financial assets. The associated liabdities can thesefare
be assurmed ta be appraximately the carmpng amaunt of the
transferred financial assets.

LIBS retains substantially all risks and rewards of the trans-
ferred assets in each situation of contsued recegnitan in
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full. These nclude credit risk, settlement risk, cowntry risk
and market risk,

Repurchase agreements and secusities lending agree-
ments are discussed i Motes 1a) 123 and 1a) 13). Other
financial asset transfers include sales of financial assats while
concurrently antering into a total rate of return swap with
the same counterparty and sales of financial assets invalving
guarantaes.

Transferred financial assets which are subject 1o partial
continued recognition were immaterial in 2008 and 2007.
The carrying amaunts of the partially recognized transferred
financial assets are included ir the tabbe.
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Mote 29 Measurement categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

a) Measurement categaries of financial assets and financial liabilities

Thie Tallewing 1abde pravides infarmation abaut the carrying
amounts of individual dasses of financial instruments within
the measurernent categories of financial assets and financal
lizbilitses as defired in 145 39, Only those assets and liabilities
which are deermed ta b finanzial instruments are indluded

Finandal assets

1 the table bebaw, which may cause certasn balances 1a dif-
fer from those presented on the balance sheet.

See the Crifical accounting pelicies for a discussion on
hawe fasr value of finandal instruments is determined. See
alse Mote 1a) 505

i ERR Fder)

Fnascial imvesimests availshle-forsale

Tatal financial ausets

Financial liakilities

160, T2
T
A51,864 403,539
914,480 F0R.400
.................... Al
B b e S
Tatal 114,597 FEE ]

Firarcial lishilities at amortized cost

b p.
Coh mollstmrd oo securities et 36
Raperch as agnesmments 305,537
Due tn cxstomany f1 550
Aztiued sapenses end delemad incose 21,665
Dbt ived 222,000
e -
Tatal 941,024 1,390,132
Tatal fimancial lishilities 1,870,101 1,271 840

1 Erebsrer] et ves st o U halarme skt i Debtisuel O 31 Deosmier 2007, repective amaguets hove beer rckebed i Uhe lroe Pratine spigcemoent wains, E

B

1]
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£
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Mote 29 Measurement categories of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

b} Reclassification of financial assats

Pursuant ta the amandment 1o 185 39 and IFRS 7, “Reclas-
sification of Financial Assets*, UBS reclassified certain finan-
cial assets out of Trading portfolio assets to Loans and re-
ceivables, although the amendment could have been applied
retrospectively from 1 July 2008, UBS deaded at the end of
October 2008 to apply the amendment with effect from 1
October 2008 following an assessment of the implications
an its financial statements. The financial assets were reclassi-

fied usireg their fasr valee on the date of the redassificatan
which became their newe cost basis at that date. The redas-
sification of these financial assets reflects UBSS change in
intent and ability to hold these fingncial assets for the fore-
seeable future rather than for trading i the near tarm.

The table below shows the fair values of the redassified
financial assets as of their reclassification date and their car-
rying vakues and fair values as of 31 Decemnber 2008:

11008 31.13.08
ERE bilion Farwalee  Carrying value Fair valug
Nadngpoticlio pevs meied o Lomsen 19008 nE L 124
Tradin g porticlic asets smcassified o Loans on 31.12.08 24 2.4
Total finandal assets reclassified to Loans and recefvables 174 4.2 20.8

Reclassified financal assats primarily relate ta student loan
ARSs and ather debst instruments.

As of the reclassification date, estmated effective interest
rates on the redassified financial assats ranged on average
from 6% to 15% with expected recoverable cash flows of
CHF 0.2 billian.

For the years ended 21 Decernber 2008 and 21 Decernbeer
2007, fair value lasses of CHE 4.1 bilkon and CHF 0.5 billion,
prior to reclassification, were recognized in the income state-
ment an the reclassified finandal assets.

33z

If the financial assets had not besn redassified, the changs
in their far vakaes, after actual reclassification, would have
resulted in additional fair value losses of CHF 4.8 ballion in the
income statement for the year ended 31 Decamber 2008

After reclassification, the contmbution of the redassified
financial assets fo UBSS income statemant was an increase
in et interest income of CHE 0.1 bilkon, less & Credit ks
ewpense of CHF 1.3 billion, resulting in a net negative impact
an operating profit betore tax of CHF 1.2 billion for the year
ended 31 Decembar 2008,
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Mote 30 Pensicn and other poest-employment benefit plans

a) Defined benefit plans

Thie Graup has established various pensien plans inside and
outside of Switzerland. The major plans are located in Swit-
zerland, the LIK, the LIS and Germany. Independent acheanial
valuations are pesformed far the plans in these locations,
The measurement date of these plans & 31 December for
each year presented.

Thie awerall investrment policy and strategy for the Groups
defined benefit pension plans 5 guided by the abjectve of
achieving an irvestrent return which, together with the
contributions pasd, & sufficient to maintain reasonabbe con-
tral ower the warious funding risks of the plans. The invest-
mient advisors appointed by plan frustees ane responsibla for
deterrnining the mix of asset types and target allocations
which are reviewed by the plan trustess an an ongoing ba-
5. Actual asset allocation is determined by a varety of cur-
rent aconomec and market conditions and in consideration
of specific asset dass nsk.

Thie expected long-term rates of return on plan assets ane
based on long-term expected inflation, interest rates, risk
premiums and targeted asset class allocations. These esti-
miates take into consideration historical asset dass returms
and are determined together with the plans® investment and
actuanial acvisors.

Swiss pension plans
The pension plan of UBS covers all LBS employees in Swit-
zerland and exceads the minimum Benefit requiraments un-
der Swiss law:. The Swiss plan was amended on 1 lanuary
2007 to change the definition of retirement benefits from a
final coverad salary to a retirement savings approach and on
1 lanuary 2008 to allow employess a choice in the level of
annual contibutions padd by the employee, The pension
plan pravidas benafits which are based on annual cantnbu-
tions as a percentage of salany and accrue at an interest rate
that is defined annually by the plan trustees,

Contributions 1o the pension plan of LBS are paid by em-
plowess amgd the emplover. The emaloyee contrbutions ane

calculated as a percentage of covered =alary and are deduct-
ed monthly. The percentages deducted from salary for the
full standard lavel of benefit coverage dncluding risk bene-
fitsy depend an age and vary between 1% and 9% of oov-
ered base salary and 3% and 5% of covered variable com-
pensation. The employer pays a contribution that ranges
between 100% and 375% of employees’ contributions for
the standard bevel of Denefit coverage. The benefits coversd
mnclude retirement benefits; disabibty, death amd survivor
pensons, and emplayment terminaton benefits.

The employer contributions expected to be made in 200%
to the Swiss pension plan are CHF 520 million.

LB recognized a defined benefit asset associated with its
Sweiss pension plan in 2008 and restated prior periods, Rafer
to Note 1k

Fareign pension plans

The foreign locatons of UBS operate vanous pension plans
n accordarse wath bocal regulations and practices. Among
thesa plans are defined contribution plans as well as defined
benefit plans, The locations with defined benefit plans of a
material mature are in the UK, the US and Germany. The LK
and the LS defined benefit plans are closed to new entrants
who are covered by defined contribution plans. The amounis
shonem for foreign plans reflect the net funded positions of
the major foreign plans.

The retirement plans provide Denefits in the event of re-
tirement, death, disability or ermployment termination. The
plans' retirement benefits depend on age, contributions and
level of compenzation. The principal plans are financed in
full by the Group. The employver contributions expected o
b made in 2009 to these persion plans are CHF 95 mdlion,
The fundeg palicy for these plans 15 consstent with local
government and tax reguirements.

The assurmptions used in foresgn plans take into account
kacal econormec conditions.

Refer also 1o Note 1a) 21}
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 30 Pension and other post-amployment benefit plans (continued)

a) Defined banafit plans (continued)

EHEmilion Swir Faraign
For tha year andad 31208 E{RFRi 31,1206 30208 n1i0 2310206
Defingd banafit obligation ot $a baginaing of the year [20,877) (508 Goard (48 (5307} [5,050)

Dafinad banefit obligation at the end of the year [21,311) (I0.877) (31,508 13,642} 4508 [4,207)
Fair valug of plan asets at the begiznisg of the year

11,014} [388} T4
Fairvalue of plan assets at the end of the year 13,028 2,18 1,33 1,855 450 4501
Funded status | {717E)
Uneecogaized nat aciuaial | gains)/Inpas 1,324

(Acoruad){prapakd panskan cost

Movamrant in the net (liability) or asset
[Accruad | prepal d passion cost at the Baginsing of the year

2123 312 1,852 TER aay 15
12301 [261] (183
2,123 1122 1,852 248 B26 EES
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Mote 30 Pensicn and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

a) Dafined banafit plans (tontinuad)

Ch millien Swins Faragn
For e year andad .12.08 2.91207 1NA06 310208 EIRFLH 21,0206
Companants of met periodic pensian cost

MEMI: Enslm-cm B3 414 {Fi &3 57 a3

Furded and unfunded plans Sz

CHE milian 3.12.08 0207 211206 311205 31.12.04

Doined bowa i chlipation omfuadedplors AT - N L OO DO

Flan amsets 13,025 FEAL 3% .12 18575

Surplus{iduficit] {2.282) 1304 {170 [1az 1,650)

Experionce guins/(lossachomplan Rablites. o L ) e,

Experience gains/{losses) o plan st (3.820) 12800 a4y

Foszign

CHE miVan 31.12,08 310207 EIRFE S 211208 31,1509

Dofinad bamafi coiyaion bomfsdedpbes [2402) DM GOt meal o oewl

Definad bome chlipaion Bom sbundadpbars e @M AL s mn

Flan amsess 1,866 4575 4503 4,288 1580

Surplus/(deficit) (776) {3450 a5 1733 [56:]

Exparién gains(Moceachon phnRablites. - L B e,

Expariencs -linilﬂumﬂm plan asmts 1,027) & &
g
o
:
o
&
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 30 Pension and other post-amployment benefit plans (continued)
a) Defined banafit plans (continued)
Swins Faraign
31.12.08 1247 31,1306 . 1208 EIR T 30108

Prindpal weighted average actusrial assumptions usad (%]

Plan assets (weighted awerage)
Actual plan asset alloccation [%)

Additional details ta fair value of plan assets
LS financial insiumests and LIS bank accounts

Ceber msets used by UBS induded in plan amets L)
1 Thie rmber of S5 AL shares was 3, 724,000; 2436, 357; ard 2,600,417 as of 31 Densnber 008, 31 20T and 30 2008, nes 43

Mortality tables and life sapactancies for major plans

L gxpectancy at age &% for 2 male membsr currenthy

aged 65 aged 45
Martality tablo 21.12.08 E\RFEL N106 30208 EYRER:] 301306
AW 3000 178 18 148 178 e e
e i :
e — o s
P 3000 Witk pmjections 18.4 3 "4 184 123 e
L sapectancy af ags &5 for afemale mambes cemanthy
aged G5 aged 45
mtﬂ 212,08 211247 A1.12.08 311208 EVRFE anizoe
BGiooa
P& G
Dr & Hosbock 2006 6 .
HPJ‘MUIWIM 20.6 20,5 0.2 205 0.5 o
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Mote 30 Pensicn and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

b} Post-retirement medical and |ife plans

I the LS and the LK, the Group offers rebires medical
benefits that contribute to the health care coverage of em-
ployess and beneficiaries after retiremant. In addition fo re-
tiree medical benefits, the Group in the US also prsades
retiree life insurance benefits. The LUK plan is desed to new
entrants. The benefit coligation in excess of fair value of
plan assets for those plans amounts to CHF 159 milion as
of 31 Decemnber 2008 2007; CHF 190 million; 2006: CHF
32 mikon) and the total accrued post-retirement cost

arneunts 1o CHF 164 mallion as of 31 December 2008 (2007
CHF 131 milion; 2006: CHF 17& million). The net pericdic
post-retirerment cosis for the years ended 31 December
2008, 31 December 2007 and 31 Recernber 2006 were CHF
3 millien dnecluding a curtailment gain ef CHE 11 millien),
CHF 26 million and CHF 24 millian, respectiveh.

The employer contributions expected to be made in
2004 to the post-rafiremant medical and life plans are CHF
T mdlion,

3.1z2.08 211247 31.12.06

of the year 190

L]

iy

i

14

o

T

5

0

Past-retirement benefit obligation at the end of the year 11583
Fair value of plan mzets at the begisning of the pear o
B

1
(k)]

Fair walue of plan assets gt the end of the pear 0
CHF milkoe 31.12.08
e 120
Flan friaet 0
Surplus/idefiit) (1583
Exparience gains/ossed) o plan Rebililied L]

The assumed average health care cost trend rate used in da-
termining post-ratwement benefit expense is assurned 1o be
1096 for 2008 and 10 decreass 10 an ultmate trend rate of
5% in 2014, On a country-by-country bass, the same dis-
cowent rate is used for the calculation of the post-refirement
benefit coligation from medical and |fe plans as for the de-
fimed benefit abligatians anseng from pension plans,

Amumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for health care plans, A one
percentage point change in the assurmed health care cost
trend rates would change the US post-retirement benefit ob-
Bgation and the service and interast cost components af the
et pesiodic post-retirernent benefit costs as follows:

ChE mAon 1% Inmeae 1% deoease
Effecton ioialsenaee sndinterestost R .
Effisct on the post-retremeni besefin ckhgasen i} {163
g
k=
:
_E
&
337 i
g
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MNote 30 Pension and other post-amployment benefit plans (continued)

€] Defined contributicn plans

The Group alss sponsars a number of definad contribution
plans primarily in the UK and the US. Certain plans permit
employees fo make contribufions and earn matching or
ather contributions from the Growp. The comnbutions 1o

d} Belated party disdosure

UBS is the principal bank for the pensicn fund of LIBS in
Switzerland. i this function, UBS is engaged fo execute
miost of the pension fund's banking activities. These activities
also include, but are not limited to, trading and securities
lending and bomowing, AR Transactions have been executed
at arm’s length conditions.

The foreign UBS pensan funds do not have a similar
banking relaticnship with UBS, but they may hold and trade
LIBS shares andfor securities,

these plams recogrneed as expense for the years ended
31 December 2008, 31 December 2007 and 31 December
2006 were CHF 312 million, CHF 285 milion and CHF
229 millian, respectvely.

In 2008, UBS sold to its Swiss pension fund cerain
bank-occupied propertes for proceeds of approximantaly
CHF 136 milion and recognized a gain of approximatehy
CHF a7 million, LBS and its Swiss pension fund entered si-
madltaneusly infe lease-Dack arrangements for same of the
properties with 25-year lease terms and twi renewal options
for ten years each. At 31 Decernber 2008 the munimum
commitment towards the Swiss pension fund under the
related leasas is approximately CHF 41 millian,

The followeng feas and interest have been received or
paid by UBS:

Related party disclosure

For e yaae anded
CHE milien 311208 E[RET 310208
Reesived by UBS
Fess T 5a 53
Paid by UBS
hiterest 1 2 z
Divideesds and capital ey i ki 33
The tranzaction valumes in LIES shares and other LBS securities are as follaws:
Transaction volumas - ralated parties

For e year andad

311208 EIR i AR FE

Financial instruments bought by pansion funds

I Feares fin theusands of shares)

% fnancial instuments (=ominal walues in CHF sillion)
Financial Pstruments sokd by pensian funds or matured

LBS financial instruments (sominal walues i CHF million)

UBS has also leased buildings from its pension funds. The
rent pasd by UBS wnder thess leases amounted to CHF 7 mil-
lign in 2008, CHE & million in 2007 and CHE 4 million in
20086

There were no financial mstruments due from UBS pen-
sion plans outstanding as of 31 December 2008 Z007: CHF
0 million; 200&; CHF 120 million), The amaunts due to LUBS

EEL

defined benefit pension plans are contained in the addition-
al details 1o the fair value of plan assets, Furthermaore, LIBS
defined contribution plans hold 17 866,949 LIBS shares with
a rmarket walue of CHF 272 milkon as of 31 Decernber 2008
{2007 14,121,239 shares with 3 market value of CHF 736
million; 2006: 14,158,561 shares with a market value of
CHF 1,043 millicn},
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Mote 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans

a) Flans offered

LUBS has established several equity particpation plans 1o
further align the nterests of executives, managers and staff
with the interests of sharehelders, The plans are offered fo
ebgible employees o approximately 50 countries and are
desigried 10 meet the complex legal, tax and regulatory
requirements of each country in which they are offered. The
explanations below provide a general description of the
terms of the mast significant plans affered, however specific
plan rules may vary by country. Refer 1o Note 1a) 223 for 2
descriptian of the accaunting pobicy related 1o equity partic-
pation and other compensation plans. Reter also ta Mote 1b
far a description of the restatement impact of adopting
IFRS & Share-based Payment: Westing Conditians and Can-
cellations on 1 January 2008,

Equity participation plans

Equity Plus Plan {Equity Plus); This voluntary plan gives eli-
gibde emptoyees the coportunity 1o purchase LIRS shares at
fair market value and generally receive at no additonal cost
twio UBS options for each share purchased, up to a maxi-
mum annual limet, Share purchases can be made annually
from bonus compensation and/far guarterly based on regu-
lar deductions from salary, Shares purchased under Eguity
Flus ane restncted fram sale for two years fram the time of
purchase. The options have a strike price equal to the fair
market value of a LIBS share on the date the option is grant-
ed, a twasyear vesting penod and generally expire ten years
frem the date of grant. The aptians are farfeitabe in cerain
ciroemstances and are setiled in eguity, except m cauntries
where this is not permitted for legal reasons. Compensation
expense related 1o the UBS options is recognized over the
sharter of the legal vesting pericd and the periad from grant
ta the retirement aligibibty date of the employes.

Equity Ownership Plan (EOP): Selected employees receive
between 10% and 45% of their annual perfarmance-relas-
ed compensatian in WBS shases or notkanal LBS shares in-
stead of cash, on & mandatary bases on-cyche awards). Up
te and including 2004, certain employees were eligible to
receive a portion of their EO® award in Alternative [rvest-
ment Vehsclas {ANs) or UBS options, Since 2005, options
have not been granted as part of EOF and awaeds have
been generally made in UBS shares, with less than 2% be-
ing made in AlVs to salected employee groups. The awards
granted in IUBS shares or notional UBS shares are settled in
equity, except in countries where this i nat permitted for
legal reasons, Awards granted im the farm of Alvs are
seitled in cash. EOP awards generally vest i one-third
increments owver a three-year vesting period. In certain dr-
cumstances, these awards are forfeitable, Compensation
expanse for an-cycle awards s generally recognized duning

the performance year, which is generally the period prior to
the grant date.

During 2008, LBS granted to certain employess an-cyce
EQP awards with a mne-month westing period, Compensas
tion expersa for these awards was fully recognized in 2007 .

Beginning with on-cyde awards granted in 2009 for the
pesformance year 2008, compensation expense will be rec-
ognized aver the shorter of the legal vestng periad and the
pesiod fram arant 1o the date the emplayee satisfies certain
retwernent aligiility requirements. This change in account-
g treatment i the result of the vesting prowvisions besng
amendad 1o require forfeiture upon voluntary fermination of
emptoyment rather than upon walation of non-compete
pravisions,

EQP awands are also granted to selected employess when
joining UBS or in other special crcurrstances (off-cyde
awarcks), Off-cycle awands have the same terms and condi-
tions as on-cycle awands, except that the forfetune condi-
tions are more stringent. Compensation expense for off-
cycle awards is generally recognized over the shorter of the
legal vesting period and the period from grant to the retire-
ment eligibility date of the employee,

Sermar Executwe Equity Ownership Plan (SEEDP): Sersar
exacutives recaive between 25% and 509 of their perfor-
mance-related compsnsation in UBS shares or notional UBS
shares instead of cash, on a mandatary basis. The awards
granted in LUES shares or notional LIBS shares ane sethed in
equity. SEECF awards generally west in ene-fifth increments
over 3 five-year vesting peniod. Thess awards are forfeitable
if certain conditions arz not met, Compensation expense for
all SEEQP awards is recagnized durng the perfarmance vear,
which is gererally the penod priar to the grant date. During
2008, LUBS grantad 1o certain employaes SEEQF awards with
a mane-menth wasting pericd. Compensation expense far
thesa awards was fully recognized in 2007,

Key Employes Stock Option Flan (KESOP): Key and high
petential empleyess are granted discrationary LBS opans
with a strike price not less than the fair market value of a
LIBS share on the date the cption is granted. Cne option
givas the right ta acquire one registered UBS share at the
aptan's strike price, The awards are setthed in equity, except
in countries where this 15 nat permitted for legal reasons,
Options granted prior to 2008 generally vest in one-third
incremants over a three-year vesting pericd and genarally
expire ten years frem the grant date. Options granted
fram 2008 vest in full following a three-year vesting periad
ard generally expire ten years from the grant date. These
awards are generally forfeitable wpon termination of
employment with LB, Compensation expense is recog-
nizad over the shorter of the legal vesting perad and the
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MNete 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

a) Flans offered (continuad)

periad frem grant 1o the retirarment chgibility date of the
employee.

Seniar Executive Stock Cption Plan (SESOP): Senior execu-
tivies may ke granted discretionary UBES optsans with a strike
price set at 110% of the fair market value of a UBS share on
the date the option is granted. One option gives the night to
acquire one registered LIBS share at the option’s strike price,
The awards are settled in eguity. Optans vast in full folkoe-
ing & three-year vesting perod and generally expire ten vears
from the grant date. Thess awards are forfeitable o certain
conditions are not met. Compensation expense for all SESOP
awards is racogrized during the performance year, which is
generally the pericd price to the grant date.

Glabal WMEER Pariner Plus Plan (FPP) LS grants no-
tignal UBS shares to certain client advisers, which vest in 20%
increments 6 to 10 years after tha grant date. The awards are
generally setiled in equity, except in countres where this is
not permittad for lagal reasons, and are forfetable in certain
circematances. Compensation expense is recognized gver the
shorter of the legal vesting pericd and the period from grant
to the retirement eligibility date of the employes. The first
grants made under this plan were in 2007,

Other compensation plans

Executive Capital Acosmulation Plan (ECAP): UBS sponscrs
a woluntary deferred compensation plan for selected eligi-
ble emplayees. Wnder this plan, particdpants are allowed 1o
netonally invest @ portion of thelr cash bonus in momey
markat funds, UBS and non-UBS mutual funds and other

b} Effe<t on income statement and balance sheet

The total share-based compensation expense reccgnized
for the years anded 31 December 2008, 31 December 2007
and 31 December 2006 was negatve CHF 94 malion, CHF
3,173 mdlion and CHF 2,685 million, respectively. The de-
rease n compensation expense in 2008 as compared 1o
prior years is primarily a result of UBS adopting tha amend-
ment ta IFR% 2 Share-based Payment: vesting Conditions
and Cancellations on 1 January 2008, Furthermaore, LBS
amended the EQP plan rules for awards to be granted in
2009 for the year 2008 for which compensation expense
redated fo these awards will be recognized over the vesting
pericd rather than in the performance year For the years
endid 31 Decernber 2008, 31 Cecember 2007 and 31 De-

340

UBS sponsorad funds. No additional company match &
granted, the awards are generally not forfeitable and are
setthed in cash. This plan does net result in compensatian
expense for UBS.

WRLIS Partner Plus Plan: W US sponsors a compulsary
deferred compenszation plan for selected sligible employeas.
Undsr this plan, UES awards amounts based an a predefined
formula during the performance year. Participants are also
alkowed 1o veluniardy contribute additional amounts earned
during the year mito the plan wp to a percentage of UBSS
contributions. The amounts awarded earn an above-market
rate of interast during a fowr-year penod and a market rate
af interest theseafter, Fartner Plus awards vest in 20% inore-
mantls 6 10 10 yvears after the grant date. The UBS contriou-
tians and all imarest earned are forfeitable m certam arcum-
stances. Compensation expense is recognized owver the
sharer of the vesting period and the pericd from the perfor-
marce yiar to the date that the emptopee is eligitle to leave
UBS and retan their award.

UBS satisfies share delivery obligations under its option-
based parbicipation plans either by purchasng LBS shares in
the market ar through the issuance of new shares, At exer-
cise, shares held in treasury or newly ssued shares ane deliv-
ered to the employes against receipt of the strike price. As of
31 December 2008, UBS was haolding approximately 4% mil-
lian shares in treaswry and an additianal 150 mdlion unissued
shares in canditional share capital, which are availabde and
can be used far future ermplayee option exercises. The shares
available cover all vasted {i.a. exercsable) employee options.

cember 2006, the compensation expenss reccgnized for
share-based payrments was primarily related to equety-settled
plans, At 31 December 2008, total compensation experse
related 1o non-viested awards not wet recognized in the in-
come staterment is CHF 848 million, which is expected 1o be
recognized in Personnel expenses over a weighted awerage
period of 3.2 years,

Payrrents to participants of cath-setthed share-based and
Al plans fior the years ended 31 Decermber 2008, 31 Cecem-
ber 2007 and 31 Dacember 2006 were CHF BO million, CHF
42 million and CHF 177 million, respectively. The total carry-
ing amount of the liability related to these cash-setiled plans
amounted to CHF 207 milion as of 31 December 2008
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Mote 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

©) UES sham awards

Mowements in shares granted under the equaty particpation plans described in Mote 31a} ane as follows:

Weighted Wisightad Weightsd

Numbss of HEFAnE T i o ELIEN Hem b2y of AR

sharus grant data shares grant date sharas qant dae

311208 fai value CHE 211247 far vabee CHE 31206 fsirvalue CHE

Forfeitable, at Ihrbcgimhg-:\lhyﬂ _______ 58,102, 580 EE 56,141,102 58 53,725,185 46
00,054 5041 12
...... 180,108, 103] 2]
Fnrhiﬂ:ld.lnnghlpﬂ' {5,158 131) 54
EEbminada sy Ee &

of winch: sharer vertsd' for scooeniing puwvposes BS, TaT 017 47 00902 4?.3!15;9“

1 Thee pumber of shares awarded duseg the yeer inciuds 2, 50,881 of serwesbed deidencs a8 resuk of the stock dyedend, for s new shares v isd o 15 Slap JO0E Then e no i mpad 5o

the meighied average gra et dabs far vabez ard roadetionel

1 2fea ek of the rights offering in June 2008, LES adpusiedithe pumber of potioral shavs which

mumnhmﬁlhwmhmmmmmmmmmﬁlhmﬂmhmmdm_ﬂddmhmllmﬁmlﬁr

toral 1,836,071 notional sheres = a resa kool thes enti-ddviion edyestment. Na 2o L

Priar to 008, LIBS estimated the grant date fair value of
shares awarded dunng the year by using the awerage UBS
share price on the grant date as quoted on the SWH Europe.
The grant date fair value of noticnal W8S shares without
dividend entilaments inchudes a deduction for the present
value of future expected dwidends ta be paid between grant
date and distribution. The market value of shares vested was
CHF 1,385 million, CHF 1,737 million, and CHF 1,587 million
far the years ended 31 December 2008, 31 Decernber 2007,
and 31 December 2006, respactively.

For share awards granted beginneng in 2008, UBS mea-
upes compensation cost based on the average marke! price
of the UBS share on the grant date less a dscount for post-
vesting sale and hedge restrictions and non-vesting con-
diticns, in accordance with IFES 2 Shase-based Payment:
Vesteyy Conditions and Cancallations. The grant date fair

o WIS B0

vakie of notianal UBS shares without dividensd entitlements
dlse inchudes a deduction for the present value of future
axpected dividends to be paid betwesn grant date and distri-
bution. The fair value of the share awards subject to post-
westing sale and hedge restrictions & discounted based upon
the duraton of the postwesting restrictan. The wesghted
average discaunt for share awards granted = Z00B &
approximately 19% of the market price of the UBS share.
Discounts for nan-vesting conditions are based on the prob-
abdity that the nonwesting conditions will be achseved and
the award will bacome exercsable. The fas value of share-
based awards granted poor to 2008 was not discounted far
post-vesting sale and hedge restrictions, as there was no dis-
tinction between vesting and non-vasting conditions wntil
the 1458 amended IFRS 2 effective for LIBS lanuany 2008
Shara-based Payrment: Veshing Conditions and Cancellatons.
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Note 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

) UBS option awands

Mowements in options granted under the equity participation plans described in Mote 313} are as follows:

Weightad

Mumbear of

3208
198,213,092

Cubstanding at the beginming of the year

124,054,442

ExrscEable, a the end of the year

Aerage
optians  axercise price

Husber of
opfions
CHP12 11247

Weghed
AR SRR
prica CHEI

1 Asa resa bl the righis oberiagin June 3008, UES scpsies the rumber of option
This wee: doae to prese st avy Sivtion impad &0 Bolder= of these opbiors. Ko addiinal
338,230 and en inmezse b the prion yeer outstanding Bakence of 2,400,143
the yenrend spot enchoange rete for the pposs of S table

The weighted average share poce at the time when the
optans were exercised during the year was CHF 34, CHF 72,
and CHF 71 for the years ended 31 December 2008, 31 Da-

1 i the date of the right= nffering.
mmﬂhuﬂhmmmlhm‘u of optios awarded in 3008 of

aTpeTEation epense
1 Some of the pptioes | n taE table hawe expvdse prices denominzied in LED which Bave been conseied ivio CHF 2t

cember 2007, and 31 December 2006, respectively, The faol-
lowerg table provides additional infarmation about optan
awards:

oOoOooodn

34208 3z 10206
hirinsic value of pfor esercised during the yesr (CHF milgnt :‘3 ________ 1,046 1,660
‘izighted average geant date e value of apfiore grasbed (CHR) 753 10.43 11,63

The followang table summarnizes acditional infarmation about optans outstanding and optians exercisable at 31 Decam-
bier 2008:

Dpsan: percisahle
wrightad
R e
avessge nlrinecvalie  semanin

. Waighted
Harniber ol aremrage  inlireic walue r!n'l'mﬁ
optipss. eserosepige  {CHEILSD  cond opiiens eerdse ice  (CHF!USD)

Ranga of asercse price par share cutstanding  (CHF/ LD) milios)  arm (years) (CHF/US0) millign}  term [years)

CHF
14 47=35 00

3ad
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Mote 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

&) Valuation

Thie fair value of coticns is detarmined by means of a Mante
Carle simulaticn. The simulation technigue wses a mix of
implied and histaric wolatility and specific employes exercise
behavicr patierns besed on statistical data, taking inio
accownt the specific terms and conditions under which the
options are granted, such as the vesting period, forced exer-
cises during the lifetime, and gain- and time-dependent ax-
erciza behavior, The expected term of each option & cabou-

lated as the probability-waighted average paricd of the teme
between grant and exercise. The term structure of volatility
& derived from the implied volatilities of traded LBS optians
n combenation with the cbserved lang-term histonc shane
price wolatility. Dividends are assurned 1o grow at a fixed rate
aver the term of the option.

The fair value of options granted in 2008, 2007 and 2006
was determined using the following assumptions:

31308
range low

range high

Expected volatlity (%)
Pk e it rale (%}
Expected dhidesd {CHF}
Strike price [DHFY!
Shere price (CHF)'

+ Hobadjrited boi sRock dhidend g rd 1igWes olbedig in 2008

Expectad valasdiy (%)

11108
CHF rords’ range low ranga kigh
FLEL] 1351 FYRE]

Shara price (CKF):

.14 55.13 6,75

1 Less than 15 of awas in 2006 wess grantod ia USD. These have been combined wish CHF awards (o perposes of this discksure. 2 Mot adested Jor stock diidend and rights offering in 2008

43

303/390

&
2
;
o
&
g
£

oOoOooodn



Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Mote 32 Related parties

The Group defines related parties a5 associated campanias,
post-empkoyment benefit plans for the benefit of LUBS em-
plowess, key management persannel, dhose family members
of key management personnel and enterprises which are,
directly or indirectly, contralled by, jointly cantralled by or
sgnificamly influenced by of in whech significant voting

a) Remuneration of key management personnel
The non-independent members of the Bel have 1op man-

agement emplayment contracts and raceive pension bere-
fits upon retirement. Total remuneration of the non-inda-

CHE million
Base salanias and cthes cash payments

Equity cnmpensaton banafits'
Total

EDINETOOOO
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power resides with key management personnel o their dose
famaly members. Key management persannel is defined as
merbers of the Board of Directors BaD) and Growp Exesu-
tive Board {GEB}. This definiticn is based on the requrements
of |45 }4 Related Party Disclosuras,

pendent members of the Bob and GEB induding those who
stepped down dursng 2008 is as follows:

311308 EIREL T 20206

1 Enpensa for shares and gione qrame is meanred af grart dae and allocated oew the sesing pasiod, gessally 3 years Ior aptions ard 5 pars fo thaes

Marcal Ospel, former Chairman of the Bol}, did not stand for
re-ghection at the AGM of 23 Aprd 2008, Stephan Haeringer,
former axecutive vica chairman of the BoD, retired from the
EoD on 2 October 2008. Marco Suter, formerly an executive
member of the Bal, stepped down from the BoD en 1 Octo-
ber 2007 and thereafter acted as Group Chief Finanoal
Officer (Group CFOG and 25 & member of the GEB untll kis
stepping down from this roke on 21 August 2008, Whale
Marcel Ospel has retired from UES as of April 2008, Stephan
Haeringer and Marce Suter agread with UBS 1o continue
their servces for LBS untd their termination dates of 30 Sep-
tember 2002 ard 37 Awgust 2009 respactively.

All three persans were contractually entitied to receive
base salary, a payrment based an thair average ramuneration
aver the last three years and cerfain emplayment benefits
until the exgiry of thair 12-month notice pesiod,

For the fiscal years 2007 and 2008, Marcel Ospel, Stephan
Haeringer and Marco Suter did not receive any mcenfive
awards, Furthermare, an 25 November 2008, Marcel Ospel,

324

Stephan Haennger and Marco Suter announced that they
walwritarily relinguished substantial pars of the payvments 1o
which they were entitled durng their pericds of emplay-
ment with UBS. The total amount waived or repaid was CHF
33 million.

The remaining contraciual cbligatkans to all three former
Bel members, cansisting of those due in 2008 and thase
upcaming in 2009, net of the CHF 33 million wolurntariby
waived or repaid, amaounted to CHF 10 millien. This amount
has bean fully accrued n 2008 and i reflacted in the firm's
2008 ingome statement. OF this amount, CHF 2.3 milkon
wias for Mares| Dspel, CHF 2.9 millian for Stephan Hagnnger
and CHF 3.3 milkon for Marco Suter.

The indapandent members of the Bol do not have em-
ployment ar service contracts with LBS, and thus are niot
entitled to benefits upen termination of ther wensce on the
Bol. Payments to these individuals for their services as exter-
nal board members amounted to CHF &.4 million in 2008,
CHF 5.7 million in 2037 and CHF 5.9 mdlicn in 2006,

304/390

oOoOooodn



Mote 32 Related parties {continuad)

b} Equaty holdings
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Hurites of stnck optiens ko= equty particpation plans beld by sen-isdepesdent membes of the Bl

and e GER'

Burnbes of shanas bebd by members of te Bol, GEE asd pames dosaly lisked v them

31208 31207 310206
......... ChERRE L R 10,226, 7%
5.882,548 GEI3 002 TET. T4

1 Fumbet nfovmvarion abiost LS popaTy [STication pla s can a found i Heve 31,

Of the shara totals above, at 31 December 2008, 31 Decam-
bar 2007 and 31 December 2006, 15 878 sharas, 4,852 shares
and 7,146 shares respectively were held by close family
members of key management persenne and 102,841 sharas,
2,200,000 shares and 2,200,000 shares respactively were hald
by enterprizas which are directly or indirectly controlled by,

) Loans, sdvances and morigages 1o key management persannel

Non-indegendent members of the BaD and GEE members
have Deen granted leans, fised advances and marigages on
the sarme terms and conditions that are availabde 1o other
employees, based on terms and conditions granted to thind
parties adjusted for reduced credit risk. Independent BoD

CHF milor

Balance & Be begnning of the paar
Acdilions

Beductions

Balance o Be end of the year

joantly controlled by or significantly influenced by ar in which
significant voting power resdes with key management per-
sannel or their close family members. Further informaton
about UBS% equity partiopatsan plans can be found in Note
31. No member of the BoDt or GEE is the beneficial owner of
more than 1% of the Group's shares at 31 December 2008,

members are granted loans and morgages at general mar-
ket conditions.

Movernents in the loan, advances and mortgage balances
are as folkows:

3208 ELRFL
-] %
8 )
113 14}

11 15

M ursecured kaans were granted ta key management personnel as of 371 Dacember 2008 and 31 December 2007 .

o) Associated companies

htowvernents in leans to associated companies are as follows:

CHF ok 31.12.08 31207
Balsrics 81 e beginring of the year 0 375
Aebdilions : 171 (]
Redhitliens [ (215}
ot vt anpariah ety 0 0
Foregn curmendy tanskation {15 [
Balancs  the and of the year 01 1
[ e a2 56
the el flcnvances kor craaR! indses 3 4
All loans to associated companies are fransacted at arm's length,

345
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Mote 32 Related parties (continued)

i) Associated compandes (tontinued)

EDINETOOOO
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Other transactions with associated comparnses transacted at arm's length are as fallows:

EHEmillen
Fapments o wsocaies far goods and sereices recrived

Commitments. mdwtirrrlliahimw SEOCHINES

For the yar endad or as of
31,1208 ETREL 21.02,06
U M B ] =
s e, B M.
40 3 EF

Mite 34 provides & list of significant associates,

&) Other related party transactions

During 2008 and 2007, UBS entered into transactions at
arm's length with enterpases which are directly ar indirecily
contralled by, joetly controlied by ar sanificantly influencad
by or in which significant woting power resides with kay
management personnel or their cdase family members. In
2008 and 2007 these companses induded Aebl + Ca, AG
{Switzerlandl, AC Management 34, (Switzerlandgl, Bertarell
Family (Switzerland), Bertarelli Investment Ltd {lersey) {dis-
zohved in Decembsr 2007}, DESH Holding AG (Switzerland),

Mowements in loans 1o other related parties ane as follows:

Fiat Group Jtalyd, Kedge Capital Selected Funds Lid, Jersey),
Livy Kaufrmann-kahler (Switzerland), Limonanes Ltd (erseyy
{dussokved in Decemiber 2007), Ldwenfeld AG (Switzerland),
Martown Trading Ltd. (lsle of Man). Omega Fund | Ltd {er-
sey), Omega Fund Il Ld {lersey), Cmega Fund IIl L1d {lersey),
Omega Fund IV Lid (erseyd, Royal Dutch Shell ple (LK), 565
Seciété Générale de Surveillance 54 (Swatzerland, Stadler
Rail Group (Switzerland), Team Alinghi (Switzerdand), Team
Alinghi (Spairy and Wala Group (Switzerland),

EHE milion 31.12.08 11307 31.12,08
Balmm at the bogianiag of e yoar

o

Radectoms

Balance at the eed of $8e year? 574 88 a7z

1 In I8 inchudes kaans, guaramees ard contingent kasioies of 04F 153 milion and erased commiched faciities of CHF 482 milkon bt esdedes umased uscommited waibing capicl {adies and
uniesd graranizes of CHF 691 milion In 2007 includes laans, gaaamess and contingent liabilties of CHF 270 mikon and unesed commitied {acises of CHF 418 millon b eckdes mmesd une

comimied work | faciitios and wivsad
CHE mmmﬁ%-m

Other transactions with these related partes inchude:

dmm;mmhmmun?mmumﬂn— labitie of CHF 138 milion a0d uniesed commized fad s of
wiong capiel faities and un ped puassbses ol CH

173 million.

CHE million M.A208 e 310206
Goods s and sedess prowded 0 UBS L. 8 g
Faess recaneid for sendges pacded by URS 12 16 i

As part of its sponsorshap of Team Alinghi, UBS paid CHF
B28,090 ([EUR 5380000 in basic sponsaring fees for 2008,

f) Additional informatian
LIBS also engages in trading and nsk management activities
{e.q. swaps, oplions, forwards) with vanaus related parties

menticned n previous sectons. These transactans may gee
rise to credit risk sither for UES or for a related party towards

346

Team Alinghi's controlling sharshalder is UBS board member
Ernesta Bertarelli.

UBS. As part of its normal course of basiness, LIBS is alse a
market maker in equity and deldt instruments and at times
may hald pesitans in instruments of related parties.

306/390
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MNote 33 Post-balance-sheet events

On 18 February 2009, LBS annourced that it settled its LS
Croas-border case with the LS Department of Justice and the
LIS Securities and Exchange Commisson. Refer to “Mata 21
Frovisions and litigation” for details.

The Swiss Mational Bank (SME) determined the purchase
price 1o be pasd for certam positions that have not yet been
transferred mto the fund owned and conirelled by the SME.
Fefer to “Mote 38 Reorganizations and disposak” for details.

Eoth events above meet the definition of an adpusting
ewent after the reporting period as defined in 145 10 Evenrs
after the Kepariing Perfod and have been consdered in the
financial staterments as of 21 Decernber 2008, The tetal im-

Mote 34 Significant subsidiaries and assoclates

Trie legal entity group structura of LIBS is designed to suppaort
the Group's businesses within an efficient legal, tax, requla-
tary and funding framework, Neither the business divisions
of UES {rarnely kwestment Bank, Global Wealth Manage-
ment & Business Banking and Global Asset hManagemant}
nor Corporate Center are replicated in their own individual
legal enfites, bat rather they generally operate out of LIBS
A (Pasent Bank) throwgh its Swiss and foreign branches,
The Parent Bank structure alboes LIBS to capitalize on the
advantages offered by the use of one legal platform by all

significant subsidiaries

Compay Mrisdiction of nenporation
o di Lansim, Hrail

URS Bank Mavioo, 5.4 Institucnn de Banca Mulipl,
UBS Grupa Financiem

Mewico Ciy, Mewico

EDINETOOOO
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pact an et profit after tax was negative CHF 1,203 milkon.

O 19 January 2009, UBS announced that it had entered
e an agresmeant 19 acguire the cammedity index busness
of AIG FAnandal Product Corp. Refer to “Mote 36 Business
combinations" for detads,

There have beer no further materiagl post-bal ance-sheet
events which would require disclesune or adjustment to the
31 December 2008 Financigl Statements.

On S March 2009, the Board of Directors reviewed the
Financal Statements and authonzed them far issue, These
Financial Staternents wene submitted 1o the Annual General
Meeting of Sharehclders on 15 Apeil 2009 for approwal.

the business divisions. It provides for the most cost-efficient
and flexible struciure and facilitates efficient allecation and
use of capital, comprehansive nisk management and contral
and straightforward funding processes.

‘Where, usually due fo local legal, tax or regulatory rules
ar due to additional legal entities joining the UBS Group via
acqussition, it is esther not possible or not efficient to operate
aut of the Parent Bank, then local subsidiary companies host
the businesses. The significant operating subssdiary compa-
nies in the Group are listed balow:

Share caphal Eiguiy Interast
inmilions  acrumulated in %

L]
g
B
B

1 Gl Ve &5 ol Weakth Menosgement & Bininess Banideg, Globel fil: Global fasst Waregement, | | reesiment Bank, 0 Copobs Cenier

7
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Financial infosmation

Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 34 Significant subsidiaries and associates (continued)

Significant subsidiaries {continuad)

Shara capital Equiy interast
Jerisdiction of incorporation Businezs dission’ mmilions  acumulaedin %
Lo=pany T

Hang kang, China
Milan, Ity
Takys, lzpen
Sngapore, Sngapose
Teipei, Teiwen

Londan, Gret Britan
Dielowae, LSH
Londan, Gret Britzin
Londen, Gret Britzin
Londan, Grest Britain
induz, Lichtosstain

51 John, Canada

Mesien City, Mesito

Sagrl, Sovath Korea
A=sterdam, the Hetherkands
M Yk, LISA

UBS Inteistioeal Lk Limited Disklin, bretand

S rnvistment Masageriest Canads nc. Tovarila, Cesads Glabal W ER
1 Chobal WNSE2: Globel Weath Mansgement & Buriness Banorg, Giobel AM: Glotal fezet Menagemert, 1B IFsesimen: a7k, C0-Cosoime Certet - Shere coptal ard share premium,

348
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Mote 34 Significant subsidiaries and associates (continued)

Significant subsidiarias (continead)

‘Lompany lrisdiction of ncorporation Busine division
LBS mvestments FRilppines, Inc.

ng Enng China
Mu=bai, India
London, Great Britn

Grarge Tovm, Cayman [dands
Delawae, ULA

Fuzla Lumpus, Malaysia
Wk City, Philippines
Singapone, Sngapoe:

Saol, South Korea

Mu=bai, india

brakor, Poland

Delawaee, US4

Sanchon, Sosth Africa

Zarich, Suitzerland

Meezau, Bshames

George Tows, Cayman Islands
. ke, borsay

Singapors, Sngapons
Landin, Great Britan
Lardun, Greal Britain
Ladin, Greal Britan
Melbsoume, Australia

B ik, LA

Ve mmagens Advies

Holding B Aeslirdam, the Metherands Global WMEEE

EDINETOOOO
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‘share capial Equity interast
inmillions  accumulated in %

£UR 0.3 1000

1 Crlobal Ve &5 ol Weakth Menosgement & Sininess Banideg, Globel fil: Global fasst Waregement, | | eesiment Bank, 0 Coports Cenier 1 5 bare copal ard shass premium.
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Mote 35 Invested assets and net new money

Irviested assets incude all dient assets managed by of de-
posited with UBS for investment purposes. For example,
invested astets mcluede managed fund assets, managed insti-
tutional assets, dscretionary and adwisory wealth manage-
ment portfolics, fiducary deposits, time deposits, savings
accounts and wealth management securities or brakerage
accownts. All assets held for purely transactional purposes
and custody-only assets, including corporate dient assets
held far cash management and transactional purpasas, are
excluded from irmvestad assets as the Group anly administers
the assets and does not offer advice on how the assets
should be invested. Also exduded are non-bankable assets
{e.g. art collections) and depasits from thind-party banks for
funding or trading purposes,

Discretionary assets ane defined as client assets far which
LBS desides how o irvest them. Other invested assets are
those where the dient ultimately decdes how the assets are
immsted. When a single product is created in one business
divisien and sald in anather, it is counted in both the busi-
niss divissan that manages the swvestment and the one that

EDINETOOOO
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distributes it This results in double counting within LBS total
vested assels, a5 kath business divisicns are providing &
sarvce independently to ther respective dients, and both
add value and generate revenue.

Met new maney in a pericd i the net amount of invested
assets that ane entnusted 1o LIBS by new and existing clients
less those withdrawn by existing cients and clients wha ter-
manate their relationship with UBS.

Met new monay is calculated using the direct method, by
which inflows and outflows taffrom wvested assets are de-
termined at the client level based on fransactions. Interest
and dividend incame from invested assets is not courted as
net new morey inflow. Market and curmency movements as
well as fees, commissions and interest an loans charged ane
excluded from net new momey, & are the effects resultng
fram any acguistion ar divestrment of a LBS subsichasy ar
business. Redassfications between invested assets and cli-
ant assets as a result af a change in the service level delivered
are treated as net new maney flows,

On or for the year esded

HF tilon 1208 EY NI
Fund amsets managed by UBS EE] 5
Biommiomony L e
e o T
Tatal invested assets (double counts imduded) 2174 3,183
thareof docfile coumt Fra] g
S s Pt T o e
et new money (double counts induded) (2380} 1404

351
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 36 Business combinations

Business combinations completed in 2008

Cakse Cenlrale de Réescomple Graup

In February 2008, UBS completed the aoguisition in France of
100% of Casse Cenirale de Réescomote Group (CCRY from
Commerzkans. The cost of the business combsnation, inglud-
ing directly atirbutable transaction costs, amounted 1o ap-
przxEmately CHF 613 milkon (EUR 387 milkon) and was paid
in cash. The cost of the business combination induded ap-
prommately EUR 133 million for the excess capital in CCR at

Calsse Cantrale de Réescompte Group (CCR) 2008

EDINETOOOO
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clasing. The cost af the business combination ha been allo-
cated to intangible assets reflecting customer relationships of
CHF 36 millian (EUR 23 millicn), net assets of CHF 206 mil-
lian (EUR 131 milkon) and goochsll of CHF 368 million (ELR
233 millian). The business of CCR, which induded EUR 13.3
billion of rvested assets as of 31 December 2007 and ap-
praximately 190 employees, was integrated into LIBSS assat
managament and wealth management businessas in France,

CHE milen Eook Valee Step-up ao fai walue Far Walus
ARERLE
Wanghleassels L R T i&
Propertpandenelpment ] . b E]
Bl L R =8
AN nther assets 513 1 514
Total assets 518 405 923
Liabilithes
B I e B ] S AL
Mat wsets Frl| 2 a13
Total liabilities and eguity 518 405 923
©n the acquisition date, intangible assets and goodwill were allocated to the divisions as follows:
Caisse Centrale de Réescompte Group (CCR) 2008

Ginhal Waalth Management & Ginhal Awmet
CHE milon Eusinesz Basking Itznagement Toal
Assets
[l L o =
Gondvll ar £z | Eo
352
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Mote 36 Business combinations (continued)

VErFROer S Oroeg

In August 2008, UES completed the acguisition af 100% of
VermogensGroen, an independent Dulch wealth manager.
The cost of the business combination, including directly
attributable transachan costs, amounted to approximately
CHF 171 million (EUR 105 milkon} cut of which approxi-
mately CHF 81 millien (EUR 50 million) were paid in cash
upan dasing. The remaining cost of the business combina-
tien is expected to be paid in installments over the next

EDINETOOOO
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3 years. The cost of the business combination was allog-
ated 1o intangibe assets of CHF 42 millicn (EUR 30 milion,
riet labilities of CHF 2.1 millsan EUR 1.3 mallian) ard gacd-
will of CHF 124 million {EUR 77 million}. VermogensGroep
serdes wealthy private dients, foundations and institutions
in the Dutch market and managed client assets of aporoxi-
matety ELIR 4 billsar at the time of the transactian. Verma-
gensGroep was integrated into UBS's wealth management
business.

WermogensGroep 2008

CHF miicn ook Vahie  Step-up oo fai vale Far Ve
Assets

tangibie amets a 45
Property and equipment x 2
Goodwil a 1
il ther assets 10 1
Tatal asssts 12 185
Ligbilities

Tetdl fiakiilies z 12 1
Ml imsets 10 U 171
Tatal liabilities and ety 12 173 185

Aoguisition announced after the balance sheet date
Acquisition of the commaediiy indlex business of A1G
Finanoal Proaucts Comp

On 19 January 2005, UBS announced that s invesiment
bank had entered into a bnding agreerment 1o purchase the
commodity index business of AlG Finandal Products Corp.,
induding AKG's rights 1o the DJ-AK Commodity indesx, The

purchase price for the transaction is USD 15 million, payable
upon closing, and additional payments of up to LISE 135 mil-
Bon over the fallowing 18 manths, based upon futune eann-
ngs of the purchased business. Closing of the transaction,
expected by May 2002, 15 subject ta a number of regulataory
and other conditions. Mo assurance can be given that any
swch conditions will be satisfied,

353
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 36 Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations completed in 2007

During 2007, UBS completed twe material acquestions that
wiare accounted for as business combanations.

MeDorald Investrnanis’ Branch network

In February 2007, UBS completed the acguisiian of the
brarch netwerk of MoDonald Investments, a unit of Key-
Corp. The cost af the business combination consisted of
CHF 265 million USD 220 million) for the butinets opera-
tiors including directhy attributable transaction costs, and of
CHF 7O millien 450 58 milion} for the net loans to ous-
tomer portiokos of McDonald Investments, resulting in a

MeDanald Investrments” branch petwork 2007

to1al cash corsideration pakd of CHF 328 milien (USD 278
mrallicen). The cost of the business combination was allacated
to an intangible asset reflecting customer relationships of
CHF 57 million (US0 27 million), remaining net assets of
CHF 77 milkon {50 63 mdlion) indudng the net leans 1o
custemes portfolas, and goodwill of CHE 205 milllon (LUSD
168 milion). The unit provides camprehensive wealth man-
agement senvices to affluent and high net warth individuals,
induding estate planning, retirement planning and asset
management, and has been integrated inte Wealth Man-
agement LS.

Slep-up o fai valie

Tetal liabilities and aguity

Oaehan Investmeant Trust anagerment Company

In July 2007, UBS completed the acquisition of 51% of Dae-
han Irvestrent Trust Management Company Lid, (DIRCO)
frarm Hana Daeloa Secuities {farmerly Daghan nvestmant &
Securities Company Ltd ), a wholly owned subsidiary of Hana
Financal Group. DACO wes integrated into UBSs Global
Azzat Managemant business and renamed a3 LBS Hana Assat
Management Company Ltd, imemationally, and as Hana L85
Assel Managament in Karea, The estirmated cost af the busi-
ness combination amounted to approdmately CHF 238 mil-
lign (KRW 180 billion) in total and was paid in cash, The pur-

Dachan Investment Trust Management Company 2007

Mat wsets atirbutable o 1085 shavsholders
Total liabilities and aguity

chase price & subgect to an earn-cut clawback of up 1o CHF
40 millicn £RW 30 billion) over the next three ta five yaars,
The acquesiton costs had been allocated to intangible assets
reflecting custames relationships of CHF 54 million, net assets
of CHF 74 million and goodwill of CHF 170 millian. On the
acquisition date, equity attributable to minority interests
was CHF 60 million, At dosing, DIMCO managed arcund
CHF 264 bilkon of assets (KR 122 trllian),

In 2008, the purchase price allocatian was finalized and
resulted in intangible assets of CHF 52 million and goodwill
af CHF 188 millian.

Eook Valee Step-up fo fain walue Far Walue
.............................. OO . USSR |
..................................................... o SO ..
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Mote 36 Business combinations (continued)

Business cambiratans announced in 2007

Standard Chartereg's mutuel funds mandgenent business
in India

Following the expiry of the Sale and Purchase Agresment
between L85 and Standard Chartered Bank exscuted in
January 2007, LIES announced in December 2007 that it will
ned procesd with its planned acquisitton of Standasd Cha-
tered Bank's mutual furds management business. in India.

Acouisition of significant assocates in 2007

LIS Secunties

In Ageil 2007, LBS completed the acquistion af an equity
stake of 20% in the newly established UBS Securities Co. Ltd.
{LUBSS) in China for a total consideration of approximataly

Pro-forma information (unaudited)

The following pro-forma information shows LBSS total op-
erating income, net peafit sttributable to UBS shareholders
and basic earnings per share as if all of the acquisitions com-
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CHF 269 millicn (RME 2.4 Billon), The cost of the acguistion
consisted of cash payments of approdimately CHF 324 milion
(RME 2.7 billion) meludsng transaction costs and kaklities sat-
tied as well as the assumption of lakbikties of approximately
CHF 45 million (RMB 0.3 bdan), {On the basis of its cument
rights and cbligations, LBS has sigrificant mfluence and ap-
plies the equity method of accountng. Following appravalks
by Chinese regulators, UBSS commenced opsrations in De-
cember 2006 on the basis of a comprehensive sat of securities
Bcenzes, LIRSS is active in bath primary and secondary domes-
fic equities and fixed income businesses, in discretionany asset
management, corporate advisory and mergers and acquisi-
tions servicas, and m wealth management.

uary 2006, Adjustments hawve been made to reflect additanal
armcetization and depreciation of assets and liakslities, which
have been assigned fair values different from their carrgover

pleted in 2008 had been made as of 1 January 2007 and all  bases in purchase accounting.

acquisitions completed in 2007, had been made as of 1 Jan-

Fro-forma infermation (unaudited)

For thes yeaar anghad

CHE mAen, emoanr wiena nciated! N110E EIR A IR

Totd eperatingfoogme 613 31592 143,478

Metwolt s {5931 BT

Baskea'drrppersha‘edﬂ-ﬂ {7681 (242} 5.35
&
g
i
&
&
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

MNote 37 Discontinued aperations
2008

Incustiial '1|_,:|-'_:||||=|_-

In 2008, private equity investments, including the sake of one
equity investment and subsequent gains on private equity
investments sold in prior years, connbuted CHF 155 mdlion
to LUBSS net profit from discontinued eperations, which
inchudes after-tax gains on sale of CHF 120 million and an
after-tax operating profit of CHE 34 million. The cash consid-
eration recenved for the equity inwestment sold in 2008
amaunted to CHFE 141 milkon. These private eguity invest-
menits were hald withirn the Industrial Holdings, integratad
within Corporate Center since the beginning of 2008, and
wiere sold in Bne with LIBS's strategy 1o exit the private aguity
business,

2007

Inchastrial '||_‘:|-_‘:||||_|:-

In 2007, private equity investiments, incuging the sale of
two private equity investments as well as subseguent gains
an private equity investments scdd in prior years, contributed
CHF 132 milion to UBSS net profit from discontinued
operations, whech mcledes after-tax gains on sale of CHF
102 mullion and an aftes-tax aperating profit af CHE 36 mil-
lign. The cash consideration receved for the two investments
sald in 2007 amownted to CHF 14 million. These private
equity investments wiere all hald within the Industrial Hald-
ings segrment and were sold in Bne with LES'S strategy to exit
the private equity business.

Frivate banks & GAM

The tax benefit on gain from sakes of CHF 258 million in-
cludes the release of a deferred tax liability of approximataly
CHF 275 milion to the profit and loss account, which was
recognized upon the sale of LIRSS 20,7 % stake in Julius Baar
in 2007, This deferred tax liability had been recagnized in
connection with the receipt of Julius Baer shases on the sale
of Private Banks & GAM in December 2005, but was not ul-
timately incurred due to the manner of realization of the
Julius Baer investment, The tax expense fram the recognition
of the deferred tax lakslity was booked in discontinued op-
erations in 2005, and therefore the release has alio been
reflected in discontinued operations.
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2006

Matar-Cobumbus

On 23 March 2006, UBS sold its 55.6% stake in Motor-
Columbus to @ consorfium represanting Atal's Swiss minority
sharehalders EBM, EBL, the Canton of Solothurn, 1B Aaraw,
AlL Lugana and WWZ Zugh, ECS Helding and Atel, as well as
to the French utility Electricité de France (EDF} following the
recaipt of relevant regulatory approwals by the Swiss and
international authorities, In total, UBS sold 281,535 Motoe-
Columbus shares, at 2 price of CHF 4,600 per share, resuli-
ing in a sale price of approximately CHF 1,295 million, which
was fully paid in cash. A pre-tax gain on sals of CHF 364 mil-
lign is reported in the Industrial Haldings segment, From
1 January to 23 March 2006, MoterColembus had a net
profit from operations of CHE 71 millicn, Togethar with the
aftes-1ax gain o sake of CHF 387 million, the net profit from
discontinued cperations is CHF 458 million in 2006,

Cther Industria! hold gl

In 2006, prvate eguity mvestments contributed CHF 437 mil-
lion 1o UBS's net profit from discontinued operations, which
includes afiertax gains on sale of CHF £24 mallion and an
after-tax operating prafit of CHF 13 million.
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MNete 37 Discentinued aperations (continued)

For the year ended 21.12.08

CHF milian Private Banks & GAM' Irclustrial Heddiegs
1%
(15}
-
130
155
l:l .
']
Tax expense from discontinusd operations 1 o
155
[{H
fnandng actraties 0 0
+ G nealring 1 & purchane prce ] Rt related T The Sk of Private Sanis & GAll in JO05 Indedd i Corposte Came in o 2a
For the year esded 31.12.07
CHF million Frivaie Basks & GaM' Indusinal Heldngs
opesting income 0 M
Opesaling eepenses 35
Opesating profit fom deconinued cperations befare ta %
Pra-3am gain on sale 0z
Prafit from discomtinued operations before tax 13
o
o
[+]
135
2
0
(42
Far the year eaded 31,1106
LHF million Motn-Colembus  Oiher Indusirial Keldings'
Opesating inosme 2454 FH
ar
s
am
Prafit fram discontinued operaticns befors tax 445 4
Tor wpmss un operating o ot feom decodinuad cporatioms tafam B ] L —— ]
T poopenci on gais from sk [23} o
Tax sxpensa from discontinued cparations M 1
Hat prait from discantinued cperatians 458 441
Mat cash flows from
o
on
[22} (24
1 Previas gain on sale inc e CHF 4 million sebated 1o Privase Banks & G4, whica Is inchuded in Comporme Conter I Note 2.
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 38 Recrganizations and disposals

I’!l_-:_u-;-'-_."n:.u'l-)":;'

Clasure of the U5 municipsl secuniiies business

In June 2008, UBS clesed its bvestrment Bank’s institutional
municipal seourities business. The retail operations of the
municipal securites business, including secondary markat
activities, were transferred 1o Wealth Management US, As a
resull, approximataly 70 ermployees and municpal bonds
with a fair value of approximately CHF Q.4 billion (USD
0.4 bdlion} were transferred from the Investment Bank to
‘Wealth Management LIS,

In 2008, restructuning costs of CHF 56 mellion (S
55 million} and a goodwill impasment loss of CHF 341 mil-
lisn (IS0 334 million) were recognized in the income
statement in relation ta this closure, The restruciuening costs
mainly relate 1o termination <osts for office space rental
contracts and vendar cantracts, and severancs payrmenis 1o
employess,

figpositianing of the nvesimeant Bank

In connection with the repositianing of the Investinant Bank
annownced in October 2008, restructuring costs of apgraxi-
mately CHF 737 malion wera mncurred in fowrth quarter 2008,
These costs consisted of approamately CHF 435 malion of
personnel expenses, mainly severance payments and other
compensation, and approximatel CHF 302 millkan of costs
refated o real estate, mcluding impairment kasses on proper-
ties and equipment of CHF 100 milicn and costs for unusad
premises of CHF 202 milkan,

Lisposals

Sale of US residential marigage-backed secunities
BlackRock fund

On 20 May 2008, UBS completed the sale of a portfolio of
Uz resdential mortigage-backed securities (RMB3S) for pro-
ceedds of USD 15 billian to the BMBS Oppartunites Master
Fund, LP {the “fund"}, a third-party fund managed by Black-
Rock, Inc. The portfolio had a notional value of approxi-
mately S0 22 bdlion and comprised primarily Ali-4 and
sub-peime related assets, and a brwted amount of peime
securities. Based on fair value at the time of the transaction,
approximately three-guarters of the assats sold consisted of
2006 and 00T vintages.

Thie fund was capitalized with approximately LD 3.75
billkan in eguity raised by BlackRock from thard-party ires-
tors. The equity mvastars will absork any lesses sustainad by
the fund up to & maximum of their equity investment. UBS
provided an eight-year amartizing LD 11,25 billion senior
sgoured loan 1o the fund, collateralized by the RMES assets
held by the fund. The loan bears a commeraal rate of inter-
&5t with debt service being met from principal and miterest
received from the underlying mortgage pools, LIBS deoes not
retain ary aquity interast in the fund,
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Thee USE 15 billien proceeds were appeaxdmataly in line
withi the fair value of the assets recorded by LIBS a1 31 March
2008,

Since its inception, the fund has amortized the loan
through manthly payments in Bne with LBS%s cniginal expec-
tations. As at 31 December 2008, the loan had a balance
outstanding of USD 3.2 billion. UBS does not conselidate the
fund into its balance sheet as the equity investors in the fund
confinue to bear and receive the magority of the risks and
rewvands, LIRS continues 1o manitar the development of the
fund's performance and would reassess the consolidatan
status of detericration af the underlying marigage pook ra-
lated to the AMBS were to indicate that UBS may nat fully
recover the loan granted to the fund,

Sale af assets 1o a Mied-party fund controfed By the

Siwiss MWational Bank (SNGF

As announced on 16 October 2008, UBS entered into
an agregment with the Swiss National Bank (3MB} 1o trans-
fer certain iliguid secusities and other positions 1o the
SMB StabFund limited partnership for collectve investments
{the “fund”), which is fully cwned and controlled by the
SME.

Far each transfer of assets, the SMB finances 90% of the
purchase price oy providing & loan to the fund and the re-
maining 10% by making an equity contribution te the fund.
Upan each asset transfer, UBS purchases, for an amount
equal to the SNB'S eguity contributicn to the fund an that
date, an ootion 10 purchase the fund's equity (all such ap-
tions refarred to collectively as the “call option ™). The exer-
cise price of the call option is set at USD 1 billion plus 50%
af the fund's equity value that exczeds LS 1 billion at the
time of exercise, The call option will be exercisable upan
repawment in Bl of the lean provided by the SNB. The loan
5 seeured by the assets of the fund and bears interest at a
rate of one month LIBCA of the underlying currency plus 250
bass points. Senice of tha lean will b2 made from the cash
flows generated by the fund's assets.

In the event of a change of eentrel af LBS, the SNB has
the right but nat the ablgation to reguest that LBS purchase
the SMB' loan to the fund at its outstanding princpal ameount
plus accreed interest and the fund's equity for S0% of its
walue at the tirme (the "put option'),

If, upon termination of the fund, the SNE incures a loss on
its loan, it will be entitled to recaive 100 million UES ordinary
shares, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, in exchange far
payrnent of the par value of these shases (the “contingent
shang issue"],

The pasitions are transferred ta the fund at marken value
{mat exposurel determirsed at 30 Segtember 2008. The posi-
tians transferred 1o the SMB are priced at the lower of LBS'S
astimated market value as of 30 Septembar 2008 and the
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Mote 38 Reorganizations and disposals (continued)

value deterrmined a5 of that date by the SME based on 2
valuation conducted by third party valuation agents.

Compared with the inibal anncuncerment on 16 Octa-
ber 2008, the originally agreed size of the portfclio of USD
&0 billion 1o be transferred has been reduced. LIBS has trans-
ferred or identified for transfer positions totalbng & market
value {net exposure] of USD 35 6 billien induding the effect
of price adjustments so far totalling USD 0.7 bilon). Posi-
ticns identified for transfer include approximately USD 219
billian of positicns prassausly declosed as risk concentrations,
prirmarily LIS real estate-related securities and assets fram the
LIS reference-linked note program (RLMY, and apgraximataly
UsD 17.5 hillion of ather positons, mainly non-US real es-
tate-related secunties as well as other asset-backed securi-
fies, price 1o the price difference of USE Q.7 blicn on the
positians far which the SNE already determined the pur-
chase price.

On 16 Decernber 20028, UBS completad the sale of a first
tranche of seourities pasitions for approximately LD 16,4
billian consisting primarly of US and Ewsopean residen tial
and commeras morgage-backed securities and other asset-
backed seowities. The remaining positions identified for sale
to the fund are planned to b2 transferred in March 2009 in
ane ar mare additional transfers,

The purchase price for the secunites transferred to the
furd en 16 December 2008 was the value of these secunties
as af 30 September 2008 as determined by the SNE based
an a valuation conducted by third-party valuation experis,
On the same bass, the SNE has since detarmined the purs
chase price 1o be paid for a further USD 7.8 billon of pesi-
tions that have not yet been transferred to the fund. So far,
the determined purchase prices for positions transferrad
te ar 1 be transfarred o the fund were, in the aggregate,
WD 0F billion lower than the valee UBS assigned 1o these
positians on 30 September 2008, All of this difference is
accounted for in UBS% results for 2008, Overall, the aggre-
gate price difference represents approximately 3% of LBSS
market vakie (et exposurg) for these positions and reflects
the inherent judgement invaled i the valuation of iliguid
assels.

Under IFRS, the call option is recognized on the balance
sheet as a derwative at fair value with changes in fair valug
recagnized in profit oF less, The porton of the call apticn al-
ready purchased is reflected as Positive replacenent value,
The portian of the call option yet to be purchased upen fu-
ture transfers is reflected as Megative replacement vakue to-
gether with the amount payable ta the SkE far such option.

The put optan was evaluated a5 3 cantingent liability that
has bean deemed remote.

The contingent share issue is treated a5 an equity nstru-
ment and was recognized at fair valee in equity as an in-
crease ta Shase premium and an expense in Met trading
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meomne. The fair value of the contingent shara issue was
estimated at apperoximately CHF 807 millicn and wall not
heseafier be re-measurad 1o fair value.

Owerall, the mmpact of the transaction on the income
statemnent was a loss of approximately CHF 5,232 millicn in
2008, This reflects a net Ioss on the call option of approxi-
mately THF 3,511 mdlion and the axpense of appraximately
CHF 607 million asscciated with the contingent share issuse
as well as a CHF 771 million loss due fo the recognized price
difference and CHF 343 million losses on hedges that were
subject 1o rading restrictions as a nesult of the transacticn.

The rermaining market value {(net exposure) of the posi-
tions already transferrad or still to be transferred 1o the fund
ameounts to USD 394 billion excuding the effect of price
adustments 5o far totalling L0 Q.7 kdlion, Of these posi-
tions USDr 313 bilkon of market valus (net expasurel repra-
sants financial assets, predominantly Trading portfobo as-
sats, with a corresponding balance sheet amount of USD
31.1 billian per 30 Septermber 2008, USD 8.1 billion of mar-
ket value et exposure) redate 1o financial liabilites, exclu-
sively Negatwe replacement values from dervative contracts,
with a balance sheet amount of USD 10.2 billion at the same
date, Market values {net exposune] represent the remaining
loss potential or economic risk fram a pesition and may dif-
fer fram the balance sheet carrying amount, partculary far
desivative cantracts which are represented on the balance
sheet by replacement values.

Disposal of equity interest in Adams Sireet Fartnars

In August 2008, UBS Global Asset Management dosed the
sale of its 24.9% equity interast in Adams Street Partmers
{ASP) to the remaining shareholders of &3P for & cash con-
sideration of approamately CHF 184 million (L5D 167 mil-
Bon). UBSS interest in ASP was accounted for usng the
aquity meathad. The sale resulted in a gain of appeaximately
CHF 168 milion. ASP was formed o lanuary 2001 in con-
mection with a management buyout of that business from
Glabal Asset Management, with LIES retaining the now sald
24 9% stake. Global Asset Management will continue its
close collaboration with ASP under an existing sub-adwisory
agreement in place since 2001,

Disposal of financa! investroent In Bank of Ching

In December 2008, LBS disposed of its equaty stake in Bark
of China throwgh a placing of approximately 3.4 billion Bank
of China Limited H-shares to institutional investors for 3
cash consideration of approximately CHE 887 mdlion (HKD
6,519 million), LBS acguired the shares in 2005 i preparas
tion for Bank of China's PO ta the mternatonal market. The
irvestment in Bank of China was acoounted for a5 a finandal
nvestment available-for-sale, The dispesal resulted in a gain
of approvarmately CHF 360 mallion,

55
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 39 Currency translaticn rates

The followeng table shows the principal rates used to translate

211308
1LS0 107
1EUR 149
1GHR 155
0 1Py 117
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the financial staternents of foreign antitiss into Swiss francs:

T e
nzar 31.12.08 3.n2ar 301206
- 1.4 L S ] 115
1.65 1.58 165 158
. 128 L B i
1.0 0.58 102 108

Note 40 Swiss banking law requirements

The comsalidated Financiad Statements of LBS are prepared
in accardance with Intemational Anancal Reportag Stan-
dards (FRS). The Guedelines of the Swiss Rnancal Market
Supenasony Autharity FINMA) require banks which presant
their financial statements under FRS 1o provide 2 narrative
explanation of the maen differences betwieen IFRS and Swiss
GAAP (FINMA aroular 08/2) and the Banking Crdinance. In-
cluded in this note are the significant differences in regard o
recognition and measurement between FRS and the provi-
zons af the Banking Ordinance and the Guidelines of the
FINM2 governing financal statement reparting pursuant 1o
Article 23 threugh Artidde 27 of the Banking Ordinance. The
differences cutlined in points twe threugh nine also apply to
the Farent Bank statutory accounts,

1. Cansobdation
Undes IFRS, all entities which are contralled by the Group are
consolidated.

Under Swiss law, only entities that ane actwe in the fisld
of banking and finance and real estate entities ane sulyject 1o
conselidation. Entities wihich are held tempararily are gener-
gy recorded as finandial investments.

2. Finangial investments available-for-sale

Under IFRS, Finandial investments available-forsale are
carmed a1 fair walue. Changes in farr value are recarded
directhy in Equity until an irvestment is sold, collected or
atherwise disposed of, or until an investment is determined
1o be impaired, At the time an avallabde-for-sale insestrment
15 determined ta be impaired, the cumulatve unireabzed kass
previously reccgnized in Equity is included in net profit or
loss for the period. On disposal of a finandal inwestment
availabla-far-sale, the cumulative urvecognized gain or loss
previausly recogrized in Equity is recognized in the income
statement.
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Uinder Swiss law, financal investrments are camed either
at the lower of cost or market or at amonized ool less
impairment with changes in measurement recorded in the
income statemant. Reductions to market value balow cost
and reversals of such reductions up 1o onginal gost as well &
gains and losses an disposal are ncluded = Other incame,
Equity investments that are considerad permanent are car-
ried on the balance sheet at cost less impasrment with
impairment ksses recorded in the incame statement, Perma-
rent investrnents are classified on the balance sheet as in-
weslments in associated companies.

3. Cash flow hedges

The Group uses derivative instruments 1o hedge the sxpo-
sure from varying cash flows, Under IFRS, when hedge
aceounting is applied the fas value gain or loss on the effec-
tive portion of the derfvative designated as a cash flow hedge
s recagnized in Eguity, When the hadged cash flows materi-
alize, the accumulated urwecognzed gain ar loss is realized
arvd redeasedd to income,

Under Swiss law, the effectve portion of the fair
valus change of the derivative instrument used 9o hedge
cash flow exposures is deferred on the balance sheet
a5 other assets or other Labilities. The deferred amounts
are released 1o incame when the hedged cash flaws mate-
rialize.

4. Imvestment property
Under IFRS, investrment property is carmed at fair valug, with
changes in fair value recogrezed in the income statement.
Undar Swiss law, investment property is carried at amor-
tized cost less amy acoumulated depreciation less impairment
losses unless the imvestment property is classified as hedd for
sale. Irmvestrent property classified as held for sabe is carmed
at the lower af cost or market.
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MNote 40 Swiss banking law reguirements (continued)

5. Fair value ootion
Unger IFRS, the Group aoplies the fae value apticn 1o cerain
financial assets ard financal liabdties, masly te hybiid dabt
instruemeenits. As & result, the entire hybrid instrement is ac-
counted for at fair value with changes in fair valus reflected
in net ragng incame, Furthermane, LBS designated cerain
loans, loan commitrments and fund investments as financal
assets designated at fair value through profit and loss.
Under Swiss accounting rules, the fair value option is not
awadable, Hybnd instruments are bifurcated: the embedded
derivative Is marked to market throwgh net rading incame
ard the host contract is accounted for on an accrued cost
baws. Mo own credit adjustments are booked tfor hybrid
instrumants, Generally, loans are accounted for at amortized
cost less impairment, loan commitments stay off-balance
shieet and fund investments are accounted for as financal
Imastments.

6. Goodwill and intangible assets

Undes IFRS, goodwill acgused in @ business combinatian is
not amartized but tested annually for impairment. Intangible
assets aoguired in a business combination with an indefinite
useful bfe are also mat amortized but tested annually for
impairment,
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Under Swiss law, goodwill and intangible assets with in-
definite useful lives are amortzed over a period rol exceed-
mig frve years, unkess a longer wseful life, which may nat
excead twenty years, can be justified.

! DEcantinued Operateans
Under certain canditions, IFRS requires that nan-current as-
sats or dsposal groups be dlasshied as held for sale. Disposal
groups that meet the criteria of dscontinued operations are
présented in the income statement in & singla ling as nat
mnceme from discontinued operations.

Under Swass law, no such reclassification takes place.

&, Extracedinary income and expense

Certain iterns of income and expense are classified as
autraordinary iarms wnder Swiss law, wheseas in the Group
Income Statement the amounts are classified as opsrating
mcome ar expense of are ncluded in net profit from discon-
tinued cperations, if reguired.

9. Metting af replacernant valuss

Under FRS, replacement values are reported on a gross basis,
unless certain restrictive requirements are met, Under Swiss
lawy, replacement values are reported on a net bass, prowd-
ed the netting agreements are lkgally enforceable.
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Note 41 Supplemental guaranter infarmation required under SEC rules

Guarantes of PaineWebber securities
Following the acqussitian of Paine Webber Group Inc, LBS
made a full and unconditonal guarantae of the sanior and
subordinated notes and trust preferred securities ("Debt
Securitias”) of PaineWebbes, Prior 1o the acguisition, Paine-
Webber was a 5EC Reqgistrant, Upon the acguisition, Faine
Welhber was merged inte LIBS Americas Ine., awhally cemed
subsidiary of UBS.

Under the guarantea, if UBS Americas Inc. fails to make
ary timely payment under the Debt Securities agreements,

the halders of the Debt Securities or the Debt Securities
trustee may demand payment from LBS withowt first pro-
ceeding against UBS Americas Inc. UBSYS ebligatans under
the subordinated note guarantee are subordinated to the
prics payment in full of the depasit liabdlities of LBS and all
ather liabikties of LBS.

The informatian presented in this note is prepared in ac-
cordance with IFRS and should be read in conjunction with
the Comsalidated Financial Statements of UBS of which this
infoemmation is a part,
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Supplemental Guarantor Consdidating Income Statement

CHE milion UES &G UES Cansel idating

For g8 year andad 31 Dacamibes 2008 Parunt Bank' Americas Inc, Subsidiarias Entries UES Group
Oparating incama

Intagst income 29,655

i, mrﬂ .................. S

Wethmmmtineme 142

Credi loss frapense) | raomesny (861}

Mot istarest income atter rad | exparea 1=

9,708
......... e
........ S
""""" 2838 1,002 {3,203) 0o 53
[15,314) (8,022) 5,251 19,282 Te5
8,738 2,355
.......... o
.......... ol
........... .
........... - o
13,437 10,412 4,715 0 28,555
Oparating profit fram continuing oparations befons tax (28, 741) (19,434) 535 19,882 (27,758)
Tax ppensn (7.407) 14 574 i (5837
Mt profit from continuing cperations [21,335) 19,4300 e 19,882 (20,922)
Mat peofit from distontineed oparations 43 o 155 i 158
Mt penfit [21,282) 19,4300 115 19,882 (20,724)
Mot peofit attrbutabls tn minority isseress o %) 577 o SER
Mut profit attributable to UES sharsholdars [21,282) {13,421} {461] 19,882 (21,282)

1 U &G Parurt: Eank. prefanes s Sranchl 2aements in Joooirhncs wie Sk barking las requ iements For the porpoes of this Shoomie, the accuats zes been adjused 1o FRE.
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Mote 41 Supplemental guaranter information reguired under SEC rules (continued)

Supplemental guarantor comsolidating balance sheet

R milen UBS AG (8] Cornolicating
45 of 30 Decamiber 2008 Farent Bank'  Americas Inc Subsidiarkes Entries UES Group

2014815

195,723 68,212 111,500 [250,B0E] 125,628
25,238

12,558 4,313 24,538 {7,484 33965
1,817,614 356,485 746,032 [945,830) 1,574,282
Equity attributable to UBS sharahalders T8,B7E [1.057) 20,235 (65,473) 32,521
Equity atiribetahl 4o misority istarsts o 3,038 4,588 a 8,002
‘Tatal equity TH.H7S 1,539 25,152 (55,473) 80,533
Tatal liabilities and aguity 1,595 485 358,405 771,224 11,011,303 2014815
1 LIES, &G Parent Sank propanes ks Ananchl i aooornee with T For the purpose of this dschasure, the accounts Rase boen aci ested to FAS.
E
2
g
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Financial infosmation

Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 41 Supplemental guaranter infarmation required under SEC rules (continued)

Supplemental guarantor comsolidating cash flow statement

TR milen UES AG UES
Fior e yaar anged 31 Degembes 2008 Parent Bamk!  Americas Inc Subsidiaries UES Group
Wet cash flow framd (used in) cperating adtivitles 69,77 (28] T A6 TE.8RD

gt iswwstest il dwessmest of fisancal imestmants avalable-forsaia 30 156 1115} iHal
Mot cash flow fram ! {usad inj investing activities (z268) L) LLIESS) 1176}
Eash flows rem/ s inl finascing acthdties

[11.578)

[11,896) 8,550 [5,557]

o L -5t SR o SURPIT, oL, S S
0,561

o e e e e e e i e e e
Cash and cash equivalants, and of the year 132,755 24,471 179,566

Cash and cash eqeisalents comprisa:

Dus from basks with riginal matussy of ks than theee mossts 42,848 ! 80,190

Total 132,755 24,431 ] 179,566

1 UBS AG Farent Bank prejares 15 fnancal azements in acoorfance with Swiss Banking b ieqebements. o the prpoae of 1k disdosine, e acoounts base been adjustod t FRS. 3 Money
marlae paper i incladed in'the Salasce sheet under Tadkeg portiobo amets a0 Aranchl (rsesmens availbie-lorsabe CHF 3,853 milllon was pledged at 31 Decenber 7008
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Mote 41 Supplemental guaranter information reguired under SEC rules (continued)

Supplemental guarantor corsolidating income statemeant

CRYF milen UBS AG
For W e enhed 30 Decamber 007 Fanani Bank’
Qperating Incoma
Rl Aliws : LD
Wieest pepenss 174,685
Met ftwesticome . 2617
Crexdit boss (eapensed ! recoery 1
Mt inbasest income artier cradit loos repasse FX]
Matfea and commbzsion come: . 110K
Mt trading income 3947
e o s, | e
e income 14.273)
Tatal operating income 15,132
Oparating axpanses
Fersannel aaparras _ [ERE]
5584

N ﬂﬂ:l
Amorigation of intasgitle amats i
Tatal operating exparses 15,05
Oparating profit from continuing cperations bafore tax 1412 [2,368) 3,805 (464} [3,743)
Tan fopense ) 1ang) 1,061 L 1,363
Mat profit from continuing aperations 15,5120 [7,8750) 3,144 (464} [5,111)
Mat prodit frem discontineed o parations b a 138 a 803
Mal profit 15,247 [7,8750) 1,882 (464} [4,702)
Mal profit attribetable 1o misority insarss o 15 521 L LE]
Mat profit attributable to UBS shareholders 15,2470 [1,887) 1,361 (464} [3,247)

1 UES &G Parent Bank: preqaies ks francil srsments in aoooince with Saiss anking &w mgulements. For the perpose of this disdosure, the J0cnunts Baws boen ad ested tn FRE
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 41 Supplemental guaranter infarmation required under SEC rules (continued)

Supplemental guarantor comsolidating balance sheet

UBS &G UBS Comolidatisg
Farani Bank' Ameras . Sutsidaries Enirias UBS Group

8530
154,138
CELH

1E1 480 147 V] L]

21,840 11,085 780} 2L.731,06%

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to UBS shareholders 3387 126,359 36875
Equity attribetahla tn minority isterests 4527 [ E,851
Total aquity 28503 16,355 4188
Tetal liabilties and aguity 880,343 [1, 113135 L1481
1 UEE 4G Parent Eank: preqares ks fnancil Samements in aocorbnce wih Suks the 2 been arfested o IFAS.

366
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Mote 41 Supplemental guaranter information reguired under SEC rules (continued)

Supplemental guarantor corsolidating cash Flow statement
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it liewesamons inl ) divesament of fisand al imsstmants availabk-for-sala
et cash flow from/{usad in} investing activities

Cach floaw from/ {usad in] fnancisg actitics

Mt actwity in imestmants in sehudianes B iE62T) 5756 ]
ot cash flow from/(usad )} fnancleg activithee TS nagel BA8E T
Effacts of anchange cba diffeances 18,000] (20631 [i6} [12,128)
NetIncmametidecnase] Incosh squbealents B3 LS et O 13415
Cach and cash aqeivalen s, beginning of the year 103,548 1411 19413 136,090
Cash and cash equivalents, and of the year 108, 110 15,8332 IRl 145, 1408
Cach and cash equisaleats comprie:

s from basks with oeigiral martensy of kss fan three moaths. 40,314 a3 10,562 30T
Tatal 106,110 15,532 28453 145,105

| UBS AG Parent Bark prepares s nancal Saements in aoance with Swiss banking b requisement= Fr the: purpose of this dhariosase, S9e a0cunts bave been adpshed b RS = Moy

asofs and Frarcil

market paged s incuded inthe Balaace sheat unda
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Financial mformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 41 Supplemental guaranter infarmation required under SEC rules (continued)

Supplemental guarantor comsolidating income statement

CHF milien UIBS AG Parenl Comolidatisg
For e year entad 31 Decambes 2006 Bank' LIS Amercas o Sulbsldiaries Enires UGS Groug
Oparating Incoma
DAy T T LTI T LSS B
Wntesest eepeirs (36,0200 (41,0483 (38,4031 54,552 (30, BB
Metitrtioome aws s B L 521
Credhi ks espense)/ recmery 16T Ll 151 ] 155
Mot isbarest income after cads s eepares 4,204 1612 BE1 1] BATT
Wothowdommbziominome nes e e LA BA%
Mat fading income 0,308 1,634 1,803 ] 13,743
nenme fom sebeiines - a8 00 ies 0
Cshar income 1450 1,631 421 ] 1408
Total cperating incoma 8,192 13473 £305 (2086 47,484
........ WAm BRMY AR e
2,805 3,362 1,778 V] 1843
- B m el
Asmorization of ntangitle asat 14 LE k1l ] 148
Total cperating expanses 16,178 11,855 san ] 33,365
Oparating profit from continuing operations befom tax 12,514 1,608 3083 {2006} JEANRE]
Tax popens 140 108 481 ] 28u8
Nat profit from continuing cperations 11015 580 1602 (2086} 1,11
Mat peodit from discontineed oparations 513 a ELE) 4 L]
Ml podt 11,527 530 1488 (2086} 1202
ot peodit attribusabke tn mingrity inseresss a ki 134 ] LEE]
Nt profit attributable to U8S sharaholders 11,587 L] 2,003 {2,086} 11,5327

1 US43 Farent: Eank prepanes is Trancil Saements in J0comince wic Sws barking las requ iements For the purpose of this skoogue, the 2ot ass been adjusted to FRE.
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Mote 41 Supplemental guaranter information reguired under SEC rules (continued)

Supplemental guarantor corsolidating cash Flow statement

it liewes o in fdivesament of fisancial insstmants availabk-for-sala

et cash flow from/{usad in} investing activities
Cach flow from ) {usad in] fnancisg actwities

Mt acauity is i stmants in sehedianies 2,41 i 5,121 a
et cach flow fromd(used i} fnancleg activitles aM: e g L A800
#fiocts of axchangs i differences 4% [REL i34} 2,00
et Inomase/(decmass] Incohequibalens MO0 oo o450 5048
Caeh and czeh enivalets, begineing of the-year 3,548 12331 586 a1047
Cash and cash equivalents, and of the year 103,548 12134 19413 138,090
Cach and cash eqeivalints compriss:

[0 fram banks with original marteray of kss ®an thrae moaths.

Tatal 1D&!ﬂ$ 14_I2_9 19413
1 U5 AG Parent Bank prepares ks Anancl satements (b acoodance wih Swks hanking s ssquimments For the paiposs of S ddoeue, e acounes fave been adiehed oo FRS. :Motey
market pager is included inthe Balance sheet e Trading portiobe e and Arancal availabie-for ke, CHF 7,123 millon mas ploriged at 31 December T008.
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Financial information
UBS &G (Barent Bank)

UBS AG (Parent Bank)
Parent Bank review

Income statement

The Parent Bank LBS AG net loss increased by CHF 32,238
milliees from a loss of CHF 4,251 millon in the praviaus year
to a loss of CHF 26 4829 milion.

Income fram investments in associated companies in-
creased 1 CHF 3,763 million from CHF 2,592 milion in 2007,
mainly due o higher dividend distributions received,

Personinel expenses ware down 10 CHE 6,707 millien from
CHF 13,505 milign in 2007, mainly dus to lower acoruals on
performance-related campensation and recognition of 2 de-
fined pension asset,

Losses resslting fram the US market had a sigruficant im-
pact an the following income statement lines:

- Depredation increased from CHF &,660 mdlicn in 2007 1o
CHF 26,900 million in 2008, mainly reflacting writedowns
of imeestments in associated LS companies,

- Met trading income decreased from postive CHE 2,757
millicn in 2007 to negative CHF 9466 millien in 2008,
This mainly reflects losses in the fixed-income business
and the charges assocated with the SNB transactsan.
The decrease in Extraordinary income and increase in

Extraordenary expenses are explained on page 376

Balance sheet

I 2008, UBSs everall balance sheet reduction initiatves also led
to boweer Parent Bank total assets. In particular UBS subsidiaries
in the Americas reduced thair zssets and therefore thair funding
nesds from the Farant Bank, The Parent Bank tatal assets stood
a1 CHF 1,189 bilan on 31 Cecember 2008, a drop of CHF 209
billian frorm CHF 1,598 bilkon on 31 December 2007

The reductons cccurred in trading balances, which
dedined by CHF 254 hillion, interbank lending {Joans and
collateral trading) dropped CHE 171 billion, with custamer
Izans and collateral trading donwn CHF 83 billion and oth-

EDINETOOOO
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er assets down CHF 5 billion. These declines, hawewer,
were partially offset by higher positive replacement values
of CHF 78 billion and liquid assets of CHF 12 billion, Mort-
gage leans remained stable in 2008 at CHF 141 ballion.
The above mentiored write-downs af investrments in as-
sofated LS companies have been offset during the year
by capital inpections.

Interbank lending

Dwring 2004, due fram banks on time declined by CHF 40
billien, predominantly due 1o kwer funding needs of LBS
bank subssdiaries in the Amencas. Due from banks on de-
mand declined slightly by CHF 4 billion, as lower funding to
pank subsidiaries in the Ewropean Region cutweighed the
mncrease to non-UBS related banks in the Americas and
Japan, In addition, interbank collateral tradeng declned by
CHF 127 billien, with roughly twa thirds attributable 1o kawer
trading wolumes with UBS subsidiaries, and one third due to
reductions in trading volumes with third party clients.

Customer lending

The oustomer loan drop of CHF 55 billion was mainby the
rasult of kower funding needs of UBS subsidiaries {non-
banks), preclominantly in the Americas region,

In addition, custemer collateral trading declmed CHF 28
billicn, of which twa thirds was attributatle to third party
clients in the Amesicas and Europe and one third to LIBS sub-
sicaries in the Americas.

Financial investments
Campared with the previous year, the increase of CHF 10 bil-

Bar is mainly due to the redassfication fram Trading balanges
1 securibes 1o Finanaal investments in fourth quarter 2008,

m
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Yarent Bank financial statements

Income statement

Fior the year ended % thange from
CHF millien 3.03.08 e 3aaar
Wtesest and discoust inoome SEET {35)
Wntesest and diadend ingome from tradisg porifolo 19003 (37
Wnbeeest and diwdend income from fnanal nvesssents 58 31
Wtasest aeporss 7517 135
Mal imteres income 2556 {65
Credteled fees ood commissors ] !
Fee and cormmssion iscome fiom sacurites and imsestmant besieess 15463 {25
Ot fe and comesissigs incgme E35 i
Fee and commssion expense {3268 HE]
Mot fea and comestsis |nooms 1 3,060 1261
Mt frading Income 2767
bt isome fiom depesal of firgncal imestogets 17 i
lecome e imesimests in assedaed companes 2.582 a5
become o edd estte bldings n 7
Sundy income fem ordisar aceaties 3,352 1
Survdy pidisany eapenses (3,223} 114]
ey iscome fom prdnary activiiies 2935 57
Operating mooms 11,339 {74
Personnel espenses : ]
reral aed pdmn ERslive anires 5822 51910 12
Operating expanses 12,528 18,556 {331
Operating profit |F, 580} 1543
Depragiaion and write-pfls on nvestments s assocated companies asd fieed acses 26,500 BAED n

Prafit!{loss) for the period |36, 488} EET) 1758]

ar?
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EHF milien 311108 11207 2102407

Arrnuas and defered incose 55
Miegatine replacemen wlues 3
{rher kabibties )
Allowances and provisions 3]
thare capital &2
General statuiony msera s
Reserse for owm shares i)
OHer nesernes 12
Prodit ! (|o=z) for the period |38, 488) 14.251) 1758)
Total liabilities and equity 1,185,358 1,558,072 ]
Toim seboecineted Ksbibries FIFF] H, il f
Toinl smounts papeble foGroup comearier iaM 130,567 {181

Statement of appropriation of retained earnings

The Baard of Direclons propases 1o the Annual General Meaetsd (AGM) an 15 Apnil 2009 1o approve the Tollewsng appropriation:

CHF miicn

ProfitfILoss] for the finascial year 2002 s per foe Pasent Bask's Income: Stamemmess 16,488)
Approgrignon woother resenes 2,115
Apgroprianon to genersl sisutory reseives Retsised eomings 3],
Apgroprianon 1o general siahuiory ressnves: Share premum [11.801)

3
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)
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Notes to the Parent Bank financial statements

Accounting Policies

The Parent Bank Financial Statements ase prepared in accor-
dance with Swiss Federal banking law. The accounting poli-
cias are principally the same as for the Group Financial State-
ments outlined in Mote 1, Summary of Significant Accounting
Folicies. Major differences between the Swiss Federal bank-
ing law requirernents and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFR3) are described in Mate 40 ta the finanaal
statements. The accounting poficies applied for the statutory
accounts of the Farent Bank are discussed below. The risk
management of UBS AG 5 described in the contet of the
fisk management for LBS Group, For the statutesy required
risk assessment refer to the “Risk and treasury manage-
menit” section of this repart.

Treasiry shares
Treasury shares are own equity instruments held by an entity.
Uinder Swiss law, treasury shares are recognized in the balance
sheet & trading balances. Short paositions in treasury shares are
recognized in Due to banks, Treasury shares recognized as
tradng balances and shoet psitions in treasury shares are
measured at far value with unrealized gains or lesses from
remeasurament 1o fair value included in the income statemeant.
Realized gains and losses an the sale or acquisition of treasury
shares are recognized in the income statement.

A reserve for own shares must be created n eguity equal
to the ost value of the treasury shares held. The reserve for
owm shares i not available for distribution to shareholders.

Il:l-,'l-;"n curmenoy translation

Assets and liabikties of faresgn branches are translated into
CHF at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
Income and expenca items are franslated at weighted aver-
age exchange rates for the period, Gains resulting from
exchange differences an the translation of each of these
foreign brarnches are credited 1o a provissan account (other
liabilities). Losses resulting from exchange differances are
debited, firstly, 1o the aforementioned pravision account
until such peovision s fully utilzed, and, secondly. to prafit
and loss.

a4

MVESTIIENTS IN 435008180 COmpanies

Irvestments in associated companies are equity interasts which
are held for the purpose of the Farant Bank's business activities
or for strategic reasors. They indude all directly held subsidiar-
25 and are camied &t cost less impaimment, if apolicabla.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are not recognized in the Parent Bank
Financial Statements, Deferred tax liabilites are recognized
for all taxable temporany dffesences, The change = the de-
ferred tax lability is recagnized in profit or lass,

Equity participation and other compensation plans

Eqpunty participation plars

Under Swiss law, employes share awards are recognized as
compensation expense and accrued over the performance
wear, which is generally the period prior to the grant date.
Employee option awards which do not contain voluntary
terminaticn Non-compete prowisions are reccanized as
compensation expense on the grant date. If the award s
performance based and contains substantive future ser-
wicefvesting period, compensation expense is recognized
over the parformance peniod. Employvee aption awards
which contain voluntary termination non-compete provi-
sions 0.2, good keaver dause) are recognized as compensa-
ticn expense over the performance year. Equity- and cash-
setthad awards are classified as liabilities, Tha emploves share
aption awards are remeasured 1o fair value at each balance
sheal date. However, far empkayes share eotions that UBS
intends to settke in shares from conditional capital, there is
na impact an the income statement and na liability is recog-
nized. Upan exercise of employes cotions, cash recewved for
payrnent of the strike price &5 credited against share capital
ared general statutory reserve.

Cther compensation pians

Fixed and vanable deferrad cash compensation is recognized
a5 campensation expense over the performandce year, If the
award is performance based and contains substantive future
service/vesting period, compensation expense is recognized
over the performance penod.
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Changes in accounting policies, comparability and
other adjustments

Equity participatean plans

I 2008, MBS revised the measwerment methodalagy for
the liabdity Lnder employee share option awards settled with
treasury shares. The measurement of the liability was previ-
ausly based on the higher of grant date fair value and intrin-
se value of the underlying eptions, whereas fallowing the
rewision, it is based on fair value. This change resulted in rev-
enues of CHF 1.2 billion.

In 2005, UBS adopted the pobcy to decide at grant
whether to use conditional capital or treasury shares 1o sat-
isfy employes opton delivery abligations in UES shares. In
2008, UBS changed this policy to allow it to use treasury
sharas up 10 the number of treaswry shares held, with the
excess of emplovee option delivery absgations satsfied from
conditional capatal. As a result, LUBS recognized an additional
expense of CHF 298 milkon before tax in the income state-
ment in 2008,

EDINETOOOO
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Post-employment benefits

In 2008, WS concluded that it mests the requirements to
recognze a defined benefit asset assodated with its Swiss
penson plan comsstent with the consalidated iinanoal state-
mwrils. The change in accounting policy resulted in the fal-
lowing effects on the balance sheet and income statement
far 31 Decermper }00S: an increase of approximately CHF
2.1 billior in Other assets and a camesponding decrease in
Parsornel expensas.

Reclassification of trading securities

UES deciced at the end of Ociober to reclassify securities
fram “trading balances in securities and predous metals” 1o
“financial investments” with effect fram 1 October 2008.
The securities hawve been reclassified on the basis of their fair
value on the reclassification date and are now accounted far
an an amortized o5t bass, An impairment charge of CHF
0.3 bilbon was recograzed on the reclassified financal in-
siruments. If the redassification had not cccurred, the im-
pairment charge would not hawe been recognized but a
trading loss of CHF 1.9 billion would have been recarded,

375
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Additional income statement information

Met trading income

Fior the year ended % thange from
CHE milien 31.12.08 310207 3102407
Bt 39 6T {50)
Fieadingomse (15,508 (TEI {103
Foreign eachange asd other’ 2,108 2579 {18
Toeal {5, 456 6T
1 Indlucies. commod K rasding incoms:
Extraordinary income and expenses

Extracedinary mcome includes a gain fram the sale of the
Bark of China investrment of approximately CHF 350 million
in 2008, wheraas 2007 induded a gain on the sale of UBS's
20,7% stake in lulius Baer of CHF 3,180 millian. Further,
2008 includes & release of pravisions of CHF 72 mullion, a
release on reserves on investments in subsdiaries of CHF
490 milion and a writeup of ifvestments in assocated com-

e

panies of CHF 30 milion (2007 CHF 409 milkon). Amasats
in 2007 include a release on reserves on own praperties of
CHF 824 million and for lapsed employee options of CHF
165 midlien,

In 2008, extraordinary edpenses nolede CHE 478 million
related to an overstatement of trading inoome in 2007,
Extraordinary expenses in 2007 were immaterial.
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Additional balance sheet information

Allowances and provisions

Prestsions Reaipweses,
appled in doubitful et haw
axordane CLPENICY Provisions proviions
Balance & wilh Ber tramd alisn mleaed cherged i Galance at
CHF mAon 310207 spachied purpose  Reclasifcations dhfferanzes. Inczme Income 3.12.08
Dedault nsks [credi and coentry risk) 1035 1481] 3 506} 1,504 1,556
Tradng portishy fists ' 4,554 ) ) W30 14,858
Lagaton fsks |58 1457 . 1471 ) 13k (33} | 450 1,078
Operational fisks 154 1203] - ) 187 (280 i 157
Retirement hanefit plar 1ar ] B - [ (1} 52 54
Dedarred tanes 3 - 2 3 %
[ T2 349 (2,672] L4 H 244} 71 1,333
Tatal allcwances and prov slons A5G {3,615} 47} T2 11077 14,4083 19,112
Alywen ces. deduched from assets 5,526 16,368
Total provisions as per balance sheet 3,870 1,724
+ The incTease mars Maa By it T8 e of Flesed IRcams, CUimencies and Commadities (00 inthe imedment Bant.  © Indedks the o proseiones il FCTION Rr Wik (ARG e o

N bes s by IS A4 Mo s Gy of CHF 027 milion(LSDI365 P, e 0wt of CHF 407 RN ha s peps e, T Emiione, hans s paiatly g, and the teskfual
arayd i o OHF D63 milken was eclamsliad o mwwllmamMEWDIFMWJB}MWMIIM‘I‘hLﬁ".Uﬁwmw
ta "Hote 1 Fividors anel Wgatiens™| 3The 31 Dacoreber 3008 talaay i of subsikasies 0 hew 3 Gapbal Sk ol approsivctily CHE 537 million
a0 provisons wesh agphe o T A of ANGEDTRAS. 1 SAESARAI 1 CHF 670 . in ackNion, pasvisoes R A CARMNR GO ot Kasshol] FprTmamencs, ponfions fo smplogss
B ig fRernios s e imike and sabhareal ek aw maink indefed nthis e

Statement of shareholders” equity
Tiatal
sharehalders’
Conoral slagetory Ganaral slavetony aquity (befare
TasEnAE: reserves:  Reserses for ovm Other distributicn
ChY miln Shaee capi Lal Shere premum  Felained sangs R [T af prafit)
Az o 31.92.06 and 1.1.07 11 6,260 2,015 9,114 27,268 44,908
Concellation af ewn shanes ] 12.411) (2,415
Lapild iscreme L ) ) ) i3
EieEsE if Padsnas a57 1A5T)
Prior pear daidend ) ) ) 14,275 (4,275
PrafiL{ [berist) fir the perind [4,251) (4,251)
Changes in eeres for own shanes T {EF]
Az ed M.A207 and 1.1.08 Fl 6,303 2472 9,441 15,567 33,990
Cancellation of pan shases ) ) ) i
Copild iscregs’ B 15,011 {15) 15,962
Lopild iscrese related 5o NS 16,223 ) ) 18,233
Incresse in rasersey ) . o )
Frion pear dividend o
PrafiL{ [beeis) far the periad 136,459) [36,46%9]
Changes in reserees lor o shares I,E.Sﬁll]_ G, 554 [} )
Trarrders” (18,901 12.473) 14,373 0
Az of 31.12.08 293 26,538 o 2877 o 28,706
+ lachides dock diibead. o Sabid b appicesl By the Arnal Gerel Besting on 15 A 1005
g
g
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Share capital
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Far valug Rankisg fo dividends
Capsal in CHF

hia. of shares Ho of sharas Cagital in CHF

79084471

On 31 Decarnber 2008, a maximum of 100,415 shares can
be rssued against the future exercse of options from foomer
PaineWebber emplovee option plans. These shares are
shown as conditional share capital in the UBS AG (Parent
Bank) disclasura,

[uring 2006, sharehalders aporoved the creation of con-
ditanal capital of up 19 a maximum of 150 milion shares 1o
fured UBS's ernplayee share option programs. In 2007, 5,704
tharas had been issuwed under this pragram. The remaining
conditional capital 1o fund LIES's emploves share aption pro-
grams amounts to 149,994 205 shares,

ars

Qn 27 February 2008 the extraordinary ganeral mesting of
shareholders approved the creation of a maximen of CHF
10,370,000 in authonzed capital, allowang the disteiution of a
stock dividend. Additionally, on 23 April 2008, the Annual Gen-
aral Meating of sharzholdars (AGM) approved acapital increase
that resulted in the isuance of 760,295,181 fully pad regi-
tered shares. In addion, during 2008, shareholoers approved
the creation of conditional Cagetal in & masmurm amount of
&4, 750,000 shares for the two issuances of mandatory con-
wartible notes (MCMs], Far further information, refer ta Note 26
1o the financial staternents.
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Off-balance sheet and other information

Assets pledged or assigned as security for own obligations and assets subject to reservation of title

.12 .08 Nnazm Change i= %
CHF milion Book value  Effective llability ook walus Effecive Rahiity Bk walue Effectve fatibly
Maney masket paper 1419 1279 257 42 5
Morpane bass 3589 I 155
Sequrities 50,333 | az 48,357 (500 {250
e 5,148 E5I8 2]
Total 65,500 121,441 51,965 (43) 1211

Financial assets are mainby phedged in seourtes bommowing and
lending tranzactions, in repurchase and reverse repurchase
tramgactions, under collateralized credit lines weth central

Commitments and contingent liabilities

banks, against loans from mortgage institutions, in connection
with derivative transactions and for security deposits ralating
1 stock exchange and clearmghouse membserships,

% change hom
CHF millen A10e ey EALE
ComingEntBBUIES e e T M— EEIDE 2]
S i —— bl o
Uiabd e for calts on shares and other equitles L — L s
Cofimed credies 1,078 2630 {21}

UBS AG is jointly and severally liable for the value added tax
{WAT) liabdity of Swiss subsidiaries that belong o its WAT

Mg,
UBS has an obligation 1o deliver 100 mullion ondinary LIBS
shases, subject to ant dilution adjustments, in exchange for

payment of the par value of thase shares, if the SNB incurs a
loss an its loan provided to the SNE StabFund upon termina-
tion of this fund, If LES would be required 1o delwer those
shares, UBS intends 1o settle this obligatien using conditianal
capital {subject to shaseholders” appraval).

Derivative instruments
31,12.08 311207

Mokicral Hotional

amcaant amnznt
£ miion o' MV CHEBm PR HRV: CHF b
et rate confracts 7307 370,38 36,478 167,334 11585
Lot darfenive contracts 302,387 187218 112 5,451
Fareign exchange costeacts IATE RN 8,005 115
Procious messl contracts 5,804 5,657 1688 14
£quity/ indes contracts 0,502 36,208 473 6D
Commadities contiaces, awrluding precioes metals cosracts 77,088 25,387 180 4
Tetl desiative imsruments 863,203 854,510 46,934 48,111
s pliscammail sl e petling 61,001 6A1.402
P plascemenl sl ues slter netting 01,601 193,106
1 PHI: Posftise replacsment valve. 1 MEY: Mleggatnes replacemernt valie

3’9
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Fidueiary transactions
% changa fram

EHE mien 11.12.08 ETR i 1.1247
Deposts
witherkals
with group banks
Total
Due to UBS pension plans

For the year anded % change from
CHE millgn .93.08 EIRE 3nar
D by LIES parcios plans and UBS debit isstrements ke b by pession plars 76 443 a5
Sexurities bomewed fom parsios plans a 2379 1100
Personnel

Farent Bank personnel was 40,998 on 31 December 2008 and 45,102 on 31 December 2007,

Significant shareholders

Chase Mominees Lid,, Londen, acting in ifs capacity as a & US sscurifies dearng arganzation, was registered as a
nominee far other imvestars, was registered with 7.19% of  shareholder for a large rnumber of benefical owmers with
all shares isseed an 31 December 2008, compared wath  3.85% of all shases issued on 31 December 2008 (14.15%
7.9%% at year-end 2007 and 8.81% at year-and 2006. DTC  on 31 December 2007},

{Cede & Col), Mew York, The Depository Trust Company,

380
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Corporate governance and compensation report

Compensation details and additional information for executive members of the BoD
CH exragd vehare ingheatea®

Asnuad ncentive  Discrationay Cosvrbutions.

e the Annud ingentive  awadishans  award [opliom Barlit Lo meliramant
Wame, fuscion' vexended  Heme sabry amard [cash) — fair v}t —far valel in kind” be=efits plans Toriad
Peser Kurer, Charman pie i) 1,333,233 i}

i
arced Ospel, Chaman pie i) GGG, 567 i}

Pl X 000,000 o
ftephan Heerin i) 1,125,000 i}
Exutive Vica Chaiman e e 5
Petarco Suler, Expcutive Vice Chairman Pl ]

Pl 1,125,000 1] a a 0,820 155,262 1,351.072

1 H0E: Petes Kuer wes the orly szontise member in office on 31 Devemizer Marced Ospel did rot stand for re-edsction in fpril 2008 and Stephan Hietingss sepped down Suring the year 252 member
af the BoD. Both their prymerts are pro-rete for e fow respedtiee nive-marth periods sesed in then fundiors. 2007 Marmo Seber sepped Sown during the year a5 2 member of the Boll His 2007
pagTER Wes peo-saks for Bve rene-month period teresd s Boative Wios Chaismen

Explanations of compensation details for executive members of the BoD and members of the GEB:

4. Local cumencies ane carmerted o CHF using the exchanges rafes s detaiied in “Note 39 Currency translation rates” i the financial statements
of this repart

b. Vadues per share at grant; CHF 36,15/ U050 32,55 for shares granted in 2008 related to $he performance year 2007, CHF prices are the avmrage
price of LIS shares at 5WH Europe cwer the last 10 trading days of February, and LED prices are the awerage price of UBS shares at the NYSE
cver the last 10 trading days of February in the year in which they are granted.

£, Ma options wem granted in 2002 for the perfammarce pear 2008,

d, Benefits in kind — car kasing, company car allossance, staff dscount on banking products and serices, health and welfare benefits and ger-
eral expense allcevances — are all valued at market price,

. Sumiss sEniar expcutvgs partcipate i the same persion plan as all other emplopess, Under this plan, emplopees receia a company contributon

%o the plan which covers compersation up s CHF 820,800 The retirernent berefits corsit of a pension, a bridging persion and a cne-aff
paymut of acoumulated capital Employees muest also contribute 4o the plan. This figure sxchudes the mandatory employers social secunty
contributions (AHY, ALy but includes the portion attributed 1o the employers portion of the legal BYG mquiement, The employee contribe-
tion & induded in the base salany and annual incentve award componants.
In boah the US and she UK, senor exeutves participate in the same plans as all other employees. In the US there are two different plans, one
of which aperates on a cash balance basis, which entitles the parbicipant 1 receive & company contribation based on compersation limited 1o
LD 250,000, This plan 5 nd langer avalable to news hires. LS senaor executives may abo partiopate in the LIBS 401 K-defined coniributon
plan iogen te all employees), whech prowides a company matching contribwtion for employee confrisutions, In e UK, senior executives par-
ficipate in gither the principal persion plan, which is limited to an eamings cap of GEF 100,000, or a grandfamerad defined benedit plan which
prowides a persion on retrement based on career average base salary furcappedi.
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Remuneration details and additional infermation for independent members of the BaD
CHE mapt wharg (ndicaten®

& 3
=
i BEifrgsy p g -
-!iﬂ Eégi g ﬁE E AGM 10 Comeiltes Benelits Addsund gl Mamter

tame, fusczon’ 458 =288 Ak Basefes  rsanmlst mknd pamens  Tod g chanes®
Emesan Berfareli, MM NCAINH  FISE00 300000 . 9 535000 0 5156

J M | NOWENE ISLO0 150000 a a arsme e MEr
Sally Bati, M Mo NCAINH LS00 TRO00 . a 7375m 0 1m0
b 20702005
RarerMachey, M M F0EO009 LS00 150000 . L 16158
b 20702005
Beuo Gahwiy, ' B | NCAINH LS00 1BAO00 . 1 263,500 13
b 0702005
Gabele Baufmaen- oo Mo NCAINH TS0 350000 o 575,000 i T
Fobita, membar Mo m  HoT008 GO0 0w 4 o 575000 EL R
Sergn Marchionne, W W 0007 325000 200000 o 280000 775,000 R
el B
dirpcor, vice chaiman "] HOTA008  IXSO00 200000 a 4 55000 W00 166
Rotf & Wy, M M © M0A0009  MEZI00 150000 1 0 312,500 AL
vkt s s i s s s i e
Helmet Fanke, M M 0000003 35000 300000 1 0 ea%.000 TR
oo g e o s e e
Villam . Paelt, [ © M0A0009  MEZE00 100000 1 0 282,500 L
s i - BrprfoqBon S s SR B xS S
D Sichrl], 1 o 778000 i 4007
sl U GO e LLnmaee L
Peter Souhie: 0 0 182,500 0 155
. s e i A e
Peter L osar C 0 o 728000 TR
=ember [ I 0 625,000 0 10162
Lawrence A Weirkach, & W00 MEZE00 100000 0 0 282,500 115
o i s i e s e e
Ioerglle, L © HeO0ms 35000 300000 0 0 828000 i 3136
poois Mntn R B g et o R e
Tatal 2008 €,437,500
Tetal 2007 5,675,000

Lagerd: € = Charman of the respagtive commimee, M = Mamber of the respecthe meminee

o Thewe w10 indpé et BoD m enbers.in oTice o 31 Degens ber 2008, Do Sichsd| was appoimied of T AGM an 73 Aprd 7008 and Solf & Mesel Foler Spa bl and Lamronds & ViinBah Sepped
kw4 B i the EGM a0 2 Dcsober TO083, Sl B, Raert-Mart g 0400 Gofv aond B 5. Passet wesa apuied it e EGH o0 2 Duaober 7003, o Porminianions b o s montts ok, 5
S0 VRS it ] W, 24 Wbt Apguiiad on T Dctober 3001+ Foes ank b 508 1) st ane 08 in i) UBS s Homswt, nckgmrckint BOCh o bets i 48t 52 e B0 of
bt reaaertion i i reiTiosed UES shares.  Fot J008, shiaws v at CHF | 133 wirage g of UIES shares 1 SWW Eurogs over T8 st 10 maging cys of Rty J0090 tntatsa whth o pice
st o 15%, ) price CHF 967 The shares e bock T Vot Y. For 3007, st vk CHF 36,15 Getagy prick of 1ES i 31 SUCK Fuiopi v 7 L 10 3acin] days of Febiiany
200D, anvibuted itk a plios deoont ol 155, dht.u.l'l'ml'.'HF 31 75 T sheris a8 biockad ol four yeass o Hamber o sheavs & e in o of the 1009 pledian fo Sed i sodia | securiny coniibu-
Hon 2l tion orywwent ane s baied 1o sodal ab e, o TS PayTCot 15 assockate with ©¢ rewhy creaied Tenction of a senior independen] diecion

I 2o, 0e-oH cash payments Wi made o the ciai of the 15X commites |CHF 500,000, The g JCHF 300,000¢ and the human resosces and compssition
commktze iCHF mmmm--smummu munrmppmgmucmaumuqunnummpmwuirmuahgm;um
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Total payments ta all members of the BoD

Far the
CHE asTapt wihove snohcafad’ yoar anded Total
e T e oo0m00000mR e e e GRS O Lprpt)
and_bmuﬁhrﬂd} 2007 11,367,128
Total compensation for all members of the GEB
W earege vebare incNcated”
Anneal
meentiee  Disctinsary Conribetnm
Aanusl amaed aresnd 1o eetitesent
For the et (shares; {optans, Banafits bemedins
Mama, fuscion yaar anded Hwe salary  avandfcaeh)  fainwaluwel firewlual n kind? plans® Tartal
Marced Rnknes, Group Chied Enpcutivs Officer
(Bi gherst-paid] piek] 1, 500,000 4 a [ G168 .1:5.!.9?4 1,814,702
Ry Tzpner, Chaiman &
CEO s Pacfic {haghedt-pand} o 1,291,960 4,501,500 4,500,504 T 10,256 B0 10306530
Anyregate of al members of the GEE wia
were 0 offce on 31 December 2008 2008 TBISHS LI LI O dasies2  B13IS  9p0gn
Aggregate of all members of the GEB wh
wam inoffce cn 31 Docombar 2007 J007 §PRERE  1SIOREST  NsASME .. b BELI0E | BaM  mosidg
Aggragate of all mambers of the GES wan
sapped daun g 3002 we 16148 LR LR DM amanm 10813
Liggragate of all members of the GE2 win
stepped derun durisg 2007 piehy 2501947 13042 3% 6,750,036 [ 06,567 175,635 33,586,560

1 Hurebe gad distritation o sevior eosutives. 2008 12 GEB rmembestin olioe on 1 Deombes 207 eght GER membest imglioe on 3 December - Numer e st ebution of senipe eoscuthes
m::m&m mhhlm GER meamibeat kg Prter Baset eight, moetbs in oflice Tor Mg Sute and |0 monthes i doe Sooby 2007 inchude) rong monthy in offoe o luw knbieg gl {ive
A0 3ix PG
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Share and option ownership of members of the BoD at 31 Deceamber 2007/2008

For 8 Fumber of ‘Voting rights Memtarod  Fosantially condamad Tppe and quantity
Mame, fuzction’ year anded shases hald n% optons held  votisg right in %° of nptom
Petar Kuser, Charman 2008 416,082 0025 AT 6G5 a6 W 85 256
. 85913
sk 55913
..................................................................... . B9
oa? FLer i [ehir ] 250,000 agdn L Bl a0
il Eoils il
sl 80 a0
b 50 000
Tergio Maichisnne, 08 27,02 0005 a Qoo
sanr isdependent dractor wice dhadman 7 45,800 0008 o a0
Emian Berfanali, member ] 29,434 [l L] 0000
07 48,411 s a anen
Sally o, mermiber 2008 1 Xl a anon
2007
Rainai-Maes Fay, meaimibesd 2008 o Xl a anon
2007
Brus Gehel, meshar 2008 3.000 Xl a Qoo
2007
Gatwieli Baifmann Kokle, member ] 18,713 oo L] 0000
07 3,303 o a anen
Hel et Fanke, membay 2008 .M oz a anon
07 13,26 o a anen
‘ilkan G. Faimett, mermber 2008 4,000 Xl a anon
2007
Danid Sichwll, oz mbser 2008 1 Xl a . anon
2007
Peaai R iosar, member 2008 iAz3 oz 1 anon
07 10,580 o a anen
TneigWealle, member 2008 41,509 oz 1 anon
207 7,708 oo a1 Q0en

i This table iida g wistial, ivactod, Biocked and apbdadked shoe and apnioes k] by merabeds of o BaD inclualing wiared pamis. @ B oobestdon ghis aie cetstanding. o Ref 5o "Hotw 11
Bty e P, 3 0 SRR COMGaresat i e IO i ncia| Saberments of This rofeat 1o M ik mation

384
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Compensation paid to former members of the BoD and GEB'

CHE wrops ushare indhcatad®
For the Benedits in
Name, function year endd Compensaton kind Toral
Gaoropes Bium, Eormer mesmbr af the Ball T IS -1 5
(5wt Bask Coeporation) a7 50,803 90,803
frmne el e e el i B T fajsef G936
(Smiss Bask Covporation) ma7 62,174 62,174
kel Fisten , EExmen ke it Bl T e —
(imiss Back Corporation) 007 73061 73,061
L iawsal] e o s o 2 Bk T S AT 1
(imiss Back Corparation) 007 4231 Az,
Robert Studer, fammer member of the Sab Ioog 126,108 126,208
fUmicn Bank ol Switerland) 007 260,162 260,162
il ol g bner ke, i I AT T2 5 e LTI
(UB%) 007 28,401 SREE 0 AET
Philippe de¥ved:, fomer member of the 2ol 008 109,703
it Bank of Svitzerisnd e .
Lggregate of all former me=hers of the GEB- e 171,180
a7 a 257,791 257,791
Eipoom Gae ot ol e b ot SR ] CEEY T — HBAR1 1103581 143200
07 B4 1 4IBEE1 1735882
1 Companmition or remureration £t |5 connedted meth S Sormer members” sctfeky on the Bol oo GEE, orthet s nok ot madet condbioes. 3 Inchudes twe foomey GES members
E
-]
(-]
-
8
E
385 |
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Share and option ownership of membaers of the GEE at 31 December 2007/2008

For 8 Pumber of ‘Voting rights Memtarod  Fosantially condamad Iypundq.lmlir[
Mame, fuscion' yaar anded shases held n% opanns held  votisg dghts in %° of nplans

Marced Rohees, med T11.356 oz 1055, 43 0063

31aM
Group Chiel Exscutive Officer

213,140
20700
ELLRA
203,140

207 300,845 0042 LEElRE] aras

EELIE

lodn Cryan, 208 1359 ETH 3EL.673 an23
Group Chet Financial Officar

ERLIBRAEES EE
o
BREE

qE
EREREE
E SIS Snen
R

mil 10210

ke L Dieshelm, 0a 112,245 ooT 2 Qe o
Group Geseid Cousdd i

lukn &, Fraser, n0a 583,812 0035 1,144,808 QGa
Lhaimmen and CE0

Global Asset Managemant

36013
76,380
127 524
127534
IML51T
02483
113,140
ML
52,560
71672
120000

e 4560, M54 ool 1,074,232 0085

Barten Hoskalra, 20d 45,397 G5 G54 16E ooy
Depuly CEO GhobalWeal

Management & Besisess Basking

anid Head Wealth Managemant LS

JEERTEINN EREEARET ERIERRAT
&
g

EER
22
EE

leriker Johamason, nod 521,58 a3 T5E4H 005
‘Chaimmen and CE0 lsvesimest Bank

1 This table induces sested and uwested shaies apd optioes held by member of the GEB induding mired pares. 1 Hooomersion rights are ouzstznding. = Refer to “Mote 31 Equity paricipation
s ather compereation plars” i the fnasdal sateme s of @ repot: for moes infoemation.
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Share and option ownership of members of the GEE an 31 December 2007/2008 (continued)
For the Numbir of ‘ating rights Bumbar of  Fotenially condamed Typa and quantity
Hare, fuscion’ e mried chares held in% optiore held — volisg rights is %: of ot

Philip L Lo, 208 186,434 &1 577,723 alest] 11,445
Group Chied Fisk Officer 11,104

%5}5 E E.EEEEE EE E; Pl
B

ialier Sluerzinge, 208 296 EEG [FRIRES 373,995 Q022
Chiel Cperating Officar

207 09447 0019 350,000 Qo031

Reay Tapreey, 208 a1 ae EEE] 1,379,533 Qa2
Chairman and CE0 Aza Padific

L 504,385 HE 1,254, 485 Qs

Reanud Yiimil, 08 3569 k] 431408 Q026

Chairman and C£0 Gobal Wealih
L & Butises Basking.

relinquished Bis duties on

&n inlerim besi

TREX BRERERA BREREAA(ERRE FRERE
3

a7 2123 ng w05, 752 Q03s

i,
s
ik
ik
Aleaander Wikson-Sswell, ] 04555 [ E 353,847 i i
Chalrman and CE0, UBS Geoup EMEA, (EE0TH 2130
and koint Global Head I Depart=est i
[EET
al
ik
ahi

Robert Wolf 2004 217,20 [RRi ] Qa3 472 fali] i
Chearman and JE0, UBS Geoup nal:
Americas ! President invest=ent Bank J.:I‘M 12758
| |
ak
ahii

o7

ITH:uNIMIIdIﬂIHer!llBIHm-Md members of the GEE inceting rdred paties. 1 Ho oomerson leowganding o Refe o Mxe 30 EARCpatian
Hmhmmmdln'hﬂuﬁmﬂllmdnh?ﬁthmm L =
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Vested and unvested options held by independent members of the BoD and
by members of the GEB on 31 December 2007 / 2008

Mem bar of ophines

e

]
[]
i

BOECEEEIN WL EIEITE

i
L
il
-

56013
B5TD
BAT
AT

ey

31,85

ERELES

6,20
BEIT

12815
B.E51
G

738
5490

ELNE

31971

33611

330

33,585

415513
.59
7354
1354

213,140

31571

Az 5

57 356

52,350

57 584

533 850

435,537

14310

14310

57,485

537477

383,552
ERE ]

a,254

557

0,547

1,332,125

17,62
1762
1760

1,348 1%

LERLL
S05478
T8 5450

T44

faar of gint
2001

SEEEECER R R ERRR R R R R R 8RR

|:|1

Vesting date
2007 2004
3100 200z
31012008
3100 2005
3101200z
3100 20048
3101 2005
3100 25
28052002
2907, 204
28012005
28022
280520048
2802 25
2806 2005
2806, 205
01.03.2008
01032005

03,2011

Eapiny date  Sulbscripiion o
1
14|
1
14|
1
14|
1
Tl
11
Tl
LH
(H]
LH
(H]
LH
(H]
LH
(H]

Sirike price
CHF 3552
Us 2134
s 2134
Us 2134
CHF 3543
CHF 35453
CHF 3543
Us0 2124
UED 2170
D 2170
UED 2170
CHF 3565
CHF 3565
CHF 3565
CHF 3750
CHF 3750
CHF 2721
CHF 2T 21
CHFZTE0

38s
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Loans granted ta members of the BoD at 31 December 2007/2008

CHE aucage vebare incheatact
Farthe
ame, fuscion’ yoar e
Pefar Kurar, Charman® 1008
e
Sergio Miarchionza, Saninr lsdepesdent Director, ice Chamman 2008 a q [
Sy e G .
Emesto Bertareli, membar 1008 a L] 1]
e
Sally Bom, member 1008
e
Pesizar-Mar: Frey, membes 1008 a L] 1]
Sy
Bruno Gahsg, member? 1008 TEl, 000 L] 48,000
Shr
Gabsalle Kxf=azn-totler, membar 1008 a L] 1]
e B G .
Helmut Panke, member 1008 a L] 1]
e B G .
Wilkam G. Pamett, mesber 1008 1,167,659 L] 1, 167 A5G
Sy
Dovad Sidwell, ma=ber 1008 a L] 1]
S
Petar AL Woesar, masher 1008 a L] 1]
e B G .
loarg Walle, member 1008 a L] 1]
S B G .
Anzragste of all mambers of the 2ol 1,206,659 k] 1,226 655
1 Ho ks hawe bem granted to retabed porties of e membes of the: oD ot conditiors not castomeny i the marbet. 2 Seouied i granbed pror b ther ledion o the Boll
Loans granted to members of the GEB at 31 December 2007/2008
CHY, garagd vehare indkcatea”
Far the Ditheer ke
mame, fuscion’ e pnded Secured loans gransd’ Tortal
Markos . Disthum, Group General Counsal ... 0k LBE0d IO L0000
loa anby, Group Chief Risk Offiar? 2007 a 1,145, 15 3,145,756
Aggragain of  manbers of the GEB! ... 0k Jlmoser ] [ite
Aggragaie of all mambers of the GEB 2007 347,000 1,145, 196 6,632 156
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Acknowledgement of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We agree to the inclusion in the Securities Report on Form 8 filed with the Director-General of Kanto Local
Finance Bureau, of our reports dated 5 March 2009 (except for the impact on the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto of the restatements made to the financial statements 2008 as described in note 1b of
the 2008 consolidated financial statements, as to which the date is 20 May 2009), with respect to the UBS AG

consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the UBS
AG (Parent Bank) financial statements.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Andrew Mclintyre Dr. Andreas Blumer

Licensed Audit Expert Licensed Audit Expert

June 30, 2009
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UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Basel, 5 March 2009
except for internal control over financial reporting related to the restatements made to the financial
statements 2008 as described in note 1b as to which the date is 20 May 2009

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited UBS AG’s internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2008, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). UBS AG’s management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting on page 251. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States of America). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
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disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, UBS AG maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of 31 December 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with Swiss law, Swiss Auditing Standards, International
Standards on Auditing and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States of America), the consolidated balance sheets of UBS AG as of 31 December 2008 and 2007,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended 31 December 2008 and notes thereto, of UBS AG and our report dated
5 March 2009, except for the impact on the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of the
restatement of the consolidated financial statements 2008, as described in note 1b as to which the date
is 20 May 2009, expresses an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Andrew Mclntyre Dr. Andreas Blumer
Licensed Audit Expert Licensed Audit Expert
(Auditor in Charge)

382/390



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

2009
1b 2008
2009 20
256 370
2008 2007 12 31 2008 12 31
Il FRS
Il FRS
2008 2007 12 31 2008 12 31

Audi tor Oversight Act ' AOA’
Code of Obligations ' CO’ 728 AOA1l1l

383/390



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooo0000
CO 728 a 890
COSO
2008 12 31
2009
2008 1b 2008
2009 20
Andrew Mclntyre Dr. Andreas Bl umer

2008

384/390



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Basel, 5 March 2009
except for the impact on the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of the restatements
made to the financial statements 2008 as described in note 1b, as to which the date is 20 May 2009

Report of the Statutory Auditor and the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on
the Consolidated Financial Statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of UBS AG which are comprised of the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements
of income, changes in equity and cash flows, and notes thereto, for each of the three years in the
period ended 31 December 2008 on pages 256 to 370.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board, and the requirements of Swiss law. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law, Swiss Auditing Standards, International
Standards on Auditing and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States of America). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal
control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
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accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of UBS AG at 31 December 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated
results of operations and the cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December
2008 in accordance with IFRS, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and
comply with Swiss law.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We confirm that we meet the Swiss legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight
Act (AOA) and independence (article 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and article 11 AOA) and that
there are no circumstances incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm
that an internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States of America), UBS AG’s internal control over financial reporting as of 31
December 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated 5
March 2009, except for internal control over financial reporting related to the restatements made to the
financial statements 2008 as described in note 1b of the 2008 consolidated financial statements, as to
which the date is 20 May 2009, expresses an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Andrew Mclntyre Dr. Andreas Blumer
Licensed Audit Expert Licensed Audit Expert
(Auditor in Charge)
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To the General Meeting of

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Basel, 5 March 2009

Report of the Statutory Auditor on the Financial Statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements which comprise the balance sheet,
income statement and notes on pages 371 to 389 of UBS AG for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Board of Directors’ responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
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In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 comply with Swiss law
and the company’s articles of association.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act
(AOA) and independence (Art. 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and Art. 11 AOA) and that there are no
circumstances incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm
that an internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial

statements in accordance with the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Andrew Mclntyre Dr. Andreas Blumer
Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)
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